
.1-iU.~U..:.:>I... .J...::::, .J..';100 /I .Friday, 
II ---
1· 
IJ 

1: 
,: 

l.U!UO 

MORNING SESSION 

1 THE'CLERK: Civil actions 44309 and 447o6, Robert 

2 .c~~rles Jordan, Jr. versus C. J. Fitzharris, et al for further 

3 8vedenciary hearing. 

4. MR. COHLER: ReadY. for the Plaintiff and Petitioner. 

5 IvJ\. GRANUCCI: Ready for the Defendants, Your Honor. 

6 • HR. COHLER: Please call Sergeant William Thomas Frederick. 

7 ' WILLIAM THOHAS FREDERICK, 

s c2lled as a witness by the Plaintiff, vlho, being first duly 

g :sworn, testified as follows: 

10 

ll 

THE CLERK: Please state your full name and address. 

THE WITNEss·: William Thomas Frederick, Correctional 

12 Serg.eant, Soledad Correctional Facility. 

13 1: THE CLERK: Thank you. 

•' 

15 ::BY :,;_,q. COBLER: 
:; 

DIRECT EXAHINATION 

-- -- --- ---------·---------
-----

16 Hit. COHLER: Q •. Sergeant Fre~~o you pronounce ------- .---·-
17 your name as if there was an 11 s 11 at the end, as 11 Fredericks"? 

A. I do. 

· l9 :! ~~. And you are presently employed at th¢ Correctionap 

20 ~Facility in Soledad, Californi?? 

"·;1! 1 A. Yes, sir. " 
ii 

2211 q. About hovr long have you been so emp1oy,ed '( 

23 !i A. 
7" 

About nine years the 9th of this month. 
II 

r . 
24 1! Q. Sergeant, I would like to review your recent positions 

251vlith you, please. Were you a Relief Adjustment Center 

II 



1 : sergeant for one year in 1963, and 1964? 

2 r believe so. I don't remember the exact dates, but I 

3 believe so. 

t;,. ·~. And following that, Sergeant, were you Third Hatch Relief 

5 Sergeant for about 12 or 14 months until June of 1965? 

6 A. Yes, sir. 

7 · i~. And since June of 1965, Sergeant, have you been the 

s S8conCl \-Jatch Adjustment Center Sergeant on O-Wing, and also 

9 1·Second Watch Sergeant in A-Wing? 

10 A. Correct. 

11 · Q. Is Unit Three of the institution composed of three wings, 

12 •. o, A, and X-1.-hngs'.r'. 

13 · A. Yes, sir. 

14 :: Q. Within Unit Three is there Orientation and so-called 

15 Close-Custody Wing? 

16!' A. Yes. 
'I 

17 /J Q. And also within Unit Three, do O-Wing and X-Wing 
II 

18 i1presently comprise what is known as the Adjustment Center? 
[I 

19:; A. Yes.· 
:, 

.zo li 
11 

21 ti 
! ~ 

Q~ 

A. 

Since June of 1965, -v;hen you; were assigned,? 

l believe so. 
'I 

22 il Q. On .the first floor of O-Wing there are two corridors, 
I' 

23 !/is tl1at correct? 
I' 24 lj I A. Yes.· 
I 

25 Q. East and West'.? 

• -. I 
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2 ! 

/i 
,I 
I' 

ii 
II 

A. That is correct. 

Q. And the cells off the east corridor are knovm as 

t;, A. That termin·ology has been -- 1.vell, it's 1\:nmm actually 

5 . actually it's the Grade I Section, but this has been --

6 . THE COURT: Please speak louder. 

7 THE \viTNESS: Actually it's the Grade I Section, the 

8 ·: ec-,st side is the Grade I Section of the Adjustment Center, but 

9 ·~ ti1e, Terminology 111'fax Rmv 11 comes from sometime back. We 
,! . 

1o, continued to use this terminology, but it's not correct. 

11 Q. Explain wha't Grade I means. 

12 ·; .A. The Adjt~stment Center is comprised of ti.vo buildings, 0-

13 ', Hing and X-Wing, and Grade I is the first floor, Grade II 

14 comprises the second and third floors of O-Wing, and Grade III 

15 ·comprises the X-Wing, the program section of the Adjustment 

16 ,, Center. 
i: ,, 

17: Q. \fuat does that mean, Sergeant, please'.' 

18 ;i A. That is the section where inmates are offered a program; 
tl 

· 19 !i it is a graduated process. ·· They may begin in O-Wing and 
!i I 

20 li graduate to X-Wing. They ~ave opportunities for academic 

21 !J instruction, arts and crafts, yard facilities. They have more 
II 

22 il exercise, more other pri vi1eges in terms of visits and can teen 
!I 

23 ifprivileges and so forth. 

24 II Q. \IJha t part of the program, as you described it, i.vhich is 

25 J available in X-Wing and which deals with such matters as 



._ { ( 

~l . education or counseling, is not available in O-Wing? 

2 ,I A. Would you repeat your question'? 

3 :! Q. Certainly I will. Is there a part. of the program, as 

<: :; )'OU have described it, which is available in X-'lling but not in 

5 ·. u-'vfing ·: 

6 ii A. No , sir • 

7. · Q. No educational program? 

8 A. Hell, occasionally some inmates will request cell 
' 

9 ;correspondence courses, and at the present time we do not have 

.10 •' an instructor. w'hen I said that the inmates are authorized 

l1 1 2.rts and crafts and academic courses in X-vJing, they have also, 

12 :'.l.nttl recently -- our instructor transferred and the institution 
I' 

13 :1 has been unable to. hire a replacement, but when the instructor 

14 Has here he would, on his o-vm, go into O-Wing and make 

15 1arranGements tor cell correspondence courses to inmates that 
I, 
I' 

16 ;~requested same. 
I• 

Q. Would that be t~ue of inmates detained on the first floor 

U- \ving as vrell? . 

A. Not in the isolation section. 

' · Q. That is on the other side? 

A. Un the west side, correct. 

Q. And that has been true since at least June of 1965''-

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And ho1v many cells are there all together on the west 

25 :!side, the isolation section? 
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1 
A. A total of 24 cells. 

() 
J.; ' 

Q. And that has been true since at least June, 1)165, 1vhen 

3 
1! you ·Here assigned? 

4 !!. A. Yes·,. sir. 

5 Q. Are there ld cells at the forward part of that west 

6 ·corridor ivhich are known as isolation cells? 

7 . A. Yes. 

8 · ·::t. And are there six other cells at the rear of that vmst 

9 1 corridor on the .first floor, sometimes kno'Vm. as quiet cells. and 

10 :~sometimes strip cells? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 .. Q. And is that true since at least June, 1965? 
"\ 

13 i A. That is correct. 

14 1; Q. You personally sometimes refer to these rear cells as 

15 ::quiet cells and sometimes q.s strip cells? 

16 A. Yes, sir. 

17 ,• 
!I 

n 
"'" And, as best as.you can recollect, Sergeant, was the 

'I !. 
18 :,,:usage picked up from jargon of the inmates? 

II ,, 

" 
19 ·: A. As far as I am concerned, yes. 

20 !! Q. Since June, 1~65, have your responsibilities included 
I . ·. 

~2l:ilthose of Se~ond Watch Sergeant for both O-Wing and for A-vling? 
" il 

· 22 :: A. -Yes. 
ii 

23 il Q~ And have you spent at .least part of each day on duty in 
I) 

24 Ji U-I'll"., P' "'I 
~~ •La • 

25
11 A. I don 1 t spend as much in A-Wing. Most of my time is 
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1 involved in U-Wine, but I do check into A- Wing every day. 

I) .., Q. Do you make weekly inspections? 

3 A. Yes, l do. 

4 : w ' . You. go to A-Wing at least once on a given day·: 

5 ·, A. Yes. 

6 ' Q. Do you also conduct an orientation class in A-t~linP' '/ 
0 

7 A. This is correct. 

8 :~ Q. J.n the nature of custodial orientation vrhcre various 

9 ~ules are explained to inmates? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 · Q. You may explain more fully if you wish of vrha t this 

12 consists of. 

13 · A. Well, we make them aware of certain rules that are 

14 l! rwcessary in the various housing units throughout the insti tu-

15 ;i tion regarding count procedures, vlhere they may vlalk, where they 

16 ::can go and unlocks and loclc-ups, and the yard, and recreation 

17 ifacilities; and generally questions are asked concerning how 
I 

18 long they are going to be there. lt is a five-week orientation 

19 course and the classification process is explained· some-v1hat at 

20 litheir request. I dor:J.'t ordinarily do this. Ny orientation is 
II 

21 !irc:ther brief. It depetio.s on the group. It is a weekly group. 
1: 
,I 

22 Fhere is a total of five groups and each week I give a lecture,-

23ilyou might say, to each group. Some groups are more talkative 

24 ijthan others. · The cl~ss may be 15 or 20 minutes. Some classes 
II ' ' . ' ' 

25 (/as much as .an hour, hour-and~a-half, · but ··we do have different 
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, \ stnff membe~s throughout the ~nstitution -- the psychiatrists 
,J. 

2 to ~2ko -- recently has a recording and the gentleman that 

3 ';;orlcs f01 ... him comes doi.vn and makes ·his recording -- mail and 

4 'visiting officers, ·and the Associate Warden makes an 

5 · o~ientation lecture, the various --

6 Q. You refer to the psychiatrist. Is that a gentleman by 

7 . trw name of Dr. Hack, H-a-c-k? 

8 •. ~ 
.n.o Right. 

9 .Q. Is he a consulting psychiatrist? 

10 A. Yes, sir. 

11 Q. Have you now stated all your duties v!hich i .. 1ould require 

12 your making a daily check, a weekly inspection, and an orienta-

13 .· tion •:~eekly':' 

14 ' A. Hell, I check with the officer every day. There may be 

15 :·some inmates that have problems that he can 1 t handle. He might 
ij 

16 :i:::'efer them to me. Invariably he calls me on the telephone about 

17 ~:something. Normally there is correctional counselor that 
i' 

18 resi6es during the eight hours vli th the officer; because of this 

19 I dedicate most of my time to 0-Vling, but I do check in every 

20 cay. . ... 
:: 

21\: Q. These duties take approximately less than half yonr time, 

22 ildon 't they'! ' 
,I 

23 !\ A. Yes, sir. 

24)J Q. .And has. that been generally the case· since June, 1;965? · 
,I 

25 A. Yes, sir. 

I 
I 
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li 

1 
Q. Sergeant Frederick, would you please describe your 

2 
: rcs::'onsi bili ty as Adjustment Center Sergeant in 0-vling as it has 

"-been since June, lSJ65'? ,) ., -

4 A. l·::.y duties on O-Wing consist of the safe-keeping, the 

5 welfare, feeding and housing of all inmates. Also I assist in 

6 ·;::::;.intaining the place in a clean, sanitary condition. Addition- · 

7 'c.lly l set classification processes, and, also, I supervise A-Wing 

8 ~s much as I possibly can. 

g · .Q. Is part of your responsibility, Sergeant, as Adjustment 
-

10 ·:::enter Sergeant in O-Wing to train officers who have already 

11 "served a general in~titution training for the particular needs 

12 ·.in U:- \Ving ·: 

13 A. Yes. I am not the personpel training officer, but being 

14 a supervisor I am requirecf to help the officers do their jobs 
·' 

15 !properly. There are certain situations peculiar 

16 ·; Q. 'i·ihat are those certain factors "\vhich are peculiar to 
I 

17 !:the Adjustment Center 1 s setting lvhich you try to point out? 
I' 

:: 

1~ ~ A. Well, the Adjustment Center is a unique situation. It 
-I 

I' 

19 :iis an institution vli thin an institution and people that are 

20 liconfined there are unable to adjust in a general population. 
II 

21 ![The.Jr cannot, perhaps, get along with their peers and staff 
~ ' 

!I 
22 jfc:embers. They invariably violate the rules and regulatfons of 

~ -

23 lithe institution. Many of them are dangerous, have infli.cted 

24 ibhysical harm, have killed other people. :Hany of them may not --1 

2-5 11hcve done so, ~t they have the potential for it.· Ancl ,, __ genel'allyj 



that are confined in there are for segreeation 

2 ;purposes to enable -- all instutions, to give the majority of 

~~r general population, the majority of the inmates the 3 . 

, o~portunity· to progress and try to help themselves while they 

5 ·:rein prison, it becomes necessary to segregate a very small 

6 . r::inori ty and place them under more stern control ,,.,here they can 

7 ce observed closely and eventually try to get them out into-

s , so;ne general population in the future. 

9 Because.we are dealing with this type of people, it is 

10 o~vious that all officers should be very car~ful, should be very 

11 observant in the course of their duties. Cell searches must be 

12: conducted; they must observe the behavior of the inmates. This 

13 'is constantly stressed. The custodial functions, the observa-

14 tion of people, the situation where information is relayed to 

' 15 ,, one another, perhaps a person 1 s . behavior will regress and it is 

16 ~necessary>to bring it to the attention of the psychiatrist, for 

17 :: ~_;~mple; it is a number of things. I can 1 t think of everything at 
• I) 

18 lj this p&rticular moment. 

19 .: Q. Sergeant, you spoke of some inmates who had various 
,, 

20 !i characteristics 1;.rhich you say would require their being in the 
r 

21 ~Adjustment Center because they have the potential for being 
I! 

· 22 ii danP.erous · !I 0 • 

·~.- -

23"_lj Yes. 

24 
I . 
I 

Q. Hm·l is that potential judged? Through vlhat processes is 

25 f/it .det'errnined ·that the. p-otent.ia.a. e:x_is,t,P. f~:r ~ given inq1ate't 

II . 
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l A. Yes. I am not an expert on everything •:Ihenever dealing 

2 · ;ri tl1 people and som8times we can have a vr.co:J.g interpretation 

3 · '.:::en He initially see a pGrson, but it is when •.'le begin to kno\v 

4 ::E:, begin having personal l::novrledge and information that is 

5 ·available in the file, the way the man has behaved in the 

6 ;;eneral population -- the man may not have COlTh'Tii tted serious 

7 violations in terms of causi_ng some person physical harm, -but he-

8 say be a management problem; he may, \·There there in no moti va-

9 . tion for him to tali:e advantage of the program that is available 

1o ·· -:;o l1im, and he is constantly getting in trouble gambling or 

11 various other illeg~l activities -- that require separation for 

12 :1is .o,,m 1·relfare and to try to help him understand \·Jha t his 

13 'problem is and eventually --

14 Q. You mentioned a man who may have indulged in gambling. 

15 ·~loulo that be considered in the nature that he ought to be 

16 ::con.sidered for confinement? 
I; 
': 

17 .: A. un some occasj_ons, yes; other occasions, no. It depends ,. 
'I 

18 :ion the extent. 

19 · Q. Sergeant, in the course o~ trying to pass on to your 
,, 

20 !!officers in the Adjustment Center that inform.€_l.tion which is 
I . 

'I 
21 !ipeculiarly important to vrork in the Adjustment Center, do you, 

'I 
I• 

22 ljfrorn time to time, give any instructions or offer any advice with 

23llrospect to ;wmething lmo;m as a ,Suicide \1atch? 

24
\J . A. Yes'-· sir, occasionally. 

25
j Q. Vlould you tell the Court about that, please? 
I 
' 

I 



1 A. Hell, l'm not-- in the course of my duties I 1 m not 

2 , ,,-Lltllorizcd to strip any inmates unless I receive approval or 

3 : ,,l~t:~orization from my supor:i_ors. Ho1vever, there are a fevr 

4 'occasions l·rhen it 1 s a matter of judgment; perhaps my superiors 

5 2Te not there, an inmate hns suffered self-mutilation, or 

6 _porl;.aps some other suicidal attempt, and my Ol·m judgment -- if 

7 1 I :'cGl he should be referred to. the psychiatrist. No-rmally I 

s • cio so because I am not a psychiatrist and I figure that a 

9 cualificd person -- the case should be referred to a more . . 
10 'ci.lalified person than I am, and if my superiors are not present 

ll = use my OM1 judgment for the safety of the inmate and may strip 

12 ·ur.:: and place him on Suicide Watch. I vrould immediately notify 

13 ·· 21 superior and make arrangements for Dr. Hack to see him. 

14 :~. How often does Dr. Hack visit the institution -- and I 

15 ;,as~: you to tell the Court about the period June, July, 1965'.? 

16.r A. I believe Dr. Hacl;: 1 s hours of duty are five days a week 

17 
1

;from o: 00 o 1 clocl{ in the morning till noon. Of course he is the 
t: . 

18 :·consulting psychiatrist for all three facilities, approximately 

19 };-uu0-3500 inmates. He has a pressing schedule and he is only 

zo:
1

::ono psychiatrist. I believe those are his hours, to the best of 
'I . • i· • . . . ' < ' 

2l:~;![,']Y lmo-vrledge. ·Occasionally he is un<tble to be cause of 

22"/[der::.ands. placed on him -- to immediately see an ii1mate. He tries 
'I 23 I his best. ·He makes himself available as niuch as possible, 
I' 

24 'l•i . 1 
·· jip2rt2cu arly on emergency cases. 

25 I . 
· I Q. Is there a record or a notation or a document of any 

I 
I 
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1 ; sort d01m in the Adjustment Center vlhich makes available to you 

2 . ::t :my ci ven time the information as to where Dr. Hack may be 

4 ' A. Excuse me; in any· writing, vrhere· he may be reached? 

5 Is· there any iilay at all that you have immediately at 

6 i:c.nd, a ·vray of finding out where Dr. Hack may be at that 
I • 

8 A. First I ivill call the hospital. He has an office in 

9 _: ti1o .hOSl)i tal and if he is not there he leaves vrord vlhere he 

10 · i.-.ight be reached some"i'Jhere in the institution. 

n Q. Sergeant, as part of your responsibility -- vlell, let 

12 _::;e Cls~;: you this. Would you say that, aside from the general 

13 institutional training vlhich each officer receives, that yours 

14 .is the primary responsibility for training the officers in the 

15: Aojustment Center for the peculiar needs of the Adjustment 

16 CeYlter? 

:I 

18 .l.for 
:i 

19 : 

.A. Yes, I l·rould think that I 1-wuld be directly responsible 

that. 

Q. lmd, in addition, the responsibility to see that-cyour 

20 .!officers do? =i.:f,L:-actual practice, follow the rules? 

21 ' 
. , 
:f 

22 :i 
,: 
I 

,, 
A. As b~st as is possible, yes • 

' 
Q. And as the Adjustment Center Sergeant v.;ho has ;.v-orked 

ii 
23 ih·rith your officers, you are generally able to express an opinion-

" 
24 ~~~to other personnel about an officer 1 s ability?_ 

25 I 
II A. Yes. 

il 



p 
2iJ6 

1 
, Q. You do your best to correct officers if rules are not 

2 . ".Jein:; properly 'headed or if standard practices are not being 

3 followed, and you try to follow all of the rulesY 

4 

5 

A. 
., 
~.;:. 

Yes, sir, I try. 

ill1d to maintain performance of all policies and 

6 ' ;:r::-ocedures? 

7 A. I try·my best. 

s · Q. Sergeant, do you, in your O\m. individual discretion, 

9 !' c:ccide •:rhich rules or practices are to be follm·led and which can 

10 ·• ·oe it;nored 't 

11 A. I don•t understand your question. I am sorry. 

12 ·. Ji. Do you E?Xercise your ovm judgment in your Oi-nl individual 

13 .. discretion to decide vlha t rules should be follOi·led or lvha t 

14 .• :::ules shoulc not? 

l try to follow the rules nnd policies as :v;ell as I can. 15 
.. 

A. ., 

16 ('\ 

"':!• You treat each rule and policy with the same respect? 

17 A. l:Jell, all policies should be respected. It is my job 

18 to see that they are carried out as well as I possibly can. 

19 Q. You try to see that you and your officers do \vhat is 

20 supposed to be done? 

21 A. Correct. 

22 Q. In July,- 176 5, \vas there an offi~r name_Q Hoagland 

23 \·mrxing for you on the first floor of 0-Wing'i' 

24 A. Yes, sir • 

. 25 Q. And at that time vias there another officer 1v:orking for 



1 you nmned Spoon? 

2 . P.. Yes, sir. 

3 q. And in July, 11}65, the Progi'am Administrator for Unit 

4 •• ill uas your immediate superior on the Second \vatch? 

5 A. That is correct. 

6 Q. .!' •. n.d at that time \vas Nr. Johnston Program Administrator 

7 :c'or Unit III to '\vl1om you reported- directly? 

8 · A. Yes. 

9 .Q. Aad vJOuld you report to Nr. Kiepura from time to time if 

10 >-::-. Johnston vias absent'/ 

11 A. Yes, I vJOuld. 

12 : Q. Sergeant, to your knowledge do you .V...novl to '\·lhom Nr. 
•I 

13 Johnston, the Program Administrator, Has directly responsible? 
I • 

14 A. At that time I believe -- I may be ivrong -- Hr. Donnelly. 

15 ;'1: don 1 t remember when he became Deputy Superintendent. In any 
,' ,. 
i· 

16 ::event, if he -vras Superintendent at that time, .Mr. Johnston 
ii 

17 [
1
Hould report to him. 

jl 
i 

• 18 il 
1': 

Sergeant, Officer Spoon had been an officer on the. 
I· 

19 ::socond Hatch in 0-\Ving, first 
~ . 
-,;. 

20 1ito the Adju§tment Center? 
:I 

2li . ,, 
A 

.l:l.o 
v . 
..~..es, s1r." 

floor, '!,vhen you first v;ere assigned 

i, 
I, 

And Officer Spoon remained there dE%i"ling with inmates-

23 !!o:1 both the 
1. 
:j 

24 lileast until 
'I 

east side and the \·rest side of the:: first ·floor at 

.July, 1965, did he? 
:I 

25 !I 

II 

A. Yes, in relief capacity. 



l 
~,.~. And, in fact, jvJ:r. Spoon remained in that capacity 

2 · cj_l"CCtly under yom.~ 0\·m supervision until about Spring time of 

~!·is Vi::C1r 1966 '( 3 Lid "' ' 

A. f believe so. I don't remember the exact date. 

5 . 
Q. Do you recall that it vra-s·p-cThaps in April, 1966, that 

Q 
Li'ficor i:3poon I·Jas · re-:::tssigned out of the Adjustment Center? 

J>.. I believe that l·ras the date, some1·rhere around April or 7 . 

s ;~rch or something. I don't.recall ex:::tctly. 

9 uffic er Spoon ,who had been vmrking under you and 

10 1.:i th \vhom you had been ivorking in the Adjustment ,Center, re-

ll ::~ssigned ·11i thout your h:::tving been consul-uc'd at all? 

12 .A. Yes, he \vas. 

\ 
I 

I 

l3 Q. And had you personally been satisfied with his pcrformanc 

1~ • of his duties? 

15 A. Yes, I was. 

16 . , .... You had not recommended that he be transferred? ''i:. 

: 

A. Ho, sir I didn 1 t. ' 17 . 
l' ' ' . 

18 : Q. vias the re-assignment of Officer Spoon the cause of 

19 concern to the other·officer for the job security? 
' 

20 A. Hell~: some of the offj.ce:rs felt a little, bad about it, 

22 !i H1i. GR1li'WCCI: Your Honor, I 1·rill object, hearsay. 

THE COURT: Sustained. 

1-ffi. COHLER: Q. In your experience as Adjustment Center 

and vmrking for almost nine years at the ins.titution, 
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1 ·i·:oul d you say that officers are generally concerned about 

(1 t:~oir job securj_ ty'? 
6 

3 . ~\Q Generally in terms of -- well, let's put it this •t~ay. 

4 • 'i'!~c:,_t is a difficult question to ansvrer. One enters the 

5 · co:-:2ectional field -- we are all 2.-vrare of the fact that "'...re are 

6 s~·ojected to vrork any and all hours, long hours at a time. 

7 ·· ~c;::orally, ho-vrever, "\vhen you begin ·to obtain a little bit of 

s :, scniori ty, a little bit of experience and you v!Ork nights for 

9 • so.voral years and then finally you begin to \vork. ~.ays, and if 
. 

10 :'ou are family man, as most people are, v!Orl:ing nights, can't 

11 see your children and your family, working days you can be vri th 

12 t;1em. There is no school in the evening for the children and 

13 you can't spend some nights at home. If you have been \·rorking 
·:>!] 

14 1;d::.ys and then all of a sudden you get a change Hi thout any ,. 
' 

r'" !I , • ~. • • 1o 'tlOt::li lcatlon or anythJ.ng you might be a little bit concerned. ,, 

16 
1
!If you are notified \•Tell in advance then it shouldn 1 t alter you 
1: 

17 :i:Jlans. ):ou have to expect this. But everyone -vrould- like to ,,· 
II 

18 1
1c:c:d:e plans, vacations and what-have-you, particularly in the 

It 

19 i1sumiiler time; and if you .are going to get a job-change from one 

20 i:cJay to the next ·v1i thout any notification you. would be a little 
'I! 

I 
l 
i 
I 

l 
I 

I 
I 

:~~~\;1~_it concerned. But, normally, you wouldn 1 t be. 

Q. You hadn't thought that Officer Spoon should be transfer-

23 ~~ed aut of the Ad jus tmen t Center, had you? 

24
1! - A. No. It 1 s just my personal opinion. I did not think he 
I 25 11:0ould be. 
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/, 
•' 
1/ 
I· 

1 
Q. Indeed, when you learned of this, didn't you ask your 

0 01-m superior, Nr. Johnston, why Officer Spoon had been t:i.oved 
"' 

3 :! out of the Adjustment Center? 

Yes, I did. 
4 

i; A. 
; 

:! 

5 ~~. And Hr. Johnston did not 

6 
H..t'l. GRAITIJCCI: Objection, hearsay. 

1·ill. COHLER: Your Honor, this is a defendant in this 

8 ·case. I believe it is an admission. 
i 

1'-ffi. GRANUCCI: I J:..now, Your Honor, but the ordinary rules 

10 '[ \·.'ould requi~e -- if counsel wants to take acl.vantage of the 
1: ' 

11 : ;:ddi tions and exceptions to the hearsay rule, the ordinary 

12 ':foundation 1vill shOvl time, place and persons present. 

TI-IE COURT: You may establish. 

1-m. COHLER: · Q. Do you recall ever having a conversatio 
' 

:j 
,, '"-h 15 :· '\'!l v hr. Johnston regarding the transfer of Officer Spoon? 
'I I. 

j; 
16 : 

'• 
,, 

17 ;; 
li 
il 

18. i! 
'I 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Officer Spoon 1vas not transferred. He v,ras re-assigned. 

I beg 

Yes) 

your pardon. Do you recall any such conversation? 

I don 1 t recall exactly verbatim what took place, 
I' 

19 :!but l did as};: him ..,,,hy 1·fr. Spoon ·was re-assigned, yes. 
I ,, 

20 !J Q. And that was while you both -vmre on duty at the 

21 ilinstitution? 
·, ..... 

2211 
II 

231 

A. 

Q. 

Yes, sir. 

And vlhat did 1.f:r. Johnston tell you, if anything, about 

24/vrhat he knevr as to the re-assignment of Offi"cer Spoon:?::.· 

25 A. vlell, he eventually told me. 



~II 
II 

!! 

2r ]· .. . ) ;··. 

1 ; ~· Vlould you tell me vrhat he told you at thnt particular 

3 A. He didn't lmoH himself at thnt particular time. 

4 ·~. Did he tell you he had checked into it vlith his mm. 

l • •; ;; ·s,Juerlors. v .... ,1. 

s.: A. Yes,sir. 

7 l' Q. Did you have a subsequent conversation 1vi th Llr. 

s : Jolmston on the subject matter? 

9 '; ·A. In what relation? I don't follm·r your questioning 

10 !i thoro. You mean if he gave me an answer? 

11 Q. He ·said he was going to check into it? 

12 ' -.A. v . ..... es, slr. 

' Q. 13 
.j 

You did have a subsequent conversation? 
·-·'9 

14ii A. Yes, sir. 
'• ,, 

" 15 :: Q. vJha t vias the ansi.ver he gave you? . 
'i 

16 il A. As I recall it, he told me that :__ lett·g see. He had 

17 ii talked to some other peopl~~ncfTt- \va=s~e··-~opin-:ton, I be~ieve, 
I 

18 i he stR ted of JvJr. Donnelly, the Deputy Superinten9.ent -- it \·ras· 
I 

., 
:I 

19 lithe opinion that perhaps the strain of the assignment \vas 
,I 

" 20 !I beginning to get to Hr. 'Spo_on and perhaps he unconsciously 

21 [!may be becoming slightly overbearing,. possibly, in his relation 
q ' . 
I • t 

22 !ship 1vith inmates. "'.This is all I vras .told at--the time. I; tro ,. 

23 
1 personal knovJledge from having observed the officer in questioi: 

24 perform his duties, I, ·.personally, felt otherwise. 

· 25 :Q.- In relating the.IattE)r conversation withl:Jr. Johnston;': __ 
. ,. -~· 



. 2)2 

1 1 \fords such as 11 slightly"; "possibly", and 11 perhaps. 11 Do you 
'I 

2 \recall that those were used by him? 
;I 

3 i! A. Yes, as near as I can recall it. This v7as v1ha t \·las 
!; 

4 !; said: that possibly the job could be gettj.ng too much, and 
!I , / -~--- ~ 

5 ~uossibly he could be overbearing. 
' " 

0 :; Q. in your experience in the institution, and particularly 

7 !·since you have been Adjustment Center Sergeant, lv.Lr. Frederick, 

8 :; hou often has it happened that neither you nor the Program 
'· !· 

9 :1 h.dministra tor has been consul ted before a re-assignment? 
11 . 

10 :: A. I believe _.:. this is speaking for myself ..:- this is the 
I 

,: 

11 1first time it's hap~ened to me, y~s, that I haven't been 
' 

12 :! notified, yes. 
,, 
' 

13 !· 
:• 

Q. (Jr to YOUr knowledge that }1r • JOhnStOn didn It lillO\v 
i; 

14 11 anything about,.i t? 
I 
1/ 
'I 

15 (I A. I don It believe he did at the time or he \VOUld have 
il . 

16 1: told me immediately; yes .. 
I! 

17 i 
I 

Q. To your knowledge this is the first time that you lmovl 

181. of that there ha~ been a re-assignment without Hr. Johnston 
11 

19 :I r;]1 QiJing about it ? 

20 
l
llil .. A. That I khm.v o_f, yes. 

f 

21 II Q. Yes. Now, Sergeant, Officer Spoon has come bad;: to the 

22 j Adjust:11ent Center? 

231 A. Y~s, sir. 

241 Q. In fact, wasn't he brought back on July 31, 1966, about 

25 tHo 1veeks ago? 



II 
'I I, 

I' 

11 

. ·29J· 

1 :t A. l believe so, yes. 

2 '; l·m. COHLER: Hr. Grace, vrould you please mark f"or 

3 ~identification as Plaintiff's next in order several pages 

4 1: stapled together, top page of vrhich is entitled 11 Isola tion Log 11 , 
I 

5 ii in t~e upper right-hand corner bears the uri ting 11 1 tern 5"? 

i' 

THE CLERK: Plaintiff's 12 for identification. 

THE COURT: So ordered. 

(Isolation Log mo.rked as 
Plaintiff 1 s Exhibit 12 f'or · 

·identification) 

1 HR. COHLER: Counsel, vrill you stj_pulate that~vlhat has 10 " 
J: 

11 :just been marh:ed is' produced by the Deferidants? 

12 i }ffi. GRAHUCCI: It is the one we gave you, counsel. 

13 l-l.R. COHLER: Your Honor, I offer Plaintiff's 12 in 

·i • ., 
14 r

1
evlaence. 

il 

15 :: T~-IE COURT: So ordered. 
1: 

16 ·:: 
i! 

17 I\ 
!I 

18/i 
,I 
i: 

19 fl 
;I 

20 tl' 
I. 

1.ffi. GRMWCCI: No objection, Your Honor. 
r 

THE CLERK: Plaintiff's Ex.lJ.ibit 12 in evidence. 

1-IR. COHLER: 

OJhoreupon Plaintiff 1 s Exhibit 
12 l·ras received into 
evidence) 

f.Ir •. Grac.e, will you please mark as 
~ ·:- . 

I, .~ .. . :1·.. . 

21 !/
1Plaintiff 1 ~ next in order 

22 l,tegether, the ·top page :;of which bears the heading 11 Segregation 

for' id entifica-tio:l tv.o pages stapled 

I 
23IRecord 11

, in the upper ;ight-hand corner of vrhich is "Item 6"? 

241 

25 :1 

Tiill CLERK: Plaintiff'' s .. Exhibit 13 for identification. 

(Segregation Record marked as 
Plaint iff' 1 s E:;rlli bit 13 f'or 
identification) · · 



I ,, 

1 ~ 
·.HR. COHLER: Counsel, Plaintiff 1 s 13 

2 ' l·IR. GRANUCCI: Same stipulation. No objection to its 

3 :: aor,iission. 
' 

4 HR. COHLER: I offer it in evidence, Plaintiff's 13. 

5 : THE COURT: So ordered. 

6 " THE CLERI~: Plaintiff 1s,Exhibit 13 in evidence. 

7 :1 ( lvhereupon Plain tiff 1 s EYJ1i bit 
13 1...ras 1~e cei ved in to # · 

evidence) 

9 i llR. COHLER: Q. Sergeant Frederick, I ask you to look, 
', 

10 :1 !Jlease at ivha t is now Plain tiff 1 s EYJ1i bit 12. Please tal-;:e your 
,, 

11 .. time in looking through this document and e=:plain as best you 

12 :·can the purposes o.f these documents as you may have had occasion 
:l 
' 
l' 

13 ·to vrorl;: with them iri your capacity as Adjustment Center Sergeant. 

14 A. This is vha t ive call an Isolation Log... 1 t is required, 

15 ~to the best of my Y>llOivledge, it is required by State law to ,, 
' 

16 1: enter the names of all inmates that are Undergoing isolation 
II 

17 !I sentences. The: top- page that I am looking at is the -- normallf 
!( 
!j 

18 iiHould be the right-hand page on the book. .It 1 s a large reamer-

'/ . 
19 J type binder -- huge a little bit larger than the size of 

20 il this paper here. ;, 
•I 

21 !f The second page would be on the left-hand side of the 

221 page. One side vlould be for official visitations, doctor calls 
I 

23 and so forth. There is also an officer 1s roster lvhere the-

24 officer on duty_ is required to sign· his name and the hours they 

25

1

are on duty, and at the bottom you have the column report.· We 



295 

1 :; also log on this portion of the piece of paper the isola_tion 

cmmt at varj_ous times of the day. 
2 

3 Un the sheet ~;here the inmates names are plG.ced 

4 Q. Excuse me... Would, you refer to it, please, as the 

5 _:second page? 

6 :: 
li 

A. \;Jell, it 1 s the left side of one page. 
,, 

7 .. Q. ln Plaintiff 1 s Exhibit 12 it is the second page that 

8 you are looking at, is that correct? I ask you only to do 

-'-' . 9 t..iUS • 

-
A. This is Item 5. Is this '~ilhat I am .reading correctly? 

11. Q. That is Ite'm 5 as ·it 1vas numbered· in the production of. 
. ' 

12 r: documents in 
il . 

the instant hearing. It is Plaintiff's Exhibit 12. 
fl - ;/ 

1.:> il A. un the second page would be -- it is listed "move:nent 
'· :I 

14 II of inmates. 11 
II 
I 

15 lr 

11 

Q. t Thank you. You may continue, please, explaining the 

16 itfunction of that page. 
,I 

17 !j A. Vlell, you have the month and day of the year, and you 
II -

18 r
1

:,!1nve the commitment number of the inmate and his name, and the 

19 Loresent isolation cell vlhere he is confined and the time that . . . 

20 be Has placed in ;,the c~ll and the time that he would be removed 
I ' 

---~~. 

21 I f:rom isolation s~a t~s, the time' out. Then you have a column in 
I 
I' ' 

22 ·J~h·e right-hand c~rner that is listed ttcommcmts 11 • if an inmate 
\ 

23. is ·placed .in isolation on pending disciplinary status and 
I 

24 !several days later he goes before a disciplinary hearing and he 

25 is issued an isolation sentence, then the officer vlill return to 
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2 

3 
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,I 
'I I, 
I, 
I ,, 

t:1iS 

such 

log 

and 

Q. 

and he 

such a 

ln other 

will enter so many days isolation, effective 

day. 

words, an inmate may be in isolntion :for a 

4 yeriod of time before hG appears before a Disciplinary Committee? 

5 A. That is correct. 

6 Q. .And if the· disposition of the Committee is such that he 

7 is ordered to isolation, he receives credit for the time he has 

a already been there? 

9 ·A. urdinarily. This is the general policy. 

10 ·~. And there are inmates -- excuse me .p You refer to 

11 Pldntiff 1 s 12 on the first page thereof as listing inmates ~·rho 

12 .i uere serving isolation sentences. vJould the names of inmates 

13 If \·.'i10 vrGre act1..1.ally housed in the isolation section but who had ,, 
' ~ 

14 ::not yet ,had a disposition or \>Jho had not yet been held to serve 
.i 

15 it a sentencG be included? 
,i 
,: 

16 !i A. No; sir. 
·I 

· If 
17 ,

1 
Q. In other vmrds, there are people actually housed in the 

II 
18 1

1 
isolation section not on that list because they are not there 

h ,, 

19 /J tmder an isolation sentence? 
,, 

20 i! A. The only people that are, in effect, actually un9 ergoing 

21 ;/isolation sentences. 

~~ b II . Q. AncJ the second page before you in Plaintiff 1 s Exhi it 
I 

23 /12 includes the name.3. of persons '\vho are on duty at the time, 
I 

24 fis that correct? 

25 A. Yes, the top page shmvs that. 
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'I 't• -It also is supposed to register an~.rone vrho comes into 

2 . t:w is.olation area, is that correct'.? 
;r 

3 ! A. ln the 1va:y of official disposition, yc s. 

4 i Q. Tl1ank you. Did Y<;m give a full e:xpla.nation? 
•' 

A. Yes. 

Q. I asl'l: you to look no1v, please, at Plaintiff 1 s E:rJ1ibi t 

7 ·, 13. Hould you please explain to the Court again the function 

8 : of each of the documents 1vhi ch comprise Pl2.intiff 1 s 13? 
! 

9 i' .A. This is also required, I believe, by State la;,·r; that all 
~ 

10 :: inu:E.tes undergoing isolation or segregation status, thnt they 
,; 

-r 

11 . 2.1'e -- that a recor'd ·of some SC?rt be kept on each r.'lan. And 

12 , tili$ sheet is kept .on each individual that is in the Adjustment 

13 Center, 1_.r.hether he is in the Adjustment Center or isolation, and 

14 11 'l'le commonly refer to these as 1'14A 1 s and 114B 1 s, the A form 
·, 

15 ~beirig the isolation record and the B being the segregation 
I:; 

--------16 ii record. 

17 i) Q. Which comprises wl1ich page'/. Is it not correct that the 

18 !/ toD page in Plaintiff 1 s Exhibit 13 is llLJ-B and 1vha t is he:re the 
,: -
1: 

19 li second page is 114A? 

20 !i 
'I 

!. 
21 i' 

22 il 
il 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Correct. 

Thank you. Please continue. 

HOHeVer, both fornis are·used for the same purpose. What 
r, . 

~31 i mean to say is that"':if ~a man is on isolation -- let's say a 
:,· I 

241can is assigned te:;~~:~:Adjustment Center; 1·re \vould use the 

25jsegregationform. Now, if he incurred a.disciplinary~--:·. 



1 . 

. 3 

5 . 

6 

. 2SJd 

'-~· R.:J.ther than waste all the paper and start a ne'd sheet, 

::.nv:~riably the same form is used? 

/.. Yes, sir, they have been combined. They are presently 

co:.;bincd • It is all one form. 

Q. l ,,.,ill ask you some particulars, Sergeant, as ·v1e go 

t:1rough here, please. First of all, would you tell the Court 

-7 1;i'U: regard to the quieter strip cells, does an inmate ever 

s. 1c2ve the physical quieter strip cell itself vli thout an escort'? 

9 A. Ho, sir. 

10. Q. And is the mo,vement of an inmate, for ·v1hatever reason, 

· 11 sc;.ch as a disciplinary hearing, from his quieter strip cell 

12 • ©oer escort recorded on 114A or B? 

13 A. It should be reco:rded, yes. 

g. · ~. Hoi·!, •v;ould you -- that was true in July, 196 5, as 1-rell? 

15 A. Yes, sir. 
- --~---

16 .· Q. 
--------

\Vould you look, please, at i:Jhat you have before you, 

r-17 :: ?laintiff's EyJ1ibit 13? Tell the Court to what inmate these I . I 
f ,, 

I. 18 i C.oc-c.Gents in Plaintiff 1 s Exhibit 13 relate .. 
~ 
i 19 ': 
~ tl 

r 
' 20 

21 . 

22 1 

. 23 

24 

25 

A. Robert .Tordan ... 
~ 

Q. Do they relate, Sergeant, to more than one inmate? 

·' 'T • .li. l•,o, sJ.r. 

Q. In other words, these 114 1 s, A or B, are used inmate by 

inoato so it is separate? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. And can you tell from looking at. Plaintiff's Exhibit 13 



l 

2 

3 •· 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

ll 
II 
I' 

!I 
!) ., 

-
\:hen this record starts in terms of time? \Vhat is the date of 

t:1e first entry? 

A. June the 2ot~, 1Y65. 

. ~. Does that refer, Sergeant, as you ca:::1 tell from looldng 

2,·~ tlw form, to the time that MJ. ... Jordan 1·1as being classified 

'Jpon his return to Soledad? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. No·v, looldng at Plaintiff's Exhibit 13 1·rhich you have 

9 b8for·2 you, wou.ld you tell the Court,from \·That you can tell from 

10 t:::tt document, when rv:1r.. Jordan vms moved to one of the six rear 

11 .: ouieter strip cells? 

12 

13 ,, 

14 
I 

15 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

On July the 9th .. 

Nm·l, there are entries for dates previous to July the oth? 

Yes, sir, that is correct. 

Your Honor, have you had a chance to look at this care-

16 fL.:lly? I Ho.uld as.~-c you to _rlo--&e--novr;-:rryOu please, particularly 

-17 to the various columns to which 1ve lv'ill be referring. I am sorry 

. 18 I did not provide an extra copy for your use. 
'I 

19 ;, Cou..'1se1, do yo1,1 happen to have an· e;;:tra copy? 

20 ,i Your Honor, I plan on using Exhibit 13 rather extensively .. 
. ' t 

21: \·!ould it be appropriate to have a short recess and have a copy 
:1 ' ;l 

22 r: made'( 
,I 

23 :1 
ii 

I am ve1 .. y sorry I neglected to do tha:t. 

THE COURT: That is quite all right •. I think I have 

24 I . n 
I, 

glonced at. We can have a copy made at the regular recess .. 
'• ,. 

25 ~~ 
•I 

!I 
HR. COBLER: Thank you. 



3UO. 

1 
Lffi. COBLER: Q. Sergeant, v;ould you lool-::, plense, at 

let me start· over so ..... 1e are clear. 

3 
There is, on the left-hand side, a column under the term 

4 
ttaate 11 , is that correct? 

5 
A. Correct. 

Q. IJ.ncl then there is a longer SI"Jace for a 1.vri tten entry, a 

7 
rc:J&r~: of some sort? 

8 ' A. Correct. 
' . 

g.· Q. Then there are one, tv10, three columns, rather narrmv, 

10 .- anc a fourt11. with roo.m for initials, is that correct? 

ll A. Yes. 

Q. Is any entry '\vhich is made on a given date, v1ould each 

13 ~ of those be initialed by the officer making the entry'.? 

14 ' A. Yes, sir. 

15 Q. I note· that iri Plaintiff 1 s 13 in the first cobJmn afte~ -----
16 :: the space for comment_ there a series of numbers going dmm 

E 

17 :i ti1e page. Would you please explain the function of those numbers 
., 

18 :, ano. 1·rha t they me an? 

19 -~ A. Well_, formerly vre would use the numbers to incidate the 

20 . ·oehavior of the inmate on a daily basis. 
<! 

We no long!;!r use this 
' 1;:: 

!' ' ' 

. 21 :: ~:umber because it is not a valid indication of his ·behavior. I 
'\: ,, 

22!! oon 1 t recall-- I believe· the series we.nt from five:on dovm to 

23 one. I may be 1.vrong -- the higher the number the worse the 

24 behavior. 

-25 Q:. - The l-iigher the number, the -vrorse ·the behavior? 
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-
1 

' Yes, from ivhat I remember. J ... We no loneer use it. 

~. You· discontin"ied it because it vmsn 1 t considered to be 

3 0 ccurnto? 

4 A. Yes. 
I 

It vasn't an accurate -- as an ezamplc, normally 

5 
tl:c officers, prior to going home at 4:oo o'clocl\:, somei·rher_e 

6 ' 8ctuoon 2:00 and 4:00 o 1 clock in the latter· part of the afternoon 

they uould sit dovm and make entries on each inmate under their 7 I 

8 ; care, a.,."ld t11ey -vrould go along -- they might put, say, a 4 or 3, 

9 . 'a11d five ulinutes later something happened that completely altered 

10 this behavior patter~ So it wasn 1 t a very good i•ray of accurately 

indicating a man 1 s behavior. ll· 

12 Q. Here there occasions when officers might just pick up 
' 

13 tlle number from the pl .. evious -entry vli thout making an individual 

14 ,, evaluation? ,, 

I! 

15 li 
·I 

16 :i 
!I 
II 

17 /i 

18 

!] 
t! 

A. No. I can't predict what each mnn vTOuld ~1-±:t---+ 
. ---- . 

l HOUld say that he is feeding them every da:", he is clothing 

them, he. is counseling them, talking to them., he is seeing them 

' every day much more than I do, and I vTOulo like to think ·t:n~t be 

19 '\iOulon't ju.s.t arbitrarily putting anything clo\m; he vmuld be, to 

20 the best of his ability, he l.vould put dovm vi.'lat he felt the 

21 inmate deserved on that date. But, as I stated, it vmsn't accurat 

22 :1 lli"ld He no longer use this. 
1: ,, 

23 i; Q.. For the record, Sergeant, v1ould you agree i·lith me· that in 

24 J/ all cases IIIhere there has been an ·eritry made in that column the 
!i ,, 

25 il 
il nu~~er. appearing is .·~X 
ii 4 .: ·' 
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6 

7 I 

I! 
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A. Thnt is correct, yos. I might add t 1J.at this number here 

HetS ul<:ldo only -- the entry here was .made only by one Hatch. It 

~·:dsn 1 t nu.de by the Third Watch or the First t·latch. Tha.t 1 s 

nr:otlwr r-eason we discontinued. it. The inmate was graded on an 

eisht-hour shift. 

Q. Thnt being the Second \'latch? 

1l. Yes, sir. 

8 · Q. \·Jhe:1 you have been on duty, from lvhat time of the day? 

lO :: 

11 

A. From 7:30 to 4:oo o•clock .. 

Q. 4:00 o 1 clock .in the afternoon? 

A. Yes, s-ir .. 

12 Q. Sergeant, would you loolc, for instance, please, ot the 

13 , secon6 entry for the date 6!30'? Look all the vray over into .l·lha t 
' 

14 is tho second of the narrow columns, and that says "no 11
, does it 

15 not? 
----------

16 A. Yes. 

17 Q. '\:lould you tell the Court what that means to you as you 

18 tcad the document from you~ experience~? 

19 A. It moans no exercise on- that date. He \vas received on 

20 ~he:; t date. 

21 Q. And is there anything else that you can tell fr.orn the 

22 ., entry ''no exerc;:ise 11 ? Does that lead to any further inferences as 

23 to Hhat he may not' have had available to him'? 

24 . A. Well'~ according to the entry to the same date and the same 

· 25 :: line, he vias, received in· the ·second floor on L."T. s., II. This is 
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1 

'cllo terminology •.'lhich vle no longer use, but it meant "long-term 

2 
se::;recation; grade rru. It presently.means Adjustccnt Center, 

3 Gretde II • As I mentioned, he was on the second. floor vlhere he 

4 . ',.;o·i.llr h.:tve more privileges than he would do1nstairs. 

5 <~. I am sorry... I meant Hhether you could tell if 11no 11 meant 

6 ED e:;:ercise. Would that mean no other privileges vroulc1 be 

7 c:vc:.:i.la ble? 

8 1\. Except for no exercise that day, he ivould have the same 

9 p :1rivileges that other inmates have. 

10 Q. J: am sorry. .Fo1~ instance, an inmate vlho had no exercise 

11 ~'loulc not be able to take a show-er'? 

12 .i ' ll.. No, he \VOUldn 1 t .. 
,. 

Q. You can't take sho1'[er unless out for. exercise? 13 a you are 

14 li.. No. inmates have been :Y.noim to shmver in their cells, 
"" 

15 8ut he v1ouldn 1 t be able to come out and use the actual sho1.·1er room 

16 no. 
,. 
I 
I' 

Sergeant, would you look vri th me novr, please, at Plaintiff' 

18 ': =:·:hibit 13 at the entry bearing--the numeral 17-l, July 1st, and. 

17 
,I 

'I ,, "' . 

19 •· here vle have., in the second column, do :;Je not, an entry 11yes 11 Z 
!i 

~o i: ·A. Correct~· · .. · 
j :: 

21 . 
· .. i! 

Q. And uhat do you un§erstahd. that to mean, Sergeant'? 

22 A. That means -- well; \•re are going bach: quite some time. novr. 

23 !i In my estimation it would :mean~-- quarter means the ·exercise. The 

24 il "C 11 iwuld moan ncorridor". 
il 

That means the exerc.+se in the corrido 

25 i! Q. · Perhaps we are on the ·wrong line. .: 



1 ' 
A. But other officers may use the symbol ncn and others may 

use j:lst "yes" or "riou.. In ans·v1er, -the word 11yes" \·roulc1 indicate 
2 ' 

3 
to r;18 t;1o.t on that date, July the lst, he exercised. 

4 .; Q. l'J01v, let us move to the third of the narrow columns, 

5 
_please, going over to the right on Plaintiff 1 s E:xhi bit 1J. 

is an entry ns11 for the same date, is that correct? 
6 ' 

A. Yes, there is. 

There 

s I 
Q. Can you tell from the entry capital 11 8 11 \•That is indicated 

9 upon that document? 

10 .: .fl •• \{ell, I would, say that he showered on that date, that 

11 he exercised. 

12.: Q. Could "S'' stand for shave? 
I• 

13 · A. It possibly. could, yes. 

14 ;: Q. i!Jhat leads you to conclude that, in .this particular 

15 · instance, the nsu means sho'tver rather thanJ1.alLA.2'?---------i 
" 

----------
i 

16 .: A. \'Jell, the absell.ce -- there is three columns that I am 

17 looking at and each column-- itdoesn-1 t designate here vrhat 

18 each column means. So from my m.vn lmovJledge and my 0\·111 personal 

19 experience, any time a man is. out, if he does not shov1er, \·re 
- . . . .. . 

20 'i enter the symbol "R11 , _1vhich -means that he -di.dn 1 t --Bho\·rer, or vre 1 d 

21 leave it blank on the ·shower .portion Qf .. :Lt. If he did, v!e 1 d P'!lt 
. . ' . ,... .. . . ~~ ,. \" . 

- . 
22 11 S11

• · By the :same -token, 1vhen he is given the opportunity to 

-:=,23 •·· shave, if he re.t:u.'ses·to· shave_the . .syrnbql 11R11 is placed in there. 
I 

24 'I If he ·Hasn 1 t \iiven the opportunity to shave it vr6ul¢1 be_ blank. 
il 

25 i! Q. Then with that explanation we· should be able to tell 
~ \ 
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l 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1[ 

something nbout the entry for 7/2, July 2 -~ excuse me, July 3 

on Plaintiff 1 s 13. Hould you look, pl-ease, opposite ~hat date 

in the second of the narrow. columns and read the entry':' 

A. nNo u • 

~~. And. that meant no exercise? 

A. That is correct. 

q. And then the third column·, there is an 11 R11 , is that 

correct? 

A.. Nothing on the third column. It 1 s· blank. 

10 Q. I think i;Je are having trouble vli th lines._ Would you loolc 

11 carefully opposite 7-3? 

12 A.· Oh, I see; excuse me. There is an: 11 R11 there. Hoi:l this 

in this case, if he did not exercise it is obvious that he 

couldn 1 t have shOI·rered. The 11 R11 ·could be a refusal on his part 

to sha.ve. He may have been given the o~!'~-to shave tha:t 

evening. 

Q. Hou, Sergeant, see if from looking at that document, 
' .. .! 

Plaintiffts Exhibit 13, you could tell the Court tha~ Y~. Jordan, 

to ,:rhom Plaintiff Is Exhibit 13 r:efers' vlaS mov:ed to a quieter 
;·; 

strip cell on July 9th, is that- correct? 
' 

A. Yes, sir. F'l"OID vThat J can read here, yes • . ··~ 

Q. Ho1v, looking carefully at the document, and use both 

pages please -- I thin_'k:: that vlill be. necessa::-y -- would you tell 

the Court on Hhich day Hr. Jordan left the quieter strip cell? 

A. . On July the 20th. 
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1 
Q. And please be careful and look at.the entire document 

2 ': anci tell the Court whether or not Nr. Jordan 1·Ias not continuously 

3 , in tll.e quieter strip cell from July SJ through July 20, 1965. 

,I 

4 A. According to what I am reading, except for comine out 

5 :'or disciplinary hearing, he vms confined al.l during that _time. 

6 . 
Q. Let us turn to the disciplinary hearing. Would you look 

7 .· ot tha.t document, please, and ~ell-the Court \·Then Hr. Jorda..'1, \tlho 

8 ' 1ras placed in the strip cell on July 9th, 1ms ta};:en to a 
I 

~ . 9; disciplinary hearing~ 
I 

10 !: A. On July the 1.3th. 

Q. · What entry are you looking at? 

A. I am looldng at a combination of both the bottom line 

here and a continuation at the top line. 

Q. The bottom line on Plaintiff's 13 and the top line on the 

A. Yes. 

Q. Can- you identify the ini tj_als of the person 1vho made 

those enti-ies'? 
I 

A. Those initials are mine. 

Q. -Did you, in fact, mal~e those t\vo entries'&' 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. HerG you present at the disciplinary hearing to \vhich 1-:ir. 

Jordan 1-ms tal\:en on July 13 '? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q • . \fuo else. was present?· 
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,. I 
II 

1 A. 1 believe Fir. Kiepura -vras present. · 

z Q. Nr. Kiepurais cnpacity at thnt time vlnS uhat? 

3 A. His present capo city, Counselor, Grade II. 

4 
~, 

\-~ . You and Jvir • Kiepura 1verc there. Did you both p2rticipate 

- 111 tllO 0 ,, hearing? 

6 • 11... I believe we did • 

7 Q. vias there anyone else present? 

8 ,, A. 
:: The Escort Officer, Officer Spoon. 

9 !: Q. 
" 

Was Officer Spoon there in any capacity other than 

10 : c'L<.s todi al? 

11 i1.. Ho, . sir;: strictly escort. 

12 Q. He had no particular functj_on in the hearing? 

13 A. No, sir. 

14 ri Q. Has 1'-;r. Jordan also present? 
!j 

15 ii A. Yes, sir. 
i 

16 :! Q. \vas this a meeting of' a commi tte.e of some sort? 
II 

17 !i A. Disciplinary hearing. 
it 
I' ,, 

18:, Q. A disciplinary hearing. Does the committee have a name'? 
'I ,, 

19 :t ,; ,, 

20 !i 
ii 
'I 

21 1
1 ,, 

:r 

22 !I ,, 
li 

23 ii 
!I 

24 II 
I' 
:1 

2~ I! 0 ,, 
I! 
:I 

A. Other than aisciplinary hearing'? 

Q. Disciplinary hearing. Do you happen to kno1·1 vlha t rule 

or regulation it functions under at the institution? 

A. T couldn 1 t tell you at this particular moment what rule 

it vrould function under. It's lmo1m as a .disciplinary committee, 

disciplinary hearing. 

Q. lJr. G1"'ace, may I please have Plaintiff's. Exhibit 3, the 
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1 •· j.r1::>1ters to Interrogato:ries'i This has fallen apart, l-te. Grace. I 

2 .. 1:ill see that it stays together. 

3 

6 

Sergeant Frederick, I asJ: you to look, please, at document-::: 

.,,::ich l·rere attached to the Ansi·lers to Interrogatories, Plaintiff 1 s 

Exl1ibi t 3 here, and the ono before you is ·Hlwt appears to be a 

C.D.C. 115 relating to Jordan, A46604 relating to an alleged 

incident on July 9th, 1965, correct? 
7 :i 

., 
I 

8 L A. Correct. 
1 ,. 

9 i Q. \vould you please tell the Court, Sergeant, the function 

LO ~ of a C.D.C •. 115 such .as the one you have before you? 

ll ;: A. It • s an official form, Report of Violation of Insti tutiona 
.. 

2 . Rules, . :. submitted by a reporting officer to a.Disciplinary Committe 
,, 
" .[ Q 3 I' • 

. 1: 
Could you go further't For instance, does it contain a 

Explain its total fm1ctione 
[I 

4 i charge? 

5 ; 
:! 

A. Yes, sir. 
;; 

6 ·• charged vli th a specific violation of a rule, and it's considered 
!! 
ll 

7 !i 
ii 

8 :/ 
II 

an official report of a violation. 

lJo-vr., there is a heavy line approximately. center-v1ay dmm 

II 
9 :r the page, is that correct? 

,I 
ii 

'\ [1 

.,) il 
rli 

p 

II 
z .II ,. 
z lj 
J I· 

[I 
ji 

~ If 

. li ) ,, 
li 
il 
:! 

A. Yes. 

Q. And there is a caption belo1·1 that line: Plea, Findings, 

ano Disposition? 

--A. Correct. 

. Q. "Is the e"ntire dispos_i tion -vrhich may be made after a 

hearing upon a violation or alleged violation of a rule such as 
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1 • tllis recorded opposite ''Disposition'' on. C. D. c. 115't 

2 !: A •. Yes. 
I• 

.3 :' Q. That. is the total disposition made by the cornmi ttee as a 

4 ::· coi:UJittee, is that correct'r 

5 ·· A. I don't follovr you question. Would you repeat. that, 

6 
') please. 

7 Q. 1ilould you look,please, at the lo1.ver portion of C.D.C. 115 

s Hhere it says "Disposition"? 
A 

9 A. Yes. 

LO Q. Anc1 tell the .Court \vhether or not Hhatever may be under 

~1 there is the full cU.sposi tion ordered by the commi. ttee .. 

. 2 A. Yes. Normally this would be the cas:~. 

.3 
li 

4 I' . i! 
11 

.B ii 
I .6 ;I 

7 li 
d 

s II ,I 

ii 
9 ii 

il 
o 1

1 

II 

1 1! 

ll 

2 
jl 

·' ]f 

3 il 
~ if 

ii 
• II' ) l 

I, 
II 
li 

Q. Nm.;, directing your attention specifically to the document 

you hnve before you originally attached .Cmsi.·rers to Interrogatories 

and nm:r part of Plaintiff's E:;d1ibit 3, t~~ ..... C. 115 :c-e--1-at±rnoO'---+ 
. -----·~--~___. 

to :i·(r. Jordan~ relating to an alleged incident of July, 1965, 

i;Jould you please read the dis}!Osi tion v!hich you find? 

A. "L.T.S. 1, 29 days isolation. 11 

Q. vlhat does 11L.T·.s. 1 11 mean? 

A. At that time it meant long-term segregation, Grade I. 
-: 

Presently it 1v-ould be Adjustment Center, Grade I, .t]fe first _f~.??r. 

Q. _; Hould you explain, please, \vhether 9::::- not that is- a 
.,~'\i,~. - ' 

<' 

class if~ cation \vhich Nr. ··Jordan, in this instance, -r.vould remain 
\··. .,,-<'(.. .. 

U.ntil such further act.ion?. 

A. Yes~ . Upon completion of the 29 days isolation sentence, 
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1 ~: he Hould be assigned to the Grade I section and he vrould normally 

2 be cJ.o..ssified Hi thin 90 days. Ninety. days 1·rould be the maximum 
, I 

3 :. number; that is 1vhen he would be reclo.ssified. 
I. 

', Q. Tl1e 29 days isolation 1-.rhich is wri ttBn opposite 

5 

6 

7 

llDisposi tion" says what is to ll:appen to Hr. Jordan in this -instanc 

during those 29 days and the L. T. S. 1 says vlhat his classification 

vill be follo~-<ring the isolation? 

8 A. Correct. 

9 Q. Do you see on the document before you, Sergeant, a portion 

10 entitled 11 Action Taken By"? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. Do you see two signatures there? 

13 •! 

il 
'I 

14 !' 
I> 

1\ 

15 1: 

',I 

1e :r 
!I 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Correct. 

Could you read those signatures? 

11 ~v. T. Kiepurau and 11W. T. Fredericl~___....-------o------j 
.---------~---

And those are the signatures of you and 1--Ir. Kiepura and 
il . 

17 11 were the only two people present at this hearing? 
II 

18 ii 
1i 

A. Correct. 

19~1! _ Q. Were those signatures placed upon the .form at the time the 

20 11 dfsposi ti'on was made, do you recall? 
• I' 

21 il 
i' 
fl 

22 :: 
I! 
li 

. .I 

A. I believe so, yes. 

Q. \tJould you look just above and to the right o:f the t-v10 

23 :1 signatures, please, Sergeant, where there appear to be irii tials? 
j . 
I• 

24 1
1
1 'vloulo you tell the Court whose initials those are?-
I 

25 I 
I 
,j 
It 

A. · 11R~. H. D.u, M.r. Donnelly., 
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1 
Q._ ll!as he at the hearing? 

2 A. No, sir •. 

Q. 1-Ir. Donnelly, 'WaS Deputy Superintendent as you recall? 

4 A. lie ;,.;as either Assistant Superintendent or Deputy; I 

5 don't recall exactly. 

6 Q. To the left of ·where you have been looking, Sergeant, 

7 · -:;here is the printed part of the. form vlhich says "approved 11 , ·is 

8 

9 

10 

n. 
,• 

that correct? 
\ 

A. Yes, sir. 
p 

Q. And a signature appears there, is that cJrrect? 

A. That is correct. 

12 : Q. ·Hould you read that for the Court, please? 

13 ! 

I, 

14 :: 

15 : . . , ., 

16 .; 
:I 

A. 11 Hilliam Jordan 11
• 

Q. \•Jhat position did he have, if you recall? 

A., He is Administrative Assistant to th0 Superintendent. 

Q. He vmsn It at the hearing ei--t-Irer-;----wasn'e?--

17!; A. No, sir. 
II 
I 

1s:1 Q. NoVJ, to your lmovrledg.e, Sergeant, .. in.tbe normal course of 
< :; 

19 :i events did officials,lvho initial or sign, but who have not been 
'I 

20 ;i present at the hearing, do so to indicate their; approval of the 
·: 

21~ dispo~ition of the case? 
il 

22 !i 
•I 
i; 

'3 i ~ ,, 
" ;• 

24 ii 
:I 

,
5 

II 
• II 

il 

A. Yes, sir, as far as I kno~v, that is correct. 

. Q.. And do they have anything .'Qefore them except the printed 
·- -:-:' ~ ---

form C.D.C. 115 itself? 

A~ . • No. They hav~ ·the 115. 
·.- -~: ~ 
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If 
!r 

·rr 

Q. .tl.nd ·it is on the basis of' that that they approve or 

2 . aisanprove in some cases? 

A. l \vould say it is on the basis -- I 'doulc1 assume that they 

Houle~ digest the whole thing, the actual report· of the violation 4 ! 

5 .i ::tnd the disposition, findings and so forth, and then a:pprov_El or 

6 • disapprove of the disposition. 

7 ! 
,' 

Q. In other words, what is found ~-

A. Yes, right. 8 : 

9 Q. Sergeant, "\vould you turn bade, pleas-2, to the other 

10 aocurncnt before you, .the 114, Plaintiff's Exhibit 13, and I 

11; direct your attention to what is there, the second pa_ee, and the 
I 

12 :i po1·tion thereof, v.rhere there appears some hand1vri ting. ·would you 

13 please read that? 

14 A. CJn the top, very top? 

15 Q. Yes, please. 

16 A. "29 days isolation", then 11assigned L.T.S. 1. 11 

17 11 Q. That is, in fact, ·the same disposition as appears on the 
,f 
I' 5 18 !I C.D. c. 11 ? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

cl1ange. 11 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Cm .. rect. 

There appears a'second handvli'iting e:1try below th~t •. 

11 To rerp.ain in this st-rip cell until behavior vrarrcints 

You made both of these ·entries?· 
'_; ~ ~ -.: : 

Correct. 

At the same time? 

~·. . -. 
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1 11.. Correct. 

2 ·' Q. The second entry vlhich reads, 11 To remain in str.ip cell · 

3 until beho.vior -vmrrants chang, 11 there is an entry '\vhich is found 

4 . nouhere on the C. D. C. 115? 

5 ' A. Correct. 

6. Q. And that particular disposition vlhic~ placed Er. Jordan 

7·, in the strip cell part of the isolation area did not receive-the 
'! 

8 ·• approval of anyone who signed the 115? There are no other 

9 •• in:ltials, is that correct? 

10 '. A. \'lould you repeat your question'!' 
.I 

11 ·; Q. Let me break it doM.1. Are there any initials o. .. ther than 

12 yours opposite the disposition vlhereby Hr. Jordan \vent to the 

13 , strip cell? 
I 

14 A. No, just my initials only. 

15 Q. Has it your discretion and your judgm§llt_ .. e . ___ .. ______ _ 

16:i that resulted in Nr. Jordan 1 s being put int..."le quiet cell? 
i 

!i 
17 il A. It '1:Ias my judgment as a member ·of th'3 hearing .that he 

I, 

18 :i shoulo be placed in· a quiet cell until his behavior \·Jarranted 
,, 

19 !Iii 
:i 

change. Hmvever, I did not_ make the i·rri ting in .the 115 itself. 
II 

20 :1 This v1as made by N.r. Kiepu.ra and obvious'iy forgot or failed to 
.i 

" 21 i/ make this entry, ·as ,)<vell as I can remember. 

22 1/ 
II 

Q. Hell, ·for Hha·tever the reason it may ~ot have been made, 

23/! the a1)proval, the signatures of those vrho appto,;.ed were, it \·las 
,, 

241 ,!, ' 5 oased only on the 11 't 
I 

25 1i 
/i 
II 
II 

A. That is correct. 
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l : · Q. No1r, Sergeant, is it true, and I cJirect your G.ttention 

z; ocain to Plaintiff's Exhibit 13, the 1~4 1 s ~1ich you have before 

3 
you, uould you lool{, please~ at the dates from July <)th through 

~ ' 
July 20th arid look at every entry that you find for those days 

5 ' o.nd for the time that Hr. Jordan '\vas in the .quieter strip cell? 

6 ' 'dould you please tell the Court whether there is any entry at 

7 all that indicates that he had a shovrer? 

8 A.. No, sir. I don't see one. 

9 Q. VJould you be very careful about that, please'( 

, 10 . A. No, I do not see an entry posted that he showered. 

11. Q. No entry at all, is that right? 

12; A. No. 
. I, 

,, 

13 ,· Q. HO'\•T, on July 20th, Sergeant, as you can tell from the 

14 ;; form 114 v.rhich is_,Pl.aintiff 1 s 13 here on July 20th j\fr. Jordan 

15 ·, '.Jas moved and housed in a cell fori.vard of the regular iso] at;i on 
.! ---~--- -----------

16 area·~ 

17 A. Correct. 

18 Q. And -vrould you lool\: now again at the 114 1 s, Plaintiff 1 s ·l3 

19 here and tell th? Court \vhen, in fact, that form sho-rtJs that Nr. 
I 
'I 
li 

20 [I :Jo:c"dan did have a shoi:rer the first time after he got out of· the·. 

quiet cell? 

A. On the 24th, of July. 

Q. That would be the fourth day, I believe,, after he i>ras 

removed from the quiet· cell or strip .cell? 

A. According to what I am reading, that is correct. 
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1 · ~~. And can you tell \vhat officer 1 s initials appear opposite 

z. that entry for the 24th? 

3 A. 1 believe they are Nr. Hoagland 1 s initials. 

4 ; Q. Jmd what does the entry itself say? 

5 ,D. • 11 Corridor, e:xerci se, and . sho\·rer. 11 

6 Q. Than.";: you. Sergeant, do inmates whc are taken.from a 

7 ,: strip cell to a shov;er and inmates who are taken from an isolation 

a i cell use the same shower facilities? 
I· 
:, 

9: ' A. Yes, sir • . , 

10. Q. Thanl;:: you, S~rgeant. 

ll •• THE COURT: V.Je \'/ill take a short recess and you can have 

12 · these zeroxed and copied if you \·Jish. 

(VJhereupon a ten-minute recess ensued) 

lffi. COHLER: Your Honor, I have concluded my direct 

15 exa:.1ina tion. 
-------~-- ------

16 _CROSS EXAHINATION 

17 I3Y HR. OAKES: 

NR. OAKES: Q. Sergeant Frederick, you testified on 
'i 

19 ii direct exalLina tion that part of your duties .as the ·Adjustment 
" i· 

Center Sergeant -vms to aid and train the men, the officers under 

you:.~ direction. ·As part of your training, i:rhat are some. of the 

essential things· that you thinl-c the men shopld .be m.,rare of vlhile 

'·ror1rl.l10 •• .LI.. 0 in t~e Adjust~ent Center? 

A. Vlell, the behavior of the· inm~,tes,. the fact t_hat they 

are disturbed .. people' ·many. of therrl. are :dang'erous ·.and they explode 
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1 - verbally and ·sometimes physically, and the officer should be 

2 - co.utionod to be careful in handling. these types of people. 

3 Q. Would it be fair to· say that you stress using vrha t rnight 

~ ' 
JC called a 'professional approach? 

5 J\. Yes, sir .. -

6 • 
"1 l,". Thanl>.: you. Nov, I think it is Plaintiff 1 s E:z:hibi t 12, 

7' tt18 lsolo.tion Log, I believe; i.·!OUld you say this· was an official .. 

8 or semi-official log? 

9 .: A. Official log. 

10 , Q. An o:ffi cial l.og? 

n A. Yes, sir. 

12 :. Q. Does it abvays accurately reflect evsrything that happens, 
., 
I 

13 ·: everything that occurs i.vi th every person that enters the Adjustmen" 

14 Center? 

15 

16 !: do come into the Adjustment Center and they may come in and come 

out and fail to sign in. We try to keep as accurate a record as 

\·re possibly,; can under the circumstances. 

Q. Fqr &ample, do not the chaplains enter the Adjustment 

Center? 
\" 

' 
A. ·Yes, sir; they do. 

Q. And d.o their names show up on this log very often? 

A. HeJJ, not too often. Everyone that makes a visit to the 

Adjustment Center is required to sign in; but, as I say, 

occasionally, being people, i.Vill forget to sign· in. Theoreticp.ll 
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they arc supposed to, including chaplains and doctors, the 

super in tend en t, anyone vJho enters. 

317 

3 Q. N01-r, in your exper~nce, does Dr. Hack,- the psychiatrist, 

4 .. visit the Adjustment Center'i' 

5 A. Yes, sir. 

6 Q. Does his name often show up on this log? 

7 A. Not too often, no. He is pressed for time. He's more 

8 , interested in intervievJing and evaluating the inmates than he is 

9 , in placing his --

10 I 
Q·. So it is your: judgment that he is in the Adjustment 

11 Center more often than 1vould be sho1-m by this log? 

12 A. Definitely. 

13 . Q. "T • 
l~ Oi:; ' I believe on direct examination it '\<Tas brought out 

14 ' tllat Hr. Jordan 1 s name does not show up on the isolation log 
', 

15 ' until the date of July 13th .. ------- _,_ __ _ 
16 HR. COBLER:. Excuse me, counsel, it •,rasn 1 t brought out; 

17 1Jut you may certainly proceed along those lines. 

18 TIIE \HTNESS: Excuse me -- yes, his name is listed on 

19 :: July the 13th, 1965' as being in cell 1221 at that time'. ana the 
i 

time in ±s dated July the 9th.· This vlas the date that 'he appeared 
'· 

21 [j before the disciplinary hearing; and appearing is 29 days 
•' 

22j[ isolation on the comments portion of the column. It states 29 
" 

23 ii days isolation --· \vould be effective 7/9. 
li 
' 

241'.1; . HR. OAKES:·. Q .. · Yes;: in effect t_hen t:J. man may be moved 
II 

25 1! into an isolation or· a quiet cell and :be tq~re f.qr several days 
,, 
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1 
before it· would appear on this log? 

2 . A. Yes, sir. It only appears once.he has been before a 

3 . committee. 

5 .· 

6 . 

Q. Is his move recorded in other places? 

A. It should be recorded on the 114 sheet. 

Q. Is every move --pardon me. In the officers' area of the 

7 _.',d,justment Center is there a large bulletin board? 

8 A. Yes, sir. It is recorded on t·hat, a:.1d upstnirs He have a 

9 roster. Of course when we talk about records vTe can go into many 

10 ·: other portions of the instj_ tution. The control office is notified 

11 ' of any cell moves and the cell cards are changed, the.· cu::>tody 

12 ii classification cards are changed, the mail room cards are changed, 
. II 

13 ;I the visiting cards are changed.. This way the entire institution 

~as some ltnowledge of where a particular inmate is housed so if it 

15 involves one little cell move it involves a tremendous amonn _____ ....---
16 paper 1:1ork. 

,, 

17 :1 Q. What is the essential card? 
!i 
·i 
I~ 

18 ;; 
'I i, 

19 :: 
' ,, . 

20 il 
I 

2d 
Ji 

22 ;: 
~ i 
I' 

23 :: ,, 
'I 

24 !1 
' !i ,, 

25 II 

!I 
:I 

A. The Custody Classification Card, the warden 1 s card. 

Q. And that is kept where? 

A. That ·is kept in the Custody Office. It is a confidential· 
'-<.,_. 

card and. has a lot of information. 

Q. But every move is aggragateiy and rapidly reflected in 

there? 

A. Yes, that is· correct •. 

Q. Thank yo'l::l:• No1,, I. believe on direct you did·. discuss 
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l Officer Spoon and the fact that he was moved from the or re-

2 assiGned from the Adjustment Center up to other duties for a 

period of time? 3 . • 

' A. Yes, sir. 
" 
5 Q. And I believe you stated you disagreed with this move? 

6 . A. Yes, sir, I did. 

7 ' Q. That the move \vas prompted by your superiors'? 

8 ' A. That is correct. 

s Q. '>'iould you say that you, at times, disagree with other 

10 · actions of your super.iors also? 

n: 
12 ·. 

13 

14 : 
,, 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

"Jerfect 

Yes, 

This 

Yes I 

and I 

I would say so. 

is in common course of conduct, I thin};:, in all 

'\vhile 1:Je {lre dealing 1:ri th peop~ and· no one 

do have some disagreements, ye.s. I am thani-;:ful 

is 

in 

15 !1 nany respects that despite the disparity in ran~·..b--1:::!-e-±,..----+ 
--.~·--··--

16 :tree to enter the office cif the Superintendent or any of my 

17 superiors and discuss a disagreement. 

18 Q. Your views are >tell-heard then? 

19 A. Yes •. 
. .. 

20 Q •. Fine. Now, in relation to Plaintiff 1 s E:;-:hibit number 13, 

21 the Isolation or SE?gregation Log, I believe .it is.marked "Item 6" 
1 .. ~ . . 

22 also at the top but that is not relevant to this. First of all, 

23 in the entry to, I believe it \vas 7-1, on thi.s record you stated 

24 that you. thought that the 11 8 11 stood for shO\.<Ter ,. is that not· correc · 

25 A. Yes. Of course it could be shave, but the second ~blumn'. 
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1 says 11yes 1
', i:lhich I vmuld interpret as having exercised that date, 

2 ' ~;_no I i·lOUld interpret" the II 8 11 as sh01•rered. 

3 Q. This is the second floor of 0-vling, ·is it not? 

4 A. Yes, that is correct. 

5 Q. The men exercise in groups of four, do they not? 

6. A. Upstairs, yes .. 

7 Q. They are not single-men exercises? 

s · A. No, sir. 

9 "' Q. So there may have been four men in the corridor, correct? 

10'
1 

A. Yes, sir. 

11 · Q. And when. there are four inmates in the corridor is the 

12 · officer in the corridor? 

13 : A. Yes, sir; standing oy sitting at the desk observing these 

14 people. We have one cfficer assigned to eac:1 side of the unit;. 

15 Q. B-u.t is this the period \:.Jhen a m_?n_:gQ:rma.1-1-47akes ------A. wnen he is out exercising, yes. 

Q. \men he is on L.T.S. he is free to take a shm·Ter ·vrhen he 

18 f! Hishes? 
" . it 
j! 

.19 1i A. Any time an inmate is out of his cell.exercising he is 
·I 

~ ~ free to take a shower, yes. 
!i 
'I 

21 :1 Q. Nov1, in shaving in L.T._S~.·., II, the second tier of 0-Vling, 
il! 

22 ;: is not the shaving done by the officers -- let me withdraw that 
li 

.2J,ii and rephr2<3e it, please. 
:I 

2A ii 
"'1' the Third Watch? 

;I , " 

Do the men shave in 1. T. S., II dur.ing 

25 II.,, .' A. The,Y shave on all three floors, yes. 
II 

!I 
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' l~ 

. ')2.,.. 
j J. 

1 

z· 

3 

5 . 

6 . 

7 

8 . 

,, 
,, 
,, ,, 
i 

q. They shave every other night? 

A. Correct. 

Q. One night the officer vrill go dovm a.'l}d pass out razors on 

one side and the next night on. the other side? 

A. Correct. 

c~. Control of these razors is important, is it not? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Since the control of razors is quite important, and the 

9 : men e~re free to shower as they vlish, could it be that the man on 

10 tl1e Tl1ird Watch marke.d "S'~ in the third colu:nn for 7-1 to indicate 

11 that he shaved? 

12 A. Yes, that is possible. 

13 Q. In fact we are not really sure what this represents,are 

14 'de, Sergeant? 

15 A. Hell, the form-- the present form th~ID looking a-t I -----·-· 16 must admit is rather confusing. It could be possible I could be 

17 i! Hrong, yes. This is the correct symbol for each column. I could 

be \·.Tong. Yes, it 1 s' rather confusing. 

Q. In fact, is there not a problem during this period 'nth 
. '("';,,. 

this ·:rorm so· i'ar as it was not too accurately kept? 

A. Yes, to a: certain degree •. 

Q. Were there ·not -problems vli th men -- vli thdravl that. At 

this period of time \vas it not kind of a common practice· for the 

officers to only indicate something that was somm·rhat out of· the. 

ordinary? 
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1 \.Jell, I ~voulcJ say so, yes. 

2 ; In other 1:10rds, common, every day things they may or may 

3 , not lil[trl~ dmvn, depending on the press of business? 

4 , A. Yes. The inmates are fed three
1 

times a day, but that is 

5 , never logged. You don 1 t have time to do this. 

6 : Q. So at that time it was kind of sl ovr and normal things, 

•' 7 , . things that may have been out of tho ordinary or abnormal --
;; 

8 ', ~ffi. COBLER: I would like to object here.to the use of 

g) 11 abnormal~' \Ve h3Ve a form we ought to be careful vli th • . , 

10 :: TEE COURT: S:ustained .. 

11 HR. OAKES: Q. Actually I think I am through vri th this 

12 · line of questioning in any event .. 

13 Now, on direct examination, referring to Plaintiff 1 s· 13, 

uj the Isolation Log--

15 ': HR. COHLER: Excuse me, counsel, Plaint~i-s Lhe 

~--·-·----16 Isolation Log and Plaintiff's --13 is the 114. 

17 HR. OAKES: Q. I apologize. Aga:Ln _-referring to Plaintiff 

18 1!13, the Isolation Record on the second page as I believe they ·are ., 
li 

19 1
1 I, 

20 !i 
:i 
1) 

21 ii 
I, 
'I 

22 li 
'i 23 ,, 
!I 

put together here which should be the 114A form, it shO'vvS 11 29 days 

isolation, to remain in the· strip cell until behavior vmrrants 

change 11
, is that correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. With your initials? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. On the.C.D.G. 115, and I am not sure of the Exhibit number 



011 that --1 . 

")rJ') 
.JC:.J 

2 HR. COBLER:· Counsel, it is, part of the Ansvrers to. 

3 :ntcrrogo.. tories, which, I believe, are Plaintiff 1 s 3. 

4 . l·:IR. OAKES: Q. In any event, the C.D.C. 115 \·rhich dealt 

5: ,dth that situation, I believe there is a notation to the effect 

6 .· ';:'.;,at the inmnte was disrespectful tm,·rard the· committee at that 

s .. A. Yns, sir.· 

e ~~. VIas that, in .your opinion, the reason for the man being 

10 !: :-~cpt in the quiet cel.l? 

11 .: A. Yes. He was remanded back to the quiet cell as a resu~ t 
• :1 

12 of his behavior before the committee, yes. 

13 Q. And his behavior ~esulting from the infraction in the firs 

14 place? 

15 A. Yes. _____ _,__ _____ _ --
16 .· Q. Ho-u, in bringing a man out -- -vrithd.ra-vr that • 

.. 
17 !: Hould you., say tti:at there is quite a bit of colThuunication 

I' 

. I' 
18 !! betv1een yourself, your officers and your supsriors, particularly 

,, 

19 [J..the correctional counselors and the program 3.dministrators? 
I' 

20 I! · ·HR>~ COI-ILER: Hay I asl{ counsel to say communication about 
•I :, 

21 j! what'r . \ve are being .quite general here. 
!I 

" 22 'i . !, 
" il 

23 !! ,, 
II 

24 I, 

II 
25 !! 

!I 
:I ., 
I' ,, ,, 

hffi •. OAKES: 

HR. COHLER: 

THE WITNESS: 

HR. OAKES: 

I.mean generally. 

Then I will vTi thdrav.r the o_bjection. 

Yes. We discuss --
Q. Do .you normally discuss. cases? 
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1 ;.\. .. Discuss cnses, yes. 

2 .i\TO\·t, does a gooo share of this discussion deal ui-ch the 

3 .. :el: t:i":<J.t you hove under your care and custody in the Aojust:::e::-lt 

5 ·' ..::.. .. Yes, sir. 

6 Does this discussion normally deal, or often deal vJith vrhe· 

7 :. .;~;,r-J1 should be removed from an isolation cell or strip cell? 

s A. Yes. Among the discussions this often arises, yes. 

9 I , Q. AnG. is it the general policy to bring a man-out o:f.' a 

10 c;uiet cell as soon as .. possible 'Z 

11 A. Yes. 

12 ' Q. " 1: 
And was that the general policy in July of 1Y65? 

13 A. It•s also been that pglicy as far back as I can remember. 

14 i: fiiR. OAI\ES: Your Honor, I have no further questions of 

15 1 c;i1is man at this time. l '\·lOuld like to reserve the right to re-

16 call i1im lo. ter. 
' 

17 ·~ REDIRECT EYJil'1INATION 
:· 

18 · 3Y :.d. COHLER: . 

19 l1H. COHLER! · Q.. Sergeant, I believe I recall accurately 

20 tho.t you statecl on cross: examination just nmv that you occasionall 

21 .::.isagree '\vi th your superiors'? 

22 I· 
I 

A. Yes. 

23 ', Q. Vlas one such disagreement you had with your superiors 

24 :: :.helated to the subject matter. as to whether or not i.vater basins· 

25 211d "'rater pitchers ought to have been installed in. the strip or 
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2. A. It \vasn 't a ·real disagreeme:q.t. I had reservations as to 

3 ,, ,,;l1ethcr \·re should furnish this equipment .. 

4 , · ·~. Thank. you .. 

5 . RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

7 HR. OAKES: Q.. You stated that you had reservations 

s ,; about having this equipment placed in there. Would you like to 
' 

9} say ·Hhy, please? 

10 ;: A. Yes. They vr~re in there previously several years ago, 
,, 

11 : and invariably they vmuld throw the vmter on the officer and 
\ 

12 :i other staff members. Occasionally they 1.wuld accumulate a large t 
! ,, 

i, I 
i 

13 :: quantity of urine and throvl. it on your face or clothing. They 

14 :1 l·roulo bang the bars with it and destroy the fixtures. 
!! 

I just ha~ 
!; 

15 :I 
I 

I, 

16 li 
:I 

17 i! 
!I 

18 il 
:j 

19 !! 
li ,, 

20 1: 

2d 
'I 

II 

22 II 

23 !! 
i; 

2411 
,I 

25 li 
!i 

' 
reservations. I didn It say. that they shouldn ~_havr-> 'l,·,ras:h-----,lr-

facilities •. I believe everyo~d~--h::-:ashing facilities; J 
~ 

. l 

·out l just couldn 1 t quite make up my mind. I wasn 1 t against it, l 

but I did have reservations. I just don't like to contim:t'e to } 
J 

undergo this kind of behavior~and I don't expect the officer to J 

I undergo this •. 
. . . 

FURTHER REDIB.EQ1' EXAMINATION 

BY I\ili. COHLER: 

1:-ffi. COHLER: Q. ·Sergeant, I believe you just stated that 

you think everyone. ought, to have an opportunity -to wash, is that 

corr-ect? 
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A. Yes. 

Q. Can you tell the Court, please, any 1:1ay you could think 

3 :1 
of implementing the ability of an inmate to vmsh 'I;Thile not 

4 involving the dangers you said led to your reservations'! 

5 ' A. Well, I may not be able to tell you at this particul2r 

Omcn .l- 1'·1,.... Col1ler. 
6 :' m ,, · .., , '"'" Just from the time of -- in my mind nt this 

7 time well, during the time in question last year ·the inmates 

8 , ,,.1ere furnished with t1vo styrofoam cups. :Hany of them -vrould 

9 accumulate cups and h8VO as many as a dozen cups th0.re. The 

'· 
10 '1 officers, in the perf.ormance of their duties, \·JOuld not leave just 

11 one or ti·JO cups, they would give him as much as hG de?ired to 

12 : drin};: 8nd then he would invariably leave several cups, whotever 
'i 

13 :! amount of cups 'lvere on the ba~s, tHo, three or four, he vJOuld leav 
!i 
:! 

14!: this \>rater there. Generally He try to limit thorn to t"~iiO or three 

15 CUpS b2cause an aCCUIDUJ.ation Of debris isn 1 t tOO _.g_QOd if t-a~l'----1-
-~~ -- -- ....------------16 accumulate too much trash so to speak.. But from the top of my 

17 head,J. am: trying to answer your questton to the best of my ability 

18 at that time with the stirofoam cups it's possible that· an inmat·e 

19 :i could, after he drank as much water as he desired and the cups 

20 il Here refilled, it is possible that he could use these cups to wash 
li 

21 !I his hands if he really wanted to wash them. He 'WOUldn't have a 
,. 
:I 

22 1: half-a-gallon. If he '\•ranted to wash them he would take a cu:p or 
:I 
II 

23 !1 two of water anc at least wash his haJ1ds out and 1vash them. 
I; 

241 Possibly he wouldn't be thro1•1ing this small amount on the 

251/.officer, but '-v1hen you have a half-a-gallon of drinking \·Tater and 

il ' 
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li 
I, 

~ 
i 

: l : 
in a plastic wash basin, there is a great deal amount of liquid 

z: tllJt can be ·thrown and is throvm sin9e we have installed this 

3 ; equipment .. The officers have been abused, they have had water an. 

4 :: urine thro1m on them; so I can only ans1ver to the best of my 

5 ': 3 bili ty. 

6 ' It is exceedingly difficult. You try to help these 

7 •. people to help themselves; w.-tr.y......t.o.-!,u:r...Qi.sh ___ :them.all .-the 

8 ii necessities that any human being should have; but unfortunately 
1. ., r nc enm ._._........._,. 

~"""'-~~~ 

9 I'· they abuse this equipment -- and who knows all the ansv1ers'!' I 

10 certainly doh 't. 

11 Q. In other words, when an inmate abuses his eqpipment you 
.. "-...--......._,. . . . .. . . . .. . .. ~~---···· ·----. . 

12 i! feel that he perhaps ought noT-tomvean--E~cessities a 
:: ~--- -----------·~-.....,.....-~--~-

13 :i human being ought to have? 
I 

14 !! _,_..---£.-iR= • .,.,...G""'R""'A-TI=JU""""cC'I··~---~·ob_j_e c ti on, Your Honor. 
·' 

Argumentative. 
II 
II 

15 1
1 

I; 
il 

16 'i 
:i ,, 

THE COURT:· 

HR. COBLER: 

Your Honor. 

Overruled. ----- ---­~--

I am merely restating the witnesses words, 

I 
t 
i -

Do you have the question in mind?, I _Vlill ask the reporter 

to read it back •. 

(Record read by the ·reporter) 

HR. COBLER: I ~ould like you to answer. 
. . . --~ 

Q. 

A. Yes~ Perhaps he should be given this eqUipment and if he 

abuses it perhaps it should be removed. for. _some. length of t~me. 

Perhaps this should be handled th;i._s -v;ay. He could have it as long 

as he isn 1 t abusing equipment and. degrading personnel. If they 
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do this, perhaps it could be removed for a day or so and later 
1 : 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 I 
II 
'i 

7 i.: 

ii 
8 ;: 

I' 
!I 

g '! 
li 

returned to him. This is a po·ssible answer to our problem. 

Q. The time in July, 1965, none of this equipment was 

available at all, was it? 

A. No 
' 

sir, other than the stirofoam cups. 

Q. Thanl'i: you, sir. 

THE COURT: Sergeant -- have. you completed, counsel? 

HR. COBLER: I have, Your Honor .. 

HR. OAKES: I believe vle rest, Your .Honor. -i/Je have 

10 li completed the examination of this witness. We ask leave to 
·' I 

11 ,r recall him. 
•I 

12 THE COURT: I just had one question or t-...,ro. 

13 Sergeant, and I a:p12reciate your general exposition of this 

14 subject; it is very enlightening. There has been testimony in 

the record that the strip or quiet cell has been used as a facilit; 
---

in order to observe or watchpotentiai-;uicides. 

THE WITNESS: . To control people, yes •. 

THE COURT: ls there any other facility in the correctiona 

institution that might afford the same type of facility -- in the 

hospital or the like? 

THE' WITNESS: · }{o, sir,· not to my knovrledge. -The hospitals 
,, 

don 1 t havtl .any proper. staffing, the proper -- v1ell, I would say 

the proper structure. ·They have dormftory:-type beds; they have a 

bed and so forth, and it 1 s exceedingly difficul_t. We are 

presently under.-staff and always have been in the Adjustment 
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THE COURT: Do you hnve any records available, Sergeant, 

Hi th res~ect to the nu.mber of suicides that have been. consummated 

in the so-called strip or quiet cell? ~ 
THE. WITNESS: In my nine years at Soledad I believe, Your 

;~onor, there lvere two inmates in nine years that actually committe . 
-----~----------·---- --------------·-··- ··---- - ···--··- -· .... 

suicide. 
-------

THE COURT: In the cell? 

THE.HITNESS: That is correct. I can recall tvm men • 

9 il ~ THE COURT:: Do you regard the so-called strip or quiet 
ii 
d 

10 
1
1 cell as a facility to be used in punitive or preventive measure? 

., 

11 il THE WITNESS: I vmuld regard the quieter strip cells as 
I, 

12 1: a preventive and as a control factor more than anything else. I 
tl ., 

13 il don 1 t personally think of them as punitive. · Some people do. 
II 
:1 

14 il There is a very thin line betvJeen punishment and control. I 
~ i 
I• 

15 :: don't think .anyone· is more m.rare of it than we; but we in 

16j/ corrections are primarily respomd1518totryto h:_e_l_p_t_h_e_m_h_e_l_p---r 
il 

17 !I themselves, and one way of doing this is to control them first, 
li 
I 

18 I: to give them time to try to think about \·rhat he is doing· and ,, 

perhaps straighten himself out. It 1 s a hard answer to give you. 

- -TBE COURT: There is a fine dividing line? 

THE WITNESS: I 1m not a psychiatrist, but my personal 

opinion, the quiet cells are used,. and I have used them, strictly 

as a control measure. 

THE COURT: What rule do youhave, SergeaJ.?;t, with respect 

to stripping a man per se, just taking his clothing away? 
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Tim WITNESS: I•m not authorized to strip an inmate per se, 

2 Your Honor, e:xcept. in extreme emergencies, and it 1 s a matter of 
' ' 

3 ) juogrr.ent; if an inmate mutilated himself, or if hG attempted 

4 , suicide by hanging. We are· obligated to protect the inmate from 

5 ,: himself. 

6 : Hany of these men are dangerous. vlhile they were loose 

7 they would vent their anger, their potential for violence on 

s other people. But once they are locked up they seem to direct 

~ 9 the destructi ves toward themselves. They can 1 t reaeh anybody 

lQ ,, else. :£ dOn It knOW a 

ii 
lli 

i 
THE COURT: Is it your rule, Sergeant, that the only 

12 :, occasions -v;hen you take the clothing avray from the. inmnte is 

13 Hhen he might have some potential to-vmrd self-destruction? 

14 il 
·I 

,, 

15 l' 
II 
!I 
:r 

1e !I 
II 

17[/ 
'I I, 

18 :: 
1'1 

THE WITNESS: This is the only time· that I -v;ould do it 

in an emergency measure. There have been times -vrhere it ,,.,as 
...... ---~-~--------necessary to strip a man to -coi:rtroT-a disturbance which didn 1 t 

i1ave anything to do with suicide. But it viaS done as a control 

factor, here again; not as a punishment factor. This \vas tl~e only 

19 !) thing vie could think of at the time to prevent a full-scale· riot 
11 

~0 i: or disturbance and the destruction of Stat~- property. It isn 1 t 
il 

:~1 i! done as a matter of general practice. l don 1 t have the authority 

22 il to strip a man per se.: I have to receive authorization except in 
;I 

23 !I an extreme emergency, and the only ·emergency . I can th,ink of that I 

24 ll \iOuld actually strip· a .1Tlan would be for his OVJ!l _self-protection. 

25 !I . THE. COURT:. Db . you· h<we a.vailable, ,t>r -- ,could· you- make 
:i : ' 

il 
II 



i 

1 -;::.vailablo the number of attempted suicides in the so-called strip 

2 or quiet cells? 

,3 ' THE WITNESS: In the actual strip cells? 

4 r 
THE COURT: Yes; attempts at self-destruction, either 

5 .: ~:utilation or the like as you described them. 

6 ,' TI-IE WITNESS: . I don 1 t believe we have had too many 

7 ~· suicide attempts in the actual quiet cells. 'vJe have had in the 

s ;, rest of the unit, but not in the quiet cells .. 

There is -- well, there is no cell furnishiBgs in there, 

10 r and the man is in abqut as f2r back as he can go in an institution 

11 and no other inmates are in contact vli th him. It's exceedingly 

12 difficult in a quiet cell for an inmate to secure a razorblade to 

13 mutilate himself, so, as a _result, they may .attempt suicide. out 

14 front upstairs in the general population or at the North or South 

15 Facilities, but if they are placed in a quiet cell the risk is 

16 reduced. 
"--07 . 

17 THE COURT: How would you determine, Sergeant, transferrin-

18 a man to a medical facility as such after an attempted suicide 

19 as nist,inguished from a strip cell? What would be your dividing 

20 line? 
lj 

21 !i 
' \1 

22 il 

THE. vliTNESS: 
~ ' ~ 

We would make this recommendation to -- a 
' 

' 
psychiatrist vwuld make this recommendation. 

23 ll 

II 
24jl \·Ie feel he should be referred to the psychiatri_st for psychiatric 

_,I 

' j!· 
25 II 

I! 

.. : :: !'Jormally,_.v!hen a man exhibits self-destructive behavior 
.· 'f'. I • • 

r. .·.;~ -:·.;· •· --~·-... '-. ·,..... _._·r> ·.:.J ;~ 

evaluation. We might even·make our recommendation that he be 
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r 
I 

l considered for medical facility. The psychiatrist will interviel·r 

2 , the man at great length and he will have a great deal to do vli th 

3 . Hhether the man is removed or not. 

4 ': THE COURT: I have no further questions. 

5 ·. 
·' 

FURTHER REDIRECT EXAJ:UNATION (Cont.) 

6 _ay i·lR. COBLER: 

7 1vffi. COHLER: Q. J:lmy I just ask -- Sergeant, I b0lieve 

s you just stated, in response to His Honor 1 s questions, that due to 

9 ttw absence of facility in the quiet cell or strip cell there vras 

10 really no opportunity for a man to attempt suicide. 

11 A. I didn't say there was no opportunity. I said the risk 

12 1::as considerably reduced. I don 1 t care if vlell, if a man vmnts 

13 to commit suicide, Hr. Cohler,_he is going to do it .. ·It is 

14 unfortunate that th-is is part ·of -- you are obligated to protect 

15 them from each other as well as themselves, .as well _ _:a~s~t~oL-J~'"'-'-'-""-'-......._t­
_______ 

--------------16 staff members; but all you can do is work -- place them in a 

17 situation \there you can control them. And such a ;place, unfortuna e 

18 
'I 

19 ') 
,i 

20 :! .; 

is 1:1hat vie might call a strip cell. 

Q. If a man, indeed, _did have clothing vlhen he v:as in the _, 

strip or quiet cells, that woul~c1 be one available means for at 

least an attempted suicide'? 

A. Yes, sir. He cc;)uld harig himself. 
·' 

THE COURT:· One further· question. Hov go. ;v:()u determine 

the length of time' let us say' in the instatit ca'se of Jordan' 

the 29 days that y'ou indicated as a period o,f 't:fme ~ What is . .your 



1 ,-measure of 29 days? How do you determine the 29 days as dis-

2 tinguished from five, ten, twenty? 

3 . Tiffi \VITr.JESS: When a man is undergoing a 29-day isolation 

4 ,; sentence he doesn 1 t necessarily spend the 29 days in a quiet cell. 

5 Uften the disciplinary hearing will remand him to a quiet cell 
!, 

6 :i uith a speciried number of days. Often, because of his beh2vior 
' ' 

7 '. they may not specify days. They may just say, 11place in quiet 

8 cell till behavior improvE(S.. 11 It 1 s always been our po·licy since 

s.; i have 1.forl~ed there as an officer that 1-re do our best, remove 
:: 

10 ,i :7eople from quiet cel.ls as soon as possible, as soon as 'de feel 

11 i! thc.t they are able to demonstrate sufficient· control to come out 
·' 

12 ano be housed in certain other regular cells. Unfortunately we 

13 I are over-populated, and despite the fact that an inmate is 

14 !1 behaving, perhaps \ve have nq room. 
i! 

We can't get him out on 

" 15 II certain particular days. 
II 

But ordinarily, since I have bee 
;I 
I• 

16 :: Adjustment Center Sergeant I-·-am off on weelrends ,and every Friday 
il 

17 'i I have made a personal practice sometime during Friday to check 
. I' 
· 18 :/ Hi th the officers to see how the p·eopl-e are doing, the· people . 

,. 
I 

19 ;: that may be back there during that time, to see how they are 
:, 
!I 

20 1i doing. Often the officers· themselves vJill recommend to me -­
:1 

' 2l'j p~rhaps a di s.ciplinary hearing is· three or foUl' or five days off 
'I 

2211 and the inmate is doing well -- the officer often will say, "Hell 
I I, 
r l! -
1 23 li this man is doing 1-rell; why don 1 t we move him out ? 11 Often I 1.·rill 

r, 

I' 24 1! checl.:.: the inmate files and note that they are dqing 1vell and I 
Ji 

25i!oight aslc the'officer, "well, is everythingall right'? Yes, sir .. u 

!! 
I 
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,, 
:: 

-

} ")4 
..)..) 

l /l.nd in thi·s case every Friday I try to vacate as mcmy as I can. 

2 . THE COURT: Where do you place_ the inmate.n.fter vacating 
--- .;: - ·- T 

3 • him from the quiet cell? 

THE.WITNESS: vJherever his classific3tion requires. If 

5 : he is to return upstairs, I will return him upstairs; if he is to 

6 return on the Grade I on the other side 1 will return him to the 

7 . other side; if he is still on an isolation sentence like 29 days 

8_ or ten days and he might have done five, he will come out into 

9 · ~egular isolation sentence to finish his original sentence, but 

10 .: he wouldn't do it all. in the back. 

n: FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION (Cont.) 
1 

12" nY .i\ffi. COBLER: 
'I 
•I 

13 : NR. COHLER: Q. Sergeant, vrhat might go into disposition 
·, 

14 i such as 29 days'? His Honor asked you what might be taken into 

15 'i consideration or what might be a controlling factor in tho 
,, 

~ ~ determination of 29 days. 
I, 

Is· it not true, Sergeant, that 29 days 

17 :i is the maximum isolati.cn sentence permitted without approval of 

18 il the Superintendent? . 
II } '. 

·I ,, 

19 :: A. Vli thout approval of the Director. 
i! 

20 il Q. · The Dir?ctor of .Correctio~s.'/ ... 
'I' I. .,• 

21 ii A. No long?,er than 30 days, yes, sir. 
il 

:· 2211 Q. Thank you. 
I' 

23 il THE COURT: Thank you, Sergeant. 
ii 

24 il :NIR.. GRANUCCI: Nothing· further from this w_:l.tness, Your 
il 
I' 

25 't
1

,, -r k 1 t 11 h · .r onor. He as ·. eave o reca .· ~m. 
li 
I' 
:j 
" 
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-
l·m~ COBLER~ Your Honor, the Plaintiff 1 s next vri tness is 

;:r. Hells, and I would like to have either 2!1 opportunity to go 

3 . 1.roll into the lunch hour or else to take a recess novr so it is 

4 . not interrupted. 

5 . THE COURT: We will talce a recess and -resume at 2:00 

6 : o'clock. 

7 . (Whereupon. the proceeding was adjourned until 2:00 o'clock 

s .. in the afternoon) 

g, ·. 

10 : 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 li 
:i 

19 ii ., 

·i 
20 i: 

,. 
•i 

21 ;i 
:i 
II 

22 il 
i) 

23 1\ 

l 
24 l\ 

25 l1 I; 

li. 
'• il 
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FridaY, August 12, 1966 

AFTERNOON SESSION 

1 : NR. COHLER: Please call Mr .. Wells as Plaintiff and 

2 Petitioner•s next witness. 

THE CLERK: Mr •. Wells. 

4 -~ WARREN WILLIAN WELLS, 

5 ·i called as a witness by the Plaintiff, who, being first duly 

orn testified as follows: 6 ·• S\·l , 

336 

7 :: THE CLERK: Will you state your full name and occupation'? 

. 8 !: THE WITI'ffiSS: Warren VJilliam Wells. I. don•t have any 
:i i . 

9 ;:. occupation as of now. 

10 :, THE CLERK: Thank you. 

11 ;i DIRECT EXANINATION 

12 3Y l·:R. COHLER: 

13 MR. COIILER: Q. · · ~1r., Wells, how old are you, please'?. 

14 , A. Nineteen. 
' p 

Q. \·Jere you at one time an inmate at the Correctional 

17 ii 
I' 

18 1l ,, 
: ~ 
il 

19 :: 
I'; 

,! 

20 :! 
!I ,, 

Training Facility at Soledad'?-----------
A. ·Yes, I was. 

Q. Are you presently- on parole? 

A. I am. 
-~ 

-~ Q. Approximately how long were you an inmate 
1: 

21 :~ Cortectional Training Facility? · 
li 

at the 

22 il A. ~ Oh, I was there a bout a year and a month the second time. 
' I; 

23 ~~ I \·ras there once and left and came back. 
:• 

i: 
2411 Q. The last time you v1ere there, Mr. Wells,_ how long were 

I' 
25 i! you there, approxima telyi · 

li 
\! 
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1 : A. A year and a month, that is the last time. 
., 

2 ; ~. \vhen did you leave on parole ·1 

3 I 
A. June the 22nd. 

Q. Of this year~ 

5 .i A. Yes. 

6 Q. When you were at the Correctional Training Facility, Hr. 
·, 

7 ,, 'dells, was there an area known to you as the· isolation area 'I 
" 

8 ·' A. Yes, there was. 

·l· \</as there an area known to you as the strip .cell area'( 

lQ I fk. Yes, there wa.s. 

11 · Q. Would you please tell the Court where the strip cell 

12 :' orea and where the isolation area was at the Correctional 

13 , Training Facility? 
il 

A. Well, the isolation area section is the first floor of 

15 U-Wing, the left side, and the strip cell section is the last 

16 six cells on this floor. -----~~"-

f 17 1

1 Q. Have you ever been detained in a strip cell? 
,, 
II 
I· ' 

18lj A. Yes, I have. 
'I 

;I 
19 il Q. And when was the first such time, please 'i' 

tl 

20 !i A. Hell, I believe it to be either August or September of 
,, ., 

21 !: 1965. 
" •I 

22 1! Q. And a bout how: many ·days, if you remember, were you de-tain-
:: 
~ ~ 

23 il ed in a strip celL in either August or September of 1965'? 

24 A. No more than ti v~ days. 
. ' ···-. 

25 Q. Can yon remember a bout J::J.ow many days· it was? _;.. if it was 



-~-,, 

1

·_. :1 
" 
:! 

1 ~.less than five days'( 

2 

3 

4 

li. 

Q. 

A. 

I don 1 t lmow_ if this to be exact, but I think three. 

\-Jere you a ward. of the Youth Authority at that time'? 

Yes, I was. 

You hnd a·Y.A. number, is that correct? ' 
5 \,;:• 

6 .li. Yes, I did • 

7 

8 ,, 

.Q. 

A. 

At the time you were placed in the strip cell? 

Yes. 

9,: 
) 

'-1!• Would you please describe for the Court the _physical set-

10; up of the strip cell,_ and I refer you specifically to doors and 

11 i uind OH openings. 
-· 

12 . A. \vell, there is a square cell with bars, and then a bout 

N: three feet from the bars there's another wall with a door and a 

M ~ndow on the door, and next to that there's a bigger window with 

15 ~ s steel flap, and both windows have a steel flap that can be 

16 •• closed or opened. 
'I •, 
;I 

17 ii Q. Can they be closed or opened by an inmate inside the strip --
18 If 

cell? 
i; 

19 ~~ A. No. 
:I 

20 11 Q. 'v!ere the steel f1<?.ps on the door and window you were in 
I, 

I! 
211 the first time ever closed? 

il '/ 
22 II A. All the time. 

I, ,, ., 
~ ~ Q. The:fl~ps were cl6sed all the time? 

;I 
,I 

24 11 
!i 
il 

25 ~ 
ii 

. 
A. The flaps were clo.sed all the- time that first time I was 

.,,,.,' 

in there. 



339 

1 
Q. Did you have occasion to notice any ventilation in the 

2 ·' cell \·Jhen you were in it when the flaps were closed'? 
.. 

3 ' 
A. Well~ there's two square things up in the top in the 

4 ~ back, rear wall of the cell, but they didn't work. 

5 ;;;;. What do you mean they didn't work? 

6 ' 
A. There wasn't any ventilation in the cell at all. I'd put 

7 my h8nd up there ~d there wasn't no air of any sort coming out 

8 ~ either one of the squares. 

9 . • ~2. ltlhnt did you wear when you were in the strip cell this 

first time'( 

11 , A. The first time, when I first was· placed in th~re, were blue-

12 jean material coveralls. 

13 Q. Did you have anything else to wear at that time~ 

14 A. No, I didn't. 

15 Q. lncluding underwear or socks'.' 1 

~~ 

16 1; A. No socks or underwear. ~~~lls • 
. , 

17 il Q. l•!r. Wells, at this time when you were in the strip cell, 
,, 
'I 

18 ;! hoV! did you go to the bathroom'? 
·' :! 

19 !! A. Hell, ·there 1 s a cement block in the corner of the. cell 
II 
:! 

20 1i rear :corner of the cell -- and it 1 s about two feet; ()ff the ground 
I' 

21:: high, and there 1 s a so-called commode in the center of this cement 
II 
if 

22 il 
:: 

23 !: 
:i 

24 li 
I' 
rl 

25 !I 
;I 

!I 

block, and --

Q. That was the only .facility similar to a toilet?_,,. 

A. Yes. 

Q. vloul9 you please tell the. Court, describing as be.st you 
. ·.·. •, 
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1
. ~n, the state of cleanliness of this strip cell when you were 

2 
plo cod in it the first time? 

3 A. It was filthy around the so-called commode on the vlall 

tl1e corn.er of the wall where the l:lalls met in the corner \vhere 

5 the toilet was. There was human body waste all on the ,,.mll and 

6 it was just a very strong odor in the cell. It vias nasty. 

7 .·. Q. Did you ever ask for anything to clean up the cell vri th '? 

8' A. Yes, I did. The first day 1 was in there I asked for 

,9 , something. 

10 Q. Do you remember who you asked? I don•t want you to guess. 

11 If you can recall you may state. 

l2 ,· A. l nrn not sure. I have got tvJO names in my mind, but I 

13 :: coulcln it really. say either. onecrrhem for 
" 

sure. 
i 

14 :: Q. VJould you like to say which two? 

15 · A. I know it was either one of the other, but I don't knovJ. 

16 
1! It vm s either Officer Spoon o-r-UfYfCer-Mil~--;ne of the two. 

17 li Q. \fuat were you told when you asked for sqmething'? 
,, 
il 

18 :: A. 11 Later on. 11 
. 

:\ 

19 !, Q. That is what the officer said to you? 
I 

20 i! 
;I 

A. .Yes. . ( 

II 

21 [I Were you ever given ;,anything to clean up the cell vri th? 
·I 
~~ 

22 !i A. 
.:·. 

No, I wasn't. 
li 

23 Ji Q. HovJ often was f~~od brought to you when you were in the 

24 i! strip c~ll the first time'( 
~ . 

J'. 
25 'I I!. 

II 

A. Tv:o · t:t"mes daily. 

. . ~· . 
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' 

#' 1 Ji1.. 
,.J • 

1 . 

2 

4 • 

-
~. Approxim~tely what time of' day vloulcl that have been? 

A. Once in the morning and once a bout betvreen 2:30 and 3: CJO 

o 1clock in the afternoon. 

~ •. What kind of' food was this': Was it similar to mainline 

' 

I 
I 

5 : food or \vas. it something special? 1 

Well, at this particular time it was similar to mainline J 6 : A. 

7 • foOd , but --

8 : Q. Did you eat the food that was served to you? 

, 9 A. No, sir. 

10 :: 

11: 
12 

13 •. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

\Vhy not? 

Because I couldn't. 

Why not? 

Because of the odor and the conditions of the cell and 

! 
~-

' i 
' i 
1 
~ 
j 

. ~ 

I 
-~ 

:1aving to use the bathroom and eat with the hands. You couldn 1 t l 
15 \·:ash. ------16 : Q. You never had a chanc~a-sh-your hands before food 

•, 

17 1·ras brought'? 

18 

19 

20 

21 
ii 

)22 :1 

A. 

Q. 

, A. 

Q. 

time'? 

I· 
.l'l.o 

Q. 

No, sir. 

Did you 

·No 
' 

sir. 

Did you 

No, sir • 

Did you 

ever have a chance to wash at 

ever have a chance to take a 

. "' ., 

make BI'J:Y e.f.fort to try to get 

filth and odor, as you have described it?.· 
'. 

fl· 

all? 

shower this .f:i~ st · 
·, 

away from the 

' i 
' l 
' i 
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1 ' 

A. Well, I had to sit to the front of the cell ne:xt to the 

2 •. bars sideways along the cell bars to keep as far avmy from the 

3 rear of the cell as I could. That way I was m·ray. I tried to 

i 
stay 8Hay from the odor because it \>laS it would moke sick. 4 i -- you 

And the reason that I couldn't eat my food is not that I didn 1 t 5 I 

6 Hant to eat. It was because they opened the ·door and slid the 

7 food in and close it, and you 9an't see at that part -- there was 

8 i some parts of the cell you could see cracks of light like on the 

9 ~ bacl{: vJall, but in the front you can't, and you have_to feel around 

10 for the little plate. And -- it 1 s just-- you just don't wanttJ to 

11 eat. 

12 Q. You say you sat near the front part of the cell, Hr. Wells 

13 \•ihat part of the cell is this commode located? 

14 il A. In the rear. 
,, ,. 
,I 

15 ;; Q. Hmv- often 1.vas water brought to you when you were in the 
i' ,, ~ 

16 :: strip cell, l'1r. Wells, this fir-st-~ro:xima tely, your best 

~~recollection? 
A. I 1m pretty sure. it was once in the morning and 

night. Twice after the ne:xt shift came on. 

water basi-n 
.. 

Q. Was there a in the c.ell ~of . any . sort 20 r! ,: 

" 
21 :\ time, the first time· you _iveref in the strip cell? 

•I 

22 !I A. 

23 ::1 

" Q. 
II ,, 

24 1
; 

251i 

A. 

Q. 

No •. 1. .. , 
' 

Or a water pitcher'? . 

No, sir. 

Or soap'? 
., 

.· .. , 

·' I 

··' 

' . 
"' 

' . 

t-\.,rice at 

at this. 

. . -~ 



1 

. 2 : 

3 

4 

5 : 

6 

7 

. 8 

9 '· 

10 

11 

A. No, sir. 

Q. Tmvel't 

A. Nothing. 

Q. Toothbrush'? 

A. No, sir. 

-

")I.") 
...1'-~"...1 

~. r<r. Wells, would you-recognize personnel at the institutio 

:movm as medical technical assistants or M.T.A. 1 s? 

A. Yes • 

Q. Did they wear distinguishing clothing of some sort? 

A. Yes; a white ,smock. 

Q. Did .YOU ever have a co1:1versation with an H.T.A. during 

12 these three days, as you recall it, the first time? 

13 A. Yes, I did. 

14 Q. Could you tell the Court, please, what that conversation 

15 

16 

'\.JaS about'? 

A. 
~-----

Well, I didn't know wn~;;;;_-~--with me at the time, 

' H 

17 II but the three days I 1 d been in there I 1 d been sitting most of the 
·! 

18 !I 
I 
II 

19 ii 
il 
II 20 ii 
il 

21 !I 
\\ 

22/i 
;I 

time until sometimes I 1d get up and walk to.ke-ep warm, but most· 

of the time I had sat on the floor next to the bars t~o stay up in 

front of the cell. 

THE COURT: To lceep away · -- · 
,. 

THE WITNESs:·· To keep a1vay from the back- of .the cell, 

because it was kind of nasty back there and that was the cleanest 23 ii 

24 jl part of the cell. And I· bad a very sore· pa;Ln·; · and I had. seen one 
I 

2o(/ of the H.T.A. 's about it. l asked him what could this be. 

II 



1 .• Q. Whore WClS the pain'? 

2 

3 ' ,, 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

' In my rectum. And I asked him v-1hat could this pain be .'i.. 

c;:;-u sed by. He told me he wouldn't kno1·r but I'd have to be 

checlced by one of the doctors; so when I was released from the 

strip cell and taken back to Hax Row next door I seen th(3 doctor, 

and they told me -- they let me go to the hospital anY1,·my; and the 

doctor interviewed me in his office and he checked me and told me 

that l had hemorrhoids or piles, whatever you want to call it, and 

~ 9 he asked me -- this· 11l8S Dr. Kunkel, and he asked me _did l want 

10 them cut out, and I t?ld him anything to be done that vTould stop 

11 ;i the pain, and he said okay; so they had surgery that day and he 
'I 

12 :1 r;;o.de the statement in his office: had I been in the strip cell; 
,, 
•: 

'I :, 
15 lr 

II 
!I 

16 : ,, 

171 
18 ,, 

!I 
1: 

19 !I 

20 !\ 

cmd I said, 11 Yes,'' and he asked me what I'd been sitting on,. the 

cement floor'f and I said, "Yes." And he said, "That's probably 

Hhat brought them down. rr Then he went on to e~.uu--<.;~'-l.-J.....W,~.5 
-~-·--·-----.........-------- . 

--=-~-
up into a knot, warmth of your body, and all' that because I didn't 

1mow; and he explained it to me. So I had them removed and there 

was no more said about that. 

Q. You have stated that you were released from the strip cell 
.. 

on this occasion. When 1.vas the next time you were placed in· the 

21// strip cell, approxime3. tely'i 
11 

22 il A. Nmv, sir, if this vras the first time -- see, the first and 

23 ~· the second times in the strip cells were so close together. This 

24/l might have been the second time •.. Well, if it was the first time, 

25 1/ the second time. was very shortly after this, and I .would say no 
- II 

II 



-
1 • more than two or three weeks after this • 

. 2 ,: Q. And about how long were you in the strip cell on that 
,, 

3 .· occasion? 

4 A. Around five days. 

I 

5 ' Q. Were the conditions essentially the same as you h£t y_e 

a ~ described them? 
• 

L A. Well, it \·las a different cell, but it wasn't as bad as ,, 

a' that specific cell, but it was dirty· still. It wasn't clean. 

9:. Q. In what way? 

10 A. Well, I mean .there wasn 1 t as much body waste in this cell. 

11 : The odor vras bad and things, but it wasn 1 t that where you v.ras 
I ., 

12 1 afraid to sit on the toilet. 

13 :: Q. Were you in the strip cell on another occasion? 

14 ,i THE COURT: How many days, £1r. Wells, on the last 

15 : occasion'.:' Five days, was it, on this last occasi~o~n~? _______ _ 
~-_____....-

·, -------
16 ·' THE WITNESS: The last I \vas just sp8aking of. I 1 m 

ii 
17 ![ pretty sure it was five days. l know I did a three-day stretch, 

., ;i 
18~ then a five-day, then a long one~ 

!I 

19 !i ,, 
!I 

20 li 
:i 

21 i: 

ii 
22 11 

:! 
,, 

23 1i 
ii 

NR. COHLER: Q. Would you turn your attention to the 

third time you were in the-strip cell and tell the Court when that 

vias? 
. _.. 

A. October the 26th of 19~5,. l entered the strip cell, and 

came out around November Thanksgiving holiday _I came out of 
I' 

241! the strip cell for about five days- and I went back until 
il 

25 1,1· -
1 Christmas Eve day, the 24th of December.·. So I did 5b days in 
I! . --·, - . - . ""'""'"""""''..,._--=-~--·--



r11 

/.

•. .·1.1 '! 
i' 

I 

isolation~excluding five of those days, I did them all in the 

2 · strip cell. 

Q. And those five days were around Thanksgiving time'i · 3 I 

A. Yes; around that period. I don•t kno1·r the ey:act dates. 

i 
5 ~. 

9 'I 
" ' 

Q. 'vlere you a ward of the Youth Authority at that time'? 

A. Yes, I was. 

Q. You hae:J. a Y.A. number? 

A. Yes, I did. 

hR. GRANUCCI: Objection, asked and answereo. 

THE COURT: Overruled. 

11. 1·L.1. COHLER: Q. What did you wear '1-fhen you v1ere put into 

12: the strip cell at the beginning of that period in October? 

13 A. . Nothing •. 

14 Q. There was a period of time vlhen you were in the strip 

15 
1 

cell during the period from the end of October until the end of 
I, ~-·-·---

16 f! Decen:ber, approximately, th1:ff" you had no clothing? 
li 

17 li 
II 
•i 

18 il 

il 
19 f! 

,I 
i/ 

20 ii 
li 
ii 

2li/ 
ii 

22 l/ 

23 il 

24 li 
.· !I 
25 il· 

II 
II 

A. l.rlhen I was put in. 

Q. \men did you get clothing? 

A. The next day. 

Q. Did you have clothipg the. rem<finder of those days you 
'' 

Here in the strip· cell? 

A. ,Jl did, yes. 
' ! 

Q. ,You have described metal flaps previously. • Were the~. 
··~ ' 

flaps opened or closed when you v1ere put in the· strip cell "the 

end of Uctober? 



r"!l 
~- !i 

-
1 . A. Closed. 

2 : 
:.;; . Here they ever opened at all during the time you vTere in 

3 . the strip cell'? 

A. Yes. They were opened during the time I wa~ in the 

5 .~ strip cell. 

6 
Q. About how often were they open and closed and how that 

7 varied, please'? 

·, 

8 I' 
;I 

A. They were opened -- when they first started open -- Office 
\ 

9) :Jasl1 opened -- he start -- was the one that started_ opening the 

10 \ flaps on his sh_ift i~ the afternoon through the night. And if vle 

11 ; didn't make too much noise or talk too loud they would stay open 

12 l UJltil .the morning '\vhen the next Shift WaS WOrking' and if Oidn 1 t 

:'J.Othing happen I guess they_would probably leave them open, .but 

14 ;J.-~ir. Spoon was working he 1 d usually close them when he came on 

15 if they 1vere open. Now if they were closed when~.:J'.fr:::...:·~N~a~s:'..!oh~"'-"<U~~......_1 
~---------16 he Hould leave them closed. ~- the first stage of this 

1: 
17 i! 5o-day sentence. But after he !d been in there so long, Nr. Nash 

., 
'i 

18 :i began just t9~ leave --·.if they was qloseq. vrh.en he came he viouJ._g 

19 , open them. 
1: 

20 !i Q. Did you ever have any conversations. v1i th Nr. Nash about 
I• 

21 :: the flaps during this period'? 
il 
I[ 

22 :i A. Yes, I did. We had conversations with a whole lot of 

23 i! people about trying to get them ()pen. 
ii 
'I ~4 !I 

'5 if 
" il 

Q. \'Jill you tell the Court about those conv.ersations? 

A. "Well, would .. it . be right for me to sa.y by somebody else'/ 



p 
II 31tH ,. 
Jl 

lj 

·' 

-
1 - 0cCCJUS8 I didn't --

2 : 
Q. Only your ovm 1mowledge; not what some one else may. have 

3 told you. 

4 .. A. Not \vhat somebody else did that I know did? 

5 •. Q. If -you 1mow of your ovm knowledge. 

6 ' 
A. Alphonso Esparza, he was in there with m~ for the same 

7 tl1ing. 

THE COURT: Who was that, Hr .• it/ells'? 

THE 1.VITNESS: Esparza. We -vras both in ther~ for the same 

10 , violation: -inmate dist"Lu·bance, maldng noise. 
:I 

11 Okay, and when it was nearing Christmas and vle wanted to 

12. vrite letters, I wanted to write and let my mother kno1.,r \vhy she 

131· couldn't come see me, but I_couldn't. Vle \vould ask if \ve could 
'i 

14 1 HTite a letter, how can you write a letter in the dark, so please 
:; 
I• 

15/i open the flaps. So anyway Esparza go~_:_-~---~at way th-9-3;f--f±C:H::1----I 

:1 ----

16 :r to tal\:e· him to the Disciplinary Committee. He told· them all a bout 

1d 
:I 

18 !/ 
,, 
il 

19 li 
li 

hovr he ~rranted to write a letter and he should have a vJay to 1.vri te 

a letter and he hadn 1 t done anyt-hing to k~ from wri t:i.ng a 

letter. So they said that, yes, the ·flaps could be ope:;Ye~9 to 

20 :1 H:ri te a letter, if he wanted to 1vri te a letter. So I don 1 t knovJ 
I 

21 .i if this .\vas supp6sed to be a rule or 1vri tten or anything, but that 
1: 

·' f; 
22/i 

" !i 

23-:: 

. 
Has \·rha t was said. in the Committee .because we were able- to vJrite 

~ /' il . 
, I! 

241'1··· 
I" 

And the·y give -us pencils ·oand paper to 1•rr,i te· letters. letters. 

li-
25 li, fully 

But now after_ a couple time$ pf writing letters success­

without no_: int~rvening with nobody else-,· Mr. Nash came · ba cl-c 
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I 
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r 
....J r;, 

" I I; 

r 

1. <.mc.i s.:1id ono night he is going to open the flaps. vJell, vTe 'd 

2 J18 ve to keep the noise down because if we talk loud ho is going 

3 to get in trouble. He's going to get chewed out by his supt; rior. 
I 

4 Ana this left us feeling that Y~. Nash wanted to open the flaps; 

_, 5 he \·ranted to do something for us, but if he did he could get in 
~ I 

6 :[ trouble. 
,I 

7 ·,1 ,, Jlffi. GRANUCCI: I move to strike the last sentence which is. 
I: 

8 il purely his o-vm conclusion. 
:1 l 

.9 :i 
:1 

NR. COHLER: Your Honor, I thinl{ that the reaction of the 
,. 

w ~ inmates in the strip pell is relevant in thi~ inquiry and that 
I; 

11 ~ reaction should include their impression of the officers and the 
il .. ' . 

12.j;wa;r in which they observed the demeanor of the officer. It might 
·I 
I 

13 !1. not have a lot of weight ---,, 

14 t! 
II 

THE COURT: Motion is denied. 
I! 

15 il HR. COBLER: Q. You may continue, l.fr~_}kJ.lcS-..-'----~--~~ 
li ----------~- --·-

16 )i A. And Officer Nash and his relief officer, Officer Thompson 

17 ~~ Cfficer Nash would work five days and Officer Thompson would 

18 iJ relieve tvo. Those two officers -- well, they did treat us 

19 Jl different from all of the rest of. them. They -- like bringing 
II ' ' ' ' 

20 i/ water in, for instance. 
i! 

2d 
ii 
II 

No~., they have a little. cup about the size of a Dixie Cup 

22 1/ in the room and they fill it up 'with water. Now,. some of the 
!I 
'I 

23JI o_fficers -vrould .. fill it up with 11ater and walk out, and that 1 s the I 
24 Fruth.· They would ~:fill it up with wate:r- and walk. out and that.wa. s,~ ..•. 
25\\ our water for that half of' the day.. I' ~on '.t care what nobody says · 
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1/ 

-
- 1 ij that's ,,.,hat hnppened to me. But Mr. Nash vlOUld fill it up vlith· J _ 

2 
(! uater and let you drink it and fill it up again till you. got 
~ . 
" 

3 i! filled up 1-.r.i th vJa ter and leave some water in your cup. I wa sn 1 t 
'I j 
" i 

4 t no angel. I messed up. I raised noise and things because, I donlt 
ii I 

5 ijlmm·r; I didn 1 t have anything else to do but sit in ther.e, so I j 
II 1 

6 j: figured I might as 1.vell do something 8 So I 1 d make noise and lett 

:1 ' 

7 11 
off tension and get the pressure off' of' me, but I vlOuldn 1 t mess i 

i: j 

8 ~up on his shift because he was being good; and if I messed up it I 
i! I. . ~ 

9 ~~ i·rould step on his toes, and that probably would end .up messing u~ 
!1 i 

10 I! the only man that was doing us any real -- treating us like hum4s 

11 ;; Now, I'm trying to sound like some ange1.or something; I'~ 
,1; { 

12 !! not. I've done a lot of' wrong, but I don't think I've ever done 1 
II ' l 
II . " 

13 ~ anything as bad to be kept in a place like this as long -~ I 
I' ~ 

l4 !/ NR. GRANUCCI: Your Honor, I object to the conclusionary l 
I ... \ 
i! 

15 // statement of' this withess. __ I_--==-~-t_h~_!_ h~_llas Japsed .wer from 

16 !i testimony into argument, and improper argument at that. 

17 il THE COURT: Well, it is a natural protestation that would 
'I 

1s// ordinarily come :from a man who had been subjected to some type of 
II 

19)/ penal services. I will allmv it .. 
li 

20 if ,, •· THE WITNESS: Your Honor, .if I 1m talking wrong I'm sorry, 

r . 
21 ~ but I want to talk.· 

22 1 THE COURT: You can talk. 
I • 

23 I 1~. COHLER: Q. 11r. Wells, I don 1 t; want to interr~pt you. 
L ,.,;-:! ~ ... . ". ( ~ ' .t: 

2411 \·:as there a particular incident that Y_Oil can recall shortly prior. 
ll .. / ....... ~ t'\~ 

2:J to Thanksgiving . invol vijlg an inmate housed next -~oor to you ihd 
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' ,, 

,, 

1,, t lo,ost -in 
1 : .CJ. ,, part yourself'? 

,, 

2 !, A. There was an incident involving m0 -- -vrell, it really 
:; 

3 :r 6ion't involve me because they made it involve me; but this 
!' 

4 ,, inmate, Esparza, was caught vri th some tobacco in his cell that 
II 

5 :,
1
; you roll cigarettes with, and this officer had 

I, 
found what they 

6 il 
II 
1/ 

7 I' ,, 

8 i! 
!I 
ii 
1: 

9 j 
II 

10 li 
,I 
;I 

11 il 

121
1 

, ,I 
1/ 

13 1
1 

;I 
II 

14 l! 
!J 
II 

15 IJ 

16 II 
/I 

17 I I 
i 

18 I 
i' 

19 !I 
II 

20 li 
21 :: ,, 

I 

22 il 

23 1i 
II 

; II 
24ji 

25 il 

II 

called a contraband because you ain't supposed to smoke. He 

found the tobacco in his cell and we 1d just got out of the strip 

cell and \ve were nearing the end of the first 29 days 1 sentence 

vhen he found it. So he said, "Okay, we 1 re going to go to the 

.strip cell; 11 and Esparza, I guess he -vras sick of the strip cell. 

He started arguing, "I don't want to go to the strip cell; you 

can ei ve me five days lock-up but please don 1 t. 11 So they got in a 

verbal boisterous argument, and both of them are of Mexican . 

descent and they were arguing in Mexican, and I was in the first 

cell and I called him because he ~<ras a good friend of mine and I 

--------------was tired of. seeing him get h~;use they dropped the bait 

out. 

l'ffi. GRANUCCI: Objection, Your Honor> ·That is an improper 
I 

conclusion • . , 

THE COURT:: Yes, I--wil,l strike "dropping the bait out.-" 
'• 

MR. COHLER:. Q. . You may continue, Mr·. ;Wells. Try to 

limit.yourself to _your own observations. i 

A. Well, they \vas involved .in a .loud: ?-rgument~ I told the 
·-·'-'-~~··---·-· 

inmate, Esparza,.to-stop arguing, justdo what·he says because ""~·c· 

vras going to get out in a few days. ·Anyway E:sparza had threatened 
. ·.::..::·· 
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I II 
: II ,, 

I 

" 

1 ;i the man. 
1! 
i! 

2 1
1 

li 
'i 

He says, 11 If you keep bothering me I'm going to cut 

your hear_t C?Ut. 11 That's what he said. The man struck his chest 

' •d 11 Cut •t II " ·i out ona sal ; l • . v I, 
So they kept arguin~ and finally he says, 

'• \' ,, 

So anyway that's 4 
11 No' not unless 1 can take my personal letters. II 

5 HI1en I told him, "Nan; be quiet; don't say nothing else; 11 -as I 

6 Has sayinc this some officers -- I guess the officers up front 

7 :1ac called for some more officers to take Esparza to the strip 

· 8 cell. Well, I'd just got through telling him that and they told 

to,"shut up, big-mouth, you're going too. 11 

So they took .Esparza to the strip cell, cam~ back and took: 
I 

11 ii 

i! 

12 11 

I! 
13 !i 
. II 

1411 
II 

15 1: 

II 

16 li 

171! 
. !I 

18 li 
il 

19 11 

I, ,, 

2o II 

21 ii 

22 /, 
1: 
r: 

23 jl 
II 

24 i/ 
II 
If 

25 ji 

!I 

oe to the strip cell. 

Q. Two different cells? 

A. Yes, two different. ~These didn't have the cement commode 

in the corner. These had a hole in the floor. 

And they took me back there; and _Qn_xt~;rc~~~~tner~lr~l 

,stopped to ask Sergeant Frederick, who was walking on my left, 

1vhY I vras going to the strip cell. I slowed d O\'ffi my pace of 

·vmlking and turned to-vmrd him at an angle, and before l could 

get it out of my mouth Officer Fontana put me in ·a choke-hold. 
. ' .. ~ 

Sergeant Frederick grabbed me by my testicles with his fist and 
I 

Gfficer Nanc.e ,grabbed both of my feet off the ground. .so I vra~ I 
off the ground and Officer .MilTer \vas hitting me in my mid-sectioJ 

'\·lith a closed fist. They took me· to the -stpip cell that \\'ay and \ 

I couldn't breathe. I.was struggling, trying to·get some breath·· 

and trying tO get the marl IS hand from Where ',it WaS beCaUSe it WaS 
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1 hurting; and they toolc me in a cell and through me; and I asked 

2 1/ then lvhat did you do that for -- I was mad, I ~>ras really mad,· and 
n 
j! 

3 ,: they told me, nvle were subduing you. 11 

t! 
I 

.I 

4 il 
:j 

The next .day we went to the Disciplinary Committee. 

5 !j EspGrzo. went for contraband and beligerance to an officer and I 

6 !1 went for agitation. They said l agitated Esparza into arguing. 
·t 
l! 

7 11 1 got 29 days again, plus I got restricted diet. That's the li ttl 
. !I 
s /1 D. little thing made out of a whole bunch of food put together in 

I! r .0 

9 1
/ one little compressed box. And Esparza got 29 days. 1vi thout R. D. 
I 

:t 
10 li :Sut vrhen they gave it. to him he was mad; and he vias arguing vli th 

! 

I~ 
11 ~ them and screaming he didn't want 29 more days in that place, 

1: ----~ ,, 

12 :: because the first 29 days they said we didn •.t have to do it all in 
I• 
II 

13 ;i the. strip cell but we done 22 days of it and during that 22 days 
II 
q 

14 ii l didn't ever get no 115. So they couldn 1 t say that they kept·· me 
it 

15 )i 

I' 
16 il 

17 !i 
i 
I 

lB i 
i 

19 il 

20 !I 
:I 
li 

21 It 
It 
II I, 

22 1: 

2311 
II 

241 
I 

25 I 
It 

back there for 22 ·days because I was mes~ng-tt ecause I didn't 

get a 115. 

So he said,. well. if he l{ept us in there' ur lmOvl you are 

going tO }Ceep US all Of thiS 29 dayS' II SO~ they told hiin he WaS 

beating on the frg>nt of the cell making noise. and they told him 'to 
.. . . . -(~. ''. 

.. 
give his coveralls to them and his canvafs mat because he vlas 

" 
ma~ing this noise. And he told them,. ''No, I'm not going to giv.e 

my coveralls and my mat to you; 1"because he'd already been 

one time. in there all night and he said he vmsn 1 t going to freeze 

to death. So they went and got some tear gas and came-back with a 

little red container. of tear gas.· and· a gas mask. · · iJfficer · HiAler 



I' 
II 
II 
I) 
•I 
IJ 

:I 
'I 

-
1 ;i stood in front of my cell and Esparza 1 s cell --: our cells ':las 

2 side by side-- and my flap vras down because the Committee,didn't .. 

3 ta1i:G us to the Gommi ttee room -- they came to the strip cell and. 

4 heard us in front .of the cell and told us we was guilty. So 

5 that's why the flaps was dovm, because the Committee was back 

6 tt1cre. 
II 
'· NoH, all of the Committee was present. I don't knovl his 1 

7 /1 
I I 

8 il first name -- Nr. Johitston, Lieutenant Flores, Sergeant Frederick, 1 

911 ufficer l''iota, and I am pretty sure Counselor De CarJi Has there 1 
:I 
li w ~ and he told them if he didn't give them his coveralls and his 
I 
·: 

11 
1
1 canvas mat that he was going to have to put some tear gas in his 

II 

12ii cell. Esparza told them, "Well, if that's i--Jhat it's going to be, 
il 

13/l out i don't think it can be~worse than freezing because I'm not 
:I 

14 i: going to give you my coveralls and canvas mat.'~ 
!I 
II 

15 (I 

161! 

Q. V<11o is he? ~-----~------------~ 
--~ =:) 

A. Ufficer Hiller. He vTall\:ed in the ·cell with the gas mask 

All I heard was a big 11 sh.;,h-h 11 noise, you lmov1, 17 /I on and sprayed. 

18 // loud air, and like th~re was a lot of people fighting in there .. 

19 /1 thought they id vTent in there and physically taken them off, but 

20 / it \vas Esparza on the floor. It just made him do that. He 
!! 
II 

21 II 
I: 

221 

23 .. 1 
~ 

24 I 

25 I 
I 
I . J, 

couldn 1 t breathe and he was trying to breathe and he vras going 

into convulsions and things in there; and the man kept talldng to 

him through the thing. He eventually did shove out· his mattress 

and jumped out off his overalls. 

Q. · You didr+ 1 t see any of that happening? 

•• < ...... 

I 
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-
1 ; .i'.. Well, he had ·to shove them out because our cells \·laS 

2 ,1 
risht next d<?or together and Officer 1-liller cnme out vli th the rna t 

'I 

.3 , ,;nd the coveralls· And. at that time I was pretty mad because l 

4 ·hadn't said anything, and this tear gas-- it just don't stay in 

5 one snot. It moves. All over the place • .!\.nd It's all in_.my 

6 · cell and I 1 m burning up and coughing and choking, and l' m telling 

i• 
7 ;: tl1ew, llVJhy did you have to do that'? Come in here; don't pick on 

ii 
8 h i1im. Come in here and take mine. II And I threatened them to come 

II 

p. there. 9 lll 

10 So with a li~tle tear gas that they had left, he squirted 

11 , it in my room and closed my flaps and vmlked on. 

12 Q. How much was there left? 

13 A. Not enough to hurt me like it hurt him.· He 1 d· got the· 

14 rnajori ty of the can. 

. 15 
:i 

16 i! ,. ,, 

·' 

Q • 

A. 

Do you have more to relate about thaLmcj dent, lh--·.=--w.~t-<:::!-'4 
. ----~--------' 

Yes, I have a little more .• 

At night V~. Nash came on. Hr. Nash -- Ufficer Nash came 17 ,, 
II 

1sJ! on -- wait a minute. I'm not sure if Ufficer Nash came on that 
r, 

II 
19 I' night. I'm not positive, but whatever officer, they opened the 

20 ![ flaps and doors of Esparza 1 s cell and they opened the door out ' ~ . 

211! because his cell was full of it. And his throat ...:.:.. he was messed 
II 

22 ;i up. And he kept· asking could. he have· some clothes,· and they said 
23 !: .• , . 

:! not until the man that took them came back on shi~t.,.: 

24 ~~ So that night I still had my canvas mat and I picked 
I. 

25J! thread out of my mat and made a line and took .mY coveralls off 

il 



ti~d them in a ball and threw them out the hole in the screen. 

2 ;· And he made a thread ·-- he had a thread that he 1 d made before p·re 
li 

3 0 used to fish sandwiches back to each othor to eat because of the 
I• 

4 ; ordeal he was on -- he had to eat on, because he couldn't eat 

5 i: tl1at. So vle had two lines and I sent him my overalls that_night. 
:1 

6 ~e slept in mine. If he had got caught I vrould have got some wore 

7 time because I 1.vas violating an inmate rule of contraband line in 

· 8 11 my room. 
jl 

9 ~ So the next day they gave him his clothes back about noon-
11 
I 

10 I! time. That 1 s all I h,ave to say. 

n :: Q. Nr. Wells, were you given a toothbrush at al.l during the 
;l 

12 ii 5U or so days'( 
II !, 

13 t: A. No, sir. 
,, ,, 
:I 

14 1[ Q. Did you get one after you were released from isolation? 

151; A. Yes, sir. 
f! 

16 i! Q. Hr. Wells, do you have an occasion to see the dentist 
[I . 
,I 

17 // shortly after you left the strip cell? 

18 [i A • Yes'"~ "S>i r • 
[I 

19 1
1 Q. Tell the Court about tha.t. 
II 

20 J! A. \·Jell, l.vhen I left the strip cell I hadn't brushed my 
II 

21 t: 

II 

22)1 
23 ![ 

II 

teeth in 

1 had put 

cavities 

so long that my 

in -- maybe it 

in the front of 

gums, my front -- I ' ' had two cavities 

was on the streets -- but l had tl·lO 

my teeth up back near the gums, and I 

that. 

,, 

24 11 hadn 1 t brushed my teeth so that my gums had growed do·wn over the si::! 

25 1l cavities or attached to: them. And when: 1 came. out of the strip 

;I 
)! 



1 
: cell and brushed my teeth -- when l first came out i vms brushing 

2 
.. ti1et?1 quite regular and ·the tvJO cavities -vras gon~. Unc day,l 

3 .• didn 1 t lmm·T i.vhen they came out. Just one day there vias a hole 

4 .. t:tcre, then it -v;as gone. So l put in a request to see the 

oentist and he'd asked me,· 11 You haven 1 t been brushing your teeth '5 ; 

6 very often, have you 'i 11 J\.nd 1 told him, 11 No. 11 He says, "That's 

7 ' 
\·rhy· your cavities fell out, because when you did get to brush 

I, 

8 ;; tnew your gums had grovJed down here;• and when I brushed them the 
j, 

9 • rr1:1.m broke back up and the cavity was loosened and fell out --(,.) 

10 ;~. Hashed out. And he refilled them for me. 

11 :i Q. Thank you, Mr. \vells. 

12 i CROSS EXAHINATION 
,, 

13 BY HR. GRANUCCI: 

.[ 

14 MR. GRANUCCI: Q. Mr. Wells, you are presently on parole, 

15 1i are you note!' 
:: 
I, 
II 

16 li 
:i 

17/i 
. I 

1sj[ 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q • v.Jhere are you on parole? 

A. Here in San Francisco. 

'i 
19 /i Q. Now, you testified tha't you were an inm.ate of Soledad for 

I 

20 1
1.1

1 
' 1 ? .. DOvl ong. ,, 

I' 
:; zq 
:I 

22 jl• 

A. Around a y;;e"ar. 

Q. Around a year. 
'I 

~~~ ![ cell was when? 

;· 

I 

And the first time you went' into a quiet 

II 
24 :: 
.. II 

A. .It vras either August or· September was my memory what 

25 !1111 -1· can remember ... 

I! 
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1 Q. I show you a document. Have. you seen that? 

2 ' }ffi;, COBLER: J:'.1ay I see it'? 

3 r.·m. GRAIWCCI: J:t is a copy of his affidavit. 

4 ' l;R. COBLER: Would you mind having it marked for 
., 

5 J identification if you are going to use it? 

6 

7 tion. 

l·IR. GRAIIIDCCI: Q. Have you examined the1t document? 

9 A. Yeah, l looked at it. 

10 :, Q. Does it refresh your recollection as to the amount of time 

11'! you sp_~nt in the quie:t cell on the. first instance'( 

14 i[ 

15 i! 
'I 

16 ii 

17 il 
II 

18 :! 

19 !i 
.i 

20 li 
1: 

2d 
" II 

22 :J 

II 
23 :1 

I• 
II 

24 il 

25 :i 

A. It says from the 3rcl to the 5th of August. 

Q. Hovl, were. the flaps closed· all the time, Mr. Wells? 

A. Durin€ ~his three-day period. 

'~· 'v'Jhat about when they~-y-eu-yorrr mealsi 

A. They opened the door. 

Q. They opened the door~ 

A. Yes. 

Q. How long did they leave the door .op~n? 

A. · L0ng enough to put the plate on:the·floor. 

Q. And then closed it again? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. D:td they come again to piclt up the plate? 

A. .. Yes, sir. 
I 

Q. And v1hat did theY do then? 'i"' 

'' 

-· 



r--11 
' . ll 

l 

s ' •I 

A. Open 

Q. And 

A. Yes, 

the door, take the plate 

closed the door again? 

sir. 

4 :: 
,I 

Q. Ho\v often did they bring you 

5 A. Unce in the mo r l:l:i:--rrg and most 

6 : afternoon. 
I 

35~ 

out. 

-vra ter? 

of the time t-vlice in the 

I Q. 1'1-ri ce in the afternoon •t Do you know what times in the 7 ; 

· 8 ·I afternoon'? 
:I 
:: 
··~ 9 ;: A. No. There wasn't no way I could tell the time, but I 

10 lmo·H once the first t;ime 'l.·muld be when it was daylight and the 

11 next time darl~~:. 

12 Q. The same officer would bring you water both times in the 

13 i:. afternoon'? 
I' 
I' 

14 i! 
!: 

A. Yes. 

15 1
1 Q. Do you remember who that was? 

-~--------· ----------------------tl 
I' 
I' 

16 :; A. At this period of time -- this month, I can't remember 
'I 

1711 exactly v!ho vms Harking at nights. 
!I 

18 1/ Q. Ukay. Did they bring. you toilet paper while you were in 
I 

:i 
19 'i the cell? 

20 :1 A. It was to'ilet paper in the cell when· I came into ft:. ·The 
,, 
1/ 

21 :i only thing I was brought while I was in the cell was food and 

22 \! Hater. 
I' 
II 

.23 II 

'2~ II 

251! . 
II " Q. 
I: ', 

Q. 

A. 

II .· 

They ·never bro-q.ght you tci.let paper? . 
' ' 

No, sir. 
< 
I 

And you vrore blue coveral:J_s that first time? 

. "' ~ -~ 

. ' -~ 
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117 ./ 

·I 
II 

1 ri 

-
A. Yes, sir. 

2 :< q. Nmv, the second time you were in. a quiei:; cell was ~:;hen? 
i 

A. I don't 1\:now exactly, sir. 

Q. Does the date October 26, 1965, mean anythinG to you? 

A. Yes. That was the third time, I think. 

Q. It was the third time? 

A. That· viaS the time '\·lhere I did 58 days in isolntion. 

Q. Were the flaps closed when you entered in October? 

A. When I first went in, yes. 

10 Jl Q. ·They 1\:ept thel;ll closed? 

11 ,j A. They kept them closed until we had -- until Esparza 
:1 

12 '! requested through the Disciplinary Committee that we might b~_ ,. 
,, ,, 

13 :: able to write letters to our mothers. 
,, 
'I 

1411 
r' 

15 :t 
" jr 

16 1! 
II 

17 il 
li 
II 

18 li 
" ,. 
II 

19 II 

20 !i 
,I 
H 

21 li 

22 il 
!I 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. Now, what about for feeding? Here they open? 

They opened the door. 

\-J'ould they close it again? 

Yes. 

And they took your plate out again? 

Open the door.and take the plate and close the door. 

And that v~as twice a: day? 

T'\·.rice a day. 

Do they ever open the flaps for a head count? 
. . . . - . ' 

, I 

" •'' 

2311 A. 
il 

They opened the door. The: flap,· the small square on the 

2411 door 

251'1 
. .I 

they _opened and shine. a flashlight ;;3.nd close it~ 

Q. ·And that .is all? "t: 

" 



361 

l 
A. Yes. That is all. 

z: l~. Ho1..r many times a day? 

3 A. They don't do it in the day time. They count. at night. 

6 . 

7. 

;: 
• 9 ;: 

10 ,: 

11: 

. 12 

Q. Hm..r many times? 

' ·r don 1 t 1 · ~.,. m o-v1 , · s lr • -

Q. You say they never took a head count during the day? 

/t. Well, maybe they took their head count 'l.·rhen they feed. 

Q. \vho brought you your food? 

A. The officer on shift. 

Q. Did inmate porter ever bring you ym:r food? 

A. Hot in the strip cell, no. He vmuld be on the food cart, 

13 : but he wouldn 1 t be allovred to bring the:; food inside the:; cell 'l.vhen 
;'!I 

14 .: 1. 1..ras in there. This time the officer did. But later on after 
,, 
a 

15 ii 
' il 

en the strip where I did 5o days, i think in about D~----1-
----~~----------·----------

16 i!. sometj_me, the inmate orderly did bring food in there, but I wasn•t 

eating food then. I \vas eating R.D. 

Q. And noH back to the August --.your·first.time in the 

quiet cell in August. Did they flush the toilets? 
. ' -

A •.. Yes, they flushed them in August.· 

Q. 1tJhen? 

A. About tvrice a day. 

Q. vJhen? 

A. Well, 1.-rhen. I first went in the strip. cell in August I can 

remember this, that they flushed the toilet.ear~y in the morning 



tl 
I 

1 

z. 
3 i 

4 

5 ., 
" 

6 

anc5 they flushed it in the afternoon after dinner.; 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Did they ever flush it at night~ 

No. 

Ho1.·J about \vhen you were in in October? 

\'Jell, it varies in Uctober. 

How about the second time? 
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7 ; ll.. Depends on ;..,rhat officer was on, Hhat ldnd of -- ho·H the 

8 ;: toilet vr:mld be flushed. If Nr. Spoon was , .. mrking he'd flush it 

9 at 4:00 o'clock in the morning and then -- then you}d have to get 

up· in the morning· and. use the bathroom and t.e wouldn't flush it 

11 no (iiOre. f·Ir. Nash would flush it vlhen he came on shift, and if 

12 'de hollered. where he could hear. you he'd. flush it \vhen you asked 

13 : him sometimes. 

14 :1• Q. He would'( 
I, 

li 
15 i! A. Sometimes~ 

I 
'I --~----·-~ 

16 
1

\ Q. Do you thinlc Hr. Nashwaspretty good to you'? 
il 
li 

17 1
1 A. I don't kno\.,r. Hay be ·1-'.t.r. Nash ;..,ras doing what he was 

!I 

18 :: :supposed to do. 

19 ,! Q. Nov·J, you say you i.·Tere sitting on the cold floor in August, 
'I 

20 il 
,. 

21 il 
II 

22 1: 
'I 

23 ;: 
il 

is that 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

correct'.? 

Yes. 

Did you have a mat to sit 

Yes, I had a mat. 

24111' Q D'd . ' ? • l. you slt on tne mat. 

,. 

on? 

25/! A~ ·well, I rolled.it up and-I tried to sit on it but the mat 

/I 
:: 
li 
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1 ', 1.1:Js.ldnd of dirty. 

z ; Q. So you preferred to sit on the floor? 

3 ! 
A. Yes I did. 

' 
4 l~. Even though the floor vms cold? 

I did. 

6 Q. Hr. Hells, do you speak Spanish'? 

7 A. No, sir. 

g-:: Q. You don•t speak any Spanish at all? 

9 A. A few slang words. 

10 Q. A fevr slang \·rords'( 

11 :1 
I' 

A. And a few.common words such as hello and things. 
·l . 

12 :: 1;:noi'' how to speak the Spanish language. ,, 
'i 

13 ii 
II 

Q. If tv.ro people were spE!_aking together, would you u:.-1d erstand 
.I 

14 !/ them? 
I• 
II ,, 

15 /' ' ,, 

1611 
17 

1

1 

I· 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Depends on \vhat they was talkine about. 
~~~-~-~~~-­

Supposing it involves cutting somebody~s heart out? 

Well, novr if you. are referring to Esparza, he didn t t say 
,) 

l8JJ that in Spanish. 
:I 

19 li 
II 
!I 

20 li 
1[ 
1: 

21 li 

22 /! 
I! 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

No. He s·aid it i'n English. 

Anc1 Officer Hota said that in Englishi 

Said, "Here, cut it. 11 Do you \vEtn t me_ to tell you \·lhat 

23 !/ 
/I they- said'? Well, they was talking. a bout each other, you kno\v 

24 II 11Chingado tu madre. 11
' . I 

2511 
: il 

Q. I 1m afraid I don 1 t understanq things like .that, Nr. 
·-·. '' 
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1 

A. And I could understand because I was there for three years 

2 
Q. Hell, novr --

. 3 
THE COURT: You. opened the subject • 

4 ·. I·ili. GRANUCCI: I suppose I did, Your Honor, I sup;c:>ose r 

5 !i did. 
I 

:i' 

6 •• HR. GRAJITIJCCI: Q. But, novr, 11r. Wells, let us get this 

7 ,: one thing absolutely clear. When Esparza told Nota that he vras 
., 

· 8 !: goin::; to cut his heart out, was that in English or Spanish? 
! 

10 '1 

.I 

11 

12 

13 

14 

.I 

' .I 

A. English, sir. 

Q. Would you s·we.ar to that under oath'i' 

HR. COBLER: Your Honor, the witness is under oath. 

THE WITNESS: I vmuld swear to it. 

HR. GRAimCGI:: Q. Now, did you ever give any· coveralis to 

Zsparza? 

-.. 

' 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Yes, I did. 

vlas this before or after the gas incident? 

After the gas incident. 

You are sure'? 

Yes, 1 1 m sure~ 

And who was present at that incident? 

\·lhen :they ·tear-:-gassed him or --

When they tear-gassed Esparza?-

A •. Wantrne to name all the pee>ple that I can remember? 

Q.. 'rhat you can remern'Per. 

·· A. 11r. Jolilnston, Hr. De Carli, l:IJ.T. Kiepura, Lieutenant Flores 



p II' 
II 

II ,, 

1 .' sercc::uit frederick, nnd Officer Mot8., , 

l~. They were all there'? 

A. Yes, sir .. 

-

Q. I-Io\~l long a burst of gas vras fired in_ to Esparza's cell? 

5 A. I cJ on' t kno1.v hmv much it was. The can of gas is c-ompresse 

6 teor gas and it's about this big (indicating) and it's no.stly 

7 used to quiet down a whole lo:t of people, and it \vas squirted into. 
I, 

8 :, this sr1all cell; and I don 1 t lcnmv hovr long it 'I.·Ias squirting, but 

9 it wns a lot of gas because the whole tier was up and coughing. 

10 C-2. The gas spread out from Esparza 1 s cell? 

11 : A. Over the '\vhole tier. 
I, 

12 Q. What did they do when they finished gassing Esparza? 

13 A. They closed his door and his door vws opened later o:O. 

!! 14 i' OeCaUSe the man that Came On didn It understand vlhat all thiS gaS 
!i 

15 1
j in this cell -- he opened the __ 9_~in.-g~ 1 that gas out 

I! 
16 :; .of there. Hy flaps vrere closed. 

I' 

I; 
17 /i Q. Did you get gas in' your cell?. 

,I 

I' 
18 :1 A. Just a little bit because I only got. a little bit. 

i! 
'I 

19 !1 Q. CJffi cer Iviota tried to gas. you? 
I 

;I 

'I 20 ;: A. Yeah, but it wasn 1 t very much gas. 

21 :
1 

Q. When did he do that? 
II 

22 :1 A. He just walked in front of my cell arid squirted. Oh, .Yes. 
~i 
;i 

23 >I 

j: 

24 ii 
II 

25 il 

il 

I thrm·1 a cup of 

r.;aybe that's the 

kinc1 of hostile 

vratcr while they vrere thrm·!ing the gas,·and 

reas.on that he squirted .gas at me, because I was 

and I was screaming loud and I was very angry 



r 

r 

II 
+ 
I' .I 
I 

-
1 , because of the lack of understandine of these officials -- ':mre 

2 ~ supposed to b~ the bosses and they were standing up t~ere like 

3 :: vultures i·ratching this man gas this boy. 

4 .. l·ffi. GRANUCCI: I will ask that the lvord vultures be 

5 • stricken from the record. 

6 • THE COURT: llotion is denied. 

r.m. GRAITLJCCI: Q. Nov.;, Ivir. Wells, you say you thr e'.'l a cup 

s of v:ater --

9 THE COURT: That may be the way it a~peared-to him at the 

10 ·time •. 

11 1 l'·ili. ·GRANUCCI: Q. Was it accidental or did you do it 
A 

12 ti deliberately? 

" 13 ; A. Purposely. I was mad~ I wanted to thro1v something and 
'i 
!I 

14 'I that was the only thing to throvr ·Has a cup of vmter. 
1: 
~~ 
'• 

15 ! . jl 

il 
=l 

16 !t 
I' .I 

II 
17 II 

II 
1s II 

I' 
II 

19 ;: 
!i 

20 :1 

,I 

21 :! 
.I 
'I 

22 !l ,, 

2311 
,! 

24/) 
,! 

il 
il 

i/ 

Q. You didn't 

the cup on the people there? 

A. No .. The people there were out ·in the hallv.ray and there 1 s 

a screen, you kno1.r. And they vrere standing there vlhile he 1-ras 

doing this tear-gassing, and I \vas holl~ring, nWhy are you doin_g . 

tnis't" I \-las scream~ng; I don't lr,no,., e\ierything·I said-- som~ 
. ,. 

bad words. I said a lot of bad thing-s> 

Q. But you did throvr the \vat.er? 

A. I threw the cup of water up against the screen and it 

sprayed out. 

Q. You are sure it was water? 
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1 i A. I 1m positive it was ·water -- and I knovr I 1m unc10r oath. 

2 :: Q. Do you knm:1 the difference bet\·1een 'I.·Tater and urine? 

3 A. Yes, I do. 

4 c~. And you are sure it vras water? 

5 A. I'm positive it was water. 

6 Q. No-v; this cup, vms this an extra cup you had in your cell? 

7 A. This vlas the only cup I had in my cell at thi:. time. I 

8 '::::ve l1ad more than one cup in my cell, but I only had one this 
I 

9 time. 

10 ii Q. They allo-v1ed you to keep extra cups? 

11: A. No. Sometime.s I 1 d get two cups in there for the purpose 

12 .i of -- ~trhen }fr. Nash come on I 'l.•rould try to get them all filled up 

13 ,, and 1rash my hands and face~ 

:l 
17 i! 

il 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A no 

How vrould you dry your hands anc1 face? 

On my coveralls. 

You would? 

Yes. 
·, 

18 :: 
I 

Q. ·· No-vr, you have been sitting here throughout these proceedin. 
:I 

19 ;: here in San Francisco'( 
II . . 

20 !1 A. :"Since yesterday. 
,, 

21 :: Q. No further questions. 

22 HR. COHLER: No questions, Your Honor. 

23 THE COURT:. No ;_questions. Thank you, Mr. We:J_ls. ~-, < 

NR. COHLER: Thank you Nr •. ·. Wells. 
! - .. 

Please call Mr-~ Jordan. 
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Fride1y, August 12, 1966 3: 00 P. I1. 

1 ROBERT CHARLES JORDAN, JR., 

2 ?c.1lled as a witness on his m.m. ~ehalf, vJho, being fJrst duly 
I 

3 ! sHorn, testified as follows: 
I 

4 11 THE CLERK: Would you please state your full name for 
I) 

51[t:1e record? 

6 j TI-IE WITl"JESS:. Robert Charles Jordan, Jr .. 

I 7 ,i THE CLERK: Thank you. 
i! 

s[ DIRECT EXAJHNATION 

9 I BY 1·J\. COHLER: 

10 l•ffi. COBLER: Q. Hr. Jordan, hmv old are you, please? 

11 I A. )Twenty-seven years old. 
I 

12 Q. And, except· for the fe.ct that you are here f'or this 

13 hearing in San Francisco, are you presently an inmate at the 

14 !Correctional Training Facility in Soledad? 

15 A. Yes, I am. 

16 Q. Hav.e you been at the Correctional Training Facility, for 
-

17 periods of time,more than once? .r, 
~-

18 A. I have been there twice. 

19 Q. You were there once; you were transferred somewhere else 

20 [and brought back, is that correct? 

21 A. Yes. 
I 

22 Q.. When vJere you transferred to the Correc-tional Training 
·hi.. 

23 Facility most recently leading up to your present incarceration 
I 

I 
24 1there? 

25 A. June of 1965. June, last part of -- June 27th, some1:1here 
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1 of '65. 

2 Q. When you vmro at the QoPrectional Training Facility, was 

3 there an area kno\m to you as Isolation? 

4 I 

5 

6 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And an area knovn1 to you as a strip cell? 

A. Yes. 

7 I Q. ·~vould you please tell the Court ·where the strip cell and 

a I the isolation areas are? 

9 •A. The strip cells are lpcated in O-Wing, which .is the 

10 Adjustment Center on the first floor on the left-hand side, in 

11 the back behind the' grill gate separating from the regular 

12 isolation center. 

13 Q. Please speak as loudly as you can. Take your time, 

14 1any time you need to ans-v;er. 

15 11r. Jordan, have you ever been detained in a strip cell 

16 at Soledad? 
I 

17 A •. Yes. 

18 Q. And I·am referring now'only to the period of time that 

19 you have been at Soledad since you .return~d at the end of June, 
·. 

20 1965, when was the first time you were put in a strip ~11 at 
I 

21 that period of time? 

22 I A. July 9th, 1965. 

23 Q. And how long were you lcept in a strip cell ·during July, 

24 1965? 

25 A. Tv;el ve days·. . ·~..' 

·"' 
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I 
I Q. During the twelve days, Nr. Jordan, did you ever have 1 ! 

2 ~rriting materials in your strip cell? 
II 

3 I 
' 

A. I had a petition and three forms that were returned to 
! 

4 .he by the Court in my cell from about 13th or 14th of July, and 
,, 

5 !i1 vJClS allovred two pieces of paper and I smuggled in a pencj_l 
~ . 
:; 

6 !~rom uy next-door neighbor, and that is all I had. 
1/ 

7 !i 
ii 

Q. Has there light to write by in the cell \vhen you had 

8 :~his paper and pencil? 
II 

9 /lj A. No. ~ 

10 1/ Q. Did you vrri te? 
II 
1: 

11 II 
II 
r .r 

A. ] 1vrote on t'he t1vo pieces of paper· and· I" smuggled in tHo 

12 j/:wre pieces of pape,r -- or three -- I forget exactly_ no·H much --

13 !G.nd I wrote on the pieces of paper, yes. 
il 

141/ Q. Hr. 
I 

Jordan, would you please describe the_lvindow and 

151foor openings of the strip cell; as you recall it, during this 
I· 

16 fperiod in July? 

17 II A. The vrindovrs ·and the door-s'? 
II 

18/i 
11 

19 r: 

Yes. 

I 
A. The door is a solid door and it has a little square in it 

20I.Jith a crossbar or I may be "tv:rong about crossbar, but it has a 
~ . 

21 ircreen in front of it and it has a flap that lets down and ~lets 

22 !PP, and it .1 s g{>t a little hook on it. When they put it up the 
I' . . , 

231foox snaps like a night light on a door, and that keeps the. flap 

24 1fP, and they have a space. _..:.. it is not a window, it is just an 

25 bpening in the vmll. There is no glass in it. And they have -a 
I 
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I. I 
I 

1 //screen and they have squared bars -- they form squares __ and 
'I 
!I 

2 ithey have a flap, a big metal flap that goes over this with the 

3 l!sJcc type of hook on it. 
li 

4/1 Q. l,b. ... Jordan, 'during. the period July 9 through July 20, 
,, 

5 //1965, lvhen you were in the strip cell, were these flaps ever 
[I 

6 //closed? 
'I 

7/! A. Just about all the time, yes. 
,: 
,: 

8 :, 
il 

Q. 

9/lalvhile? 
rl 

Was there a period of time whe·n they were left open for 

10 rl A. On one occasion Officer Hoagland le~t them open for 
;f 

11 _;
1

:anDroximately an holir, or hour and fifteen minutes, in order for ; .~.... ) 

12 iloe to 1.vri te some letters, and -- and the doors were opened 
~ ~ 

13 /!euring my chow, which is about fifteen or t·wenty minutes or 

14 !j

1

tHice a day. 
i· 

15 :1 Q. 
I) 

Ho1v much ventilation 1·ras · there when the flaps were 
II 

16 Jiclosed? 

17 !I I d I 1 
11 

A. on t mmv. 
il 

18 III knol·l didn 1 t .·work. 
I ' I. 

The ventilators <~hat they had, as far as 

- . ''"""' They have ventilators in there, but'they 

19 :!co not vJOrk and they have little cracks ylhere they put the flap 
lj ' 

II 
20 ,!up, .C!:~d they have a little crack under the door, and this is all 

21 [ftl1e ventilation that you ~-e_t_ .. ___ ..... 1 $ 

[I 
22 i ·.\ Q. 

I< 

23 ([:tution kno-vm as a 
24 irsavr one·: 

ltr. Jordan, would you recognize personne~ at the insti-

medical-te'clmical instructor or M. T.A, if you 

25 \, 
!/ 

A. Yes. 
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1 
/ Q. They wear distinguishj_ng clothing? 
I 

Z 
11 A. They wear white uniforms .. 
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li 

3 /i Q. Dicl you ever have a conversation with an H.T.A. when you 

II ·n the· strip cell in July, 1965') 4 11 vore l • 

I! 1 did. 
5 ! A. 

I! 
.I b 

6 :: Q. As est as you recall would you tell the Court, please, 
li 

7 l!i.,rhnt that conversation involved'? 
I 

8 ! A. I had a rash on my bocly that I asked for treatment for. 
i ' 

g[Ihad an eye~irritation_that .Lasked for an eye -v;ash of some type 
I 

10 /for, and my knees and elbovl joints vrere hur_tirtg and my hip· 

11 Jl
1

because I -v;as laying on the. floor, and· they vJe·re'" bothering me 
I ) r . 

12 jland l asked could I. have a balm of some type for this and I 

l3(asked to see a doctor. ·, 

1411 
I, 

Q. You asked to see the doctor? 

15 II 
II 

A. I asked to see the doctor. 

Starting \vi th the per::,od July 9, would you tell the 161 Q. 

17 [!Court, please, the first time that you actua'lly wrote to the 

lsllooctor? '·""""" 

1911 A. I <~rote to the doctor appr.oximately the week after I \;as · 

20 !!released from the strip cell, which I 1 d say -vms the 1st of 
~ . 

21 !!August. I don 1 t know -- I \vas in 106 when I irJrote him. That 
'I 

22 [!Has up front. I 1 d say it was a week. I got out the 20th and ·I 
d 

23 i!guess I vr.rote him about the' 29th or somewhere around there .. 
:! 

24 ll 
!I 

2~ II 0 
il ,, 

Q. 

A. 

What Has the name.of the doctor? 

Conkle .. 
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1 ;! Q. Do you 1mow what his position vlas nt the insti tuti.on? 

2 ! A. He is the Chief Medical Officer. 
'i 
/I 

3 :1 Q. .Anci when you 'tvrote to Dr. Conkle, what did you vTri te 
\' 
i 

4 !i about? 
!I 

5 'i 
A. 1 told 'him that my stomach was bothering me and that I 

6 iJ bc.l1oved -- 1 didn 1 t lmOi·! because· l am not a doctor -- but I 
II 
il 

7 il believed tl1a t I had hemorrhoids, and I 1 d· like to be taken to the 
II 

sli hospital and given a physical examination and some type of 

9 lj treatment for my stomach troubles. 

101 Q. Did.you say anything to Dr. Conkle about your request to 
/I 

11 :i be taken to the hospi tal't 
) :I 

12// .A. Not that I .can recall. 
:I 

I mentioned the fact that I had 

13/! just got out of the. strip cell and I was hurting all over, but 
,j 
I 

14 1 0:rimarily vlhat I was interested in was getting some kind of 
I • 
I 

15 1

1 

treatment for my stomach and .for what I believed were 
I . 

1611 hemorrhoids. 

17 :1 Q. Did you get any response from Dr. Conkle? 
It 

18 1
1 

1911 
20 )i 

,! 

A. 

Q. 

A. 
'I 

21 lr 

" H 
Q. 

No. 

Did you wri~e again to Dr .. Conkle at a subsequent time? 

Twice •. 
I)> 

vlhen was the next tim0, please, as ,YOU recall it? 

Approximately November or late October,_ I forget exactly. 

to Dr. Conkle and a Dr. Bailey. 

M1o is Dr. Bailey, please? 

Dr. Bailey is the 'dentist. 
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II 
II ,, 
,, 

'i Q. What did you 1-.rrite to Dr. Conlcle at that time, the 
1 !J 

I, 

j7) 
..J + 

2 il second time you 1vrote to him'!' 

3 li A. Essentially the same ~h:lng. l told him that I viTote 
I, 

4 // him once before and he hadn 1 t ansvrered the letter, so I didn't 
,I 

5 !1 t;1ink he he1d got it be cause I gave it to the H. T. A. instead of 
!J 

6 i\ regular mail channels so I figured the H. T.A. put it in his 
II 

7 i! poc:~et and lost it, so I was ,vri ting ag-ain and l 1vas enclosing 

8 /1 a Request for Interview slip ;:tlong wi. th my letter and I'd 
!I 

II - • t it if he could call me to the hospital because I 91;2:"~Iiecla e 
I 

lO 11 believed I i.vas sick and I thought I had a ser·ious complaint. I 

11 /1 have got a complaint and coul-d he see me. 
/1 ) 

12 i) Q. Did you get any response from Dr. Con1cle ·to that letter? 

131/ R.. No • 

1411 Q. 

15 ~~~~Tite to Dr. Bailey~: 

You say you also wrote to Dr. Bailey. VJ'hat did you 

II 
16/1 A. 1 had seen Dr. Conkle when he. come through. See, he 

17 '[comes through, but he vroh • t stop and t""'alk to you. · He will ask 

It · · · d k · ht · · r··l~ · All , · h · 18 i ~,ma-c 1s wrong an . eeps rlg on .wa :C.J..ng. ne as J.s, a 
I . 

19 !1 formality: how are you; bye; · and. he. is gone; and I asked him 
I 

J, 

20 Jl to contact Dr. -- I didn 1 t know 1·1ho the dentist was -- I asked 

21 !\him to contact the dentist because I had a filling that _; -,:rell, 
II 

22[ia tooth that had chipped and I had a filling I thought was 
1! "" 

i 231\ cowing loose, and I had a tooth decayed, and I'd like to get 

24,ithem fixed; and he told Il).e that I was on the waiting list. And 

25 h1d talked -vlith the N.T.A. I don't k:novr ho1v many times, and I 
:I 
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i: 

1 1
/ Jwd soon him just about tvrice a vTeek for about a month. 

/i 
Z ii Q. TJ;j_e ,M. T.A.? 

3 ~ A. M.T.A. assistant, and he kept telline me I was on the 

4 1/list, and I' couldn't understand vlhy I 1.vasn•t beins:;r taken un 
I u ~ 
,. 

5 '!since l was on the list; so I got Officer Fincannon to call 
,, 

6 :1 ~ncl find out 1.vhat the dentist 1 s name vms, and I 1vrote him a 
II · 

7 i! letter and enclosed the interv1e1·7 slip,- and I sent that through 
i 

8 '/the regular mails and he got it and called me over. 

9 1! 

li 
You saw Dr.·Bailey shortly after you sent him the 

10 // intervimv slip and letter'? 

11 li · A. )Yes. 
II 

12 i! Q. Did he do something f_or your teeth? 
'I 13/i A. They extracted tvl'O teeth.. One was chipped and the one 

1411 th2t \·laS decayed. He extracted them and that wa§__about three 
i\ 

1511 days after I vtrote my letter;. anq then he called me bacl;: again 

16 J! and he filled the loose filling and- another one; and then the:r 

17 \i called me back again, and I dian 1 t want anything done then. · And 
,I . . . -

18 il then I -·wr·ote hi~ again -- no, I d.idr{-:t write him; I just' sent a 
II 

19 :l rec:uest for intervie1v and they took me "j:)ack up, till noi:.J I have ., 
it 

20 if got all my teeth filled or 1·10.rked on· that l need repaired. 

21 11, . t .... l d ~ t d 
11 Q. You say you went back on one occaslon o t..1A entls an 
li 

2211you didn't 1.vant anything done. Did you refuse ~treatment at that 
il 

23 ~~~time'? 
24 11 A Y Well, v-Te had a little misunderstanding. He wanted 

1'/ • es • -
2511 to pull one and I didn • t want it to be. pulled because I don 1 t 

II 

1-
\ 

-I 
r 
! 
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1 i! hsve ony teeth on the top and it was a molar ancl j_f I let /him 
'I 

2 il pull that, then I \VOUldn 't have anything to chevl on. So I 

3 i asl:ed him could he fill it. He said it was very deep and he 
j 

4 !i dian 1 t believe it was pos:;d ble. 
II 

l said, 11 \tlell, in that case I 

5 !J don't vmnt it pulled; I will just leave it there,. 11 So later 
:I 

6 !I l Hent baclr and he 
li 

7 /J toolc X-rays and he 

agreed to just fill it. He examined it and 
.J 

decided it may be po~sible that he could fill 
I' 

s i! it 1vi thou t pulling it. 
li - ~-

9 1! 'Q.. You have told the Court that you VIrote to Dr. Conl{le 
I " 

10 l tHice and' althOUgh YO~ thought One Of them may have miscarried' 
I' 

11 Jl you didl)' t receive a response. Did you vTri te ·again? 

12 :/ A. Yes. ,, 
,: 

13 !i 
il 
I' 

14 1/ 

II 

15/1 

Q. 

A. 

(~. 

A. 

Approximately 1.<1hen -vras that? 

First part of February, about the 6th or-'?th. 

Of this year? 

Yes, '66. 16 \1 

II 

171 Q. Did you see Dr •. Conkle arte~_:wu wrote to him ~ 
181Jle bruary, 1966 'i' 

:t 19/J ·. A. Yes, I seen him. I thin1\ it was within about five days 

20 /I six days; after I wrote him he called me ove·r to the hosp:t~l. 

21 l! Q. Do you happen to remember the date that. he called you 
i{ 

221\ over to the hospital? · 

23 li 
II 

24 I[ L 

i[ Q. Of February'? 

A. ·The 1L~th I am pretty sure. It might have been the 15th. 

II 

25 I' 

II 
A. Of February., 
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And at that time what did Dr. Conkle do durinr, hj;s 

I 8,...,mina tion '? 2 Jt -. cl~ 

II 
i! 

3 /i 
It 

A. He gave me a --- he looked in my eyes with a little 

377 

4 ii flashlir;ht -- well, it is not a flashlight, it 1 s -- he looked in 
II 
II 

5 1/ r:~ eyes. ivi t~ a ·light and he looked in my ears. He loolced at my 

6 li 11ngers, haa tne hold my fingers ·out; tapped me vii th a hammer; 

7 ll1ool\:ed in my throat; looked in my rectum; and felt in my groin; 
il 

8 il had me cough and held the stethoscope, or vlhatever you call it, 
'I 

91 up to my heart, and that \vas it. 

!I 
12 i,\ 

li 
13 II 

14 il 
II 

15/
1 

I 
16 I 

II 
17 11 

18 '! 
I 

Q. Did. he take a urine sample'? 

A. No. 
) 

.,Q. Did he take a blood sample~ 

A. No. 

Q. Hr. Jordan, would you turn your attentic:m back now --

THE COURT: Let's take- a short recess. 
-

l'·'ffi. COB:LER: Thanl-\: you, Your . Honor. 

( \vhereupon a ten minute recesp en~ed) 

NR. COHLER: 
- . --~ 

Ivfr;. · Joroan,. would you please turn your Q. 

19/attention to the period July 9th·througJ1 July 20th, 1965, v1hen 

· 20 /you i·rere in the strip eel]: at Soledad'? Would you tell the 
I m 

21 II please, the state of cleanliness of the cell when you were 
II 

2211 brought to it on July 9th? 

23 il A. I don't kno"Vr about>July 9th because it ivas at r;Light i·Jhen 

24 fl came in and I couldn 1 t- see. But the next· day -- you know th~-~, 

25 /policy between inmates; if you are pu,t in a ,cell. you kind· of 
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li 

1 // shake it down to mal{e sure there isn 1 t ariy contraband that they 

)I • t bl 
2 1

; .1re eo~ng o arne on you. You kind of shalw do1vn the cell or 
'I 

3 /; search the cell to see that ther·e isn 1 t any contraband in there 
II 

4 ~or something of that nature that they might try to claim is 
I, 

5 li yours c:md, therefore, give you more time in that cell or lead 
,I 
d 

6 rup to something that they can giVe you. So I inspected the eel 

7 1/ as best l c
1
ould, and it was cirty. They had stuff all over the 

II I l ,, I I . 

8 i! commode. Tpey had writings on the wall and -- well, not 
II l -

9 h'lritings. I shouldn•t say "Writings, but they had either blood 
I 

10 I or beet juice or something lil{e ·that. A guy ·wrote 11hapa" 
I 

11 
II 

1211 
II 

13 if 

14 !i A. 

)·ffi. GRANU CCI ; Excuse me , I can't hear .. -

THE WITNESS: I said somebody had wrote 11hapa. 11 

·-
NR .. COI-:ILER: Q. Would you spell that, please? 

B-a-p~a, or something like that. It is a Spanish word 
I~ 

15~~ that m-eans hurrah, or something like tqat .. 
I I -

16 1
1 

f t" , There was a little food droppings on the wall in the · 

17 i back of the cell there with v!ha-t I cousider human defecation, 

'"""' 18 
1 
because -- I didn 1 t touch it or anything like this to se'e for 

I 

191 sure l just take it for granted· from the smell that is what i i 
20 II l'ra.s •• And that night, from laying .. on the floor --:which I -.. .. ms -, 

~ • I 
2111 given a mat, but r 1m pretty tall and your head sticl{S out from j 

22llun0er the mat, so you haveto lay it on the floor because there/ 

23(! is no pillows -- and I 1 d say the·re was urine on the floor j 
24

11 because of the smell, aml when you walk around, which I <li<l a ! 
25 / lot of that night, and I was barefooted, · you. could feel the I 
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lj 

1 jj sticJcy on the floor. 
'I 
I! Q. 

2 II 

3 II 

II 
4 II 

A. 

Q. 

VIas there an odor in the qell? 

There 1·ms an odor. 

Would you describe the odor, please? 
jl \ 

5 li A. l can 1 t describe the odor. All I can say, it 1vas a \ 

6 i! foul odor. It didn 1 t exactly smell lil\:e a sevmr because it \ 
I . . ' 

7 i 1tasn •t that foul, but it was one of· those odors you just kind\ 

8 !i of -- nauseous; you don 1 t like it. You 1 d like to get a-vmy frob· 

9 
1
1 it, • and it causes your eyes to burn. It irritates them and m1kes 

10 1 you \<Jant to wipe them and close them, and it bothers you pretfy 
I 

11 
1
1 bad. ) 

II 

12 ill .Q. Does the smell give you the impression at all that it\ 

13 ,1
1

1 

might have been the smell of bodily waste? ' 
1! \ 

1411 A. Yes, bodily \vaste plus old .food, because-- old . .food, ! 

15 ! bodily \vaste all mixed together and just -- it comes up smellfng 
I 

16 'I pretty bad. 
I -

I 

17 \I Q. Did you ever become ill in ~~e. sense of vomiting vJhery 

181 you w·ere in the cell at this time? 
I 

19 I. 
I 

A. 

20 1'1 ' Q • 

2l \1 A. 
II 

22 II Q. 

23 ~~ . A. 

24J stuff 
I 

25 I still 
tl 

On two occasions I became· ill, yes. 

. Did you vomit at either of' those t~nies'l 

Yes .. 

Was the vomit ever cleaned up '1 
I 
\' . I 

By myself' with my hands. Nobody lil-ces to leave that'\ 

there, so you scrape it together 1vi th your hand, but it · 

leaves the stuff on the.floor that you·can 1t scrape up. 
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1 Nobody cl~aned it up but me, though. 

2 Q. ~vas the cell cleaned at any time in any v.ray by anyone, 

3 except yourself'.? 

4 A. No. 

5 Q. Were you ever given anything to clean the· cell v.Ji th? 

6 A. No. 
J 

7 THE COURT: Over i..Jhat period of· time? 

8 J:.ffi. COHL"SR: July 9th through July 20. 

9 HR. COHLER:. Q. Is that the way you understood my 

10 question? 

11 11 A. }es. · · - :::::----\ 
12 il . Q. Now, when you were first put into the strip_ cell on \ 

131 July 9·, 1965, MJ. ... Jordan, what were you permitted to wear as 

14 you \vere put into the cell? 
I 

151 A. I wasn 1 t permitted to. wear anything. I \vas taken out 

16 ~~of my cell on the second tier, which was a long-term segregation, 

171 medium classification, I guess, -and I ~vas talten to the 

181 isolation -- to .the strip cell, and ·:r was ordered to take my 

19 1

1 clothes off, and I put up what· I call a vocal protest about this. 

20 I And I \vas -- . · 

THE COURT: You put up a vocal·protest? 21 I 
I 

!I 

2211 THE viiTNESS: That.is wpat I, call it. ,.]t's a litt~~-
I 

23 I more than a vocal; it. ·\>ras a profane ·protest. I didn 1 t \vant to 
II . .~·-h 

24 I give them up. It got kin.d of' s·tic~ there, but I ended 

25·~ giving them up; anO they put me in a cell. 
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1 [, Q. Ho\,-1 long Here you in the cell, 
jl 

2111965, without any clothing at al,l? 

3 11 A. Till from that Friday night 
'I 
!i 

4 1

1 evening. 
~ ' 

5 II Q. Approximately a week:? 
!I 

6 II A. Approximately, yes. 

331 

starting with July/)!th, 

till the next Friday 

7
11 Q. 

Did you have any ·clothing at al·l during that period of 

s ~~time? 
9ll , A. No. -

10 ! Q. 

11 ), \·laS 
I 

Do you recall a· conversation on the first Monday, v1hich 

12 I 

13 'I 
. I 

the 4th day that you were in the strip cell; in July, 1965? 
) ' 

.A. The :Monday ·following the Friday? Yes. 

Q. Do·you recall-- vlithdraw that. Are you certain, in 

14 :\your ovm recollection, vrith vrhom that conversation \vas held'? 

151\ A. I'm not absolutely sure·. I believe it vras Officer Dodd; 
i 

16 I but I couldn 1 t be sure. I arrived at. the name Officer Dodd 

17 \because it vras only, oh, five officers_it could have been. It 

18 'I Has a day officer vlhich eliminates a: couple' and there was a 

19 
1

\couple more offi.cers that I Houldn 1 t ask; for anything under a..J.y 
I 

20 I circumstances; ~o I 

21 1\been Officer Nance. 

figured it yJas Offic~r Dodd, or it could have 

22 I Q. You say -- go ahead~ ·· 

z:d ,. 
I 24 [ Q. YoR say you are c.ertain it wasn't at least one .. other 

A. I v.ras through. 

25 \!officer because there are some people you _vvon_l t ask for anything • 
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thGt? 

In 0-\ving at this time -- they hnve changed the 

3 ·: c!esignation of the buildings --'but at this time they had tvro 
ii ' 

4 1: sections; one vias the Adjustment Center, which 1.·1as X- Wing, and 
~ . . 

5 // t:1o O-Wing was a long-term S8gregation, and this wasn't an 

6 ii Adjustment Center. This was problem inmates. These were the 
1: 

7 ii inmo. tes that were unmotivated who did not have any desire to go 

8 ~along with the program, in their estimation, or had no desire 
,, 

9 !1 to conform to their program, and who they felt didn • t deserve 

10 Jl nny better than vlhat they vrere ·getting, "Hhich \vas- to sit in a 
II 

11 I\ room and vegetate until they showed some d.es_i_re_ to go along 
11 ) 

12 li Hit~ the program and then give them some privileges. And they 

1311 had a certain, 1vhat I call a type of correctional o-fficer 
!I 

14 !f 1wrking in there who was more or less told that these individuals 

15 !! in this building were not to receive any special favors or 
I -

16 !1 anything out of the way that they didn 1 t. have come -by it. 
I 

17 it NR. GRANUCCI: Objection. I don 1 t like to interrupt 
I, 

18 il the ·Hi tness, but l think we are· getting into hearsay, a:qd \·le are 

19 ~also getting into remote matters and speculative matters of 
. li 

20 ii opinion, and not direct te~stimony. 

21 IIi,·_ NR. COHLER: 
'I 

1B • 

If there is a reasonable motion to strlke, 
'i . 

22 [1 I ·Hill. agree to it. 
II 

23 il 
'I 
!i 

24 il 
!I 

HR. GRANUCCI: 

NR. COHLER: 

I mov0 to strike. 

Ho\v much? There has been a lot of 

25 !j testimony. 
!! 

Do you want to have it read baclt? 



1 i HR. GRANUCCI: 

2 )being instructed. 
,I 
I 

-16-

Yes. Just the part about the offic'er 

:: 
~.) 1: THE COURT: That mny go out. Yes, l recall that. That 

lj 

i: 

4 li portion may go out. 
I, 
i) 

5 il We will resume at 2:00 next Monday, at the hour of 2:00 

:J r: 
6 It p • Lie ,, 

ii 

7 1,1 The plaintiff, Jordan, is remanded to custody of the 
,, 
I' 

8 1! Larsl1all until the further order of this Court. 
q 

9 \1 :t-IR. COHLF:R: Thank you, Your Honor. 

'I 
1o li lffi. GRAND CCI: Thank you, Your Honor. 

I' 
11 !/ jvlhereupon the proceeding was adjourned "Until 2:00 P.H. 

~ . 

12 1\ on l·:onday, August 15, . 1966.) 

" 
13 ;i 

I 
i! 

14 :I 
','1 
,, 

15 :; 
,I 
:1 

16 'I 
:! 
,I 

17 
:i 
:I 
i\ 
I, 

:~ 

18 I ,, 
i; 

19 
;.I 
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I' 
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20 il l\ 

', 
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MONDAY, AUGUST 15 1966, AFTERNOON SESSION, 2:00 P.M. 

THE CLERK: Civil ActionS44309 and 44786, Robert 

charles Jordan, Jr. vs. C. J. Fitzbarris, et al, further 

evidentiary hearing. 

MR. COHLER: Ready for the plaintiff and petitione , 

your Honor. 

MR. GRANUCCI: Ready for the defendants, Your Hono . 

ROBERT CHARLES JORDAN, JR., 

recalled as a witness on his own behalf, resumed the stand 

and testified further as follows: 

THE CLERK: Will the witness restate his name for 

l2 the record. 

THE WITNESS: Robert Charles Jordan, Jr. 

14 FURTHER DIRECT EXAMINATION 

15 BY MR. COHLER: 

16 Q. When we recessed last Firday, I believe you were 

~ beginning to relate a conversation of ~onday July-12th aft r . ' 
.~ 

18 you had been in the quiet or strip cell_., the previous Frida • 

19 Would you tell the Court, pl_ease,. whe.ther you recall h~v in 

20 a conversation on ·that Monday? 

A. I do. 21 

22 

23 

Q. Do you recall with whom that co~versatio~:·was? ID 

A. I don't know exactly who it was~ I believe it was 

~ Officer Dodd, but it may not have been. It may have been 

somebody else. 
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THE COURT: Would you try to keep your voice up. 

MR. COHLER: Q. Mr. Jordan, is there any offic~r 

whom in your mind you don't think it was with? 

A. There is two that I kno~ it couldn't have been. 

rt couldn't have been Mr. Nash, because it was a day office . 

Q. Is that Mr. Nash, N-a-s-h? 

A. Yes sir. 

Q. Thank you. 

~ And it couldn't have been Mr. Spoon, because I 

wouldn't have asked him anything. 10 1 

·Other than those two, 

11 it could have been any officer. 

lZ Q. You mentioned you wouldn't have asked ~fficer Spoon 
) 

~ for anything. Would you explain that further to the Court, 

14· please. 

15 MR. GRANUCCI: Objection, Yo~r Honor. I think the 

16 p 1 a l n t i f f I S fee 1 in g S ab 0 U t a <;:: e r t a in C US t 0 d i a 1 0 f f iCe r · 

17 would not be relevant here. I think the important thing is 

18 the physic a 1 condition- -

19 THE COURT: unless he relates tn~ feeling to some .abuse 

~ or alleged abuse on the part of the individ~al; I agree. 

21 MR. COHLER: Your Honor, I wouldn't want to qualify 
s 

~ what I think the witness will say as abuse, but I think it 

G bears toward the conduct of the officer as viewed b~_an , . 

24 inmate. 

25 THE COURT: I will allow it. 
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l 
THE WITNESS: Mr. Spoon was an officer--he didn't have 

2 much use for the inmates, and all the inmates understand 

3 this. You didn't have anything extra or any favors or any-
' 

4 thing that he didn't have to do by the orders of his 

5 superiors. He didn't do it. 

6 MR. COHLER: Q. What was the conversation about on 

7 this Monday with whomever it was, Mr. Jordan? 

8 A. I asked the officer, could he return my clothes to 

9 me, my coveralls anyway, and he said that he would see if 

10 he could do 1 t. 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

Q. What happened after that? Did you receive your 

coveralls? 
) 

A. No. He came back--not immediately--he came back 

later that day and he told me he wasn't authorized to re-

turn my clothes to me and that he discussed this with som~­
t 

16 body. He didn't say who it_ was. He just said he talked 

17 to somebody up front. And he wash' t authorized to return 

~ my clothes to me and I would have to see Sergeant Owens, 

19 as he was the one that took them £!'om me. 

20 

.2.1 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q. Did you see Sergeant ow~ns subsequently? 

A. That Thu~sday, yes. 

Q. Did you have any conversation before you saw 
I -" .~ 

Sergeant Owens on Thursda~ regarding your c~othing? 

A. Not that I recall~ I asked--I just asked that 

officer, and that is the only one I_ asked for my clothes. 
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Q. At this time, from the Friday you had been put in 

the quiet cell or strip cell at least through that Mo~day, 

had the flaps been opened or closed? 

A. They had been closed. , 

Q. Did· you have a conversation with anyone about the 

6 position of the flaps? 

7 A. Yes. I don't recall the day. It was, I believe, 

8 it was the 14th. I said the other day I thought it was 

9 officer Hoagland, but it was the night officer. He left 

w the flap open for me for about an hour so I could write two 

u letters. He thought I was going to wri~e one letter, but 

~ r ended up writing two. And I asked Mr Nash, I think it 
) 

~ was Tuesday night or it might have been Wednesday, I asked 

U him if he could let the flaps down, and he told me he 

15 wasn't authorized to dp that--he didn't say "~ot 

~ authorized,n he just said h~ couldn't do it, and he said 

17 I would have to see the sergeant about- it. And be called 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

the sergeant for me and the se-rgeant told ~e he couldn't 

let them down because he wasn 1 t ·the' one that put them up, 

and I would have to see Serg~ant Owens about it;since 
.-h., 

Sergeant Owens_ put me in the str:i:p cely . ..fie. was the ~ne 

to decide to put the flaps back down. 
.. 

Q. When you say that sergeant Owens ha~ put you iw 

the strip cell, do you mean physically handled your being 

placed in the strip cell? 
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A. He was the sergeant on duty in the o-wing the night 

that I was moved to the strip cell, and he was the one that 

made the order that I be moved, and he was the one that 

took the clothes and the one ~hat put the flaps up. And 

according to everybody else, he was the one that was going 

to have to put the flaps back down and be the one to give 

me my clothes back. 

Q. Did you have a conversation with Sergeant owens 

when he came back on duty? 

A. Yes. I saw him on Thursday, the following Thursday. 

Q. Please relate that conversation as best you recall 

12 it. 

l3 A. J:Ie came back. I asked the officer on duty--I am 

u not sure, but I think that was Mr. Nash too, or~Mr. Thompso 

15 it was one of the two--and he came back and he talked to me 

16 for about a half hour about the incident that-I had· been 

~ involved in and that got me place~ in the strip.cell and 

~ why did I do it and stuff like this, and at the end he said 

H he was going to give me back my cov•ralls. - . , __ And he did this 

20 the next night, . Friday. H~ brought my coveralls back to me 

~ and he told me that he was going to l~t me out Qf the strip 
-

22 cell Monday. He was going to leave a not;.e, because be 

~ couldn't move me because after 4:00 o•clock on~ridays his 

M watch couldn't move anyone. And he would leave a note to 

~ have me moved Monday if he had the time to do it. And he 
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Q. Did the flaps stay down until you were eventually 

released from the strip cell? 

A, No. 

Q. What happened then? 

A. The officer put them up the next morning. 

Q. The next day you say? 

A. The next morning. 

Q. Did they then remain closed until you were released 

10 from the quiet cell or strip cell? 

11 A. No. The morning before I got outu they were let 

~ down. Officer Hoagland let them down. I wasn't out yet, 

13 but Sercieant Friedrick carne back and told me if I didn't 

U make any noise out front that he'd let me out ftont. So 

W they let the flaps down since I was getting out of the 

16 strip cell. 

17 Q. You said, Mr. Jordan, yo~ had your clothes taken 

~ away from you on a Friday that you went in and they weren't 

19 given back to you until the enq of 'the next week. Did you . .,. 
~ have any clothing at all during that period? 

21 

22 

23 

25 

Q. 

Q. 

cell? 

No. 

Were you permitted to k~ep your glasses? .. 
Yes. They didn 1 t.take my gl~sses. 

" When were you released from the quiet cell or strip 
" .. !. 
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A. on the--on Tuesday, I believe, Tuesday afternoon, 

the 20th. 

Q. Were you taken before a Disciplinary Committee at 

anY time during the period you were in the quiet cell or 

strip cell? 

Yes, I went to the Committee on Tuesday. 

Q. That was the first Tuesday after the Friday you 

were placed in the cell? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Had you been taken to the Disciplinary Committee 

before that Tuesday at all in-volving this incident? 

A. No. 

Q. Jwhat had you been told about why you were in ~ 
14 quiet cell or. strip cell? 

15 I ·was told I was in the strip cell because I spit 

16 on a correction officer. 

17 THE COURT: Because you what~ 

18 THE WITNESS: Spit on him. _j 
19 MR. COHLER: Q. How much wat~~~did you have during the 

00 time that you were in the quiet cell or strip dell, Mr. 

21 Jordan? 

22 A. You mean cups? Or how much they gave me? 

23 Q. __ Any, way that you had water, yes. 
~ 

A. They gave _me all the water I wanted. They come in 

~ right after breakfast or sometimes right before breakfast 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

and they pour--I had a little white cup an~ they would .Pour 

water, and if I was awake I would drink that and they would 

give me some more and then they would leave. And at nighto 

officer Nash always gave us all we wantedQ 

Q. What were the facilities for going to the bathroom 

6 in the quiet or strip cell? 

7 A. They got-- In the cell I was in, they have a 

8 concrete block that is raised up off the floor. I don 1 t 

know how far. I am not too clear.on measuring distances. 

But it was almost knee-high off the floor, and inside they 

ll have got a toilet, in the middle of the concrete. 

12 Q. How often was that flushed? 
) 

13 A. Twice a day. 

14 Q. was it flushed at the same times every day? 

15 A. No. It wasn't always flushed at the same time& It 

~ was just sometimes they wo~ld come in real early and flush 

H it in the morning before you wok~ up and when you wake up 

18 it would be flushed. And sometimes they would flush it 

19 after dinner- -in the morning s~me'e"lmes they wouldn 1 t flush 

00 it--and then at night they flu~h it ~t the sam~ time they 

~ have the--they bring the wat~r around. It is about 8:00 

22 o'clock, 9: 00 o 1 clock, somewhere around there. 

Q. During the period when you were not permitted any 
' 

clothing, what did you have to sleep on? 

23 

24 

25 A. What they called a strong blanket. It is a canvas 
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mat about--! would say about five feet longs about four 

feet wide, something like that, five feet wide. It is two 

little thin pieces of canvas that has got a blanket in the 

middle of ito like a horse blanket, and it is triple 

stitching all the way across so you are not supposed to be 

able to open it up. 

Q. Was the blanket which you were given at the be-

ginning of the period the same blanket as you had at the 

end? 

No._ we had-- Tuesday I caught this Sergeant 

11 Loefsky--that is the one I ta-lked to about getting· my flaps 

~ down--and I told him I couldn't sleep wi~h ~his blanket. 
) 

~ you see, they have got two kinds of blankets, new ones and 
., 

14 the old ones. The new ones, like I say, they have this 

15 triple stitching. It is like a quilt with stitching going 

16 up and down. And you can't use it too well because it is 

17 rnade--.;;.it is---l.aid out on the floor and_ you sleep on top of 

~ it. And if you try to fold i~ over to keep the cold off 
..,_ 

19 you, it doesn v t do any good becau,&e you have to lay ,flat 

~ on your back o~ flat on your stomach, and you have to lay 

21 still or it wi,ll come off. 

22 So you try to get you an old blanket that somebotly.els 

~ has already had that was had for maybe 29 days and in 29 

~ days he maybe has made ~ sleeping hago like a camper bag, 

25 and you can get inside of it and yoy :can sleep a little bi . 
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rt is still cold because it is not thick. But it is better 

than laying on top of it. 

so to start off with, I had a new one and I didn't get 

an old one until Wednesday. And then the one I did get 

didn't have any blanket in it. 

Q. Did you ever have a chance to wash at all befo~ 
you ate your meals, Mr. Jordan~ 

No. 

Q. Did you ever have a chance to wash at all during 

10 the period July 9th through July 20th when you were in the 

11 quiet or strip cell? 

12 

13 

14 

A. No. 
) 

Q. There were no towels, soap? 

A. No. They don't let you have-- They didn't then, 

15 anyway, didn 1 t let you have no tqwels, ·no soa-p, no tooth 

~ brushes, no combs, anythin~ of that type. 

17 Q. Mr. Jordan, would you think very carefully, please, 

18 during the entir.e period you were i!l the strip cell or 

'·"""' 19 quiet cell from July 9th throu'gh July 20th, were you ever 

~ offered an opportunity to take a show~r? 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A. No. 

Q. Did you in fact ever take a shower? 

A. No. I asked Sergeant owens Thursday, the following 

Thursday, when he was talkin~ about giving my clothes back 

if I could have a showe~, and he said I would have to see 
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the second watch6 because he couldn't let me out of my cell 

to take one o 

The second watch, they weren't too happy with me 6 so 

they didn 9 t let me have a shower. 

Q. Now~ after you were released from the quiet or 

strip cello where were you placed? 

A. In the fifth cell up front. 

Q. In the general isolation? 

Yes~ general isolatione 

Q. If you go to take a shower from the general isola-

tion cell where you were placed after you .left the -quiet 

or strip cell, do you use the same shower. fa.cili ties that 
) 

you would if you had taken it from the strip cell itself? 

A. Yeso There is only one shower in the section. It 

15 is up front. 

16 Q. How long after you ~a~ left the quiet or strip cell 

17 and then moved up front did you i'n fact have a shower? 

18 I got out Tuesday, I believe it was Tuesday. ·I 

19 either had a shower Friday or s.atu"t'day, one of the t,wo days. 

20 Q. Within a few days after. you left the quiet or 

21 strip c e 11 ? 

. e 
22 A. It was a.bout two days, two ,days, three days, they 

·~ ... · 
23 gave me a shower. 

24 Q. Are you quite certain you! did not have a shower 

~ during the time you were in the. ~tr±p ce11 or guiet c•ll? 
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1 
A. Yes. 

MRo COHLER: Thank you. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY .MRo GRANUCCI ~ 4 

5 Q .. Mr. Jordan, have you ever been convicted of a 

6 felony? 

7 A. Yes o 

8 Q. What was that felony? 

9 A. Assault with force likely to produce great bodily 

10 harm. 

11 

12 

13 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

You were put in the quiet cell on what day? 

On a Friday of July 9th. 
) 

Did ·they take your clothes away from you when they 

M put you into the quiet cell? 

15 Ao Yesi that night, before they put me in the strip 

16 c e 11 o y e s • 

17 Q. Did they take all of your cYothes off? 

18 A. All of them, yes. 

19 Q. Now~ did you see Dr. ·Kunkel a'"t. all while you were 

W in the strip cell? 

21 A.· I saw him twice. 

22 

23 

Q. 

A. 

Did he--

I dong t know. I wo~Jdn' t say. Dr. KU,nkel. ·I seen 

M the doctoro All the timei Dr. Kunkel does~1 t come around. 

25 Sometimes it is Dr.~ Kunkel and ~ometimes th• 6ther doctor. 
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He is the same thing. He is a doctor" 

Q .• He is not an MTA? 

No, he is a doctoro 
. 

Q. Do the MTA~s come by regularly? 

I would say they did. Sometimes I was asleep and 

didn~t see them. But every morning I was awake I saw 

them come back, I saw them come by. 

Q. When you went into the cell,.did you notice the 

condition of cleanliness of the cell? 

Not right then, no. 

Q. You didn't? 

~ No. It was night# see. They don't have any lights 
) 

N in thereQ and they shut my door up, and there is no way you 

M can see anything in there. 

15 Q. So you didn't know then whether the cell was clean 

16 or dirtyp is that right? 

17 No-- Yes, that is right: I mean, I co"uldnrt tell, 

18 no o 

19 Q. was there any nauseating <:Yaor in the cell at;. that 

M time, when you first went in? 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A, Yes, there was a:Q odor in there, .but--
.·, 

Q. Was it a very bad odor? 

A, Not when I first went in and--

Q. Not when you first went in. 

MRo COHLERg Excuse me. was the witness through with 
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hiS answer? 

MR o GRANUCCI: Q. If you want to explain your an~wer, 

Mr. J ordan# take all the time you want. 

MRo COBLER:- I cohldn't t~ll .. 

THE WITNESS~ See, when you first go in, it is not so 

bad because as long as nobody is in the cell they have the 

7 door open. So the wind is blowing through there and all 

8 this. But when they put you in ther.e, they .lock the door 

9 and after awhile it kind of fills _up. So when I first went 

lO in there, you could smell the smell, but it wasn't bad 

ll enough to be complaining about. 

MRo GRANUCCI:' Q. 
) 

Ao NO. 

It wasn't? 12 

l3 

l4 Q. Was there human body waste smeared all over the 

~ walls and floors of the cell? 

.7 

.8 

.9 

10 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

There was 

How many 

Just the 

Just the 

It wasn 1 t 

stuff smeared 

walls? 

back w~ll an.d 

back wall and· 

all up to· the 

on the walls. 

the left side wall. 

th'~ left side wall. 

ceiling or anything. It 

Q was a little bit here and a little bit tbere, like some-

~ body was playing in it or something. 

Q. A little bit here and a little bit there. How 

~ about human vomit; was there any of that smeared over the 

5 walls? 
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Q. Mr. Jordan, I am going to show.you page 10 of the 
/ 

original of your complaint filed in this action. I would 

like you to read--

MR. COHLER: Which action? There are two consolidated. 

MR o GRANUCCI: The civil rights, counsel. 

7 I would 1 ike you to read pa.ge 10, the sentence starts 

8 on line 4 and ends on line 6. Would.you read it out loud, 

9 please. 

w ~ "The floors and walls of the cell were also encrusted 

ll and filthy with the body and ~rinary wastes of the ~revious 

~ occupants who evidently and obviously placed them there 
) 

U deliberately.u 

u ~ Now, Mr. Jordan, when you w~re in the cell, did you 

~ write on the walls of the cell? 

16 MR. COHLER: Excuse me just a minute. would you 

H clarify the time, please? 

18 MRo GRANUCCI: Q. During_that whole period, from July 

19 9 to July 20, did you write on the"""'walls of the eel~? 

20 

21 

22 

23 

~ 

~ 

A, 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Not that I recall, no. 

You didn't write at all? 

Not that I can recal~, no. 

Do you have a nickna~e in the institution? 

I have two nicknames. 

What are your nicknames, Mr. Jordan? 
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Ao (~Tea" 

Q. I am going to show you a couple of photograph~ and 

ask you whether they will refresh--all I want to know is a 

yes or no answer to this question--whether after looking at 

those photographs you can remember whether you wrote on the 

walls of the cell. 

MR. COHLER: At this time, -July 9th to July 20th 1965? 

MRo GRANUCCI: Q. July 9 to July 20. 

MR. COHLER: 1965? 

THE WITN·ESS: You are asking did I write this? 

ll MR. COHLER: From July 9 to July 20 1965. 

12 MR. GRANUCCI: Q. . You didn't write that.? 
) 

13 I wrote that, yes. 

14 MRo COHLER: I think we ought to be careful about time. 

15 MR. GRANUCCI: I know we have to be careful--

U MR. COHLER: I am not s~~e the witness is understanding 

17 you. 

18 MRo GRANUCCI: Q. We are-talking about this period 

19 from July 9th to July 20th. Did yi3u write this? 

20 A. No. 

~1 Q. Did you write it then? 

A. No. 

~ The same thing is true of these (indicating)? Did 

you write that then? 

Ao No. Not then, no. 
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Q. Do you recall when you did write it, Mr. Jordan? 

A. I have a pretty good idea when I wrote it~ 

Q. would you tell us, please? 

In about 1964, just be~ore I went to San Quentin, 

or one ti~e before that, they had me and another inmate 

named Thomas Walker locked in the strip cells for, I forg~t 

how long, but we were back there a week or two together~ 

And this-- We "signed in,~ is wha~ they call it. He said, 

~1 am going to put mine over her~ and.you put yours over 

w here, and l will put yours over here and put mine over 

11 there." 

12 

13 

14 

Q. But you didn't do it during thi~ .J~ly period? 

~) No, not that I can recall. 
•, 

Q. Was th~re human body waste on_the floor of the cell 

~ when you went in on the evening of July 9th? 

M ~ .There were a few smears, but it.was more on the 

17 walls than it was on the ·floor. - There was uri·ne on the 

~ floor. It wasn't smea~ed on_the floor. It was just on 

19 the floor. 

20 Q. Yet you said you didn't notice the smell when you 
! 

21 first went in. 

22 A. 
1.'!} ' 

In the first place, when I first went in I wasn't 

~ too interested in smelling things. I was mad. It almost 

24 took physical force to g~t me in the cell to start out 

25 with. Like I say, it takes awhile for this to build up to 
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the spot where you would notice it~ The strip cells always 

smell bad. Every time I have been back there they s•elled 

bad, and I have been back there about a million times. So 

after awhile when you are put in the strip cell, you expect 

a little smell. You just associate--you get it in mind 

from the beginning it is going to smel~ bad, and it just 

7 didnit smell as bad as it got to smelling at the time. 

8 Q. When did it really get to smelling bad, Mr. Jordan? 

9 A. I would say about 2:00 o'clock that night, when I 

w got cold and I was running around in the house trying to 

ll keep warm and my eyes began t'o sting and so you stop run-

l2 ning and go to rub your eyes. And when you .. are running, it 
) 

take deeper breaths, and it begins . 3 makes you to get to you . 

Q. Now, you say the flaps were closed--they closed up 

;5 the flaps when you went into the cell. 

A. Yes. 

. 7 Q . When was the next time they opened the ·flaps? 

l8 MRo COHLER: Excuse me. .You sai..d. nthe next time they 

l9 opened 1
' them~ I don't think therpis any reference.they 

!0 were opened a p'reviou s time. 

H MR. GRANUCCI: All right. 
!l> 

Q. After th~y were closed, when you went into the·cell, 

!3 when did they open them? 

A. They opened them ~or count. 

15 Q. When? 



1 

z 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

20 00102 
A. About every hour. 

Q. About every hour. 

A. Well, see, it all depends on who the officer is4 

see, they got these night officers, and some of them they 

don't want to wake you up. If they open the door, they 

wake you up. So if they think you are asleep, they can't 

see inside the cells,· so they figure you may be asleep, so 

some of them give you consideration .and they will open the 

9 flap and shine the light inside. .Some of them, they will 

w put the key_in the door and open up the door and make all 

ll the noise and put the light ih and holler, "Are you O.K.?" 

~ ~ wouldn't open and closing that big heavy flap make 

13 just abdut as much noise as opening the door? 

14 A. They don't open-- see, they have two flaps. They 

L5 have the great big one--

L6 Q. They have the window flap and the door flap. Right. 

l7 A. One is about this big, about this wide ·c indicating) 

l8 on the door. 

l9 Q. Which one did they open? c-
ao A. They op~n the door- flap and shine the light in. 

Q. Didn't that make any noise? 
. 1i> 

No. It makes-- -Like I say, the man was trying to :f 

!3 give you a little con~ ide ration. If he puts his key in the 

door, it is night and it is dark and it is quiet. There is 

not a sound in the building. ·And if he puts the key in the 
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door and turns the lock, it is going to make a lot of 

rattling. He has t~ open the door and it makes noise when 

it closes. This is more noise than-- They have a little 

latchet up at the top, see, an~ they take the latchet down, 

shine the light in and it doesn't hardly make any noise. 

Q. So they opened the flaps that night for count. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did they open the flaps the _next day, the next 

9 morning? 

w MR. COH~ER: Excu$e me. Do you mean for count? Or 

Ll open them generally? 

l2 

l5 

l4 

l5 

MR. GRANUCCI: Q. Open them general~y?_ 

A. )No. 

~ 

Q. Did they open them for you for breakfast? 

A. No. They opened the door. 

l6 Q. Did they leave the door open? 

l7 A. Yes. They leave the door open. They b-ring your 

~ food, and the door stay~ open! because if they close it 
~ 

~9 you cant t see to eat. On. occa,sio~ when Officer . Sp~on was 

m working, they clo•ed the door and t~e flaps and everything 

n else and you do the best you can. Some of the others, they 

a2 . keep the door open _until you finish eating and then lbey 

13 close the door ... 

Q. About how long would that be? 

I donit know. I would say ten or fifteen minutes. 
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Q. would they follow the same procedure in the evening, 

or for the afternoon meals? 

Not all the time. 

Q. Not all the time? 

Noo At this time, Officer Hoagland, I believe it 

was, sometimes he would leave the door open. And sometimes 

7 he would close the door and leave the little flap open. It 

8 all depends in whether he was in a rush or how he felt that 

9 day. 

lO Q. Dep~nded upon how he felt? 

11 A. I suppose. I donit know. This Ls just w~at he di 

~ I just took it for granted if he felt li~' ~oing some work, 

13 he woul-a leave the. doors open. If he didn't feel like a 
·, 

U bunch of hasseling and messing with the keys, he would go 

w on and leave the flaps down. 

16 Q. You mean he would leave the door open even after 

~ you finished eating? 

18 A. No. They bring the ~ood, see, and they give it to 
= 

l9 you. And if they close the door ,CHld leave the flap, up, 

t: 
you have to pick at your fo.od because you can't see what 

you are eating. So most of the times, th•y leave the door 
. ' 1i} •' 

open while you are eating. And then they come ba~k 1n. 

about, oh, ten minutes, f~fteen mi~utes, and they pick the 

trays back up. And when .he takes the trays out, he shuts 

the door 0 
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1 Q. He would never leave the door open after he took 

2 the tray out? 

3 

4 

Once or twice he did, but the reason he did thisa 

he took the tray out and took·i~ up--well, just, they have 

5 a grille, grate, separating it from the main isolation 

6 section. And he put the trays on the cart, and then he 

7 pass out water and flush the toilets, and then he would 

8 lock the door~ 

9 

lO 

ll 

12 

Q. 

Q. 

But he would leave the fl~ps open then? 

No. He would leave the door open. 

Leave the door open. ~ 

Yes, because he had come in ther~ .tQ give you the 

13 water add the· toilet paper. 
., 

l4 Q. Did he ieave the flaps open any other time, 

~ Officer Hoagland? 

16 A. I thought the other day that it was him, but 

L7 I made a mistake. It was the nig,ht officer left them op.en 

18 one night. 

19 Q. Was that Officer Nash? · .. ..,.., 

zo· 

21 

22 

23 

It was bffice~~Nash.or Officer Thompsori. 

Q. Officer Hoagland, then, nev~r left~the door open. 

MR. COHLER: Excuse me. Had you finished? 

I saw your lips moYing and I didn't know whether--

THE WITNESS: The oth~r day you asked me did they leav 
. 

them open, and I stated that I bel~eved it was Officer 



1 

' 2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

24 00406 
80agland who left it open because I wrote a letter. But it 

was the night officer and Officer Hoagland doesn't work at 

night. 

MR. GRANUCCI: Q. Now, you wrote a letter while you 

were in the quiet cell, is that right? 

A. I wrote two of them. 

Q. You wrote two letters •. Were the flaps up or down 
''-,.__ 

8 when you wrot:e the letter·? 

9 At the time I wrote the letter, one door flap was 

w left open for the express purpose of allowing me to write 

ll the letter. 

12 Q. Who was the officer that let you.write the letter? 
) 

15 A. It was Officer Nash or Officer Thompson, one of thel 

14 night o f f ice r s • 

15 Q. One of the night officer~. 

18 A. Yes. --17 Q. Mr. Jordan, how did you get paper in the cell? I 

~ mean, writing paper? 

l9 

20 

21 

22 

23 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Q. 

From my next door- neighbo• 

Was this when you w.ere in the quiet cell? 

Yes. 

How did you_g~t a pencil? 
' ,!;!', . ~ 

From my .,next door. neighbor. 
~-

Was this next doqr neighbor of yours also in the 

~ quiet cell? 
l 
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He was in the quiet cell next to me. 

Q. How did he pass that to you? 

well, to start off with, r asked the officer, and 

r don•t believe it was Offic~r Hoagland--~n fact I know it 

wasn•t--and I asked him for a pencil and a piece of paper 

because I had been given a petition back from the court 

and I wanted to answer--not answer it--I wanted to fill it 

8 outo They had sent IJl>e some forms. -I didn't have the form, 

9 50 they sent me three forms and my petition back and told 

w me to fill out the forms and send the petition back. So 

ll r wanted a pencil to fill ouf the forms, ~nd they wouldn't 

12 give i t to me . 
) . 

13 Q. Who wouldn't give it to you? 

14 Nobody. The officer, the sergeant, Friedrick, none 

15 of them would give it to me. So I got mad about that, and 
. - -

16 I made a few remarks about it and I was told, well, it 

~ might be a long time before I get to write anything if I 

~ kept on fat-mouthing. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 
I 
24 

25 

Q. Who told you that1 

Whoeve~ the officer was~ And I told him I thought 

I had a right to have this material because it was legal 
- ~ . 

material and I had a right to access to the courts, and he 
... 

told me I didnit ha~e any. rights they~didn•t want to give 
~ 

me. So this guy th~t is ~ext to me, when they closed the 

doors and went away'?· I hollered over and asked him did he 

' I 
I 
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1 
have any paper or pencils because I was going to write some 

2 
body about it. And he told me he did. and so--

s Q. Excuse me. I don't want to cut you off. But there 

4 was something I want to clari,fY in my own mind. You can 

5 just answer yes or no. was this other neighbor of yours in 

6 

7 

9 

10 

ll 

l2 

13 

14 

the quiet cell at the same time? 

A. Yes, he was in the quiet cell on the other side of 

Q. At the same time. 

Yes. 

Q. Go ahead. 

So I asked him, did he have one, .~nd he said he did. 

And he ~ad his clothes and he had his mattress and he had a 

line. 

~ So that night-- It was a Tu~sday night, now, because 

~ we had cheese sandwiches. And he put one of these nylon 

~ lines in a cheese sandwich and the officer broUght it to me 

M He told me he didn't warit to ~at .it so the officer gave it 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

to me. And when they lef.t they le&t the door open, , and 

threw a line and he hooked .it and he passed me I be·lieve -
was six or seven pieces of paper and a p~ncil. .. • 

:'t 

Q. is interesting 
.. \'!> 

Mr. Jordan, this sort of to .me. 

say you threw a line out? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did you weight the.line with anything? 

I 

it 

You 
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l A~ No. You don't have to weight -them. 

z Q. You don 1 t have to weight a line to throw it out? 

5 A. No~ The line is-- What you do is, you roll it up 

4 and you get up at the top of your bars, because they got a 

5 screen, see_, and you just throw it. 

6 

i7 

MRo COHLER: What are you proposing to do? 

MRo"GRANUCCI: I am going to ask Mr. Jordan to pick out 

8 some string. 

9 MR. COH~ER: Just a moment, though. Are you going to 

10 establish--

11 MR. GRANUCCI: I would like to see him try to do it. 

12 MR. COHLER: Well, letts establish that this is similar 

13 to what -he might have in his cell. 

14 

15 

MR. GRANUCCI: Let's see. 

Q. Mr. Jordan, I am going to show you a box with a 

~ variety of different kinds of strings. Thereis some 

~ fairly thin rope, there is some Qrdihary wrapping string, 

~ and there is thread. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

This one. 

All right. Let's see you try. 

Where do you want me .to thro~ it? 

MRo OAKES: Would you need an accomplice? 

THE WITNESS: No, I don't need arty help. Where do you 

U want me to throw it? 

25 MR. GRANUCCI: Throw it to me. 
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MR o GRANUCC I : Q. You threw this string when the door 

was open? 

A. Yes. 

Q. How did you hook onto the other line? 

It is easy to hook on. 

Q. What kind of a hook? 

A. A button hook. 

Q. A button hook? 

You_ take a button off of your overalls and you tie 

it on and you open it, you bend the hook, you bend the 

button. 

~ ) This is like one of those metal hooks that you have 

on your--

A. You have-- See, after you get to the strip cell a 

little while, you get pretty slick at this sort of stuffo 

Q. I imagine you do, Mr. JQrdah. This sounds like th 
~ 

adventures of a certain fictional character --4-R. the "Boy 

Wonder Robin. n 
··~ 

MRo COHLER': Will we strike that, please? · 
! .-

MR. GRANUCCI: I think ~. will stipulate that can go ou . 

THE WITNESS: I have been back in the strip celP ~uite 

.23 a bit, and you know, we do that all the time. If they put 
~ 

I 
you on RD, your next doo~ neighbor feeds you. If tbey 

125 won't let you have something, if your next door neighbor--
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THE COURT: Put you on what? RD? 

THE WITNESS: No, they didn't. I said if they doo 

5 suppose I had a next door neighbor and he did something 

4 that they thought was out of li·ne and they put him on--it 

restricted diet. It is a little block of chopped 

celery and lettuce and all this sort of stuff, and little 

7 teeny bits of meat. It is pretty unappetizing because 

8 they freeze it in little blocks, and the average fellow 

9 doesn ~ t eat it. 

10 THE COURT: Is that the diet throughout the day? Is 

U that all you get? 

12 THE WI TNE S S : I have never been on ita but I have had 

~ neighbo~s on·it and they eat it twice a day, one block RD 

14 and two slices of bread twice a day. ------------·----
15 MRo GRANUCCI ~ Q. Mr. Jordan, let's get back to this 

16 fishing business. I take it that is what you call it, 

17 isn 1 t it? 

18 

19 

BO 

21 

A. 

Q. 

they? 

A. 

That is what they call it. 

The doors have to be open for you to do that, don't 
. '··""" 

D~ can you get it thrbugh the flaps? 

No, we get-- Even if the flaps were open, you 

~ couldn 1 t get it out. 

23 

24 

25 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

You couldn't get it out. 

If the doors aren't open, no. 

The door has to be· open--
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l 
A. Yes o 

2 
~ ·--and the door to your neighbor's cell has to be 

3 open l too. doesn't it? 

4 
Yes9 

5 
Q. I take it you have to throw more than once, don't 

6 you, before you could successfully hook somebody else's 

7 line? 

8 It all depends on who it is .. He wasn't much of a 

9 strangero And we threw twice, if I recall, and we succeede 

lO in hooking "t:_hem up. 

11 Q. The doors were open at that time? 

12 A. This is chow time. 

13 Q. )It wa·s chow time? 

u A. I just got through telling you, the offlcers--

~ See, they bring you sack lunches_first, they open your door, 

~ and they put the sack lunches in. And then he walks back 

~ to the cart in the main part of the isolation, and he· gets 

W your tray and he brings this back and he slides it to you. 

""' l9 And then--maybe your neig_bbor _wan;t,§ to give you one of his 

~ sandwiches, it ~11 depends on who the officer is--if it is 

~1 certain officers, forget it. 
I 

There is not going to be any 

passing. Other officers say O.K., he gives you the ~and-
" 

wich, he leaves, he will go away to pick up your Jood, and 
"" ~ 

he will come back and he will pick up the tray and shut the 

door. 
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Q. You say you did this line-throwing while meals 

were being served and while officers were handing out 

dinner, is that right? 

The officers didn t t know what was .in the sandwicho 

All they did was bring the man's sandwich, as far as he 

6 knew. It is not no Manila rope. It is a thread, but it is 

7 thicker than thread and a little heavier than thread~ It 

8 is nylon. 

9 Q. How long a line is it? 

10 It all depends on how good you and the other guy a e. 

u If he is kind of humbly, you would have tq make a long one. 
·'i 

12 But if he- t:S ·g.o-ocf:·-·rf he can see it, he c_an _get it if he 
) . ,.,, 

13 is any good. If he is not, it might cause you a little 
·-

M trouble because the line only throws good so far. 

15 Q. I don 1 t understand this ret, Mr. Jordan. In other 

M words, you put a line in a sandwich. Is that it? Inside 

17 of a sandwich? 

18 You have got all day,_from breakfast all the way--
= 

19 we eat breakfast about 8:00 o'cloc-k, 8: 30. You have, got 

W from 8:30, the 6fficers don't come back there ~nless they 

n have something to do, if they are going to get somebody to 

22 take them somewhere. They never come back there to smee. if 

23' 

24; 

25 

you ar~ .quiet or acting up. They dontt care what you are 

doing. They know you are.there. You haventt got away 

becausi there are too many gates, doors, bars and so forth. 
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l so you are there~ You have all day to make all of the line 

2 you want if you have got the material. to make it. 

5 

4 

5 

6 

7 

Q. 

Q. 

Q. 

Where do you usually get the material to make it? 

Off the mattress. 

Off the mattress. 

Yes. 

Your neighbor, in other words-- Let me summarize 

8 this, and if I am confusing you or m.isleading you or any-

9 thing, tell me, because I don't want to-- In other words, 

w your neighbQr got a length of line and he put it inside a 

11 sandwich. 

12 

13 

A. A cheese sandwich~ 

Q. )Then ·he put it ins i,de a cheese sandwich, and one 

14 of the officers brought that· sandwich to you. 

15 

16 

17 

18 Q. 

Right. 

You opened up the sandwich-­

Took the line outa 

--and you took the line out, you knotted it at the 

19 end or you - -

20 

21 

A. 

Q. 

I rolled it up, just like I did that line there. 

Rolled it up just like you did the piece of string~ 

22 and you threw it out the door e 

23 

24 

A. 

Q. 

Righte 

Meanwhile, your n~ighbor who had another pLece of 

25 line did thE; same thing. 
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No. He has a hook. 

Q. He has a hook. 

You have got to have a hook or it won't work$ The 

line would slide over. 

Q. Your other neighbor, though, had a hook of some 

sort which he tied onto another piece of line, is that 

right? 

A, Yes. 

Q. And he threw his line out? 

Q. And hooked to yours. 

A, Right., 
) 

Q. And you pulled the hook into your cell. 

A. Noo He pulls mine in. 

Q. He pulls yours in. 

16 Ao Yes. You got to pull it all the way in, and he 

~ ties the stuff that he is going to send, whatever it hap-

~ pens to be, on and throws it back out, because if he don't 

19 throw it out it will catch on s;om'ething. So he thr.c::>ws it 

20 all the way out on the deck- and. you draw it in. 

21 Q. And then you draw it in. 

22 A. Right. 

23 Q. This was· done while the guards were!) it wat'ching? 

24 '.A, Yes. 

125 Q. But it was done during meal time while they were 
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passing out food in the section, is that right? 

Q. 

A. 

What? The fishing thing? No. 

When did you do it? 

During the meal time. See, they don't stand there. 

1 5 see, they pass out the food and they lock the big gate they 

6 have between the two sections, and they go all the way back 

7 up front. 

8 Q. Weren't they passing out food to the other cells at 

9 the same time? 

10 A. No. They pass food to the other cells first and 

U then-- You know, we are the last guys.t~at get anything. 

12 They pass everything out to everybody els·e ""first and then 
) 

13 if they have anything left over, we get that. This is what ·, 

14 it amounts to. A lot of times you don't get your full 

15 issue, because they run out by tne time they--get to the 

M bst cell. You know, they-get to y~u, when they get to you 

17 which is last. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

Q. After they serve you -thougq, you said that they 

- . ''"""" left the door open, and they are not ~n the wing any more? 

A. They are in the win~. .They ~eft our aiea. 

Q. Aren't they_pic~ing up ~rays fro* the earlier celLs , ~ ~ _,. ~ "' e ' .., -J • · 

22 that have been fed first? 

23 A. No·~ - They . feed you, you are the. las.t ones to be 
,. 

fed. They lock the gate between the r~gular isolation and 
.·,. 

the strip cells. Th~y ~ake ·a cart, and the inmate trustee 
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is rolling the cart, and they go back up front out to the 

guard area on the-- or whatever they call it there, and 

they sit down and they smoke a cigarette and they eat a 

piece of cake or something they find on the ti'ays that 

they like.· 

Q. You mean they steal the food from the inmates and 

7 eat it themselves? 

8 MR. COHLER: Your Honor--

9 THE WITNESS: No, they are not stealing food. This is 

w part of whaf they get--there is no rule against officers 

u eating. In fact, they have a rule that some officer is 

12 

13 

14 

supposed to eat some o£ the food the irim~tei are eating. 
) 

MR. GRANUCCI: Q. That is not in o-wing, is it? 
" 

A. That is all over. There is supposed to be some 

15 officer eat the same food as the inmates eat --±o block the 

16 inmates from claiming something is w_rong with the food. 

17 Q. In any event, Mr. Jordan, you have got some writin 

18 paper and penci 1 s. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

And a _p,encil, 

What did you 

I hid it. 

Where did you 

In the bars. 

pencil, """' one yes. 
' 

' do with it.? 

hide it? 

See, they have a little sliding bar, 

N and as long as the door ib riot open there is about this 

25 much empty space ( indic~ting·) . 
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l 
Q. Is it like a shelf? 

2 I A, Something like a shelf. The door slides on this 

3 thing, like that (indicating), and as long as the door is 

4 net open you have got about this much spa6e with an empty 

5 thing. When the door is opened it will knock anything out 

6 that is in thereG But the officers don't usually open the 

7 doors unless you are going some place, and so you tuck 

8 whatever you have to hide up there and if they happen to 

9 come in and look around they don't see anything" 

w ~ To the best of your knowledge, when did you engage 

u in this little fishing expedition? Wh~t day? I won't 

12 hold you to dates. But what day. of the week.? 
) 

13 A. I donet knowQ It was either the same day or the 
', 

U day after or the day before I wrote th~ letter. 

15 Q. It wouldntt have been the day after ~u wrote the 

16 letter, would it? 

17 A, No. I wouldn't have had anything to fish for. 

18 Q. That is right. So i~was the day before you wrote 

19 the letter. Were you supposed_ to' "llave pencils and pap~·'r 

20 in the quiet cell? 

21 It all depends on what you mean by ~supposed to." 

• According to the Directorls rule, I was supposed to have 

~ pencils and paper and legal papers, and L w~s supposed to 

~ be allowed to have the flaps down, and I was supposed to r be allowed to--
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l 
Q. I am just asking you about pencil and paper now, 

2 M Jordan. r. 

3 MR. COBLER: Your Honor, counsel used the term "sup-

n 
4 posed .t.o. I think the witness should state his understand-

5 ing in full. 

6 THE WITNESS: I was supposed--

7 MR. GRANUCCI: My question was restricted to pencil and 

8 paper, Your Honor. 

9 THE COURT: You may answer. 

w THE WITNESS: I was supposed to have it, but-- Can I 

ll explain something? 

12 

13 

MR. GRANUCCI: 
) 

Q. Sure. Go ahead, explain your answe o 

Me, myself, I wasn't getting anything from them 

14 because I did something that, you know, kind of got all of 

W them. I had spit on one of their officers, see, and they 

M told me that I wasn•t getting nothing. 

17 

18 

Q. 

A. 

Who told you that? 

Sergeant Friedrick to.ld me, for one. Mr. Spoon 

19 made a point to tell me, £or anotl'fer one, and the general 

~ attitude of the officers that came in contact with me was. 

21 "You are going to pay for this. This i~.it." I spit on 
e 

~ one of their brother officers, and they were going to see 

~ that I didnet get anything that didn't absolutely have to 

24 · be given to me o 

25 Q. In any event, five or six days later you had a 
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pencil and paper, was writing lette~s. 

Yes. I had a ~encil and paper. 

Q. Did you write the letters when the flaps were open? 

or when they were closed? 

A, I wrote the letters while one of the flaps was open. 

Q. One of the flaps was open. 

Au Yes. 

Q. Was this during meal time? 

Q. Whac time was it? 

This was at night time. At the time, this Officer 

~ Nash was what we call a fish bull. 
) 

13 Q. Excuse me? What did you say? Officer Nash was 

14 what? 

15 What we call a fish bull. In other words, he 

M wasnQt too well aware of wha~ was going around the in-

17 st1tution or that particular place, see, and these guys ar 

~ the kind of guys that you can-get to give you a break if 

~ you j~st treat them ~ith a lit~le"~espect. 

20 Q. He was an inexperienced officer, then, ·who would 

~ give you the break? 
'(!) 

22 Yes, because he wasn't in on being an officer like 

~ the rest. ~e had just come off the street. He hadn't ~-e 

N there ' long time. 

25 
') 

So~he didnnt know the general attitude, I guess,· 
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because I told him that I had some legal material that Mro 

l(iepura gave me and I was supposed to be able to write a 

letter back here and could he leave the flap down for meo 

And he asked me was he supposed ~o--how did I get the 

5 paper. And I told him a lie. I told him Mr. Kiepura gave 

6 me the paper o And since Mr. Kiepura gave me the paper, it 

7 should be all right since Mr. Kiepura is in the hierarchy, 

8 it seems to him it might be all right. if Mr. Kiepura give 

9 me the pencil and paper, it would be all right for me to 

wJ write a letter, so he left one flap down so I could write 
I 

ll 

12 

l3 

the letter. 

Q. . I want you to take a look :::::at· page. 10 .. of your ~ 
) 

original complaint, lines 17 through 25o I wonder if you 

U would read that to me, pleas~. Page 10, lines i7 through 

l5 25, the original complaint. 

l6 nPlaintiff also requested that a flap be left open 

~ so that some of the fresh air and· light could enter the 

~ cell, this request also made ~o both the officials and the 

l9 Chief Medical Officer. Plaintiff 'was refused again _in his 

W request and the. flaps~ remained ~ightly shut up~ Plaintiff 

U was forced by this action to lie in a dense, rancid and 

a2 one~ous atmosphere o:f putrid decay, in a perpetual· gfoo.m 

or twilight for 2~-1/2 hours a day, • 

Q. If you will, your. amended complaint, starting at 

I the last line on page 3 to line 5 on page 4. 
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Line 5? 

Q. Start on page 3 at the last line and then read to 

line 5 on page 4 ~ 

"During plaintiffts con~inement in said strip cello 

plaintiff was forced to remain in said strip cell with said 

flaps and door of the second wall closed4 As a result. 

plaintiff was deprived of light and ventilation for twelve 

days, except that twice a day the d~or of the second wall 

was opened for approximately fifteen ~inutes." 

10 MR. COHLER: Your Honor, before counsel proceeds fur­

ll therp the use of the originar complaint ip this nature is 

~ proper, at least in part, since the plain~i~f himself 
) 

LS wrote ito The amended complaint is a legal document draft d 

u by counsel, no part of which was written by th~ witness~ 

lli I hope counsel will be careful which way he proceeds. 

L6 

l7 

18 

21 

THE WITNESS: I said that. 

MR. GRANUCCI: Q. You said that? 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

I said just what it ~ays in there. 

-But you didn't say that te.ilay, did you, Mr.,Jordan? 

I just got through telling you the same thing. 

Didnit you j~st testify that the_flaps were left 

~ open while you were writing? 
e ;r 

23 

24 

A. 

Q. 

No .. 

You didnjt? 

~ ~ No, I said I trick~d the--off~cer into leaving the flap 
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1 
open for about twenty-five minutesi and he closed it up 

2 right after that. And the only reason he opened tha~ flap 

3 \'/as because I had asked him before that, would he leave the 

4 flaps down, and he told me h~ couldnRt. And he said the 

5 sergeant, ~nd the sergeant told me he couldn't leave the 

6 flaps--he couldn 1 t open the flaps and leave them down. 

7 But the officer, as I said, was a fish officer, which 

8 means he didntt know too much about_what was going on, and 

9 me being in possession of the pencil and me being in 

w possession of paper, someone had to give that to me, some-

11 one had to give me that paper, and I mentioned the name of 

~ one of his superiors as giving that pencil ~nd paper and 
) 

~ giving me au~horization to write it. 

14 Q. That wasn't true th~n either, according to your 

15 testimony. 

16 No, but I wanted to write that lettero I had a 

17 reason for wanting to write that· lett.er. 

18 Q. What was the reason? 

l9 A. Because I wanted -to w.rite ..... somebody and. tell them 

~ what they were'doing to me.back there. 

21 MR. GRANUCCI: Your Honor, would this be an appropri~t 

~ time for a recess? 

23 THE COURT: All right. 
·" 

24 (A short recess was taken.) 

25 MR. GRANUCCI: Q. Mr. Jordan, before we adjourned, 
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you testified, did you not, that you wrote two letters whil 

you were in the quiet cell? 

Yes~ 

Q. This was when the flaps were open, or at least one 

of the flaps? 

Yes, the door flap. 

Q. Now, on direct testimony I think you stated that 

8 Dr. Kunkel or some other doctor cama around once or twice 

9 while you were in the quiet cell. Is that right? 

10 

11 Q. 

They come around every Monday. 
; 

Do you remember whether Dr. Kunkel came at any 

12 time? 
) 

13 A. I know I saw Dr. Kunkel once. 

14 Q. Did you ever complain to Dr. Kunkel about the con-

~ dition of the cell, filthy condi~ions? 

16 A. The first time he ca~e, yes. 

17 MR. COBLER: I didn•t hear the witness' answer~ I am 

18 sorry. 

19 

20 

THE WITNESS: The first time h"'e came. 
-· 

MR. GRANUCCI: Q. What ·did. you say to Dr. ·Kunkel, · if 

21 you remember? 
. G 

~ I told him, to start out with, that I was sick and 
' 

that I caught something f·rom the cell. ..And he says, 111 What 

is wrong with the cell? n , And I said, "Come on in and look 

at it.n He wouldn't come in~ide. He stands outside the 
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1 door. 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

Q. was that the outside door? Or the inside door? 

The outside door. The corridor. SeeJ he never 
\ 

comes in the cell. He stands outside the door. I told him, 

I said, "Just come in and take a smell and you will see 

what is wrong with it.w I said, "The whole place is messed 

7 up," and he says, "well, I don't see anything wrong with 

8 your cell." And I said, •well, you just don't want to see 

9 anything is wrong with the cell.Ul I said, "Look at all 

lO that stuff there, 11 and I pointed in the cell, "the stains 

ll on the floor and stuff like ~his." He saysa ~welL, ask 

~ the officers for something to clean it'up," and he walked 

13 0 ff. ) 

14 Q. Did you tell Dr. Kunkel that you had vomited in 

15 your cell? 

16 I don't know if it was Dr. Kunkel or~not. 

17 Q. They brought you water, didn't they, while you wer 

~ in the quiet cell? 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

The officer? 
·.·~ 

Q. Yes. 

A. Yes, they brought me water. 

Q. How many times a day? 

Twice a day. 

Q. Twice ·a day. 

Ao · Somet.i.::mes-- I remember a· couple of times they 
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brought it three times a day. 

00426 
Officer Hoaglanda every once 

in a~hile, would make an extra trip just before he went 

horne, ~hich was-- I don 1 t know what time he went home--

he went home at 4:00 o'clock, but he come back about 3:15, 

and he give me some water. I don't know if he gave the 

rest of them anything. But he come back and give me some 

water. 

Q. This was all the watei you wanted to drink? 

Yeah 6 I had all the water I wanted to drinko 

Q. It was your testimony that it was usually twice a 

ll day, but sometimes three time.s a day?· 

I was back there twenty days, twelve days, some-

.3 thing like that • Twelve days, and in those twleve days, I 

. 4 would say two, ·maybe three t.imes I got what I would say 

! extra water, which was an extra trip by the officer. 

. 6 

. 7 

. 8 

Q. 

A • 

Q . 

That would be three times . 

Three times, a couple of_times. 

I want to show you page 3 of your declaration in 

.9 opposition to motion for summary j \fdgment. I would like 
•,"""' 

~ you to read lines 25 through 2~, please. 

',1 A. ttnuring the time that I was in the strip cell, I 
~~-· 

:2 was give·n,···a cup of water three t.fmes a day. On eacheoc-. 

4 

5 

cas ion that I was offered water', I was permitted to drink 
·' 
as much as I wanted while the officer or ttrustee' was 

/ 

there to pour from the pitcher they carried.n 
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Q. O.K. Thank you. 

Now, Mr. Jordan, let's talk about the toilets. How 

often were the toilets flushed while you were in the strip 

cell during the period in Ju~y? 

Usually they were flushed twice a day, once early 

1 n the morning and once in the evening. 

Q. Usually twice. 

Yes., But sometimes they werenvt flushed in the 

9 morning. 

10 

11 

12 

13 

Q. Were they always flushed at least twice a day? 

Q. They weren't? 

A, ) No. The night officer always flushed them .. He 

u made a point of flushing them. 

15 Q. Would it be fair to say they were flushed sometimes 

U in the morning, sometimes in the afternoon, and alwa~s at 

17 night? 

18 

19 

No, not in the .afternoon. Sometimes in the mornin s 

always at night, never that I know=of in the afternoon. . ;.~ 

20 Q. · Never in ·the aftern·oon .. 

21 No~ One timet I believe the inmate that was the 

22 porter o he carne to p.f~k up my tray and I asked him, ;:would 
': 

23 he flush it. And he told me--his name was Piasano--and he 

24 told me he would see to it. He was an assistant:.,· cop and 

25 he had a lot of privileges arDund there and he went around 
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~ 
in the.toil9~ hisself and flushed it because there was a 

lot of stuff in it. The officer wouldn~t do it. 

Q. In other words, only once in the afternoon they 

4 flushed the toilet? 

5 A" In the afternoon? 

6 Q. . Yes o 

7 Ao In the afternoon, yes, one time. 

8 ~ Your declaration in opposition to motion for sum-

"' 9 mary judgment, page 3, line 30 to page 4 line 3. Would 

10 you read that out loud. 

ll "During the time that I was in the strip cell,-the 

u •toilet 1 was flushed sometimes in the m6rning, sometimes in 

~ the aft~rnoon and always at night, but no more than that.tt 

14 That 11 sometimes in the afternoon''-- when I 'say in the 

w morning, that means in the morni~g time. But sometimes 

16 they wouldn v t get around to flushing the toilet until 11:00 

17 o 1clock. 

18 

l9 

Q. You wouldnlt count that as the morning? 

No, I would count-- Yes. I-would count that as the 
' . ,_"""' 

- . 

m morning, ~~s. I would say that was in the morriing. 

21 

22 

23 

124 

I~ 

Q. so then it is your testimony that the toilet was 
·' 

flushed, ~ere always flu~hed at least twice a day? 

Q. No, they weren't? I mean twice in a 24-hour day? 

A. Nou they weren 9 t. 
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1 
Q. They werenvt? 

z No. They were flushed every night. They had two 

3 

4 

5 

officers working at night, Officer Nash, whoG as I say, was 

a fish officer9 a new officer~ and he was kind of con-

scientious about his job and you didnit have to worry about 

6 him f 1 ushing his m And they had Officer Thompson or Thomasu 

7 1 don~ t know exactly what his name was. and he was an 

8 officer, he would carry out all of his duties and he was 

9 one of those type officers and you could depend on him 

ro flushing them. 

ll But then in the afternoon or the morning or whatever 

~ you want to call it, we had Officer Spoon---

13 MRo)GRANUCCI: I think we understand you, Mr. Jordan. 

14 MR. COHLER: I think he ought to be permitted to finis 

15 his answer p Your Honor .. 

16 MR. GRANUCCI: oh. he has been over and over it. 

17 MR. COHLER: You asked the q~estion several times, 

18 counsel. 

19 MR. GRANUCCI: I just asked hirn~how many times the 
,, "'"' 

20 toilet--

'l'HE COURT: Did you complete you~ answer? 21 

22 THE WITNESS: No. I was explaining why sometimes they 

23 didn 1 t. 
./ 

~ THE COURT~ All right. 

25 THE WITNESS: They had Of£icer Spoon and they ,had 
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officer Hayesp I believe his name was-- I donut know what 

hlS nam,e was o But sometimes they didn 1 t get around to 

flushing the toilets. 

MRa GRANUCCl: Q. You say·the toilets were always 

flushed at night. 

They were always flushed at nighto 

Q. All right. Page 11 of your original complaint~ 

8 lines 14 and 15. 
J"''1 ' 

9 A3 n •• Qon numerous occasions the toilets were not 

w flushed at '11 for the full 24-hour period." 

11 Q. That is enough. 

12 That is what I just got through sayings 
• ' •:o-

They 

~ flushed)the toilets at night, that is 9:00 ouclock or 8:00 

U o•clock, or somewhere around there, and they wo~ldnut get 

W flushed again until the next nig~t at 9:00 oUclock. That 

16 is 24 hours o 

17 Q. You say that means they were·n ~ t flushed at all for 

~ an entire 24-hour period? 

19 They would flush them. T~~night officers would 
' 

20 :3me on and they wou,ld flush the toilets, and they flushed 

~ them, I thinks about 8:00 o 1 c1ock or 9:00 o'clock. 

22 

23 

Q. Fine. 

And then they don~t flush them againa they wouldnu 

U get flushed again until he came back the next nighto 

25 Q. So that would be--
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At 8:00 o 1 clock. 

That would be a 24-hour period? 

That is what I meant by that. 

Did you have any extra water cups in your cell? 

No-- I donRt know. 

How many water cups did you have in your cell? 

I had one, to start off with, and then I took one 

8 off my plate and I put that one up there, and Officer 

91 Hoagland let me have it~ And then Officer Spoon came in 

10 and he took it .. He took it away.. See, I had two cups, but 

11 he took it~ So I done t think~ I had the c~p more than two 

12 days and other times I had one cup" 

13 Q. .-lwhen .the officers brought you water, they would let 

14 you drink as much as you want; is that right? 

15 A. Yes, they would always let me drink as much. 

16 Q. Would they fill up the cup and leave you with a cup 

17 of water? 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A. Yes .. 

Q. so that you could drink tpj!t water later? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Or you could rinse off your hands with it? 
~.I ( 

A. You could rinse off your handso But r;'want eo tell 

you, this cup is about this big ~nd about that big around 
. .• ,.... v.,. ~"';,.. . 

Hndicating), and when you drink J..t, it is about five 
' 

swallows. And there is not much to .rinse your hands witho 
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Q. Did they bring you toilet paper when you were in 

the cell? 

Sometimes they did, sometimes they didn't. It 

would all depend. Sometimes khey would bring it with them 

when they came and sometimes they wouldn't. 

Q .. What shift would bring you the toilet paper? 

All of them. 

Q .. All of them. 

A. When they come around with the water, they bring a 

w roll of toilet paper with them when they come around with 

ll the water. Sometimes they don't have th• toilet ~aper with 

~ them when they come around with the wate~~r-

13 Q. )You mean, you could get toilet paper at least once 

14 a day? 

l5 

16 

l7 

18 

l9 

20 the 

A, Most times, yese 

Q. Most of the time 

A, Most of the time 

Q. Most of the time 

A, Like I . say, they 

water, but 'sometimes 

once a day. 

twice a-day. 

twice a day. 

-bring it~round'when they pring 

the officer forget~ the toilet 

21 ,,papey s;tays up front. Sometimes they m~ght be out a when 

22 he comes around, he knows the next man is going to b~ing 

~ water so you will get your toilet paper anyway. 

24 

25 

MR. GRANUCCI: I hav~ n;o further questions, .Mr. Jordan. ., 
~ 

MR. OAKES: I have a couple of questiops, if I may. 
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l CROSS-EXAMINATION 

2 BY MR. OAKES: 

3 Q. Mr. Jordan, would you say you are the most easily 

4 manageable inmate in the inst~~ution? 

5 NOo 

6 Q .• You are not always as quiet as you have been in the 

7 court room o are you? 

8 

9 Q. 

No. I am not quiet at all ~eallyo 

I just have one more question. I am a little in-

ro trigued abopt this fishing episode that we went through 

11 earliero 

12 First of allp do I understand that the ~liding door on 

~ the bar~ in the interior part of the cell has expanded 

u metal on them? They have a grille on them? Dciesnit the 

W bar have a wire? 

16 Yes, a wire. 

17 Q. So the entranceway through the steel door looks 

~ directly onto a mesh wire which is over the vertical bars. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Is that correct? ~ 

MRo COHLER:' I don't follow that. Could you try again, 

please? 
,. 

IS THE WITNESS: I got it. 

MR. OAKES: Mr. :Jordan did. 

THE WITNESS: See, t}?.e doorway .is about--bigger than I 

e. and I 'm six-one, and it ~s about, maybe, a foot, two 
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feet bigger than me. It is not all the way covered up with 

wireo 

MR. OAKES: Q. About how far would that be? About 

how much of it is covered witn wire? 

I believe about that much of it at the bottom is 

sj not covered with wire {indicating). That is where they 

7 

8 

9 

10 

slide the tray. That is off the floor. That is not part 

of the door. The door starts about that far from the floor. 

Q. I see. 

And then at the top of the door, that is about that 

ll much with no wire on it (indLcating) . 

12 head. 

That is over your 

13 Q. )when you were going through your fishing expeditio 

14 with your neighbor, which neighbor was it? 

15 I donnt recall who it was. They have the records. 

16 Q. Would it be on your right side? Or your left side 

17 as you were facing out? 

lB A. I don't really recall. 

l9 Q. Isn It it true, if_ it were,f,., say, the one on your 

~ right-hand side, that you wotild have to go over to the 

U right-hand side of the cell where th~re is a steel plate 

22 and throw around t-he corner to get to the right-hand$ side? 
j 

23 A, No. See, if he is on your ri~ht, well, that puts 
. ' 

24 his door over here and it would put your steel flap to his 

25 left. ' So you· get up on the bars and you throw your line 
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l out first, see, you throw your line out the door, see, and 

2 your line goes over like this where he can see it fr~m his 

5 door. And then he gets up on his door, sticks his arm out 

4 and he has the hook, see, and~he winds his line and throws 
'·-:'~" 

·t There is an art to it, see. 5 l • You just don~t throw ito 

6 Q. I assume that there iso 

7 A. See, you throw it and just as it gets to the end, 

s you make a little grab, and it tunis the corner and it 

9 plops down and you drag it back. 

10 MRo OAK~S: I have no further questions. I donYt under 

11 stand it, but maybe he can demonstrate it for me sometime 0 

~ MRo COHLER: No quest~ons, Your Honor~ Thank you, Mr. 

13 

14 

) 
Jordan. 

' (Witness e~cused.) 

~ MR. COHLER: Your Honor, but _for any rebuttal witness 

16 which may be necessary, that is the plaintiff • s case at 

17 this time. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

THE COURT: Very wello 

-
MRo GRANUCCI ~ Your Honor, at ~his time the defendants ,.. 

will move for a· nonsuit in the civil_ ri,ghts action and a 

dismissal in the. J:l:abeas corpus case ori the ground the 
. --... . ., :··--· ·' s ' 

plaintiff has not pro~ed any dep~i~a£ion of his c6ns~itu-

tional ~ights to justify relief on either theory. 
)y •· • .-..~ ·-,t: 

MRo COHLER: Ypur Honpr, I think there is at least a 

Prima facie case, and I dOn't t~ink it bears extensive 
~·-
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argument o 

THE COURT~ Motion is denied. 

MR. GRANUCCig At this time defendants will present to 

the court for identification t-he disciplinary records on 

Inmate Alexander. 

THE CLERKg Defendantis Exhibit F for identification. 

(Disciplinary Records, Inmate 
Alexander, were marked for 
identification as Defendants' 
Exhibit F.) 

lO THE COUR_T: So ordered. 

ll MR. GRANUCCI: Inmate Harris'-- counsel has already 

~ been furnished with copies of those records--

13 MR. tOHLER: I acknowledge servicee Thank you, counsel. 

u THE CLERK: ·Defendants' G for identificatio~. 

15 

16 

17 

18 MR. GRANUCCI: 

(Disciplinary Records, Inmate 
Harris, were mar~d for identi 
fication as Defendants' ·Exhibi 

. G·.) 

I respectfully move their introduction 

19 into evidence on the same _theory o.Q ""which the Court ad-

00 rnitted the disciplinary re6~rds of the witnesses Esparza 

21 and Porte: nam~ly, to show bias against the insti tutir~:>n. 

22 MR. COHLER: With the offer limited as previousli, no 

~ objectiono Your Honor. 

~- THE COURT: That will be the order. 

~ THE CLERKg Defendants' F and G in evidence. 
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(Disciplinary Records, Inmates 
Alexander and Harris, previousl 
marked for identificatiop as 
Defendants' Exhibits F and G 
were received in evidence.) 

Our first 'defense witness will be Dr~ 

DRo EDWARD PAUL KUNKELn 

called as a witness on behalf .of the defendants, being firs 

duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows: 

g THE CLERK: State your name and occupation to the Court 

lO THE WITNESS: Edward Paul Kunkel, Chief Medical 

ll 

12 

13 

14 

15 

officer at the Correctional ~enter at SoLedad. 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MRo iRANUCCI: 

Q. Where did you receive your education? 

A. I am a graduate of the Indiana University School 

16 of Medicine, Bloomington, Indiana. 

17 Q. Would you summarize briefly your professional 

18 experience. 

19 Upon graduating f-rom the 'medical school, I ~ntered 

W the United Sta~es Naval Service and spent 30 y•ars, a 

21 little better than 30 ¥ears in _the Unitec:i States Navy as 

22 

23 

24 

25 

a Medical Officer. Having served through the . l!; -various 

grades, I retired as a Captain in the Medical Corps of the 
-----~ ..___ 

United States Navy. 

Q. Where are you presently employed? 
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~· Presently I am Chief Medical Officer at the 

correctional Training Facility of Soledad. 

Q. Are you familiar with the section of the prison 

known as o-wing? 

I am. 

Q. Do you visit that wing in the furtherance of your 

7 duties? 

8 Whea I am not on vacation, I" visit each and every 
. \ 

9 cell every Monday morning. 

10 Q.- Does- that include the Isolation Row? 

11 A. Yes. 

~ ~ Does it also include those cells known as strip 
) . 

U cells or quiet cells? 

14 It does. 

15 Q. Now, have you familiariz~d yourself with the recor s 

M of your medical department at the institution relating to 

17 the dates of your visits during the period of J·uly 9 

~ through July 20 1965? 

l9 A. No, not as far as· medical';,:~ I don't r~cord my 

~ visits in the medical departmen~. We sign in when we go 

21 into the Adjustment cente.r or to x-wing.- we normally .sign 
li> 

22 in and.....out. And I have looked ~t the records. and on the 

23 

24 

25 

two Mondays in question.! personally went thrbugh the' 
~ 

Adjustment Center. 

Q. Did you visit each inmate in the strip cells on 
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l those two Mondays? 

2 I make it a special point to see every inmat~, 

3 especially in the quiet cells. 

4 Q. Did you have an opportunity to observe the condi-

5 tion of cleanliness of those cells? 

6 I observe the cleanliness of all cells. 

7 Q. Directing yourself particularly to the strip cells 

8 or the quiet cells, what was the condition of cleanliness 

9 that you observed? 

10 A. Welle I can 1 t recall the dates in question 6 because 

ll that is far from being, but i know if there would have bee 

12 anything wrong from a sanitary standpoint, I would have 
) 

13 called it to the attention of the sergeant, which I have 

M done on several occasions, and correct~ve measures are 

15 usually taken immediately. 

16 Q. Do you recall making such complaints with regard 

17 to plaintiff Jordan? 

I do not~ I don't rE!_member. 18 

19 Q. During this time -in quest »on, did you receiye any 

~ letters from J6rdan requesting medical treatment? 

21 A. Oh, I probably did. I receive ~H~te a few. 
-Ji~.. ' 

I 

22 would like to explain to the Court how I handle, tho-s~ 
•..[;, 

~ letters that I receive from the Adjustment Center. 

Q. Would you do that, please. 24 

25 During the week, I receive any puml)er of-...,some q,re 
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letters, some of them are supposed to be interview slips 

that we receive, and I keep a record of them. I know that 

there is no emergency, because if there is an emergency in 

the Adjustment Center or X-wing~ my MTA usually picks it 

5 up in the morning and he refers it to us. And then we call 

6 the inmate over to the hospital for examination. 

7 If something happens after the MTA has made a sick 

8 call, the sergeant calls this to our attention. Then I 

9 

10 

ll 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

usually send an MTA to X or o-wing and tell him to take.a 

look at him_and, "If, in your opinion, you feel that a 

medical officer should see him," we ask h~m to bring him 

to che hospital and the medical ofticer can see him. 

Now! regarding these letters, threats, interview slips 

that I receive during the week, I keep a record·- of them. 

on Monday morning when I go through, I look at the chart 

that they have in the Adjustment Center, find out the name 

of this individual, where this individual is that sent me 

~ the letters sent me the interyiew slip, and I chart it down 

19 in my book Q I carry a book with me when I go throu~h there. 

20 I make an appoiritment personally to talk with £he individu 

21 that put in the letter. 
s . 

If he--after talking to him, if I feel that he needs t 

be brought to the hospital for examina.tion, then he, later,· 
-.;!. 

on, after I finish my tr~p, during the day he is brought 

into the hospital for examination. 
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If I feel that he doesn't have a just complaint, I 

donnt believe what he is telling me, and he still insists 

5 he.has some pain, then I prescribe medication. We have an 

4 

5 

6 

MTA that follows me along and'ordinary routine medications 

are dispensed at that time. 

Q. Nowf Doctor, just to clarify the matter, do you 

7 have any independent recollection of seeing plaintiff 

8 Jordan in the quiet cell--

9 

10 

11 

A. 

Q. 

I do not. 

You-do not~ 

I do not. 

~ ~ Directing your attention to Febrqary 14th of this 
) 

~ year, did you examine plaintiff Jordan? 

14 

15 

16 

A. 

Q. 

I did examine 19rdan on that day. 

What did that examination consist of? 

Well, I received-- I received anot&er letter from 

~ Jordan, I think one got into his-medical jacket for some 

~ reason or another, but Jorda~ was going to the Board in 

""' 19 May, and apparently--he had been .a.omplaining to me <?n my 

M rounds, and th~ l~tter he sent on--I forget no~ 8 it was 

H February sometime,, February the lOth or somewhere around 
- 1 

~ there--for I decided, in view he was supposed to go ~efore 

~ the Adult Authority in May, he had b~en complaining this 

M and thato I better bring .him over to the hospital and 

25 examine him. 
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So 1 sent for Jordan and he ~as brought to the hospital 

and 1 recollect examining him, and I couldnit find anything 

wrong physically with inmate Jordan. 

Q. Dro Kunkelf based on that examination, did you 

formulate an opinion as to his health? 

He was in good health. 

Q .. He was in good health. Now, Dr. Kunkel, over how 

8 long a period of time have you been visiting the Adjustment 

g center, particularly the Isolation Row? 

WI A. Ther~ was--ever since I became Chief Medical 

11 Officer. in- 19SS"-. --

12 Q_. That, of course, includes the strip_ .c~ells? 

13 
)_ 
It does. 

14 Q. Through that period, you have had an op~ortunity 

~ to observe the general condition.of cleanliness of Isola-

~ tion Row and the srip cells? 

I have~ 17 

18 Q. What has that condition been throughout the years? 

~ MR. COBLER: Exactly what year.-are we talking about? 

20; MR. GRANUCCI~ 1955 through the present. 

n MR. COHLER: Your Honor, I see no'.foundation in the 
• •' ,L 

22 record for general conditions throughout- that many y~r·s 

~ as they may bear on two weeks. 

~ MRo GRANUCCI: Your Honor 6 ordinarily I~would agree 
'· 

25 with counsel. pa~t of the ~laintiff~s 
\-. 

case, h However, as 
' 
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has brought out certain changes have been made in the quiet 

cellS a Your Honor has had an opportunity to inspect the 

Isolation Section generally, and the quiet cells in parti-

cular" and Your Honor has had, ·pursuant to that inspection, 

5 an opportunity to observe the cleanliness of that area~ 
,,.,····-

What I expect to elicit from ~his witness is, if any-

7 thing at alle whether or not there has been any change in 

8 that cleanliness Q 

9 MR. COHLER~ Your Honor will recall that we were 

10 I cautioned n_ot to slip on the wet floors that had just been 

u washed. I don 1 t see how there could possibly be any bear-

l2 

13 

14 

ing between several years of cleanliness and the day we 

were tlfere. 

THE COURT~. I will allow it. 

15 MR. GRANUCCI: Miss Reporter, would you read back the 

w question, please? 

17 (The question was read.) 

18 THE WITNESS~ It has been quite satisfactory. Most of 

19 the time 8 very, very goog condi t,i.gn. 

20 MR. GRANUCCI: Q. Have you noticed any change in the 

U level of cleanliness since February of this year? 

22 

23 

24 

25 

I have not. 

Q .• · O_l)e further question, Doctor: What is RD? It 

doesn 1 t relate to plain~iff here. However, the term has 

been mentioned, and we might expLore it. 
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l 
A, Wellp RD is a diet, it is a special diet. It is 

2 
made up in loaf form. It contains al.l of the food-~ 

3 
essential food elements, carbohydrates, proteins, fats, 

4 
vltamins, and everything elseo It is very similar to the 

5 K-rations .that we had during World War II. It is put up 

6 in loaf form and it is served to certain incorrigibles 

7 that are brought before the Disciplinary Committee, and the 

8 value they receive twice a day amounts to about 2,500 

9 calories o It is not too palatabl~ a food, but it is a food 

10 that you can be sustained on indefinitelyo Along with that 0 

11 they get two slices of wholewheat bread. They get two 

12 rations a day o 

) . 
13 MR. GRANUCCI~ Your witness, counsel. 

14 CROSS -EXAMINATION 

15 BY MRo COHLER: 
. - " ~ ~ -

16 Q, Doctor, if I recall correctly--and please correct 

17 me if I am mistaken--you testified that on several oc-

18 casions you have told a serge~ant that there was not a pro-

19 per state of cleanliness.. Is tha~ correct? 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q. 

Q. 

Q. 

That is' right. 

And sometimes it is cleaned up? 

I didn it say u sometimes .. u 
1!> ' 

I said it is cleaned upe 

I thought you said sometimes. We can check ~hat. 

I did not. .-·." 

You do not have a specific recollection in the 
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period of July when Mr. Jordan, as you have been informedu 

~as in the quiet or strip cell, have you? 

A. No specific recollection, no. 

Q. Then you have no recollection of whether or not 

5 this was one of the times when things may not have been as 

6 cleaned up as you would have liked, is that correct? 

7 No. If the inmate would have complained to me and 

8 1 n my own opinion I felt that certain things were wrong, I 

9 would have taken steps to correct them. That is part of 

10 my responsib_ility. 

ll ~- Do you recall the names of all th~ inmates-over the 

~ past years who have told you that there was something wrong, 

13 and you ;have taken steps to correct it? 

14 Ao Nq, I do not. 
--'F1'' 

~; -· ,..;,!, ·' . 

15 Q. l Doctor, do you recall sp~cifically whether or not 

16 that was the occasion during the period of July? 

17 No. If· he had told me th-at and I found· anything 

~ wrong, it would have be~n corrected. 

19 Q. Based upon your general ex;perience and your ,general 

M responsibilitie~, if Mr. Jordan had said ariything to you 

n during your rounds, you would have ask~d the sergeant to do 

22 som-ething? 

23 

24 

25 

A. If ~ felt in my opinion cor(~ctive measures should 

have been taken. 

Q. Do you have any specific recollection during this 
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period whether or not there was vomit in plaintiff 9 s cello 

in Mr" Jordan n s cell? 

Noo there wasn 1 t any or I would have taken steps to 

have had that cleaned up& 

Q. At any time that there is vomit in the cell, you 

6
1 take steps to have it cleaned up, is that correct? 

7 I take steps to have it cleaned up and find out 

8 what the cause of it was and whether the inmate is ill. 

9 Q. Dr. Kunkel, when you referred to checking in at the 

10 Adjustment Center,. how many cells are there in the Adjust-

11 ment center? 

12 Ao Well6 usually in the Adjustment c·e-nt~er on one side 
) 

13 r think there is about 108, or the capacity is ~08 Q I 

14 have never counted them. 

15 Q. Do you sign in when you go into the Adjustment 

16 Center? 

17 That is right., 

18 Q. You sign in before you visit all 108 cells and you 

19 sign after you visit all 1-08? 
.. ....,. 

20 Well, sometimes we sign-in, and then we go through 

21 the bottom floor and then we go through t;be second floor .. 
t& . 

22 And when we come down we ask them to cli:'eck us out. We 

~ don't know how it is checked out or whether we -~t~ checked 

24 out o The main thing I am 'interested· in" is whether I am 

25 checked in 0 
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Q. What I would like to establish~ Doctor, is how 

many cells you see after you check in and before you'either 

check out yourself or you are checked out. How many cells 

are t.here to be seen? 

Q .• 

Q. 

wherever there is an inmate. 

What is the total cell capacity? 108? 

I think it is 108. 

I am not trying to pin you down. 

I have·never counted them. I 

w know I have-to mak~ them all, so it doesn~t make any dif-

11 ference if there is 300. 

12 

14 

MRo COHLER: 
) 

Mr. Grace, may I have Pl~idtiffBs Exhibit 

Q. Dr. Kunkel, I would like to show you what is Plain-

15 tiff9s Exhibit 13 in this case, I;solation log.s, two dif-

16 ferent kinds of pages. Is .that correct? 

17 

18 

19 

Q. 

L. 

That is right. 

You are familiar with-these_documentsQ the original 
.·, , __ 

I am familiar with this sheet. The rest I am not 

20 familiar w'i th 0 

21 Would you kindly look through Pla~ntiff's Exhibit 
m 

~ 13, which .you have ·before you. On each occasion when you 

23 

24 

25 

made a visit into the Adjustment Center are~, approximately 

lOB cells, tell the Court·how much time you spent there 

according to those records. 
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A, well, the first one here Shows I spent ten minutes. 

But that is not a statement of fact. There is an error 

there. You couldnWt go through--you couldn9t even go 

through one side in ten minutes. 

This one here, in 7:426 out 7:50. You couldn't do it 

in that time. That is not my handwriting. I don't know 

who checked us in$ Dr. Marsh- and I both were in there. 

Q. How long was the other doctor in there? 

All the same time. The MTA and everybody. 

MR. COHLER: Thank you, Doctor. That is all, counsel. 

11 REDIRECT EXAMINATION . 

12 BY MR. OAKES: 
) 

u ~ Doctor, you heard mentioned the vomit ~n the cell. 

u If you saw a man in the strip cell and found vomit on the 

15 floor, do you think he would be moved to the__hospi tal to b 

16 checked? 

17 I would ordinarily, yes. 

18 Q. would there not be an entry in the medical records 
. ~ 

19 reflecting this? 

20 When they are brought to the hospital, 'the records 

21 reflect it; but not the v.isi ts we make to the Adjustment 
~- - . -

~ Centet. If we find somebody there that need~ prolonged 

23 

24 

25 

medication .of a nature which· may be called a •hot drug, • 

then it is put in his records that he i~ on--then we will 

usually prescribe it for a period of ten or t~elve days. 
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But ordinary visits are not recorded in--

Q. Not for vomiting in the cell? 

No. We have them checked further sometimes; say, 

he vomited in his cell or he is--he is hav~ng blood in his 

urine or this and that, and we send a specimen bottle over 

and ask him to give us a sample so we can check it. 

Q. If you would have seen .a man with vomit in his cell 

withino say, the past 13 or 14 months, particularly in the 

9 strip cell, do you think you would. recall it at this date? 

10 

ll 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

BY 

MR. 

THE 

.MR. 

A, 

MR. 

MR, 

MR. 

Q. 

I wo-uld not. 

COHLER: I didn 1 t hear the answer.-

WITNESS: I would not. 
) 
OAKES! Q. You would not? 

No. 

OAKES: I have nothing further. 

GRANUCCI: I have one further question. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

GRANUCCI ~ 

Dr. Kunkel, you have been l'l'amed as a defendant in 

20 this case. Did you ever conspire with Mt. Donrielly, Mr. 

~ Fitzharris, Mr. Kiepura, Mr. Swagerty, M~~ De Carli, or 
. '€> 

~ anybody else, to depri~e the plaintiff of his federal con-

23 ~titutional rights? 

24 I did not. 

~ MR. COHLER: Your Honor 1 I object to the question as to 
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form. It calls for a conclusion of an ultimate question 

whiCh will be decided by the Court as to what a conspiracy 

may consist of$ I don't think it is proper. Basic facts 
·-~ 

froin which inferences may be 'drawn, ~ is an entirely dif-

6 1 ferent matter. 

6 MR. GRANUCCI: Your Honor, a conspiracy is an unlawful 

7 agreement, and· I think that this man· should be entitled to 

8 testify on the issues 

9 MR. COHLER: Is he an attorney to say whether or not an 

10 agreement i-s lawful? 
" u THE COURT: You may answer, Doctor. 

12 THE WITNESS: 
) 

MR. GAANUCCI: 

What was the question?. 

~ Did you ever conspire with the other 

u defendants to deprive the plaintiff of his federal con-

15 s tit uti on a 1 rights ? 

16 

17 

18 

19 

Oh, absolutely not. 

Q. Do you bear any malice towards the plaintiff? 

A. None whatsoever. 

MR. GRANUCCI: Thank you.· 

~ May the wifness be excused? 

21 MRo COHLER: No, because I have a question. 

22 RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

23 BY MR. COHLER: 

24 

25 

Q. Dr. Kunkel, I am.sorry, but would you please tell 

the Court what conspiracy means to you? 
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Well, it means we are trying to gang up on him or 

words to that effect .• 

MR. COHLER: Thank you. 

THE COURT: Doctor, what is your definition of an 

incorrigible? You have used the word. 

THE WITNESS: Well, an incorrigible is one that, I 

think, is--the psychiatrists have given up on him and we 

have given _up on him and everybody else and there is not 

very much hope for him c 

1o THE COURT: And do you feel that the inmates of the 

11 six cells commonly known as the strip or quiet cells fit 

12 within that terminology? 

l3 THE WITNESS: Not all of them, no sir. 

14 THE COURT: Do you regard the plaintiff as an in-

15 corrigible? 

16 THE WITNESS: If he isn't he is certainly a borderline 

17 case. 

18 THE COURT: In short, Doctor, your definition contern-

~ plates a complete abandonment of any hope, isn't that cor-

20 rect, sir? 

U THE WITNESS: Well, I have gone through this gentleman'. 

~ records completely, Your Honor, but they are--I think ~hat 
.: 

~ the psychiatrists and a lot of the correctional peopleihave 

24 

25 

. ' . 

come to the point that where--that they haven't found or 

haven 1 t resolved a method yet of how we are going to 
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rehabilitate him or what steps should be taken for him. 

2 
THE COURT: Do you think that is a breakdown of the 

individual? Or a breakdown of the prison system? 

THE WITNESS: I don't think it is a breakdown of the 

3 

4 

6 

6 

prison system. I think there would have to be a lot of 

research and everything else done, but we havenit reached 

7 a poLnt yet where we know the answer. 

8 THE COURT: What have been your studies in penology, 

9 D6ctor? 

lO THE WITNESS: In penology? 

11 THE COURT: Yes~ 

12 THE WITNESS: Only some of the books that I have read 

13 1n my experiencer-·at the institution. 

14 

15 

16 I 

THE 

THE 

don 1 t 

COURT: What are the books, Doctor? 

WITNESS: The books they .giv,e. you when 

happen to know the names, Your Honor·~ 

you come 

You get 

~ or five books that they give you. And I have read on 

~ psychiatry, the acting out and--

in. 

four 

19 THE COURT: Have you kept abreast of the current litera 

~ ture in penology? 

21 

22 

THE WITNESS: Not completely, 'no ~ir. 
-. ~ ., 

THE COURT: W~ll, to what extent? would you state to 

~ .the Court what~ if any, studies iou have made of recent 
1 "" , ..... 

24 date. 

25 THE WITNESS: Penology? 

\ 
' 
\ 

\ 
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THE COURT: Yes. 

THE WITNESS: I wouldntt say I have made any. 

THE COURT: Yet you assume to characterize an in-
-----.---~ 

dividual as an incorrigible, isn't that true? 

5 THE WITNESS: Well, from the trouble they are in all 

6 the time and everything, and the way they are not trying to 

7 help themselves to--of the opportunities which are avail-

S able to them at the institution. 

9 THE COURT: What is the ordinary caloric intake of an 

w individual, apart from the so-called incorrigible? What is 

u the average intake of the inmate of this type institution 

12 per day? 

13 THE WITNESS: It varies. It varies anywhere from about 

14---4,000 to 5,000 calories. I think most of them eat about 

'' w 4,DOO, 3,800, 4,000 ~alories. 

16 THE COURT: Why is an inmate placed upon an RD diet? 

H THE WITNESS: He is placed on that, I imagine, for a 

~ disciplinary standpoint. 

19 THE COURT: Does it have to Il\eet with your approval or 

20 :your disapproval? 

21 

22 

23 

24 

-THE WITNESS: It has to meet with my approval. I 

usually~~n they call UP- and ask--tha.~,.they want to 

~certain man on the RD dieti I look at.his re9or4 and if 

there i~ nothing in his m~dical re~ord to preclude him 

25 going on that diet, it is approved~ ·If he has· diabetes' .or 
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1 any disease he sho~ldn't be on that diet, I tell him not to 

2 put him on the diet. 

3 THE COURT: Do you maintain an office independent of 

4 the office you maintain in the institution? 

5 THE WITNESS: No sir. I am a full-time employee of the 

6 state. 

7 THE COURT: All of your hours, professional hours are 

8 spent in th~ institution? 

9 THE WITNESS: Eight hours a day, and I live on the 

10 station. I am subject to call 24 hours a day. 

11 THE COURT: You perform surgery as well as medical--

12 THE WITNESS: I have a surgeon. I do surgery myself, 

~ too. But I have another doctor with me that is a s~rgeon. 

14 THE COURT: What determinations have you made with 

15 respect to the 2,500 caloric cha~acterization as to the RD? 

16 

17 

18 

How do you know that is 2,500 calories? 

THE WITtESS: That is what it works out. I have the 

formula there if you would like to see what is in it. 

19 THE COURT: So the RD diet has nothing to do with the 

~ dietary reqtiirements? It is purely punitive, is that cor-

21 rect? 
.·,;.. 

,_ 

22 THE WITNESS: That is right. They get all of the 
! 

23 
\ 

calories th~y need, but it isn 1·t as palatab~~ as thi regu-

lar chow. 

THE COURT:. I have no further questions. 

/ 
ll 
..I 
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MR. OAKES: I have just two questions, Doctor. '------

FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. OAKES: 

Q. Do you involve yourself in treatment of the inmates 

5 other than medical treatment? 

6 A. Not ordinarily, I do not, unless the psychiatrist 

7 is not immediately available and we try to hold them over 

s until the psychiatrist--

9 Q. You are not usually involved in treatment in a con-

10 tinuing sense, insofar as criminology or penology? 

11 

12 

A. 

Q. 

Absolutely not. 

Doctor, do you treat medically the incorrigibles 

~ the same as you do the other inmates? 

14 A. Oh, absolutely. They are all human beings. 

15 FURTHER RECROSS -EXAMINATION 

16 BY MR. COHLER: 

17 Q. You don~t offer any special type of medical ap-

~ proach to a.man whom you consider to be an incorrigible, 

19 in terms of trying to use medical means to bring him back 

20 from that statu~? 

21 

22 

23 

124 

25 

A. Well, I •do a lot of counseling during the week, and_ 

I do a lot of talking and everything else w~th an ~ndividua 

I spend half of my time trying to talk: an ibfuate into doirt~ 

this for himself and trying to get th~;m to work something 

out to try to get in a program--a lot of my time is spent 
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on advice, and a lot of the inmates say all they get when 

they come to me is advice. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Doctor, I didn't mean verbally. I mean chemically. 
--------' 

Chemically? 

Yes. Chemically. Through drugs of any sort. 

What? 

Are you aware of drugs and have you ever used them 

s at the institution? 

9 A. What kind of drugs are you talking about? 

lO MR. OAKES: He is not • psychiatrist. He is a medical 

11 doctor. 

12 MR. COHLER: I understand that. I am just trying to--

13 THE WITNESS: What kind of drugs are you talking about? 

14 

15 

MR. COHLER: Q. Any drugs. 

A. We use drugs, naturally. That is our business. 

M But I mean, what kind of drugs do you refer to, please? 

17 Q. Have you ever tried to u~e any medical means what-

M soever, aside from verbal counseling, in an effort to bring 

19 a man fr<:>m what you might consider an 'incorrigible state? 

20 A. I 1 m not talking about incorrigibles, .but when they 

0 get emotionally upset, naturally we use certain tranqui-

~ lizers to try to quiet them down from their emotional state. 

~ But not for a continuous diet, not to continue them in- · 

24 definitely on it. 

25 Q. What ~ind of tear gas is available at the 
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l institution? 

A. I beg your pardon? 2 

5 Q. What kind of tear gas is available at the institu-

4 tion, if you know? 

5 A. Oh, I don't know anything about tear gas. 

6 MR. COHLER: Thank you. 

7 MR. GRANUCCI: No further questions. Your Honor, may 
-

8 the witness be excused? 

9 THE COURT: Yes~ 

W MR. COHLER: Thank you, Doctor. 

ll (Witness excused.) 

12 THE COURT: Call the next witness. We will run to 

13 4: 30. 

14 MR. GRANUCCI: Mr. Donnelly. 

15 ROBERT H. DONNELLY o 

u called as a witness by the defendants, being first duly 

~ sworn, was examined and testified as follows: 

18 THE CLERK: .state your full name and occupation to the 

19 Court. 

20 THE WITNESS: Robert Henry Donnelly, Deput~ ~uperin-

U tendent, torrection and Training Facility, Soledad. 

22 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

23 BY MR. GRAN.U:CCI: 
: ':"< • 

24 Q. Mt. Donnelly, what are your dutLes as Deputy 
' i 

~ Superinterident of the Correctional Training Facility? 
\· 
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As Deputy Superintendent, I am in overall super-

vision of the classification, treatment and disciplinary 

functions at the Central Facility. 

Q. -~ Would you narrate to us your background in cor-

rections work, pleaseo 

Ao I began working in the Department of qo~rections in 

7 March 1946 until December of 1950, at which time I was 

8 recalled to active duty with the Air Force. I returned in 

9 May-- Perhaps I should back up for a moment. 

10 Q. Would you tell us what you did when you started. 

11 Ao In March 1946 I began as a correctional officer at 

u the institution at Chino, california Institution for Men. 

15 I was promoted to sergeant in 1948. In June of 1950 I was 

u promoted to lieutenant of San Quentin. In December of '50 

15 I was recalled to active duty in the Air Force. In· May of 

W 1952, I returned to San Quentin. And in 1956, I believe 

17 June or July, I am not certain of the month, I was promoted 

18 to captain at' the institution at Tehachipi. 

~ In Septembe~ of 1959 I received promotion to Program 
! 

20 Administrator at the Correctional Tr~ining Facility, North 

21 Facility. 

~ In 1964--I am not certain of the month, sometime during 

23 

24 

25 

the summer--I came over to Central Facility as Associate 

Superintendent of Custody. 

In July of 1965 I was appointed to Deputy Superintenden 
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of central Facility. 

Q. 

A., 

Q .. 

You have held that position since that time? 

I have. 

At the Central Facility, are there a pair of wings 

known as the Adjustment Center? 

Yes sir. 

What are the purposes of the Adjustment Center? 

The ~urpos~s of the Adjustment Center are to pro-

vide us with some manner of control of the men in the 

general population who have, for some reason or another, 

gotten out of control •. 

There are four adjustment centers in the Department of 

corrections: One at--the Vocational Institution at Tracy, 

one at Folsoma one ~t San Quentin, and one at Soledad. 

To these places, gravitate the men who are adjustment 

management problems at particular institutions. 

Q. Was it the purpose of the Adjustment Center to 

permanently isolate or quarantine the inmates who are an 

adjustment problem? 

A. No sir. The purpose of the Adjustment·center is 

to attempt to work people back into the general populationo 

Q. Could you explain that in more detail, pleaseg for 

example, as to the various grades. 

~- The Adjustment Center grade I has- a very minimal 

amount of privileges. You might say they have no privileg s 
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\l!'hatsoever. Grade II have some privileges, in the purchase 

of canteen items~ radio, some books. Grade III. we have 

group counseling, recreation out in the yardu more--a ,-'---._ ___ 1 

4 greater amount of canteen that can be purchased from their 

5 funds. All in all, it is an attempt to have a graduated 

6 system of rewards and punishments in an attempt to get 

7 people to try to work themselves back into the general 

8 population. 

9 Q. Now, is there more than one type of segregation of 

w inmates? Would you say that the segregation of inmates in 

ll the Adjustment Center is administrative or punitive? 

12 We have bothG we have the isolation unit which is 

~ punitive. We have the Adjustment Center, which is ad-

14 ministrati ve. 

15 The punitive segregation, is~lation, is determined--

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

the length of time in there is determined by a Disciplinary 

Committee, and at the expiration of a sentencea the inmate 

is free to be released from there. 

The isolation section which we have in o-wing is 

generally for the men from grades I _and II who.have gotten 

into--and people from ~be,Adjustment Center, Wh?:have got­

ten into difficulty within the Adjustment Center. 

The isolation s~ction which we hav~ in x-wing .. i~ 

generally the people who have gotten into trouble within 

the general population who will be returnin~ tQ:the genera 



79 

1 population e There may be from time to time exceptionsu but 

2 this is generally our practice. 

Q. Nowe within the Isolation Row, are there certain - ......____ ___ _~ 

4 cells commonly known as quiet cells or sometimes known as 

5 strip cells? 

6 

I 7 

8 

A. 

Q;. 

A. 

Yes sire 

What is the purpose of those cells? 

The purpose·of those cells is to provide us with 

g some place where we can hold and house men who have proven 

W themselves to be a source of d~sturbance within the unite 

11 Q. Is, this within the isolation unit? 

12 This is within the isolation unito 

13 Q. Could it also provide use to inmates who have 

M proven themselves as a source of disturbance within the 

W Adjustment Center generally? 

16 A. Yes sir. 

17 Q. What kind of inmate generally is confined in the 

U strip cell or the quiet cell? 

19 A. It might be any kind. I guess several kinds of 

~ inmateso Usually we would be speaking of the person who 

21 

22 

23 

24 
',.. 

25 

has broken up the cell furnishings 8 caused flooding, beat-

ing on the bars, helping to agitate and get the rest of 

the inmates agitated and disturbed, ordinarf~y these would 

be the types of inmates o 

Q. Mr. Donnelly, what sort of approval is required fo 
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quiet cell confinement? Is this the sort of thing that 

could be done at the discretion of an individual officer? 
~ 

~ It can be done at the discretion of a bunc~ com-
~~"---·~! 

mander or the officer of the day. 

Q. Would that be subject to further approval? 

It would be subject to approval by the Disciplinary 

7 commit tee. 

8 

9 

Q. What about release from the quiet cell? 

Release from the quiet cell is usually recommended 

W by the officers on duty, one of the counselorso the sergeant 

ll on dutyo and it is generally based on the demonstrated 

~ attitude of the man within the unit. If he appears to have 

~ quieted down, we may try to get him out of the quiet cell. 

14 If I may interject--

15 Q. Certainly. Please explain your answers whenever 

16 you want to. 

17 A. Adjustment Center housing is--we refer to it as 

18 'It expensive housing.~ We are not talking there in terms of 

19 dollars and cents. The Adjustment Center-- Dr. Kunkel 

20: 

21 

referred to o-wing as having 108 cells •. : It has 144 cells, 

and because of the types of inmates th~t are housed there, 

the Department gives us a quota of 75 percent of the total 

number of cells. 

~ Ordinarilyu we have more inmates in there than 108. 

~ It is a very diff£cult situation where we are dealing with 
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difficult people in a c~owded situation. When a majority 

of the cells are occupied, it giv~s us little room to 

separate one man who may be working on the nerves of an-
~------__ _.-1 

4 othero It doesn~t give us much flexibility. 

5 The expensiveness comes about in that it is so demand-

6 ing of staff time. Frequently, the Adjustment Center ia 

7 a place of upset, a place of disturbance, a place of noise 

8 which upsets the entire institution as well as the Adjust-

9 ment center. 

10 I am afraid I have lost my thre~d of thought. 

11 Q. Mr. Donnelly, have you had any experience working 

~ in an adjustment center yourself? 

13 A. I have never worked in one. I have worked around 

M them, I have made visits to them when I was in San Quentin. 

15 one experience I had in an adjustment center was having 

w my nose receive the scar that it ha~ right now from the 

17 fist of an inmate. 

18 

19 

Q. 

A. 

How did that happen? 

A psychiatrist-- I was in charge of a third watch 

20 at San Quentin, and a psychiatrist· had been examining a ma 

n during the day and he called back later that evening. He 

said that he had made a mistake, he had left the man's 

glasses with him and h• was afraid he might inj~re himself. 

I went in with the sergeant in an attempt to get the 

man to give l.l.p his glasses. 
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:l He held onto the grille door entering the cell~ re-

z fusing to open it. The sergeant had a billy club, he 

3 tapped the man 9 s knuckles- -and I mean tapped; he · didn 1 t· 

4 

5 

8 

------- __ , 
bash him--the man left go of the cell door. and we entered. 

1 kept trying to talk to him, and suddenly I received a 

fist in the face. I grabbed for the man's armo The 

7 sergeant took the baton and hit me across the arms with the 

8 batone but we finally qot the man under control and got the 

9 glasses away from him. 

10 Q. Mr. Donnelly, do you in your present position as 

U Deputy Superintendent have aythority. over the conditions 

L2 of confinement in the Adjustment Center, particularly the 

13 quiet cells? 

t4 A. Yes, I doo 

t5 Q. That authority has been in existence since July of 

L6 1965? 

17 A. That is correct, sir. 

lS Q. Pursuant to that authority-- Let me rephrase the 

19 question. 

~ Have you exercised that authority to effectuate any 

ll changes in the conditions of the quiet cells? 

A. I believe not,· exc.~_pt those on instructions from 

~ the Superintend~nt. 

~ Are conditions in the quiet cells different 

than they were in July of 196·5? 



1 

2 

5 

4 

00465 
83 

MR. COHLER: Your Honor, I am going to object to that 

as ambiguousQ I think we ought to be clear on conditions. 

There have been many different kinds of conditions. 

.MR o GRANUCCI ~ This is a general question, counsel, 

5 leading into particulars. 

6 THE COURT~ You may answer. 

7 THE WITNESS: The conditions that are different are the 

8 presence of plastic ~ashbowls and basins, towels, soap, 

9 toothbrushes, these kinds of furnishings. 

w I am sorry, not toothbrushes. The towels, soap and the 

u plastic water basins. 

12 Did you participate--

13 Excuse me. One other thing. The automatic flush-

u 1ng devices for the toilets. 

15 Q. Did you participate in the decision to install or 

M to furnish these towels, soap, pitchers, water basins? 

17 I was in on the discussion with the Superintendent. 

18 Q. At the time you participated in the discussions 

H with the Superinfendent, were you aware of the existence 

20 of this ~articul'ar lawsuit? 

21 A, ' I belie've I was I yes sir. 
' :1 .• -. 

22 Q. ; 
.. 

Were you awa're that· you were a defendant in the 
~ . ·. 

23 ~as~? · 
.. ' 

24 I' don't beTieve:.....: I am sorry. I don't know. I 

25 don 1 t know WhJ:!ther I kpew it at that time or not. I would 
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l have guessed that I was. 

2 Q. was the decision to effectuate these changes 

5 motivated by the existence of the lawsuit? 
·-- __ J 

Well-- This is ~ifficult for me to ~nswer. I 4 

5 don 1 t believe it was. 

6 Q. Answer to the best of your abilitys and you can 

7 explain your answer. 

8 I think it wa~ more-- T~ere are always difficultie 

9 in an adjustment center. We had been trying-- We have 

w been trying to budget personnel. We have been attempting 

ll to find ways and means in which the personnel there can be 

~ better employed. I think this was the reason for it. I 

15 am not sure. It-- I couldn't say unequivocally this was 

14 the reason. 

15 Q. would you say. Mr. Donne~ly, that these changes are 

M permanent? Or are they rather on a teniative or experi-

17 mental basis? 

18 Everything that you do in an adjustment center is 

~ more or less experimental. We have to see whether or not 

20 the thing works. 

21 

22 

·penology or any of the behavioral sciences-~ as far a's 
l 

·r know~ are not exact. They ·are comparatively new'." I 

25 ' don ° t believe anyone knows t_he answer. ~I certainly doni~ 
'--' 

24 

25 

pretend to know the answer.· I am afraid of people who 

the answer. I think it is more a matter of attempting 
I 

t~ 

' 
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rather than to generalize that such 

.

l 

1 

work with individuals, 

ana such a thing is going to work. 
2 

I 
J I 

we may find difficulties with these plastic objects 

wi!:.h certain indivLdualso _____ Certainly if a man is suicidal, 

we would certainly find difficulty with a towel. 

But as I say. I think these things should attempt to be 

7 handLed on an individual basis, to the best of our current 

8 J< now ledge and in the best of our j udgrnent. 

9 Whether the changes are permanent or not--if they 

w appear to work, they are permanent. If they appear to 

u tr1ng other problems, greater problems, then they will be 

12 done away with. 

13 

14 

15 

l6 

17 

~. 

Q.. 

Ao 

Q. 

And you will try something else? 

Yes sir. 

Mr. Donnelly, do you know one William Wells? 

I do, sir. 

Based on your experience, could you tell us why 

~ an individual of Mr. Wellsi apparently young age would be 

W confined in a place like the Adjustment Center? 

20 My experi~nce with--particularly with young Youth 

21 Authority wards ~"tlo come to the Department of Corrections 
; 

a has been that t~ey have been severe management prob~ems in 

n Youth Authority institutions. If they were not, the Youth 

24 

25 

Authorities would hold onto them and they would not be sen 

to the Department of Corrections for handlingo 
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Generally~ when I was at North Facility and we would 

see a 16-year old come into the North Facility, my first 

reaction, and as I repeated it to the other staff at the 
--------__.! 

time 6 was "We've got trouble," because we had usually a 

young man who had to attempt to prove himself to the rest 

6 of the inmate population 0 He was .usually afraid, but in 

7 his fear, he could hurt people 0 

a in the handling. 

This was a problem for us 

9 Q. Now, Mr. Donnelly, I want to ask you about the use 

10 of tear gas. 

11 stitution? 

Is there more than one type of use at the in-

12 A. Yes sir. 

13 Q. Let's put it this way, available for use at the 

14 institution o 

15 A. 

16 Q. Would you explain the types. 

17 A. The tear gas commonly referred to is chloracetophen 

18 CN, which may be in a gas ,billy. 

19 

20 

Q. 

A. 

A what? 

A gas billy~ wh.~ch is a shortened billy club, I 

21 would say about ten indhes long, which fires a gas pro-

~ jectile: or in grenade~, which throws the gas widely: or in 

~ a canister, which has ~ valve at the top which can squirt 

24 gas into the cell. 

25 Q. Would that be like an aerosol can? 
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We have presently a new device. The name of it 

iS Mace-- I am not acquainted with. the chemical ~akeup; it 

tas been approved by the Department for use in .institutionsc 

whiCh works to cause tearing when it strikes the skinQ If 

1 t were to be directed at clothing, there would be no ef-

6 feet~ However, when it hits the skin, the body temperature 

7 causes a react1on which causes tearing. This is in an 

8 :ttomizer-type--

9 Q. .Mro Donnelly, can reconcile the use of tear gas 

w with accepted notions of humane treatment? 

11 

12 

l3 

A.o 

Q. 

I certainly can. siro 

How is that? 

I have had-~known people 6 officers, and inmates, 

U who have been severely injured when tear gas was not used 

~ because brute force had to be used to subdue a man acting 

L6 violently. 

t7 The use of tear gas would usually subdue a man so that 

~ he is willing to accept restraint. The effect of tear gas 

19 will wear off within a period of' time 0 It is not something 

ao 

21 

~-

that--not something we take pride i~ doing, but· I h:ave 

known an officer to be serverely h~rt by use of an iron ro 
< 

,, . 
t.aken ·out of an inmate 1 s bed and tbe officere in an attempt 

~P to go in with a mattress to overpower the inmate, stumbled 
' 

ove~ ariother officer who was helping him, the mattress earn 

down giving the inmate a clear blow at the officer•s head 
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l 
w1 th this steel rod~ 

z with the use of tear gas, if tear gas is put in a cell, 

the inmate is told to back up to the dooru and he backs up 

1 4 eo the door, the handcuffs are put on him, and he is got 

5 under control. 

There is also so~ething else in this, I think. That is 

that the inmates feel they need to save face. They have to 7 ... 

8 show that they are men. They are going to fight. But it 

9 seems generally accepted in the inmate culture, at least 

w 1 t has been my experience, that tear gas is overpowering so 

u there is no need to put up further disturbance once the 

~ tear gas has been used. I think this also helps to cut 

~ down on the difficulties. 

14 Q. In other words, an inmate confronted with the use 

W of tear gas could submit to auth~rity without jeopardizing 

~ his standing with other inmates. 

17 This is my point. 

18 Q.: Now, is the use of tear gas a matter for the in-. 

~ dividual discretion of duty officerse or officers on duty? 

20 The term "duty officer," we frequently·use to mean 

m the officer of the day. The officer of the day does have 

~ authority to permit the use of tear gas. 

23 

24 

Q. What abou~,an indivielual correctiq_nal officer? 

An individual correctional officer does not have 

t25 the authority. 



89 

l 
Q. What does an officer have to do when he is con-

fronted with a situation where he feels tear gas is ap-

propriate? 

He would have to contact tn~ watch commander~ our 

5 practice is that the watch commander would contact the 

6 officer of the day or the Superintendent or myself, or the 

7 Program Administrator, the Captain, someone else in 

8 authorityo 

9 

10 

Howevero the--the watch lieutenant has to have a cer-

tain amount of freedom, because sometimes things happen 

u very fast in an institutiono He has to have the authority 

l2 to use this o If there is time, he is expected to consult 

13 with someone else. 

u For examplef if it were a question of a man in a cell, 

15 he would be expected to contact ~yself, the Program Ad-

~ ministrator, or the officer of the day. 

17 However, if it were a question of rackus situation in 

~ a wing, he would have to act right then and would not be 

19 able to wait o 

00 If an ipmate were attempting to _cut himselt or so~ethin 

U like this in a cell, he might have to go in with tear gas 

~ without getti~g prior approval. 

23 

24 

25 

Q .• Mro Donnelly, what is a 103B record? 

A 103• record would be the-Associate Warden and 

Custody Card 0 It is one of a series of cards that is used 
,_ --
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within the Department for various purposes, various depart-

xnents a The top of the card usually shows some sociological 

data, the crime, the length of sentence. The foot of the 

card shows the man 1 s work assignment. It also shows his 

housing assignments, classification actions, the actions of 

the Adult Authority. The rear of the card will usually 

reflect his disciplinary record, counseling, this kind of 

thing. 

Q. Does a 103B usually reflect housing status? 

Yes sir, it would show the cell to which a man was 

assigned. 

Q. I show you one ~P the pages in an appendix to . L 
Plaintiff 1 s 3. Would you please describe this document. 

The document that we have is a CDC form, California 

w Department of Corrections Form 115, report of violation of 

~ 1nstitution rules. 

17 It shows the institution at which the report is being 

~ made, it is directed to the warden/Superintendent. At the 

19 top it shows the name of the reporting officer who charges 

W an inmate with violation of the rules a~~ regulations, and 

fi then lists the rules and regulations which ~ave been 

22 violated, gives the date and the time, then a brief summar 

23 of the action,. the signature ani:! place of_ work of the 

M officer. Belo~ this is a line, approximately 9ne-half the 

25, Pa<;re, I would think, which lists the plea, of the inmate, 
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l the findings and disposition arrived at by the hearing 

z officer or the Disciplinary Committee. 

5 Q. Mr o Donnel-l.;y_,_, would you please read the date on th t 

4 form? 

5 The date on this form is Friday, July 9 1965, 9:50 

7 Q. Would you please read the name of the inmate ac-

8 cused. 

9 The name of the inmate, as given here, is nJordan, 

10 A-46604." 

11 Q. NowQ directing your attention to the bottom of the 

12 page, I show you the initials "RHD.,vt 

13 

-14 Q. 

Those are my initials. 

What do those indicate? 

l5 These initials indicate ~hat I at sometime--! donvt 

~ have the date here--but sometime following the hearing of 

17 the committee, saw this ana as the Chief Disciplinary 

18 Officer, noted the fact of the action. 

Q. Does that mean that you approved it? 

It does. 

19 

20 

21 Q. Do yqu have the. pow~r .. :to disapprove disciplincd:y ,., 
. ... .:" 

action? 
,. 

Q. Do you have the power to reduce the penalty? 
..... {;!, 

A, I do. ~··· 
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Q,. Do you review Disciplinary Committee actions in the 

general cours.e of your duties? 

A. I no longer .dQ.~~ At the time of the period in ques-

tiono I dido 

Q,. When you review a disciplinary--during that period 

of timeu was the disciplinary report, the 115, the only 

thing you had befo :r:e you? 

No. I aiso would have a copy of the 103B card that 

we have just described. 
91 

10 Q,. In other words, you would be aware of the inmate's 

ll housing at the time he was disciplined. 

12 A. Yes s i r • 

u ~ And also at the time you reviewed the report? 

14 A. Yes sir. 

15 Q. Are the 103B forms kept current? 

16 A. I don't. understand. 

17 Q. In other words-- In other words, let me rephrase 

18 the question •. 

19 When a man's housing is changed in the institution, 

20 is that change noticed on his 103B form? 

21 A. 
' 2 /, 

Yes sir, 'one of the· purposes o'f the 103B card is to 

~ h~p us to find an inmate either at his work location or i 

23 his housing. 

24 

25 

Q. 

A. 

How quickly would the change be noted on the 103B? 

It would be noted withiri 24 hours. 
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Q. Within 24 hours. 

A, Yes o 

Q. So then would it be correct to say that at the 

time you approved the Disciplinary Committee action re-

lating to Mr. Jordan that accused him of violation of pri-

son rules on July 9 1965, you were aware of where he was 

housed? 

Q. In other words, you knew he was housed in a quiet 

10 cell? 

ll I don•t have a personal remembrance of this parti-

12 cular action o but the information was there. And now I 

13 don 1 t remember what was there under the findings of dis-

a position, sir. But that statement might have told me some-

15 thing o 

16 Q. I show this to you. 

17 MR. COHLERg The same date? 

18 MR. GRANUCCI: The same date. 
.-

19 THE WITNESS: I don't know if I would have known--

:zo whether I would have chf$cked the 103B card to tind out if .. 

. 21 Mr, Jordan were in fact , in a quiet cell. 

22 MR. GRANUCCI: Q. But it was available to you? 

A. It was available, yes. 

MR. GRANUCCI: would this be an approp~iate time to 

adjourn for the day? 



5 

I 6 

7 

8 

9 

lO 

ll 

12 

13 

14 

15 

18 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

94 00176 
TBE COURT: Very well. We will resume for further 

hearing in this matter at 11:00 o'clock tomorrow morning. 

MRo GRANUCClg 11:00 o 1 clock. Very good, Your Honor. 
~--.. __ . ---' 

MR. COBLER: Will we be going throughout the day? 

There would be an afternoon meeting as well? 

TBE COURT: Yes. 

Mr Jordan is remanded to custody. 

(Whereupon, the hearing was adjourned until 11:00 

olclock acm., Tuesday, August 16 1966.) 

--ooo--
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TUESDAYo AUGUST 16 1966 - 11:00 A.M. 

THE CLERK: 44309 and 44786 Robert Charles Jordan, Jr. 

Go Jo Fitzharris, et al, further evidentiary hearingo VS, 

---------- --' MRo COHLER~ Ready for the plaintiff and petitioner, 

your Honor o 

MRo GRANUCCI~ Ready for the defendant, Your Honoro 

May we call Mr Donnelly, please. 

ROBERT H. DONNELLY 0 

recalled as a witness in pehalf of the defendants, having 

10 been previously sworn, resumed the stand and testified 

ll further as follows: 

lZ THE CLERK: Will the witness please restate his name 

13 for the record. 

14 THE WITNESS: Robert H. Donnelly. 

15 DIRECT EXAMINATION (Resumed) 

16 BY MRo GRANUCCI: 

17 Q. Mr. Donnelly, I believe on direct examination yes-

18 terday you testified that you participated in a decision 
- . 

19 to introduce some changes into the quiet cells: water, 

20 towels, and the like. 

21 Do you remember what precipitated ~hose changes or wha 
,· 

22 instituted the discussion? ?/' 

23 

24 

I believe the discussion--! b~lieve, now, the dis-

cussion was as c:t result of an inquiry from the Adminis-

25 trator- -the Youth and Adult Corrections Agency, Mr. Richar 
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~cGeee whom I understand had been~ by a member A. J'' 

2 
of the California Supreme Court. 

As I understand it, Mr. Jordan had submitted a, I be-
-----__..1 

lieve it was an application for a writ, to the California 
4 

ol supreme court. It was at this time, since we--since it had 

6 

7 

gotten the interest of a Justice of the Supreme Court, we 

decided we had better take a second look at what was hap-

8 pening in the Adjustment Center. 

9 Q. was that before you became a defendant in this case? 

lO A. Yes siro 

ll Q. was it before there was any awareness that Jordan 

12 had a case in the federal court? 

lS MRo COHLER: Excuse me, Your Honor. 

14 "Any awareness." Would you limit that, please, to the 

15 witness v awareness? 

16 ' MRo GRANUCCI: Q. Was this before you were aware that 

17 Jordan had a case in the federal court? 

18 

l9 

A. 

Q,. Was this before you were aware that you were a 

20 defendant? 

21 A, Yes sir. 

22 Q. Can you_ pin down in time the period when those 

23 suggestions started? 

24 A, I believe it was in the winter of 1964-65. 
lil 

25 Q,. 1 64- 1 65? 
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l 
Yes sir. 

or q65-q66? 

I am sorry. Winter of 1965- 1 66. 
-~-~ 

MR" GRANUCCig Counsel? 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

6 BY MRo COHLER~ 

7 Q. Mr. Donnelly, can you pin down those discussions 

8 any more precisely than the winter of 1 65- 1 66, please? 

9 I donqt believe so, Mr. CohlerG I spent some time 

lO thinking about this yesterday, as a result of my testimony 

u here, trying to remember when these discussions took place. 

12 Q. Letqs go into it a little more thoroughly, and mayb 

lS your recollection will be refreshed. Do you recall how 

14 many discussions there were looking toward changes? 

15 THE COURT: And with whom. 

w MR. COBLER: Yes. I was going to go to that next, Your 

17 Honor. 

18 Q. And with whom, at the same time, if you wish. 

19 I would believe that there might have been three or 

20 four such discussions. 

21 Q. Wijth whom? And if it varied from time to time, 

22 please so state. 

23 A, The Superintendent, Mr. Fitzharris, I believe Mr. 

24 Swagerty, I believe Mr. Johnston. 

~ ~ Were these face-to-face discussions in some6ne's office? 
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~· Yes, I think that they were-- Some of the dis-

cussionso I believe-- I believe one or two of them were in 

the superintendent 9 s office, -and I believe there were some 
- ------____.) 

informal discussions in Mr. Swagertyvs office. 

Q. can you recall whether or not the earlier dis-

cussions were in the Superintendent 1 s office? Or Mr. 

7 1 swagerty us office? 

8 I would .believe that they were in the Superinten-

9 dent's office. 

lO Q. Over what period of time did these three or four 

11 discussions take place? I am asking for length of time, 

12 not dates. 

I would think they might have taken place over a 

14 period of three or four months. 

15 Q. Three or four months. 

16 A. Yes s i r . 

H ~ Was it after the final such of the three or four 

18 discussions that an actual decision was made to make these 

19 changes? 

20 Wellu let me back up a little bit. Perhap~ this would 

21 be helpful. 

22 Did there become a time when it was c;ctually decided, 

23 "Now we will go ahead?n · ~ 

24 A. Yes sir. I can't--I can't pl.ce that. .There 
'- .: 

25 o~yiously had to be a time when a decision was made that 



99 00481. 
something was to be done. 

~ 2 ~ were you present at a confexence when such a 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

lll 

decision was made, a final decision was made to move for-

ward? 

Noo As I remember these discussions, they were 

more in the nature of what--what can we do? 

pening here? 

What is hap-

I don~t remember whether I was present at a hearing or 

a meeting at which it was definitely decided this is what 

'We would do o 

Q. Were there any written memoranda written to anyone, 

~ including yourself, stating that a decision had been made 

l3 that such and such would. happen? 

14 A. No. To clarify, these were, as I remember, more 

15 or less informal meetings. They were not any formal meet-

16 ings called specifically for this. 

17 I correct myself there. I think the first two meeting 

18 might have been called for this purpose, to make us, as 

19 members of the staff, aware of the interest that .Mr. McGee 

20 and the messages that he ·-had passed on, ·and that this was 

21 more in the nature of, !1 Let 1 s take a look at what we can 
... ,,, 

22 do. 11 

23 

24 

25 

Q. The first two meetings which you recall as being 

directed expressly towards this discussion of this matter, 

~ you recall approximately how long each of those 
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lasted? 

No sire 

Q. A matter of minutes? Hours? Days? 

No 6 I wouldn•t-- I would guess--

Please don't guess; estimate. 

All right. I will estimate that it would be a 

matter of minutes, but I don 1 t have that accurate a re-

8 
collection of a. particular meeting~ 

9 Q.. would you say minutes approaching an hour? And I 

don 1 t want you to go any further than your recollection 
10 I 

11 will perrni t, but in that range? 

12 It is an estimate~ I would think somewhere betwee 

13 a half hour and an hour. 

14 Q. Your best recollection was, Mr. Donnelly, that Mr. 

15 Fitzharris, Mr. Swagerty, Mr. Jo'l:lnston and yourself were 

16 present. Did each of you gentlemen participate in the dis-

17 cussion? 

18 A. Yes. 

19 Q. Who started the discussion when you were called to 

20 the office? c ·.' 

21 

23· 

24, 

Q. 

Q. 

25 recall. 

'· 

I believe the Superintendent did. 

Would you recall, as b~st you can, what he said? 
,l . 

I have a very inaccurate or ver~ fuzzy notion~ 

Let's back up a little more and see if you can 
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l 

2 

3 

4 

y 0 u stated I believe, on cross-examination, that there 

5 

8 

9 

10 

had been a communication from Mra McGee relating--com-
~~ 

munication -£Z"em him~ a Justice of the Supreme Court of 
-----·-' 

californiao 

A" Yes sir. 

Q. How did you become aware of that? 

A, From the Superintendent. 

Q. At this first meeting? 

A, Yes o 

Q. That was, in part at least, a substance of what 

11 you were told at the beginning, is that correct? 

12 A, Yes. 

~ ~ What was it that Mr. McGee wrote? Did he write? 

14 or did he talk? Do you know? 

~ ~ Were you shown a letter of any sort? 

17 A, No sir. 

W MRo COBLER: Counsel, a little out of order, I wonder 

19 

20 

21 

22 

~3 

if 

to 

you would take 

check his file 

MR. GRANUCCI: 

MR. COHLER: 

Q. What was 

it upon yourself to ask Mr. .Fitzharris 

and see if he ean find such a letter. 

Very '1ell, counsel. 1,/ ,, 
' 

Thank you. 

the 
\ 

of what Fitzharris said sub.stance Mr. 

24 that Mr. McGee had informed him, Mr. Fitzharris~ of? 

25 The substance, as I remember it, was that Mr. 
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made certain.charges about the operation of the 

CenterQ 

3 
MRo OAKES~ Objection, Your Honor" I think we are 

4 
getting into double hearsay. The letter would be the best 

5 , evidenceo 

6 
THE COURT~ Overruled. 

7 THE WITNESS: And that-- I am losing my thread of 

8 thought again. Could you repeat the question? 

9 MRo COHLER: Q. Certainly" Would you try to tell the 

10 court as best you can recall it, what Mr. Fitzharris told 
I 

11 you at this first meeting that he had been told by Mro 

12 McGee, told or written to him, however it may have been? 

13 As I remember it, Mr. Fitzharris had been told tha 

14 a Justice of the Supreme Court, California Supreme Court, 

15 had made inquiries of Mr. McGeeo _in essence: What is the 

l6 situation in the Adjustment Center of Soledad. 

17 Q. Mr. Fitzharris questioned each of you as to what 

18 the situation was? Or how did it proceed from there? 

19 I think, as I remember it, the Superintendent was 

20 asking us, as the staff directly concerned, to· take a look 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

to see if anythin,g was ou~. ,of the way. 

Q. Did you do so? 

Wellu it was my instruction and the instruction of 

the Superintendent to- -Mr. Johnston and Mr. Swagerty, to 

do so. 
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Q. was there a second meeting, perhaps, to report the 

findings as to whether or not anything was out of order? 

I don°t have a recollection of that--
-·------- ___ ! 

Q. well, did any of you-- Excuse me. 

I don 1 t have a recollection of the substance of 

the various meetings. 

Q. As I understand it, Mr. Donnelly, the Superinten-

dent had asked the gentlemen present, including yourself, 

to see if anything might be out of order in response to a 

request from his superior, Mr. McGee. 

was there a time when any report was made to Mr. Fitz-

harris as to whether or not anything was out of order? 

I believe that Mr. Swagerty reported directly to 

14 the Superintendent. 

15 Q. Subsequently, in the course of these three or four 

18 hearings, it was decided that changes ought to be made? 

17 Is that correct? 

18 Yes sir, I believe that is true. 

19 Q. . Mr. ,Donnelly, you testified on direct examination-

20 THE COURT: When you speak of th.ese "changes,llt will yo 

21 be more specific 6 counsel, with respect to the changes, if 

22 

23 

24 

25 

any. 

MRo COHLER: ~ Mr. Donnelly, I would like to ask you 

if you have not been referr~ng to the following changes in 

your testimony, both on direct and cross -examinat.ion so fa g 
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' The installation of an automatic flushing device in the 
l I 

2 
isolation strip or quiet cell area, the installation of 

plastic washbasins, the installation of plastic water 
-------' 

4 pitchers~ the availability of towels, the availability of 

5 1 soap, and the availability of toothbrushes? 

6 I believe more specifically we were speaking of 

7 the flushing devices, the pl:.astic devices o Frankly, I 

8 donut know who made the decision about the towels and soap 

9 and this kind of thing o I believe that was done by the 

10 staff of the Adjustment Center itself~ 

111 Q. Your testimony, then, has been directed to changes 

H 1 ncluding, at least, the automatic flusher, the plastic 
I 

l3 war.er basin and the plastic water pitcher, is that correct? 

14 

15 

16 

17 

Q. 

Q. 

Yes. 

I didnit hear your answer. 

Yes siro 

You were asked on direct examination regarding the 

18 use of tear gas~ Is it part of your function in your pre-

19 sent office as Deputy Superintendent to, upon occasion, 

20 authorize the use :of tear gas? 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

It is. 

Q. When are you supposed.to be asked to authorize the 

use of tear gas? l' Can it ever be used without your authori-

zation? 

Ao Yes sir o It can be used without--it can be used 
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on the authorization of the watch commander in a riotous 

situation when time is of the essence. 

Q. Except for an emergency such as a riotous situation 

where time is of the essence, would you if you were on dut 

be the person who ought to authorize the use of tear gas? 

Not necessarily. 

Q. I didn't mean to imply that you ought to authorize 

8 it in every s.ituation that it is requested. But you are 

9 

10 
I 
rn 

12 

the person they would ask? 

Not necessarily. Mr. Swagerty might be asked, the 

captain might be asked or Mr. Johnston might be asked. 

Q. On how many occasions have you been asked to 

13 authorize the use of tear gas that you can recall, Mr. 

14 Donnelly? 

15 Over the period 6f time since I have been at 

16 Central Facility? 

17 Q. would you break that down for the Court first into 

18 those periods of time when you were in a position where 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

you would have been asked as the person who had authority. 

to authorize the use of tear gas. 

A, Well, I have had the authority to authoriz~· the 

use of tear gas since the summer of 1964. 

Q. At that time you were in what position, sir? 

~ Associate Superintendent of custody. 

Q. As best you can recall, Mr. Donnelly, since the 
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summer of 1964 when you became Associate Superintendent of 

custodYt and to date, how many times have you been asked 

to authorize the use of tear gas? 
---- _J 

It would be-- That is a very difficult question 
f 

for me to even estimate, Mr. Cobler. In the fall of 1964, 

as r believe has already been testified to, for a period 

f some six weeks we had a riotous--not a riotous situation. c 

but we had q situation in which the entire institution was 

seriously disturbed. I had authorized the use of tear gas, 

1 don v t know how many times during that period" I would 

say that--

Let e s ~or the Q. Perhaps we can help you. 

13 moment the riot of 1964, which was an apparently extra-

u ordinarily difficult time period. Excluding that period o 

15 time, would the number. of times ¥ou have been asked to 

16 authorize the use of tear gaa be 10, 20, 50, 100, 1, 000 ~ 

17 what? 

18 A. I would say somewhere on the order of 20. 

19 Q. Do you recall any of those occasions, approximate! 

20 20a in which you did· not· authorize the use of tear gas 

21 when it ~was requested of you? 

~ ~ I donHt recall pot authorizing the use •. I do--it 

23 

24 

25 

seems to me that on a few occasions, :and this might be on 

the order of three or four, that I had ask-ed fo1r --after 
.. 

hearing a description .. of the situationa that I had ·asked .. : 
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someone else to either go in and take a look to see what 

the situation was to see if the situation required the use 

of tear gas. and I have myself on, perhaps. three or four 

occasions gone personally to the area. 

Q. Mr. Donnelly, you used the term nsituation requir-

lng the use of tear gas. til Would you please tell the Court 

all situations which you can think of based on your ex-

perience. 

Perhaps it would be best to begin with the in-

d1 vidual situation. 

The situation of an inmate within his cell who is 

creating a disturbance which is beginning to cause unrest 

throughout the rest of the wing--

Q. Agitation? 

AgitationQ 

16 --a situation where an inmate within his cell is 

17 threatening to. harm himself and is armed--

18 Q. He is armed? 

19 A, Welle he might be armed ,,with--
'• 

20 Q. Anything he could hurt ~imself 
,. 

with? 

21 A, Yes sir~ 

~ --a situation in which a group of inmates refuses to 

23 disperse Q 

24 Q. That wouldnit be inmates within their cell. would 

25 it? 
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No, nos this would not. 

--a situation in which a group of inmates would be 

refusing to lock up and were threatening the staffo 
___________ } 

'~ .. Agains that is not an inmate within his cella is it? 

Right. It is not 6 sir$ 

Q .• Without taxing your memory and your experience, 

7 would you carefullya please, tell me all situation regard-

8 1 ng an inm~te already within his cell? I think you have 

9 mentioned twoo disturbance or agitation and threatening to 

w harm himselfo Can you think of anything else? 

11 Yes o I can think of a situation where a man has 

~ been ordered to move from his cell and he refuses to do soa 

13 Q. I would like you to be very careful and see if you 

u can think of any others regarding an irimate already within 

15 his cell. 

16 A.o At the moment, no sir. 

17 Q. Mr. Donnelly, I take it that if an inmate is with-

~· 1n his cell, that tear gas should not be used merely to 

H enforce an order, unless that order relates to agitation 

~ or threatening harm to the inmate by 'himself oi moving o~ 

21 the. inmate to another cell?~ 

22 

23 

24 

A, 

Q. 

I would guess that was accura:"te o 

In other words 5 there are many orders that must be 

given in the course of running an lnstitutiono not all of 

Which are·of such a serious nature that they ought to be 
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1 1 enforced by the use of tear gas? 

Right 0 s~re 2 

j 

A.u 

Q. If an ~nmate were not thought to be using his 
---------' 

4 c:lothing or about to use his clothing to harm himself o 

5 would an order to remove his clothing call for enforcement 

6 by the use of tear gas? 

7 It. could, siro 

8 Q .• That would be a new situation. Would you expla~n 

9 that, and why you haven 1 t included it in your previous 

10 statements? 

11 MRo . GRJ\NUCCl: Object to counselis "previous statemento" 

~ I think he stated it could or couldn•t beo "could be or 

~ couldn 1 t be" was included in his previous statement, de-

14 pend:t.ng on the circumstances. 

15 MRa COHLER: I will break it down and start at the be-

16 girming a 

17 Q. I believe you just testified that there could be 

~ t1mes when it would be proper to use tear gas to enforce 

~ an order for an inmate to remove his clothing even where 

W the inmate was not thought to be about to use his clothing 

21 tc hurt himself o Now, when could and when couldn°t that 

22 be the proper occasion for the use of tear gas? 

23 Well, one obvious example, I think o wo.uld be in 

M the search of a man. Weapons can be conc~aled on a persone 

25 and in removing a man from his cell it might be hecessary. 
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to have him divest himself first so-~to make certain that 

he didngt have the weapons on him. 

I think of one situation in which--at the institution--

in which a riotous situation had occurred, agitation within 

cells, breaking, if I remember correctly, of toilets or at 

least flooding the tiers, burning clothing~ sheets and 

7 this kind of thing. In an attempt to control it, we·order d 

8 inmates stripped and they remained in their own cells" I 

9 believe tear gas was authorized in this instance. 

10 

11 

12 

Q.. 

Q.. 

I donit want to interrupt you. 

Noe I am through. 

If I understand you correctly, tear gas is not use 

l3 as a punitive instrument. It is used for particular pur-

14 poses, more in the nature of control? 

15 

16 

A. 

Q. 

Yes sir .. 

Particularly, it is used to get someone out of 

17 where he is to some place else? Is that correct? 

18 

19 

A. 

Q.. 

Usually that is true, yes sir. 

Would you please tell the Court, .Mr. Donnelly, 

20 what you know about the dangerous nature of tear gas? 

21 Whether it j,s:'? Whether it isn 1 t? 

.MR. GRANUCCI g Objection to the form of the question" ,"' 22 

23 It assumes something not. in· .evidence, that tear gas is 

24 • dangerous" 

. MR. COHLERg I asked whether it is, whether it isni·to · 
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MRa GRANUCCI g With that qualification, I will withdra 

the objection o 

MRo COHLER~ Q. Do you understand the question? 

Yes" 

Q. Please go aheado 

I believe there are some few people who are very 

8 allergic to tear gas o I don't know--I think I have run 

9 across~e such person in my experience in the Department. 

10 other than that, I believe it is the most humane way of 

ll moving a man, because without it physical force might have 

12 to be used o 

13 Q. And that would be dangerous for both the moving an 

14 the moved per son, wouldn 9 t it? 

15 Yes sir. 

16 Q. You mentioned an instance where a man may be 

H allergic to tear gas. Are you aware of any records with 

~ regard to each inmate as to whether or not he is allergic 

19 to tear gas? 

20 

21 Q. 

No sire 

Is any such information avai~able to you when you 

22 make a decis.Lon whether or not to authorize the use of tea 

23 gas? 

No sir. 
125 Q. That would have to be discovered afterwards, if he 
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turned out to be allergic? 

Yes siro 

Q. Aside from an inmate who may be allergic, and of 
-~ which you wouldn%t have any knowledge at the time you 

authorized it, are there any other situations where tear 

6 gas may be dangerous? 

7 I would think that tear gas would be dangerous if, 

8 for example. a man·· had a heavy cold. I donit know this. 

9 ThiS would simply be an assumption on my part. 

10 Q. Can tear gas have dangerous characteristics when 

u used in closed or close quarters, as opposed to an open 

12 area? 

lS 

14 

Ao 

Q. 

I would suppose, yeso 

Even more so in an area as small as a quiet or 

15 strip cell? 

16 Yes, I suppose. 

17 Q .. Even more so if the flaps in the door were closed 

~ in that area as small as a quiet or strip cell? 

19 

20 

Ao 

Q. 

Yes sir .. 

Do you have any kriowledge as.to how da~gerous that 

U would have become? . .r· 

~ MRo GRANUCCI; Your Honor, can that question be 

23 

24 

25 

limited to the quantity or the relation of the quantity of 

gas involved? I take it the danger could be proportionat~. 

MRo COHLER~ I will incorporate counsel 1 s requesta 
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Q. You may answer fully, pleaseQ l 

2 In my experience. I have known of no one who was 

3 permanently damaged by the use of tear gaso 

4 

6 

Q. -----·--' At your institution. 

Wello even at other institutions. 

6 of anyone" 

I haven~t heard 

7 Q .• If you had heard of someone dying from the use of 

8 tear gas in closed quarters. would that affect your exer-

9 cising your discretion in authorizing the use of tear gas? 

10 

ll M.Ra COBLER~ Your Honor, this may be a little out of 

12 order o I want to proceed carefully. 

~ counsel this is a Xerox of an opinion of the Court of 

14 Claimsu New York, 1961, found at 222 New York Supp. 2d 596. 

W It involves the death of a person from the use of tear 

16 gas in a closed room by law enforcement officials. 

17 M.Ro GRANUCCI ~ Objectione Your Honor. I will object to 

18 the opinion as hearsay as far as the facts reported therein. 

U THE COURTg You might ask Mr. Donnelly whether the 

.20 
. ~ 

opinion or the subject matter or the contents thereof was 

1 ever directed to his attention. ' -, 

MRo COHLER: That is what I propose to do. 

THE COURT: You may do that. 

MR. COHLER: Q. Mr. Donnelly, was it ever brought to 

your attention that in 1961 in a court in New York, there 
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l had been a lawsuit growing out of the death of a man from 

2 the use of tear gas in closed quarters by law enforcement 

3 officeJr:s? 

4 

5 Q. 

-----·-__/ 
1 donut remember it, sir. 

You donut remember being told or not being told 

6 about it? 

7 Yes sir~ 

8 Q. Is there more than one kind of tear gas, to your 

9 knowledge? 

10 Wello there are various gases which are usedo whic 

11 have been used. There are sickening gases. There are 

H nerve gases, tear gases, as we understand them, and this 

~ latest item that we are using, which is called Mace, 

14 M - a - c - e - o 

15 Q. Do you know the chemical_composition? 

16 I do not. It reacts with the bodily heat, and our 

H 1nstructions are it is to be used on the face. 

~ ~ Did you have that particular Mace available in the fal 

19 of 1965? 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

No sir. 

~ How recently have you had that available? 

A. This bas been approved by the Department of Correc 

tions, I believe within the last four or five monthso 

Q. Let me restrict your attention for the moment to· 

the fall of 1965, particularly around Thanksgiving timeo 
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WhiCh types of gases which were available for your use, to 

your knowledge, were there at the institution? 

The type we have is, I believe, dhlor~cet6pheaone. 

Q. Known as CSDN? 

No sir. I believe it is CN. 

Q. CN. Thank you. 

And this would come both--depending on the manu-

facturer--would be in either a liquid or a powder form. 

But as far as I know, this is the only type of tear gas we 

have had. 

Q. Is that type of tear gas found in different types 

of containers in use at the institution? 

Ao Yes sir. 

Q. Will you describe that for the Court, please. 

Ao There are various types of containers. One would 

be called the gas billy, which is a short truncheon, which 

17 can expel a gas projectile. It is for short-range. work 

lS against individuals. 

L9 There is a gas gun, which can send projectiles some 

20 distance, which would be used for large scale disturbances. 

2l Q. Let me interrupt you thereo I understand there ar 

B2 two types of gas guns: one is a gas gun and one is more in 

23 the nature of a shotgun. Do you. have both of those, or 

~ which? 

Ao No. We h~ve just the rifle type. 
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And the other type would be a canister with a valve at 

the top which can expel gas in varying amounts, depending 

3 on how long the valve is kept open. 

Q. Which of those three~ the gas billya the gas gun, 

6 or the canister. is the largest, holds the most gas? 

6 A.o I believe the canister· doe~. 

7 Q. Do you know how mudh more it holds than the others? 

s rs this all pretty close together? Or substantially large ? 

9 Perhaps I can ask it this way--

I don 9 t know, sir. lO 

ll Q. --would a canister, as you have described it~ be 

~ more appropriate for use in the outdoor area, as opposed 

l3 to a gas gun or a gas billy? 

l4 The canister would be more appropriate for the in-

l6 door area. 

L6 Q. Why is that, sir? 

l7 One is the blast effect that would occur from send-

~ ing forth any projectile, and the other would be the--once 

~ the gas--the tear gas gun or the billy has been expended, 

20 you have expended all of your gas. You have no control 

Bl over the amount. 

Q. In other words, a projectile has a .·certain amount 

3 of gas in it and that is it? 

Ao Yes sir., 
" 

Q.. Do you have any knowledge as to whether· ·Qr ·no·t the 
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armory officers keep the canisters, the gas guns and the 
i 

gas billies ready at all times in ihe event there is need 

for their use? 

Yes sir. 

Q. Does that keeping them ready at all times include 

1 6 keeping them filled? 

7 We don°t refill at the institution. We send the 

8 canisters--when they become empty, we send them out to the 

9 manufacturers to be filled to--

10 

ll 

12 

Q. 

Q. 

Do you send-- . Excuse me~ 

--to our retail contact. 

To your knowledge, Mr. Donnelly, do you send them 

~ out when they become empty? Or do you send them out auto-

M rnatically after they have been used so that you wonit have 

w just a little bit left at the bottom and reach for it in a 

16 riot and have it die in a few seconds? 

17 Ao I am sorry to have to admit that we have had them 

18 until they have died on us in a few seconds. 

19 Q. I will ask you to direct your attention now to jus 

i20 priqr to Thanksgiving in 1965. Do you recall being re-

quested to authorize the use of tear gas at or about that 

22 time? 

From that description~ no sir. 
. · .. ; ~; . 

Q. Do you recall be;i.'ng asked to authorize the use of 24 

25 tear gas with respect to an inmate named Esparza? 
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Yes 0 it seems that I do. I believe I was contacted 

2 by Mr. Johnston o 

j Q. Mr. Johnstono the Program Administration of Unit 3 ?' 
---............_ __ . __ ! 

4 A, Yes siro 

5 Q. Was that a telephone call? A face-to-face meeting? 

6 A written slip? How does that work? 

7 He called me, I believe. I believe he was in the 

8 Adjustment Center and he called me on the phone. 

9 ~ About how long a conversation was that? 

w ~ A matter of minutes. 

u ~ And you authorized the use of tear gas at that time 

12 .:.s that correct? 

13 A. Yes siro 

14 Q. Did you authorize the use of tear gas at that time, 

15 as you recall it, with respect to an inmate who was in his 

16 quiet cell or strip cell and who was not to be moved there-

17 from? Do you understand the question? 

18 A. Was I--

19 Q. When you authorized the use of tear ga~ with re-

20 spect to Mr. Esparza, were you infor_!lled and did you unde:i::'-

21 stand at the time that this was not being used to move him 

~ from his cell, but was to be used to enforce an Drder while 

23 he was still to }.remain in his' cell. 

24 

25 Q. 

I donit remember that 6 Mr. Cobler. 

Mr. Donn~lly, I believe y6u·testLfied on. direct 
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examination yesterday that ordinarily strip cells served 

the purpose of housing inmates who had been breaking up 

their cells, who had been flooding their cells. or who had 

been agitating in their cells. Is that correct? 

Yes sir. 

Q. Would you tell the Court, please, whether there are 

7 any other purposes to be serwed by housing an inmate in a 

8 quiet or strip cell in the ordinary caseo 

9 Well, ordinarily the strip cell is used as a means 

w of separating the person going in there from the rest of 

U the population within the Adjustment Center. I guess there 

~ could be various reasons for this. 

l3 Q. Are they used solely for control? or also for a 

14 means of punishment? 

15 I believe it was Sergeant Friedrick who has al-

~ ready testified or stated that this is a very difficult li 

L7 to draw. 

18 Q. He thought he could draw it thougho I would like 

l9 to know if you can .. 

A. Well, I th~nk I can dra~ it for myself~ 

MR. OAKES: Objection, Your Honor. I donit know he 
... ,-._ 

'2 does -know he can draw it. I.thirik counsel is puitiri~ 

~3 testimony on the record. 

MR. COHLER: I£ I'did soe it was unintentional. I wil 
' 
,~ 

withdraw it and we will proce~d:' 
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Q. To- your best ability, would you distinguish if you 

can between control and punishment with respect to the use 

of the quiet or strip cello 

Yes siro I would think the punishment aspect 

5 would enter into it if I were immediately involved~ 
' 

6 Q. Excuse mea Are you using hypothetically? Or are 

7 you saying in situations where you are involved? 

8 Well, let 9 s ~ee if we can take this a little more slow-

9 ly" You are presently the Deputy Superintendent, is that 

10 right? 

11 Yes siro 

lZ In your capacity as Deputy Superintendent and re-

~ sponsibilities which attend thereto, as you understand the 

U purposes and the proper functions of the quiet cell or 

15 strip cello what are those purpof?es in terms of control 

M versus punishment, if you can say? 

17 The control enters into it in removing a force of 

~ disturbance from the population of the Adjustment Center. 

19 The punishment enters into it from the aspect that the 

~ cells ar~ not--not as ~ell fitted ~*-the regul~r cells, 

~ that they are isolated more so from'the--from one another· 

22 than any other--thit~ any of the oth~r cells areo 
., 

~ The type of cbntrol itself must, ~~believe, -take on the 

24 

25 

• ·J ""'V r ·~ 

aspect pf punishment of the man involv,edo 

eyes. I donet see how he can separate ito 

I mean, .in his 

In my eyesa it 
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15 separated by the fact that when the man demonstrates th t 

he has regained some control of himselfo we then bring him 

back outo 
-~-_J . 

Let me see if I understand you now, Mr. Donnellyo 

5 The purpose is,from the official point of view~ as you 

6 understandu and particularly your own as Deputy Superin-

7 tendentu the purpose is one of control" However, because 

8 of the circumsta~ces at the cell, it may be thought to be 

9 punishment, which is the necessary part of putting him 

w there for purposes of control. Is that a fair statement 

U of what you said? 

12 

13 Now, aside from the fact that there may be a 

U punishment aspect involved when you are trying to control 

W a man when you put him into thes~ cells, are these cells 

~ used for punishment, aside from just trying to separate 

H him out? 

18 

19 

A. 

Q. 

. ~ 

I 

No sir, not to my knowledge. 

What would require separating a man out such that 

~ he would be contr6lled by puttirig him in·a qui•t or strip 

~ cell? 
.'' 

22 The various things I have mentioned: the agitation, 

~ breaking up of cell furnishings, flooding, these kinds of 

~ thingso 

Q. "Agitation~ has a very broad m~~ning to m,. Perha s 
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1 it has a more special one to you. could you tell the court 

2 

3 

what agitation can encompasso 

Agitation can encompass a man directly himself ________ } 

4 starting to methodically beat on the bars, yelling and 

5 screaming and attempting to incite others; it might en-

6 compass a man who, while not doing that himself, gets 

7 others nearby to do that kind of thingo 

8 mean by \liagitation.n 

This is what I 

9 Q. I want you to explain this, and I am not trying to 

10 put words in your mouth. but what you just saio/ ~ seems 

n to mej to encompass almost any conceivable rule-breaking, 

~ because discipline would break down and this would lead to 

~ agitation and you could go on from there. Is it any more 

14 restrictive than that? 

15 Well, I believe, Mr. Cohler, that in any situation 

W people responsible for making decisions have to make a 

~ decision, and there is always this--there is always this 

~ problem that someone else might have made a different 

~ decision which might or might not have been better in a 

~ p~~ticular situation. Somebody has to make ~h~ decision 

H ~s to whether or not this particular type of agitation is 

~ going to cause general upset, or whether it is of a minor 

W nature and can be forgotten. 

24 

25 

Q. Are there some rules which can be broken which 

would in the ordinary course of events riot be thought to 
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·1 likely result in agitation? 

2 Can you give me an illustration? 

3 Q. Wello I was going to ask you for some. But let 

4 me see if I can rephrase, Letvs come at it from another 

5 angleo 

6 As Deputy Superint~ent and formerly as Associate 

7 superintendent8 would you please tell the Court, based on 

a that experience, the importance of maintaining discipline 

9 and obedience to orders in the institution e 

10 

11 

12 

Q. 

A, 

Well, this resolves down to attempting to look at--

I am having a little trouble hearing. 

This breaks down into attempting to handle men 

13 individually. For example, it appears to me that if a man 

u is in a phase of minor infractions, he can be causing 

~ staff--using up a great deal of ~taff time. But he is no 

~ grave danger to the institution, even though he may be ver 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

well known to staff. 

To handle this kind of thing,. I int:roduced at Central 

Facility what we call restricted housing, a step between 

the general population and the Adju~tment Cent~r. 

On the other hand, we might on occasion have a man who 

is found guilty of one infraction, which b•qause of the 

seriousness of that infraction should be plaqed in the 

Adjustment Center. 

It is an attempt, I believe--we are making the attempt--
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to look on the men down there as individuals~ 

Does this answer the question, sir? 

Q. Let 1 s see if we can take that a little further, and 

4 I don ° t mean to imply anything 0 

5 If an officer or sergeant or some other official gives 

6 an order directly to an inmate, to what extent is it felt 

7 that that order mus.t be enforced? 

once againo I think it would have to depend on the cir-

9 cumstances at that particular time. 

w 1llustration. 

If I can give an 

11 An inmate is told to go back to his wing. The serious-

~ ness of this order will depend on the situation at the 

13 time. If the corridor is relatively vacant, if there is 

u nothing happening around the place, then the order--his 

~ failure to go back is not a very serious one. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

If, on the other hand, an inmate is among a group of 

inmates who are impeding the progress of the corridor or 

threatening someone, and the officer comes along and tells 

him to go back to the wing, then this is a very serious 

thing. 

Q. Using your example of the man in the corridor alon , 

where there is no other~ circumstance, and he 

is ordered to go back to his wing, when you said it wasn't 

a very serious infraction, do I understand you to mean the 

order itself would be enforcedu but his failure to obey 
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1 immediately would not be considered a serious infraction? 

2 

' ' 5 

4 

5 

Q. 

Q. 

Yes sir., 
f 

~-"" 
In other words, the order is enforced? 

Yes sir. 

,-

It is considered a breakdown o! discipline within 

6 the p~ison, isn~t it, if an order is made·and not enfoic~d? 

7 

sj 

9 

lO 

Yes sir .. 

Q. Ord~rs must be enforced qne way or the other? 

Right, sir. 

MR o GRANUCCI: Objection to the form of the question, 

11 Your Honor~ 

12 THE COURTg Sustained~ 

15 .MR. COHLER: Q. The term,nstrip cell" has been used, 

14 Mr. Donnelly .. I suggest to you that at least among ad-

17 

18 

ministrative personnel 6 those at_your position, or your 

superiors, the term may have originated because the cell 

was stripped of the~_aL-ph~acilities. -Would you tell the Court what you know of the origna~ 

a tion of this term, its use generally_in penology, et ceter • 

20 My understariding·is that th~s is where.the term 

H "strip cellu cime from: Stripped of all furnishin9s. 
_,1 

n Primarily, I guess, the cells were formed to remove weapon 

~ from disturbed people. I don 1 t know what else you may be 

1nquiring about. 24 

25 Q. In other wo~ds, if you put a man in a cell which 
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was stripped of all furnishings, he wouldn 1.t be able to 

,-
haVe weapons . to hurt himself, hurt officials, . hurt inmates·, 

~""/ 
he wouldn 1 t be able to tear his cell apart, break it up, 

flood his cell, things of that nature, is that corr~ct? 

He wouldn 9 t be able to ~reak· u~ his cell too well. 

6 r have seen cells at San Quentin where the bowl was encased 

7 in concrete, and after a~ period of time the concrete was ,., 

8 broken up into fairly large chunks. 

9 ing--that was something else. 

One method of break-

10 He can still burn his clothing. 

ll 

12 

13 

14 

15 

Q. 

Q. 

Q,. 

Matches are contraband, are they not? 

They are, sir. 

Go ahead, please. 
r 

Well, contraband can be gotten into a strip cell. 

We-have heard testimony to that effect. 

16 Stripping a cell of its furnishings is designed to do 

17 the best job yet devised to -~h-e-m-an fx:o 
---------~-- . 

~ the cell or getting weapons to hurt himself or others; is 

19 that generally true? 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

-
Also this cohtrol. These ~ould be th~'ideas. 

Q. That is'where I want to go with you now. If there 

weren't the danger of the man breaking up the cell and 

making weapons out of the facilities which were in the eel 

would there be any reason not to place h_im in a regular 

isolation cell, not a strip cell?-
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With this agitation, yes sir~ 

Would you explain that, please. 
t 

~_.,./ 
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Very well. One man, a disturbed man in the unit. 

4 if he is in an isolation cell dr the administrative segre-

5 gation, the Adjustment Center cells,· can succeed in getting 

6 others to become very disturbed. 

7 Q. How does tha~, happen in the isolation section, the 

8 front part of the west corridor on the first floor of o-

9 wing? 

10 If that isolation section or the "MAX" side on the 

U other side of isolation-- if they start the rhythmic beat-

~ ing and the yelling and screaming, it is clearly audible 

l3 through that whole wing an,d also into the corridor. 

14 Q. What is it about the strip cells which precludes 

15 that? 

16 Well, the use of the strip cell would be that we 

17 were moved in-- May I bagk__~---
_,_ ____ ----------~ ~ Certainly. Please explain yourself fully~ 

19 We have found that if we permit--and this is ex-

20 perience over ·the years--if we permit something-within the-

21 within an isolation unit to go on, to go unch~llenged, that 
·. <; -. ..":· 

22 gradually aside from the noise and the burning and this 

~ k~nd of thing, the whole unit loses discipline. My guessu 

24 

25 

if I am permitted to guess, would be that the inmates, be-

cause of this. because of the tension they ar~ under, the 
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tear generated, get more and more-- there is nobody. there 

to take care of them. 
2 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

The quiet cell gives us an area tow1{ich we can remove 

a man who is causing difficulty throughout the wing. we 

can remove him out of that section o · This gives the rest o~ 

the population a chance to back downo 

Q. In other words, there are even less privileges ~n 
v 

the quiet_ cello so you have this means to say, you 
' 

9 are messing up isolation. You go to the strip cell.n I.s 

lO that the idea? 

ll Yes sir. 

l2 Q. What happens if the people in the strip cells start 

~3 doing this? What do you do to them then? 
r 

l4 usually then, Mr. Cobler, we look to find some way 

l5 to--if they are- -you know, if it is causing that great a 

~ disturbance--ordinarily it does not--but if it were, we 

.7 would look to find some 'lf?_ay_~·sport-~ng-n~m 
------~·~----·---·---..... - er 

l8 ins tit u t ion o 

l9 Usually in a situation like that, I believe you would 

W find there were two, three, four, five men who'were helpin 

ll to support one another in this. we would look to try to 
. ' 

~ separat~ them~ 

Q. In a situation which falls short~of anything as 

~ aggravated as might call for you to t~y to transfer a man 

l5 to anoth~r institution, if¥ou have an inmate who has be~n-
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1 messing up. disturbing, rattling on ba~s, pou~ding on the 
,-

2 bar area, making a lot of noise in the is9lation ~ec~i6n, 
..__J 

the guard and the sergeant may see to it he goes to the 

4 strip cell t.o quiet him down? That is a possibie situation. 

5 a likely situation? 

6 The sergeant puts--you are suggesting the sergeant, 
.... --~ 

7 through his immedia"Se superior a the lieutenant on the -third 

8 watch or the officer of the day, that would be a cause--

-
~ I am not worried about who authorizes it now. But 

11 

12 

13 

14 

that would be a cause for moving him to the strip cell? 

Yes sir. 

Q. This isnDt necessarily an inmate who has been doing 

this for years, but he did it that time. 
. ~ . 

Well, once again, we are talking about the gravity 

15 of the- s i t u at ion • Somebody has to make the decision. We 

~ have situations in which men do make noise in which they 

17 do not go to the quiet c e 11 . We -have==-t1'fe':r-e-are-t=+~41i4=;:;~+-,~ 
~-·---------~---­-----·· 

~ in that wing. It has a quota of 108. we usually haye 

~ about. 116 on an average, and as high as 126. Obviously- we 

~ can 9 t put all of those men in the quiet cells.· 

U So the gravity of the situation at the particular time· 

22. has to be judged by the. staff on duty. 

23 

24 

25 

Q. 

mean? 

You ~say you a quota of 108. wha~ does that 

·'I 

It means that because of the type of inmates with 

': 
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l whom we are dealing, that the Departmentr sets a quota of 

2 75 percent of the available cell space within the wing as 
~~.1 . 

. 5 the quota for that wing. 

Q. That means there can 1 t be less? 

A, Oh, noo We frequently go above, and we go below" 
. 
'· 

Q. What does it mean, that is what I don't unde.rstand" 
~-

7 A, What it meanS!_, is that when we reach 109, we can .~ 

a then begin saying to the rest. of the DE::partment, 11 We are 

9 filling up" Don 1 t send us any more problem children for 

10 awhileo 11 Or we call the Department to see if some of the 

U men can be transferred elsewhere. 

12 

l3 

14 

Q. Let 1 s go back to the first floor again in o-wing. 

Depending upon the gravity of the situation, if a man were 
(' 

agitating by rattling his bars or banging on the bars and 

W it was thought through the appro~riate people in authority 

16 to move him to the strip or quiet cell and he got there and 

17 he began doing t'h~-~~~:-~_hi.n-g-~-tin:rn-tliere ~s no. place e ---- se 

18 to put him unless you decide to get him transferred o~t, 

H and it is up to the guards or the sergeant on duty to find 

20 some way to control this mano Is that correct? 

21 A. If we can, yes sir. 
.• 

22 MRo COHLER~ Thank you. 

23 MRo OAKES~ I have a few more questions" 
"· ....... _. 

..... 

24 THE COURT'~ You may ask them. 

25 
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REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

0051.3 

,. 
2 BY MRo OAKES: 

I 3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

~ Would you consider removing a man's clothes as 

appropriate means for controlling him? 

Yes siro 

Q. At the beginning of cross-€xamination Mr. Coh~er 
~' 

brought up the fact ~of several meetings that were had .~ 

between yourself and Mr. Fitzharris, Mr. Swagerty and 

probably Mr. Johnston, and perhaps otherso 

MRo COHLER: Excuse me, just so it Ls clear. 1 didntt 

11 bring that UPo 

12 MR. OAKES: I am sorry. I didnVt mean to imply any-

13 thing. counsel. We brought it up. 
( 

u ~ Do you often have meetings with these people? 

15 A. - Y e s s i r o 

16 Q. Do you have regular meetings with them as a group? 

17 

18 Q. 

Yes sir. ·--~ ~----------·-· 
Were the meetings which you had in which the lette 

ij you had from the Supreme Court or whatever the letter was 

20 from Mr o McGee that was discussed, .. was that meeting solely 

U concerned with that le~ter its~lf? Or might it have been 

22 a general meeting? 
' ' 

23 

24 

25 

_ .. M.F. COHLERg Excuse me. Th.ere was more th.an one meet-. 

ing. Mr. Donnelly a~ready testified to this. If you want 

to break it down meeting by me~ting, h~s answer was 
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different beforen as to which meeting it was. 

MRo OAKES~ Counsel, I didn't think it was ever clear 
_____/ 

as to how many meetings there were or when there were. I 

just wanted to speak generally to this. 

5 MR. COHLERg Your Honor~ I ~m ~oing to have to objec~. 

6 The witness said, as I recall, that there were three or 

7 four· meetings, that -~the first two such meetings were 

a specifically for this purpos~ and that the others may or 

9 may not have been. I don°t think a general question as to 

10 all meetings is appropriate. It is misleading and ambigu-

11 ous. 

12 

13 

14 

THE COURT: That observation was correct. There were 

several meetings, according to my recollection. If the 
{ 

witness has any view other than that, I think he should 

w relate. it. There were several meetings that returned or 

M related to the inquiry that emanated from the Supreme Court 

17 Isn't that correct?· ----~ ---~ ____________ ___._-

~_________,..-----~ 

18 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

19 MR. OAKES: My question was perhaps-- Let me rephrase 

20 H. 

21 Q. Of the several meetings, did the first meeting tha~ 

22 you recall specifically deal with the letter from Mr. McGee. 

23 A. Welle I donl_t know that it was a lettei or what it 

24 was, but it did deal with the message~ 

25 THE COURT~ Do yo_u have a· copy of the letter? 
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l MR. OAKES: I don't at this time, Your Honor~ We· will 

2 have to attempt to see if we can discover that. 
--~.1 

3 THE WITNESS~ But if I may say--

4 THE COURT~ Certainly. 

5 THE WITNESS: This was as ~ re~ult of my testimony 

6 yesterday, Your Honor, and I was trying last night to ·tr~ 

7 to remember when--what ·about these discussions. 
v 

8 too clear on these meetings at all, and some of this is 

9 guesswork, to the best of my recollection, Your Honor. 

10 THE COURTg Mr. Donnelly, to the best of your recollec-

u tion, were there any minutes made of the meetings which 

~ followed in the wake of the inquiry from the Supreme Court? 

13 THE. WITNESS: No sir. About the only time that we have 
(' 

U minutes is when we have a formal staff meeting. We do meet 

15 together and--

16 THE COURT: Did yo~ have any memorandum? 

17 THE WITNESS: No sir~~------
------~~-~----~-

18 THE COURT: Or written memorial of any kind? 

THE WITNESS: I don't believe so, sir. 

THE COURT: Pardon me, counsel. 

19 

20 

21 MR. OAKES~ Q. During the course, aga~.n:_on cross-
, . 

22 examination, I believe· ~{le phrase 11 out of ·brderu was used 

25 in reference to the investigation of perhaps the Adj ustmen 
"' 

24 Center area. Were you actually investigating to see 

25 things were out of order? Or were you investigating to se 



134 
---Q05:16 

l what conditions were such? 

2 A, I think, as I recall it, we were taking a look to 
___/ 

see what the conditionsq what the conditions were~ 

4 Q. Were you looking t6 see if any changes CGuld be 

5 made? 

6 

'{, 

We were looking to see, first, ·if changes mi~hi be 

7 in orde.r. And obviou_§ly if they were, we would come to-~ 

8 make them. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

MRo COHLER: I didn 1 t get the answer4 

THE WITNESS: I said we were looking to see if changes 

appeared to be--if there was anything there to be changed, 

and if we saw something that should be changed we would 

obvio~sly go ahead and make the change. 
r 

MR. OAKES: Q. On both direct examination and cross-

W exarninat~on the subject of tear gas has been brought up. 

~ I believe Mr. Cobler asked you whether or not you knew of 

17 anybody who was allergic J;...o--t-e-a-r gas c _____ . ____ .,.__.-----------

18 Yes sir. 

19 Do you know of a lot of people that are allergic 

120 to the results of a weapon being fiz::ed? 
--; 

n MRo COBLER: Your Honor, what kind of weapon? 

n MR. OAKES~ Say a rifle, a hand gunu a shotgun$ 

No sir o 
23 

ij Q. You meani if a_person is shotf they are not probabl 

25 allergic to it? 
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Oh, I am sorry. 

Do you think most persons are probably allergi.c 
..._ .. ../ 

3 to the use of force? 

4 MR. COHLER: I think we are using the term ualiergic" 

6

5/ in what I would hesitate to sa~ is ~lm6st a facetious 

I don 1 t think this is proper examination.· I object. 

use. 

7 THE COURT~ As the serm is used, I think the objection~ 

8 lS well taken, counsel. 
" 

9 MR. OAKES~ Q. Do you figure that most people can 

10 suffer harm from the use of force? 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

A. Yes sir. 

Q. As a matter of fact, you have a scar on your nose 

as a result of attempting to control a person in the Ad-
. ~ 

justrnent Center situation, do you not? 

A. Yes sir. 

Q. Is it your opinion, based on your experience, that 

the probabilities of harm aCC%Jlj IHJ -eo an inmate are ess ------------------- . with the use of tear gas or the use of physical force in 

19 an attempt to control him? 

20 A. It is my opinion that the probabilities of harm to 

21 an inmate are less with thE! use of tear gas. 

22 Q. There was some testimony, I bel~eve on direct and -- ' . 

23 I am sure on cros~-examination, about.._ th~ nec;::essit.y for 
. - - -- .. _ - !i -, 

24 

25 

maintaining control in an institutidn. I think you cited 

some examples of what. could occur- or how occurrences do 
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1 happen when a man or a group of men lose. control. 

' 
2 Perhaps it is relevant to discuss the situation in 

~ 
5 soledad State Prison in 1964, in the fall of 1964. 

4 counsel, do you have something? 

5 MR. COHLER: There is no_question pending yet, but I 

6 am waiting. 

7 MR. OAKES~ Q. !~-wonder if you could relate a little 

8 bit about the situation at that time as an example of what 

9 happens when control is lost? 

lO MRo COHLER: Your Honor, I wish to object to the parti-

u cular question, and I think this should be limited. There 

~ has been testimony, and I am sure there will be morea I 

~ expect more, as to that particular situation. There was a 
f 

14 reorganization afterwards. There were efforts to realign 

W things within the institution. I don 1 t think the question 

~ should be asked, one, by way of exemplar as to what can 

17 happen o I don 9 t think we · shq~-t---i-n-to deta-i-ts of Htr4. ______ ...... _________ __..-·------

18 But limitedbeyond that, I think the repetition of the 

~ general situation is appropriate. 

ro This question is put as by way of exemplar; and I see 

21 no foundation. 

22 MR. GRANUCCI: May it please the Co~rt, this inq~iry 

~ into the conditions of Soledad has been a fairly broad 

~ ranging one, and I think in the interest of fairness the 

25 defendants not only should but. ~re entitled as a matter of· 
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right to bring out the circumstances that.motivated their 
. r 

actions. the problems they are confronted with. After all, 

an institution is on trial. I think i t~dght to have a 

fair opportunity to defend itself. 

5 MR. COBLER~ Your Honor, I disagree with ~othing counsel 

6 has said. I don~t think that answers the objection to the 

7 particular question whTch is put G 

8 THE COURTg I thinkf under the circumstances, this 

9 w1tness or any other witness is entitled to make an exposi~ 

w tion of the background events and so forth, and motivations 

11 and intent and the like. 

12 MR. COHLER~ That is the only limit I wish to place, 

~ and that is the foundation of my objection. 
{ 

U could rephrase it, counsel. 

Perhaps you 

15 MR. OAKES: I think at this time I will withdraw the 

16 question. 

"< 

17 Q. Mr. c oh 1 e r as ked y o~a--s-:i-' ~~0H"')'fi~ri-H~e=wi=fr~+ 
-----~__________.-----~ might put a man in a strip cell or a quiet cell where ther 

U is no danger of his breaking up the cell he has been in. 

20 Could you ever determin~ when a man is out of control, whe 

21 or when he may not break up the cell that he is in? 

'22 
! 

,23 

I think the only way ~e know that he wilL or will 

not break up the fixtures in the cell is if in fa'ct he doe 

do so. Some men do have a history of this, which probably 

would lead us to believe that he would be capable of doiqg 
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it again in the future. But aside from that, we would have 

to judge by the particular incident. 

MRo OAKES~ That is all I have, counsel. 

RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MRo COHLER~ 

Q. Mr. Donnelly, you answered counsel's question on 

7 redirect in the affirmative as to whether or not removing 

8 clothing was a means of controlling an inmate. 

9 Yes siro 

10 Q. I take it that clothing being removed might be 

u considered a proper action if there were a danger of suicid 

12 

13 

A. 

Q. 

Yes sir. 

In what other sense is removal of clothing con~ 
( 

U sidered a means of controlling an inmate? 

15 A. I believe in response to_one of your questions, 

16 Mr. Cohler, we had the situation where this was an ill us-

17 tration, where two tiers or a majQ.t_Lty---ef the ~nma es on 
~- _ ___. 

18 two tiers were burning and flooding and were causing a 

19 general disturbance o And in this particular instance, we 

20 removed ·the clothes from these men. 

21 Q. In other words, and I want to use the words care­
·r 

22 fully and you correct me if I am using them ill1properly I in 

~- other wordsa by depriving a man of one of his p~ivileges, 

24 

25 

his clothing, he will consider himself punished~to the 

extent. you, hope 6 that h,~ wi.ll come under control? 
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Yes sir. 

MR. GRANUCCI~ Objection~ 
__ J 

Well, I will withdraw the objection. 

005,2:1 

I have a coupie 

4 cf questionso 

5 FURTHER REDIRECT. EXAMINATION 

6 BY MRo GRANUCCI ~ 

7 Q. · Mr. Donnelly, on cross-examinatioa counsel asked 
v 

8 you to enumerate certain situations which might call for 

9 confinement in a quiet cell. Do you recall those que~tions? 

Yeso lO 

11 Q. Were your answers intended to be exclusive? Or 

~ were they intended to be illustrative? 

13 No, I--:­
r 

M MR. COHLER: Your Honor, I am going to interrupt the 

~ witness and object to the questi?n. I am sorry I didnit 

16 say it earlier. There were several questions along this 

17 line. ~--ed illustLatively·;~here were ai.l~() 
---------

W questions put, as I recall it, »would you please search 

H your memory carefully," or something to that effect, •and 

20 tell me if there were any others. 1111 I think we·~ight have 

21 to read the record for the witness 'to say what he has 

22 testified .about beforeQ . ' 

·--· .. _......,._ ' 

23 THE COURT: 
' ' 

I ,recall the incidents, counsel. 

24 MR. GRANUCCI g. · Well, I will withdraw the question and 

25 ~j)~gin again and s·~bstitute another one. 
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Q. Is it true, Mr. Do~nelly, that.there is a whole 

spectrum of certain situationsrthat could involve a danger 
. ~/ . 

of agitat~on or actual ag~~ation? 

Yes sir. 

Q. Isn't it also true there is a whole spectrum of 
' 

. . "r 
circumstances, a very broad spectrum of· circumstances, whic 

would require varying responses to controL~situations? 
v 

Yes sir. I believe this is one of the difficulties 

9 r have had in answering some of the questions, is that we 

w/ are dealing with an institution of 1,500 men. we are deal­

ll ing with an adjustment center of some 225, 250 men. And 

~ the interaction between people, diff~rent situations that 

N occur, is a very broad on~o I don 1 t--there can be any 
I 

14 number of situations requiring for any number of different 

15 types of answers. 

16 Q. Nowu Mr. Donnelly, just to clarify a question, you 

17 testified t h a ~..s--:'"e-1-a-t-h--i-~e-e-u-I:a= b'e=t alt en .. away f ::t:Q.'In ·-

----------------- . _-J!.~-

~ him under circumstances where he was not attempting sui-

19 cide. Is that correct? 

20 A. Yes sir. 

21 Q. Would that be as a control measure, or as a puni-
. 

22 tive measure? 

23 

24 

25 

measure. 

Q. 

In my e~timate, it would be that of a ~ontrol 

. ' 
Would it ~e a reasonable control measure? 
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l In my estimate, it would be reasonable under the 

2 circumst.anceso 

3 

4 FURTHER RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

5 BY MRo COHLER: 
"t 

Q. I know we are having trouble usi·ng 'these terms 

11 controlir-and npunishment. 11 

" 
They are categ0ries which are 

8 not easy to bring down to specifics. I am not trying to 

9 put words in your mouth. When you say removing a m~n•s. 

10 clothing would under some circumstances be a reasonable 

11 control measure, in what sense are you controlling a man 

~ by removing his clothing? 

13 A. 

14 Q. 

In the sense that I--that I gave before of the-­
r 

Is it what we said a few moments ago, that this is 

W withdrawal of another privilege which the man you hope will 

~ consider it as a punishment and he will come under control? 

17 

18 

-A. ~~~i_s_~we-n-ope, 

MRo COHLER: Thank you. 

yes Sl.ro 

19 . FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

20 BY MRo GRANUCCI ~ 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Mr. Donnelly, you are a 'family man, aren 1 t you?. 

Yes sir.· 
;'-I 

Do you have any childreri? 
- :..- .... -

Two, sir. 

Have you ever had to dis~ipline your children? 
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Yes sir~ 

Q. 
,-

Would you say it is ea~y to dis~ing~ish betwe~n 
t 

punishment and control in tre family situation? 

No siro 

Q. Pardon me? 

-<t 
I think at times the feelings of· a,, parent might 

become i~volveda but if you have got the interest of the 

8 child at heart. I would guess that you can keep these things 

g fairly clearly in mind G 

10 Q. It is not so easy in a prison situation, is it? 

11 A. Well, now, I am speaking for myself. I feel that 

~,the punishment happens as a result of some disciplinary 

~ infraction as to extend through certain periods. 
( 

Q. It should be definite in duration, is that correct? 

Ao Yes. Control is somethi~g which would be used 

16 which would be removed when the necessity for the control 

17 apparently no _1~*,£;;"-+t-...s:r--. ~-· 
-~-~- __ _______...-----------

18 MR. GRANUCCI: I see. 

19 Counsel? 

20 · ·; FURTHER RECROSS -EXAMINATION. 

21 BY MRo COHLER: 

24 

25 

~ Counsel just used the term "definite in duration.~ 

Do you, Mr. Donnelly 6 feel that whenever a further privileg 

is withdrawn--and let's avoid "control" and npunishmentri 
·. ~Pf1- . 

duration of
1 

that privilege ought ·t language here- -that the 
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be set at a definite time when it is withdrawn? 

If it is punishm~nt, yesrsir. 

Q. ...a;J!-~b k ' h --..,:;:;/ ·. . h t d Now/A ac .1.nto t e p.1.oblem about pun.1.s men · an 

control. 

Yeso 

Q. Let 0 s see if we can.just talk ab6ut~juse other 

words o 

If a privilege is withdrawn, for whatever reason, do 

you feel that the period of withdrawal of that priviJege 

ought to be made definite at the time it is withdrawn? 

A. No. I think that what you do is if--in my terms, 

u sir, if it is a withdrawal of a privil~ge: for example, a 

13 man loses his show privileges for a period of a month or 
( 

u four weekendse whatever it would be, two ~~eks, one weeken Q 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

this, to my way of thinking, is a control--is a punishment 

measureo 

If a man is ~4 out s-i-d-e---t;-he-=-FFrF.&_:S_s=t;==s..f~~ftEf-E~-t.;u=t= 
______.---________ _____..--

Sunday movie, and the lieutenant sends him on his 

uYou can°t go in~" and he comgs back at noon and everythin 

is fine, and the lieutenant siys, 8 0.K., you can go into 

the second showing,n til_lis would appear to me to be a con-
-

22 trol measure" Or~ if be doesn't show up--he is not under 

23 control for the res~ of that dayi he· would have .lost.his 
<..' :t. 

24 show privilege for that weekend, but it would not to.my 

25 • 
mind be a. pun.j.shment" 
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Q. Should the maximum .time be determined of a set 

duration for the deprival of ~ privil~ge? 

'""-•"'.)' 
Ao In a punishment situation, yes. 

Q .• You say depriving a man from his show privilege 

would be a puni~hment? 

Yes. 

Q. ]s taking a man 9 s clothing a punishment? 

Yes sir, it wo~ld be a punishment to the man. 

9 MRo COHLER~ Thank you. 

10 I MRo GRANUCCI ~ Your Honor, I have n·o further questions 

u of this witness. Perhaps the Court would have some ques-

12 tions. 

13 THE COURT; 
( 

We are running late into the noon hour. 

M I have one question addressed to the inquiry m~de by 

15 ML McGee. What was his official capacity at the time the 

16 inquiry was made, sir? 

17 
.... 

THE w~~ri.....,e""'v:-=-e:::-~i"t was 
..._ ----- as Admrnistrator of'"&iffie 

18 Youth and Adult Corrections Agency. 

19 THE COURT: As a result of the inquiry, you or the 

20 Superintendent s~t in motion several meetings which you 
' 

21 have already di sc·us sed. 
f 

22 THE WITNESS~ Yes sir. 

I THE COURTz And as I understand it, theie were noJmin-

24 

25 

utes kept, no written memoranda of any of the event·s, save 

and except that certain revisions were made~ which ~ou ha~e 
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l 
already dilated and indicated for the record. 

z Now, did you or someone in your behalf of in behalf of 
...._,J 

the Superintendent communicate the results to Mr. McGeea 

4 either orally or in writing? 

5 THE WITNESS~ ··I don't know, sir. 
..p-

6 THE COURT~ Do you know·of your own krio~ledge, Mr. 

7 Donnelly. ~whether Mr. McGee ever had any report as a result 

8 of what you regard. as taking_: a good look at the situation? 

9 rf 
THE WITNESS~ No sir, I do not. May I explain, Your 

10/1 Honor? 
:r 

n// THE COURT: Yes sir. 

12 THE WITNESS: I don 1 t know- -I can't be too sure of this, 

ul but it would s~em to me that what carne to the institution 

14 was more in the nature of information that Mr. MCGee had 

~ received some inquiry from the--one of the Justices of the 

16 Supreme Court o 

18 of us. It would seem to me that we--here again, my memory 

19 is hazy. but I think that we went ahead with this on our 

' 20 own initiative because of the inquiry. 

21 THE COURT: Save you since been advised that· at that 

I time there was a petition pending before the Supreme Court. 

23 THE WITNESS: We have been advised that there had been 

24 a pet.i tion. 

THE COURT: You were not advised at the ·time you made 
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l the inquiry that resulted in dertain ·revi~ions? ,-

2 THE .WITNESS: 

THE COURT~ All right, sir. I have no furthe~ ques-

4 tions. 

5 MR. COHLER: Y6ur Honor, counsel agre_ed to produce any 
I ~ 

6 1 documents which may be found in the nature· of correspondence 
.~ 

7 from Mr. Mc-Gee to Mr. Fitzharris of that nature. 

8 Would you also agree ~o produce any responses or any-

thing within the general scope of responses? 

MR •. GRANUCCI: Between Mr. McGee and Mr. Fitzharris? 

MR. COHLER: Or any--

12 THE COURT~ Or any other official of the institution, 

b regarding the iztcident related by Mr. Donnelly. 

~ MR. GRANUCCI: I believe I understand, Your Honor. 
I 

~ Yes, counsel, I will. 

~ MR. COHLER: If you have questions in your own mind ... -----------------------
7 re i-ng--t-tri:Smatter, may counsel have an opportunity to 

8 inspect? · 

9 MR. GRANUCCI: I think so. 

MR. COHLER: could it be more definite? 

MR. GRANUCCI ~ counsel, you see, the problem is that w _,, 

can drift off into all sorts of unrelated areas. 

~want to promise you unlimited access to our file~ 

MR. COHLER: I d~dn 1 t ask for that. 

I don't 

THE COURT:- · This· has a specific relevance~ counsel. 
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l MR. GRANUCCI ~ Within the. specific ;relevance, he can 
,-

2 examine all documents. 

j MR. COBLER: Thank you. 

4 THE COURT: We will resume at 2:15. 

5 (Whereupon the he.aring was recessed until 2: 15... 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

.l3 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

o 1 clock p.m. of the same day.) 

--oOo--
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l TUESDAYo AUGUST 16 1966, AF-TERNOON SESSION - 2:15 P.Mo 
,-

MR. GRANUCCI: Your Honor, has Mr~ Donnelly been 
____....! " 

3 excused? 
I 
!4 THE CLERK: I am not aware of the fact he was excused. 

6 MR. GRANUCCI: Your Honor, at this time we request that 
f 

6 Mr. Donnelly be excused. We don 1 t expect to call him 

7 again. 

8 MR. COHLER: That. is agreeable, Your Honor. 

9 THE COURT~ So ordered. 

10 MRo GRANUCCI: Call Dr. Hack, please. 

11 THE CLERK~ Dr. Hack. 

12 RAYMOND L. HACKo 

13 called as a witness by the defendants, being first duly 
( 

14 sworn a was examined and testified as follows: 

15- THE CLERK: State your full name and occupation. 

16 THE WITNESS: Raymond L. Hack, M.D., a psychiatrist, 

17 the psych~~_:t!'~~ ------ Correc 

18 Fa c i 1 it y • 

19 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

20 BY MR. _ GRANUCCI: 

21 Q. Dr. Hac~, I wonder if you would narrate for·.us yo,u 
" 

22 · profes~ional trainin-g •. ' 

23 I am a graduate of the Vni~ersity of Oregon Medica .. : - . 

U School of December 1943. ~fter my internship, I completed 

25 three years of residency training in the Armed Ford~~. 
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where I remained for ten years until 1~54, and completed 

, r . ,· 

the rest of my training in psychia~ry and became a 
_..,..I 

Diplomate, that is a recognized specialist, to the American 

Examining Board, a Diplomate in psychiatry in December 1951. 

Q. Are you a mel!lber of ·any professional organiz'ations? 
..p-

I am a member of the American Psychi·at·tic Associa-

tion, America~ Medical Association, Monterey Medical 
v 

society, on the staff of the Salinas Valley Memorial 

Hospital and Monterey County Hospital. 

Q. Have you ever testified in court as an expert 

11 witness? 

12 A. 

13 Q. 

14 A. 

Yes, I havee 

What is your position at the institution? 
r 

I am the psychiatric cons.ultant and supply all 

~ psychiatric services to the Soledad institution, 6n the 

16 basis of half-time; that is, I am there generally from 

17 8:00 until 12:0Q_,_:__f.i..v-e days a week.-
-~---~--------~ ~ Doctor, do your duties ~ake you into that section 

19 of the prison known as the Adjustment Center? 

20 

21 

A. 

Q. 

Yes, they do. 

Do they ~ake you into that section of the Adjust~ 
.. 

22 men~~. Center known as isolation section? 

23 

24 

25 
if 

A. Yes 0 they do. About--at least once to two.to thre 

times per week~ 

Q. Is th~s in the ·isolation sectiod? 
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Yes. 

~ Have you seen those cell~ in the isolation section 
~~..! 

which have been referred to in these proceedings as strip 

cells or quiet cells? 

Yes, I have., many timeso 

Q. You know what they look like? 

Yes~ I do. 
v 

Q. Have you ever visited inmates in those cells? 

Many times since I have been the consultant, sinca 

10 February 196 5. 
I 

11 

12 

13 

14 

16 

Q. Have you, as a result of your visits to the Ad-

justment Center, and particularly the isolation section, 

been able to observe the conditions of cleanliness in that 
I 

section? 

Yes, I have. 

Q. What is your opinion of those conditions? 

17 MR. COHL_!.~ .. L~---.E-~me, counsel. 
~--------------------"~ 

Do you have a- time 

18 reference? 

19 MRo GRANUCCI: Yes, I will. 

20 Q. Have you been able to observe them fro~ July of 

21 last year up to the present time? 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Yesa I have. 

Q. What is your opinion of those conditions?· 

I would say that generally they are maintained as 

clean as they can be within tbe structure of the attitudes 
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and attempts at cleanliness maintain~d throughout the in-
,. 

stitution, which are generally those roughly of what would 
~ . .-;.J' 

be expected in a military installation, and recognizing 

that there are some problems inherent ~articularly with 

reference to the type of the people who are housed there, 
f 

but generally they meet the standards seeri ih the rest of 

the institution. 

Q; Have you been able to ob~erve the standards of 

cleanliness that prevail, or have prevailed in the strip 

w celLs from July of last year up to the present time? 

11 

12 

13 

14 

Yes, I have. 

Q. Have you been able to form an opinion as to those 

standards of cleanliness? 
r 

MR. COHLER: Excuse me, Your Honor. Let's be careful. 

15 I donut think there can be an opinion as to standards of 

16 cleanliness. They are observed facts or--
.... -~·------· 

MR a GRANUCC_L:..-~--en~-a ....... t-...-i-s- true, . coun se 1 . --· ...._.------~ -------
There are 17 

18 observed facts Q But this man is a doctor of medicine, in 

19 addition to being a psychiatrist, and he might be in a 

~ position to test~fy it was his opin~ori tliey weie clean as 

21 a matter of fa_ct, and also that such cleanliness was· up to 

22 a~~ acc~p~:bie level. 

23 

24 

25 

MRa COHLER: That may be true also. I think ~t is com 

pound the way you asked it. 

MR. GRANUCCI: ~- Have yo~ been able to observe the 
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11 state of cleanliness 

zl ~ Yesu I have. 

in the quiet cells? 
,. 

~ ·1.: 

.J II 

i! 

Q. What was that state of cleanliness? 

I have seen it vary from what ~ felt was quite un-

clean to when they· w eren 1 t ·occupied or when occupied by an 
..y 

inmate who was relatively cooperative, to ~h~~e they were 

7 very clean ~nd orderly, the state of cleanliness depending 

8 almost entirely upon. the attitudes of the inmate involved. 

Q. You say you have seen cells unclean? 

Yes. 

ui ~ Were you aware of the source or cause of such lack 
I 

12 i/ of cleanliness? 
l1 

II 

13 if A. Yes. As 
1

I stated, it is the attitude of the inmat , 
:r 

M' inasmuch as througho~t the institution the primary re-
:1 

~~ sponsibility for the cleanliness of any cell resides with 
i' 

16 

17 

the inmate. 
..... 

When the iruita-~s are constructive, the cell ------·------·--· _____...-

W are clean. When the inmate's attitudes are destructive or 

~ careless, it is represented in the cell cleanliness failur • 

Q. This would be related to the inmate himself?. 

That is. right. 

22 Q. Now, you mentioned that you visited the Adjustment 

23 Center, and particularly o-wing. Is that correct7 

24 A. That is right. 

Q. Do you make it a practice to sign in when you visi ? 
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I do not any more, since I a~ such a frequent--sine 

my visits occur so frequently, I. have been in and out and ___ j 

do not sign in. 

Q. Can you distinguish between the Adjustment Center 

and isolation, at .least within your own mind, the meaning 

of those words? 
~-,, 

Oh ,· yes 6 I know very definitely the difference. 
" 

Q . Would you tell us the difference, please. 

The isolation section is-- Well, to begin with, 

the general concept of the Adjustment Center is made up 

actually of two wingse 0 and X-wing. 

~ Now, within o-wing is an area on the lower left-hand 

13 as one enters the floor of some 23 cells which are there 
f 

14 for the holding of people who are either charged with or 

15 have been found guilty of infringements against the 

18 Director is rules or the California Code. This is the 

18 Q. Do you feel the Adjustment Center serves a legi-

19 t irna te purpose? 

20 MR. COHLER: Excuse me. Your Honor, first·of all, as 

21 a matter of form it is very broad. But beyond that, we 

22 are beginning to get intg wha.t might be called expert 

23 testimony. The Doctor's qualifications and backg'round as 

24 a psychiatri~?t are in the record. There is nothing abqut 

25 penological ~ackground or criminology beyon4 this 
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l 1 nstitution. If he. is called upon ·to testify as to his 

2 

3 

opinion within the instituJ::_;!;;;tn; I will have no objection" 

aut if we are going into generally accepted standards, as 
-

4 I think this question calls for, I think we ought to have 

5 more--

6 THE GOURTg I will allow him to testify. 

7 You may answero 

8 THE WITNESS; Will ~ou-restate the question? 

9 MRo GRANUCCI ~ Miss Reporter, would you read the ques-

10 tion o 

u (The question was read.) 

12 THE WITNESS: Yes, I do. 

13 MR. G.RANuCCI: Q. How so, Doctor? 

14 A,fhe reason for the existence of the Adjustment 

W center and the purpose that it serves is this: There are 

~ certain individuals wh~operate on a destructive code and 

.•. -·--uu~~o-snow themselves to be a hazard 'to the inmate--to the 

~ inmat~s or to the staff, to such a degre~ that it is the 

19 opinion of the staff,· and mine often, that they require 

~ greater external controls than that which is"pio~ided by 

n the general population. 

~ By "external controlsn I mean they require more gates, 

~ bars, staffing, and different structural standards in order 

M to ~aintain them s•fe to themselves or others. An~ for 

25 that reason, the Adjustment Center is constructive and 



155 00537 
l maintained. 

2 Q. Dr. Hack, what do y.Q_g~ean by "destructive code?tt 

One could say that in the million and a qalf to 
-

4 two million years that the human race has been in existenc1 
.. 

5 that we have developed two ways of living~ -r 
.) 

6 I won~er if this would not be a point where I might us 
v 

7 an illustration? 

8 Q. Certainly, Docto-r a -Would you step over to the 

g board, pleaseo 

w ~· In this million and a half to two million years of 

11 experience, we have developed a system for living which I 

12 refer to and others of us, particularly at our institution 

N as the ~standafd constructive code." Originally this was 

14 developed out of the taboos of the tribal societyo 

15 As we know u for some 5, 500 years or so, . these original 

M unwritten laws or the taboos have been written and de-
------------

17- e--ropeiathrough a series of historical legal structures 

18 from the Code of Hammurabi to the current ·california Code, 

19 which is our minimum standards a 

~ In addi~ion, we have religious and moral s~st•ms, and 

21. our societ¥ ~~oper.a.tes :~predominantly on the Judaeo -~hr:.i~ti.an 

a religious moral system. And then we are now developing 

~ what m{§ht be called technical systems. 

24 Now, there has been and there continues to be people 

25 who live on another system for living, the antisocial or 
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l destructive code, which is the apsence or the opposite of 

2 thiS code (indicating}. 

3 I believe this answers your question of what I had 

4 reference too 

5 Q. That is what you mean by the destru.Ftrve code. 

6 Nowu Doctoro would you care to answer this: Are the 
~ ~ 

7 inmates in the Adjustment Center getierally thought to ad-

S here to the destru-ctive-code rather than the constructive 

9 code? 

lO A. Generally speaking, this is the way they operateo 

Is the purpose of the Adjustment Center purely ll Q. 

~ segregation? Or does it serve a therapeutic end as well? 

13 The institution provides a training and an edu-

14 cational program. In order to maintain this program in 

15 

16 

1 

18 

operation, we have to prevent the destructive activities 

people operating under the antisocial destructive code. 
"" 

ff inma-e8sare allowed to operate on the antisocial code~ 

or are allowed to operate unrestrictedly, ·then there are 

19 stabbings, riots, and· some very serious and ma.j or things 

20 can occur. It is one of our primary responsibi·lities to 

H control these people so that they cannot injure'others and-

22 also to prevent them from injuring themselves and encumber 

~ ing themselves with additional convictions. 

24 Q. You may reuurn to the stand now. 

25 Are efforts made in the Adjustment Cent.er to change .th 
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orientation of the inmates from a destructive code to some-,-

thing more constructive? 

Q. In what way? 

Ao In the fi':rst place6 the Adjustment Cen-ter, I belie 
f 

has the highest ratio of staffing to inmate' I believe of 

any part 6f the institution: that is, there ~re more cor-

rectional counselors, I,spend more time in there than I 

would with the othersu with a similar number of other in-

mates. 

Q. What is the purpose of that, merely to control 

these people in the Adjustment Center? 

~e control is maintained primarily by the 

correctional officers. The staffing by the correctional 

counselors and my own staffing, <?f the Program Administra­

tor; is to try to alter their orientation. 

l'L -li------Q.---wn-at-'Kr nd of in rna t e-- ·;_r;:o:-=bh:e--=:m:=:o:.=r~e~p~r~e~c~i=;si:f:e~, -,.D"o"c,.,..,t:b1PI' ;;r.;;:,=_=i 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

would you in psychiatric terms define the.type of inmate 

that is likely to be confined to the Adjustment tenter? 

~ He is the person who has what I call the .third for 
' 

of illness of mankindo He is neither physically ill, 

gen~rally his'mental operations, his intrinsic mental 

operations are relatively intact, but when he applies him~ 

self· in the social,situation~ he is destructive to ·others 

or hims-elf o .. · ... ( / 
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These people have been called npsychopathic person­

alities,n "sociopathic perso~ti.es"; I like to call them 

ttsocialization disorders¢" This whole group_ is what I 

look upon as the expert group of miseri~s of mankind. 

Q. People who ·canst relate to society, is Lt? 

A. In a productive way. 

Q. Are~you aware of acts of violence 6 either verbal or 

8 physical, that occur in the A~justment Center? 

9 Yes, I amo 

10 Q. Is it your professional opinion, Doctor, that thes 

11 acts of violence are a reaction against the severity of 

H prison discipline? 

13 Itris my feeling that the real motivations 

u behind these acts of violence are hostilities that are 

15 generated generally in the personis early life environment. 

16 I think it is noteworthy that probably 60 to 75 percent of 
--------- ~---------------

17 _ __QJ,lr peop-1-e--tlra:t: I see are from alcoholic homes. 

~ The traumatic homes, that is, th~ disturbed home, is 

~ the usual thing in the historical background. This is 

20 where the hostility is generated. We only deal with it. 

21 Q. Is it·yqur opinion then that if the Adjustment 
-· ; . '~ . . 

~ Center prisoners were afforded more freedom and more privi 

~ leges-they-would be less hostile? 

Z-4 Ao· I would have,to say in_all fairness that to be 

~ locked up is itself another rej•ction and does add to a 
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person~ s hostili tyo . But on the oth·er hand, they have all ,-

of them shown before they ~7 in the Adjustment Center that 

they are a hazard first to the other inmates or to themselves 

4 and also perhaps to the staff. Although, incidents in-

5 volving any injufy to the staff are relatively r~re, the 
·f" 

• • .:J 

8 continual tragedy involving particularly this group of 

7 people i~ injury to other inmates for which'the staff is 

8 definitely responsible ~o maintain a safe situation within 

9 the institution with regard to other inmates~ 

lO Q. Now, Doctor 8 you have testified a few moments ago 

ll that you have observed the strip cells and the Isolation 

12 Row o 

13 Yes. r 

14 Q. Now, do you have an opinion as to the propriety of 

W the strip c~lls as a control device? 

M MRo COHLER: Counsel, ar~ you referring to the physi-

117 _c.al-a-S-p-ee-t-s---or-t he c e 11"'" its e 1 f ? -~---.-------_-·-. . -__,~---........,,:.... 

18 MR. GRANUCCI ~ That is right, counsel. In other words, 

19 a cell 'stripped of furniture, stripped of facilities, with 

W the possibility of bein~ closed up, sealed up by closing 

21 up the flap·s e 

22 

23 

MRo COHLER: 

MRo GRANUCCI: 

24 denials. 

25 THE WITNESS~ 

Putting to one side the allegat~ons--

Putting aside th~ allegations and 

I feel that they are a necessity, that 
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l a significant number of inmates require this level of 

,-

2 

3 

external control before th~/behavior c·an be brought 

control so they are not a hazard to themselves and otherso 
a.~/<.e) br-tv..v.tt- 11 ·•,:.1-. ..... . II 'I 

4 AIRs lk4HV~iia ~ Don't you thi~ ~s a brutalizing 

5 and a man in a strip cell? 
f 

~an, I think ~ni restraint is 

7 an unfortunate and an unhappy situat.ion. E'lfen to put a 

8 person to bed for tuberculo~is for a year is really a most 

9 unfortunate thing. And we have made every effort to try 

10 to limit the amount of restriction for disease, whether it 

11 is for physical or mental or social~ To this extent, I 

~ do not like them. But I must recognize that in all three 

13 classes of di~ease certain restraint is necessary. In the 

14 socialization disorders or social disease, the isolation 

15 cell becomes necessary, at least at this stage of human 

16 
/I 

development. 

17-~~------__Q.·---Deeto-r, you were saying the. isolation c·erl. 

~ you mean the strip cell? 

19 I mean the q~iet cell or strip cell. 

-

20 Q. Over how long a period of time have you been visit 

n ing the isolation section of the prison~ including the 

22 strip·:.:cells? 

23 Ao - Since they were b.uilt, or at least since 1956 when 

24 the- :Adjustment Center was moved from San Quentin and set 
t • ' '(< • 

~ up at its p~~s~nt.location. 
-; 
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Q. Through all those yea~s of visits~ have you e~er 
,-

observed a strip cell with an inmate con~ine~ therein with 
-.u;./ 

human body waste spread all over the walls, where the in-

mate didn 1 t do it himself? 

MR. COHLER: E--xcuse me. counsel. I don 1 t ~hink there 
f 

is any foundation for the Do~tor to know Whether the inmate 

7 may have done it himselfc 

8 MR. GRANUCCI~ Letls hear what the Doctor says. 

9 MR. COHLER~ Your Honor, I am going to object, on the 

w ground that there is no evidence that th~ Doctor would kno 

11 whether or not the inmate placed such waste in the cell 

~ himself. He has testified he visits. 

13 THE COURTg 1 He can state what he observed, saw. 

14 THE WITNESS: If I found a cell which had excrement on 

15 the walls, one of my primary responsibilities is to find 

~ out why it was there. If this is a manifestation of the 

117 ~~Yi_OI-0-f--~at ~ndivid;al, then it is highly rikely tlmt 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

he is psychotic. 

I have found--I don 1 t recall whether it was in the 

quiet cells or in the isolation section--! hav~ seen 

-excrement on· the walls. • -~ .. f"r : -_, 
If it was due to mental-illness, . ~ ' "' 

' ~ 

' this man was out of place in that department and was 
' 

promptly moved to the California Medical Facility at vaca-

ville, which I can usually arrange an emergency transfer 
' . 

~ within 24 to 48 hours. This would be a psychotic symptom, 
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generally speaking, which would b~ beyond management in a 

place such as the Adjustment Center. 
~_) . 

I know that after each of the inmates leaves the cell, 

either he or somebody cleans that ~ell within my knowledge 

to the same standards as is maintained within the rest of 
·f" 

the institution,with which I have already outlined. 

MRo ~ GRANUCCI: Q. Now, the first will be a broad 

8 question: Over .the p~rio_d of your visits since 1957 to th 

9 Adjustment Center, particularly the isolation section, hav 

w you had an opportunity to observe the caliber and behavior 

u of the officers. correctional officers and sergeants who 

12 work therein? 

13 Yes, I have. And I have been very concerned about 

W the staff there, both from the standpoint of wear and tear 

15 on them, which is really very extensive, and their ·behavio 

16 toward the inmateo And I might say, as a contract employe -

J1 __ as_ a-.-ao-ntra:c-'for, and not as an employee, I have accee'S' t=Q 

18 the Superintendent v s office, any place .in the institution. 

19 Any time I see anything which is not up to what I feel 

00 reasonable standard, I am able to;report it. 

21 Q. To fix it more definitelf in time, have you since 

~ the beginning of this year, 1966, had •n opportunity to 
( 

23 observe the character, demeanor ·or attitude ·of the officer 

~ that work in the isolation section? ,. 

25 Yeso I haveo 
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• What is your opinioni speaking as a professio-nal 
,. 

manu of the officers? 0 

-~./ 
4.~"I think they are very high caliber people, doing 

4 one of the most difficult jobs that t-he human race has to 

5 offer. 
~ 

6 
1LTo be specific, 

f 
there are not many men ~ho in the face 

7 of being ealled a mother fucking punk, and r am using the 

8 language that is used there! havi~g urine thrown at them, 

9 a.nd feces thrown at them, are still able to maintain the.ir 

10 composure and deal with these people still as human beings, 

11 and still trying to find some way to get them out of this, 

~ what I think is as horrible a social condition as a far 

13 advanced cane~ is a medical condition. 

14 respect for them. 11 

I have great 

1

15 Q. Doctor, do you know Siegfried Porte? 

16 Yes. I know of him, yes. 

17 ____ _Q·---H-a-ve-··-you ever refused him psychiatric t-re-atment.,· 

18 No, not to my knowledge. I have spoken to him, 

19 and as often occurs, these people will ask for a trans£er 

20 to the California Medipal Facility, _now which requires 

M relatively my recommeridation, not necessarily, but out of 

~ a custom if a person is moved there for psychiatric reasons, 

~ generally I make the recommendation. 

~ If I refused him--i£ I did: I don 1 t think that I did--
• 

~ it would be on th~ basis he was not applicable for treatm~ t 
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1 at that facility. At such time aa I see it would b~ ad-

2 

3 

. . . 

vantageous to him or any other inmate,-.! would move him 
--~../ 

there. 

4 Most of our inmates, or many of-them, have already been 

5 thereo and that··includes Mr. Jordan himself.~ I am not 
..:p-

6 acquainted whether Mr. Po~te has been'o~ hot. I would have 

7 to see the record in order to refresh my m·emory on that. 

8 Q. Doctor# is eve_ry :eerson who asks psychiatric treat-

9 ment necessarily amenable to treat~ent? 

10 No, he isn°t at all. Also, obviously there are 

ll limitationso inasmuch as I on a half a time basis am re-

12 cruired to provide all of the services for some 3,200 men, 

~ it would be impossible for me to do so. 

14 However, on a first priority basis s anybody who is ill, 

w mentally ill, and requires treatment, I will either see 

M them or refer them to a correctional counselor who I feel 

17 is_c.omp-e--t;-e-rrt---eonandle their problem. 

18 

19 

20 

Q. 

Q. 

Or you could transfer them to Vacaville. 

I can transfer them to Vacaville, which I do. 

06 you know the ~laintiff? 

21 MR. COHLER~ Your Hon:or, ~-or the record at this point·, 

22 we may be embarking on an' ar"ea where there is possible 

23 privileged. communication ])~tween the plainti:;,f }~:nd the 

24 witness. I have consult~d with counsel, with the witnessg .. ' .. ·: . . 

25 and with the plaintiff. To protect the witness, the 
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l nepartment of Corrections~ myself and.Mr. Jordan, I wo~ld 
.. · ' 

2 like to ask Mr. Jordan at th~i~e to wa~ve any privilege 

3 he may have in open court. 

4 I ask you if I have spoken to you, Mr. Jordan, about 

5 the nature of the p·rivileged information that ma.y exist 

6 between you~~nd Dr. Hack. 

7 

8 MR. COBLER: YoQ unde~stapd ~hat you may have a right 

9 to keep that information unrevealed? 

10 MR •. JORDAN: Yes. 

11 MR. COHLERg Will you tell the Court, speak to His 

~ Honor, and say whether or not you waive any privilege you 

13 may have. r 

14 MR. JORDAN: I waive the privilege. 

W MR. COHLER~ Thank you, coun~el; Your Honor. 

16 MR. GRANUCCI: Q. You say you know the plaintiff, 

17 Docto.r.2--------~-

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Yes 8 I do. 

Q. How do you know-him? 

A. . I have seen him since about 1960, in repeat.ed re-
I . . 

latively annual examinations. In addition, I have seen 

him in casual meetings within the institution and have 

spoken to him occasionally on rounds within the instituti0 , 

particularly within ~he Adjustment Center. 

Q. Now, with the result of your observat·ions of the 
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l plaintiff, have you formed any op~nion of him? 

2 MR. COHLER~ Profession~p1nion? 

I 3 MRo GRANUCCI: Q. Professional opinion.-of courseo 

4 Beginning with my examination ~f April 8 1960, in 
.. 

5 which I no1;.E!d a very high level of hostility./ with remarks 

a such as, quote, and this was made at that time, and I am 

7 sure that this is very close, 
,... 

if not exactly the words 

8 that he used~ 

9 The mother fuckers will have to let me go in 

10 seven and a half years and then I am going to 

ll kill that bitch. 

H He indicated that he was referring to his aunt, who was 

13 involved o 

14 I felt that he presented a problem of the diagnosis of 

W antisocial personality severe wi~h extremely high levels 

M of latent and expressed hostility with potentially 
""' 

17 

18 

---------- ---------
est:r: uctl:vemurderous behavior. 1960. 

1961: I noted that he was slightly more mature and 

19 slightly improved over· last year, but not ready to leave 
". 

~ the Adjustment Center. He had appa~ently spen~ most of th 

n year in ~he idjustment Center. 

22 " ' .1962: He maintained his composure for most of the 

~ examination and theh launched into a long tirad~ about how 

24 the ~ 11 tnother fucker policemen11 -were irritating him and that 

25 he intended to do soptething about it at any 'time they 
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l 1rritated him, and tha~ he did 'not intend to change in this ,. 

z or any other commitment~ 

3 I noted, however. that in spite of the hostile ex-

4 pressions, there was possibly less rear hostility behind 

5 his words. and he is apparently able to operate -reasonably 
-r 

8 wello at le~~t well enough to remain free of the Adjustment 

7 Centero So~in 1962 we had him out of the Adjustment Cente . 

8 Q. There was a 'little progress. 

9 Yes. And incidentally, this is--the idea of the 

W staff there is, as soon as the person enters the Adjustment 

11 Center, the immediate problem is, "How are we going to get 

~ him out? Bow can we move him to the front door of the in-

13 stitution and put him out as a reasonably safe individual 

M from the social standpoint and vocationally able to supper 

15 himself?t1 

18 1962: He appears much more composed this year than 
----~-----

17 _Jilhen seen-·~-rously and none of the hostile out1:5ursts 

~ developed in the interview. He appeared to. be making an 

a effort to express himself constructively, and appears to 

~ now have an interest in the field of cooking add baking. 

21 He was apprised that he does present a consid'erable 

2Z problem for release after ·his long commitment to one type 

23· of ·ari >tn.sti tution or another. and with his long history of 

.M very aggres~ive dest~uctiv~ expressions. No psychotic 
. ' - . 

25 ideation was ·noted~ 
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1 That yearg as.I often ~o ~hen I see any type of openin 

2 to try to move him towar~~'<~ minimum or- -toward a minimum 

3 institution where there will be less _controls and the 

4 living will be more like what we would likely meet in free 

5 life, I suggested this~ 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

~This man has presented a very good year and 

is beginning to show some real prog~ess in 

the dir~ction of-release. With his long 

history, however, he will necessarily be re-

leased with a graduated reduction in custody. 

I am wondering whether he could not be moved 

to the barracks mess department, and in view 

of his long incarceration [seniority] some 

special arrangements might be made after 

several months for him to transfer to the 

barracks mess department. .... ----- -~--

--17 so--cnl.ngs were looking a little better. 

~ In 1964 was the next report. 

19 In examination he shows considerable pro-

M jection--no;~e was back to blaming o~hers 

n· for his troubles, not assuming resporisibility 

22 for his own act~ons--and indicates he intends 

~ to make a stan~.~ that he is not goirig to do 

M anything which he is directed ~o do ~hich he 

25 in any way feels is not justly his job. He 
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projects libe~ally bn the staff that they ,-

are going out of the~~yay to anta·gonize 

him and irritate him, whereas actually the 

staff has done every conceivabre--has made 

every conceivable concession to try to k--eep 

him~_in the general population. 

0055:1 .-

And thi~ is true, I have spoken to staff members and 

we have made every effort_ that we could. to maintain him 

free of the Adjustment Center. 

. His projections are beginning to have the color 
., 

of a delusion, no hallucinatory experiences are 

elicited. 

Then I didnVt see him until 1966, because he was seen 

at the Medical Facility during 1965. 

Q. Excuse me. Is that the Medical Facility at Vaca-

16 ville? 

18 THE COURT: How long was he there? 

19 THE WITNESS: He was there for about- -I believe 

W ending in-- on June .28 1965, when h~ returned io 

21 Their remarks, I· feel are their remarks, and so I ' ~ .· . . 

~ would prefer not to make any comment upon them. My own 

23 observation is ,when I saw him on May 2 1966vJI .. noted that: 

~ He had comp~.ted a rather poor year with 

25 assignment at· CMF, · where in the previ·ous ·report 
i.":-- .. 
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it was hop~d h~ might enter into some con-

structive development. He had been pre-

viously moved to CMF, Vacaville, following 

a suicide attempt by hanging at Sa~ Quentin. 

5 Now, it is not unusual for persons who are extremely 

6 hostile to alternately act out of their hostility and in-

7 JUre otherse or to act inwardly toward themselves and in-

s jure themselves in a suicidal gesture. 

9 Q. Doctor, excuse me$ You mentioned 11 suicidal 

t ~ 10 ges ure. Is there a difference between a suicidal gesture 

U and an attempt at suicide? 

12 A. Yes, there is, indeed. 

13 Q. I wonder if you would explain that for us. 

14 A. I think a suicidal gesture, ~hen this wording is 

~ used, indicates some inten~ to d~stroy himself~ It is my 

W understanding ~hat if this was an attempt to try-- to try 

~ to ~ang himself, and that had it n6t been for the alert 

~ staff, he might have been succ~ssful. 

~ ~ So this was an attempt~- ~ 

00 ~ So thi~ is the true suicidal gesturea 

21 

22 

25 

24 

25 

Now, we have many self dest-r~uctive gestures; such as 

wrist slashing and so on 8 which- ~erve only a p,ur!,>o.se of 

expressing an individtialus resentment, actually sort of a 

masochistic harassment of the staff through injury to them-

selves, usually done during the hours of 5:00 to 10:00 at 
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1 night when the staff co,verage is least and thereby creatin 

z the greatest disorder. These are different from true 

5 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

su~cidal gestures. 

~ So in other words, on the basis of your contact 

with the plaintiff Jordan, you formed a professional 

opinion as to his mental state and his attitudes. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Yes. 

What is that opinion, Doctor? 

I continue to feel that he is an extremely hostile 

w 1ndividualr that is, his feeling tones a~e those which ten 

U to make him destructive. I still feel that he is a risk 

12 to not only the institutional--well to the institutional 

~ staff and inmates, I noted too he presents a problem in an 

U sort of a placement within the institution since we have 

~ tried him at at least th~ee or p'rhaps more of the in-

16 s t it u t ion s . 

17 Q. Doctor, a f~w minutes ago you we~e testifying as 

18 to the contrast oetween the destructive code and the con­

~ structive cod~. 

20 

21 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

Do you feel the plaintiff ~as done anything cdn-

~ structive lately? 

23 

24 

25 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Yes, I think he has. 

What is that, Doctor? 

I described his behavior in 1962~ where he was abl 
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to remain free of the Adjustment Center. Now that was a 

good sign. I am not exactly sure what it was that brought 

that to an end, but it was a flame which we tried to 

nourish9 but weren't able to maintain a de~elopment. 

I think even his writing of writs is a constructive 

thing, because it--

Q. This is something he has done ~ecently? 

A. This is something he has done more recently and 

9 required the organization of his ideas, and writing them 

W down makes him contemplate them, improves his ability to 

11 handle the English language, it channels his hostilities 

~ in a better way than, let us say, assaulting somebody or 

~ injuring himself. So this is, in itself, a sign o! improv 

14 ment. 

15 Q. Doctor, do you think that the plaintiff Jordan is 

M a hostile per~on~ 

17 A. Yes, I would say he was a Very hostile person. On 
' M other remark he made to me once, which was rather sur-

. 
" prising to me, since I don't believe I have evar heard it 

20 from another j.,nmate. He stated, ;"if a ·baby struck me, 

21 1 1 d fight him. ~~~r And his behavior· has been a_J). too ap-
~1, 

~ parent that this is possibly.ti~e. 
,. 

23 MRo GRANUCCI: Your witness, counsel. 

~ MR~ COHLER: Your Honor, I would like to ask for a 

25 recess. This is t~stimony by a professional man. I am 
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not a professiona~. I would like to have a few moments. 

THE COURT~ Ten minutes. 

MR. COBLER~ Thank you. 

4 (A recess was taken.) 

5 MRo GRANUCCI: With leave of the Court, I have a 

6 couple more questions on direct. 

7 

8 

MR. COHLER: 

.MR. GRANUCCI: 

Quite agreeable, Your Hbnor. 

Q. Within the past five years. have 

9 you had occasion to consult with the officials of the in-

w st1tut1on with respect to the use of gas? 

14 

15 

Q. 

Q. 

Yes, I have. 

Did you have occasion to advise them? 

Yes. 

What was the nature of your advice? 

I felt that in about 1962a and from then on until 

16 1 64, that the external controls of the institution were no 

17 r~ally adequate and our methods were not adequ~te to con-

18 trol the degree of destructive behavior which we had 

19 w1thin our inmates, and that some strengthening would be 

20 necessary. 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

I advised the increased use of gas over the use of 

physical force 9 because it is very apparent that there are 

less inJuries resulting to the inmate or to the staff as 

a result of the use of the gas as against physical force. 

MRo GRANUCCl: Thank you, Doctor. 
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Your witnessi counsel" 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. COHLER~ 

Q. Dr. Hack, in the course of your duties as con-

5 sulting psychiatrist--is that the correct terminology? 

6 

7 

8 

A. 

Q. 

mates? 

Yes. 

--as consulting psychiatrist, do you interview in-

Do yoti as a part of your duties interview inmates 

9 who are felt by you or others to require psychiatric con­

lO sultation? 

11 

12 Q. 

That is true. 

How do such cases come to your attention? Are the 

U recommended through officials of the institution? Do you 

M observ~ them yourself? Or how does it happen? 

15 A. The first group of inmates that I see, the first 

M priority of the ~ork are those th~t are generally referred 

17 by other members. of. the staff as s·howing some t_ype of a 
) 

18 · probable p·sychological disorde.r, and they wish my opinion 

19 in regard to this matter. That ~s the first groupo 

20 Then I ha~e a certain group, some eight or· nine hundre , 
,, ' 

n almost 35 to 40 percent of the population, wh6 are major 
·,. .• ~\t . 

~ offenders originallyf that is,-~eople ~ho hav~ had major 

23 aggressive offenses, .'·all of the murderers, the rapists, 

24 certain of the sexual crimes, crimes of un-usual violence, 

25 that I must see b~fore they go before the Board. These a-r 
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1 recommended by the Adult Authority or the Classification 

2 commit tee. 

5 Then I mayo in the course of my movement about the 

4 1 nstitution, see somebody that I think is ~11, or they may 

5 be recommended by the medical staff. 

s These are the sources, generally, of the referrals that 

7 1 see~ 

8 Q. Lirni ting it to your past two years experience, 

9 Doctor, could you break down for the Court the percentage 

W of the categories that you have rnention~d as referred by 

11 the medical staff, and the category by the general in-

12 stitutional staff, and the category interviewed for the 

U purposes of the Adult Authority? 

14 A. Roughly 65 to 70 percent of- my work is referre-d by 
·-

15 the Adult Authority, about 20 percent is referred by other 

U members of the staff, and the remainder by the rned1cal 

H personnel and rnyse~f. 

18 Q. When yo~ consult with an inmate, arising out of an 

19 of these three· circumstances, do1) you do so in an office 

20 
1 

which you maintain? 
IJ"-

At the cell door?_ Or where does it 

21 take place? 

22 It can take place either at my' off'ice,- and 'I main-:-
' 

23 tain really three offices in the institution, one at each 

M of the facilitie~--

25: Q. Referring to North, south, and Central? 
J. 
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North, South, and central. 

P-lease continue. 

Or it may be in the Adjustment Center. 

00558 

If it is 

4 1 n the Adjustment Center 6 it may be in one of t:.he rooms u it 

5 may even sometimes be in the clear area before the bars of 

6 the AdjusJ;.ment Center·- -before the barred areag out in the 

7 adm.J.nistrat i ve section. 

s These are the places where I would see them~ 

- 9 Q,. Do you go back into the west or east corridors to 

w conduct your interviews in the course of your duties, on 

ll the first floor of o-~ing? 

12 I don 9 t remember the conducting of any Board inter-

~ views in-- Well, yes I do interview them right in the 

u cells, too, sometimes. Very often. As a matter of fact, 

~ specifically in the quiet cells or the isolation cells or 

16 on the other side, the east side, I believe, the maximum 

17 section. 

~ ~ ~ Would you int~rview any inmate referred either by 

~ the Adult Authority reference or the-members of the staff 

-20 or the medical staff or yourself, would t'he place of the 

21 
.{f1'-

interview depend on the nature of that reference? For in-

22 stance, is there a special room in which. yoll wo\l·ld inter-
• ' ~ - 'I' 

~ v1ew people before the Adult Authority is to convene? 

24 A. No. The place of interview is determinsd largely 

~ by the status of the inmate and the ability to move him~ 
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-l . In order to move the inmate from the Adjustment Center to 

,, 
z my off1ce-in the hospital requires two staff men, which ~s 

reasonable" For any movement to the hospital requires two 

4 staff men. 

5 But where he is interviewed depend~ largely on his 

6 .status o L£ he is apt to act out, I can 9 t very well move 

7 him to a place which would be isolated where he might make 

8 some movement towards me, although I have never been at·-

·9 tacked since I have been there. That is about all I can 

10 say in regards to this. 

11 Q .. Doctor 6 can you estimate the percentage of inmates 

U whom you interview in the course of your duties in your 

13 office? 

14 Probably 90 percent of the inmates are interviewed 

w in one of the thiee offices which I mentioned. 

16 Q. would.most of the other ten percent be inmates who 

17 are incarcerated or-· housed in the Adjustment Center some-

18 where? 

19 

20 

21 

Yes. 
"'~ -. 

~ -~ • I 

~ Within the Adjtistment Center, can you ·~stim~te, of I 
- - I 

.;;"- : ; 

the remaining teti pe~cent, how.many of the inmates that'yo~ 

E 1nterview are some pla~e else in _t~~ ~djustment Center 
l 

~ other than the stri~ cell area or quiet cell area?· 

24 Probably about 70 percent would be outside of the· 

~ quiet cell areao 
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Q. In other wordsu 70 percent of the remaining ten 

percent~ or seven·perc~nt? 

That is right. 

Q. Of the remaining three percent of the inmatesq 

approximatelya I realize this is an estimate, whom you have 

1 nterviewed who were incarcerated at the strip cell or 

quiet cell area, have you interviewed all of them in their 

cells? 

Yesu I have~ In that area I rarely move them from 

their cells Q I speak to them through the barso grate out-

11 side. Occasionally I will remove them from there out to 

~ an interview room. But often the reason for the examina­

~ tion there is, No. 1, to ascertain their statusa watching 

u for dehydration or any negative signs indicating any sort 

~ of physical or m~ntal breakdown, or to determine whether 

w this man should be housed here or whether he presents a 

17 medical problem which ·should. be handled· at the Medical 

18 Facili t}f. These are ~eterrninations which can be relative~ 

~ rapidly handled wi~hout the ~ov~m~nt of the- inmate from 
,, 
" . 

20 there~ 

21 Q. 
4"'-

Doctor o y·ou interview them at the cell front. Tha 

~ would mean the door would be ~~~~n ~Q the strip cell ar~a 

~ and you would'~e st~nding in the doorway, approximatelyi 

24 

25 

as a general matter? 

That is rightQ Standing right up to the bars wher 
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I can see the entire interior of the cell and the inmate . 

Q. It is not-consldered good practice to step inside 

the cell with an inmate of this type, is it? 

No. And I donit know as I have ever done so. It 

would.be a violation of the principles of security of the 

institution and good practice, anyway. 

Q .• What other responsibilities do you have, in addi-

8 tion to the actual interviewing of inmates? 

9 A, I have responsibilities in regard to advising the 

w staff, in regard to the management of any type of a prob­

ll lem which either I or they see fit to refer to me, and I 

~ have extreme latitude in regard to what I might see fit. 

~ Anything I feel is out lf line, I am able to immediately 

U enter the SuperintendentVs office or anyonevs office. 

~ I deal with ~roblems of other--of the personnel as to - . -

M whether a member of the staff is adequate or whether he is 

17 well enough· from the psychol.ogical standpoint for ·appoint-

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

- ' 

m~nt or)retention or his neurological status. 

I also have to.manage the problems of the epileptics 
<1~, • 

in the institution, whi.ch probably n.umber; :at least the 
c/'-

complicated epileptics, I prescribe their medication, and 

they number probably 50 to. 7 5 inma_t.e_f(e 

Q. Doctora could you estimate· how much of the total 

time you spend of your capacity as consulting psychiatrist 

dispatching the various duties you enumerateda excep~ the 
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actual interview of inmates. 

005fi2 

The actual interview of inmates takes by far the 

largest p~rt of my time. Probably 95 percent of my time 

iS spent with inmates and five percent in regard to staff. 

Q .• What are the hours which you engage in work at the 

institution, not counting time it takes to go to and from 

7 t;;;he institution? 

8 A. That is four hours a q~y, five days a week; twenty 

9 hours per week. 

10 Q. Is it fair to saya Doctor, that bein~ a professiona 

u psychiatrist and having as limited time as you do for work 

~ at the institution, that your primary purpose when you are 

~ there is to deal with the people, the inmate~? 

14 THE COURT: You dropped your voice. 

~ MR. COHLER: I am sorry. 

16 Q. Is it fair to say, Doctor, that having about 20 

~ hours per we~k to di~p~tch your professional responsibili-

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

ties at ~he institutiori, ~hat y6ur primary goal when 
• T . 

are there, is to ~ ~ith the imnat·es _personally? 

\ 

you 

A •. Yes~ ·, -

Q. You have me~tioned, Poctor, I believe on direct 
' , .. \,, 

examination that there i~ a variance in the state of clean-
.. . . ~ 

liness of the cells throughout the institution, and'parti-

cularly in the strip cell or quiet cell area. Is that 

·' 
correct'? 
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l 
Yes; 

2 
Q. You also stated, I believe, and please correct me 

5 if my recdllection is wrong, that to your knowledge where 

' there was not as clean a condition as there sometimes is, 

5 this has been brought about by the inmate in the cell him-

6 self. 

7 A. That is true. 

8 Q. What is the basis for your knowing whether or not 

9 the inmate in the cell himself did it, or whether he had 

w come two hours before and it had been there w~en he arrived? 

11 I would-- As I. indicated before, I am rather con-

~ cerned if the cell is in an unclean status 9 because my 

~ basic training as a medical person is that all facilities 

14 should be clean. It is particularly important if the cell 

~ is unclean by reason of excrement or some other body soil-

~ ings, because it might indicate the presence of mental 

17 illness. It is my j~b .to determine, and I do determine, 

18 whether this is true. 
} 

If.this ~an is, through a psychosis~ 

19 as is frequently the case, may b.egin · to smea-r the feces, 
~ ~ 

W ·this is a serious sign and represen~s ~major ~llness. 

21 This man is beyond u:h.e management of that type of facility, .. 

22 and I would move him. 

23 I neglected to mention that we do treat, incidentally, 

some inmates there. As a matter of fact, two of the 

l25 original signors of the 'affidavits in the current action 
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were treated by me and are currently doing ~uite well; 

so--

Q. Continue~ 

Soo the removal of inmates from the institution--

5 from the Adjustment Center, is not only an administrative 

6 probleme but also a medical problemc 

7 They might either go to vacaville if they are really 

s ill, or I might treat them and they may go through another 

9 program to the psychiatric unit 6 to Y-wing, or to -E-wing, 

w and thence out into the general population and meet with 

u all groups and be handled that way. 

12 Q .• Doctor, you said that if you had occasion to obser e, 

~ and did in fact observe, a state of uncleanliness, parti-

14 cularly human waste, you find out how it got there. How 

15 do you find ·out how it . got there? 
-

16 My immediate concern is: Is this man doing this 

17 smearing? If he is, it i~ reflected in his mental status, 

W because a hebephrenic schizophrenic. whiqh is.the type who 

~ would do this type of thing, is a very dist~rbed individual. 

20 It wouldn t t take more than a freshman 'in med.i.c.al school to 

21 determine that thi~person was a hebephrenic schizophrenic 

~ problem and shouldn 9 t be· in that locatibn. 

~ Now, I have a Chance to see· the cells between ~imesa 

~- when they are not occupied. And I know that not only the. 

~ cells 9 but the areas outside are clean. If they are not, 
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.I have--as a matter of fact. I have suggested the more 

rapid clea_rin.g up .of debris after some of the destructive 

1 ncidents. 

Q .• If the gentleman in the cell, the inmate in the 

cell. was not of the type you have described where it is 

apparent from your observation as to whether or not he had 

smeared th~ walls, what would you do to find out whether 

or not the inmate himself in the cell had smeared the walls 

Ao Well, I would be more concerned, I think, then 

10 about: How are we going to clean this thing pp? This is 

ll an unhealthful state. 

~ I have talked with the sergeant about this not 

~ more than a week or so ago. I think fecal smearing occurs 

U only with a psychot1c generally. But we have people who 

15 are hostile and just will not .leave the cells to either 

M bathe or to clean the cell. 

17 Nowe I remember ·speaking to the sergeant. He asked me 

~ very ser~ously~ 11 This cell does not look good, and he 
' 

~ will not leave. Should we use force to take him out to 

M. clean the cell?" We talked at some length· abo~t this, a~d1 

21 we decided that we ~auld let it go a little longer. The 
! • 

22 man was in good shape from a physic a~ ,standp9int .. 

23 
I 

I would like to say that I have never seen a pneumon1a 

24 or a severe dehydration or any other serious med,i.cal ill-

25 ness out of this section. 
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So recognizing his statusu we let him go and live in 

1 t a lit~le longer, r~ther than have to go through the 
' 

procedure of the use of gas to remove him to take a bath 

or something of this sort. 

This is a question that has already arisen in regard 

tc you:t' client at Vacaville g At one time he was apparent-

ly in x-~ing or one of the restricted wings and he--one of 

the staff recognized that the air was too close and the 

odor was not goodu and he wanted to open the window; 

whereupon your client began to curse him and threaten his 

life. 

So usually the unclean state of the cell is determined 

pr1marily by the status of the inmate, and it was probably 

u this event, plus others~ which made them determine at vaca-

e Ville, .that is, the medical faci~ity, that he wasnVt 

~ applicable for their treatment. 

d 
17 Q. Doctor, I take it that the incident you r~lated, 

18 you ref~rred to a doc3-1rnent of some sort? 

A. Yes, I did. 

Q. When you are excused from the stand, would you 

21 .&-
kindly find that document in the file so we may have a com-

~ plete reference. 

Counsel, is that agreeable? 

24 MR. GRANUCCI~ Certainly a 

·' 
MRo COHLER: Your Honore I am going to have to move to 
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strike all of the testimony as being hearsay of a very 

direct n~turee the Doctor 1 s comments as to what happened 

at another institutione I see no foundation for that. 

THE COURT~ That may go out. 

MR. COBLER: Thank you. 

Q. Doctor, is there any particular way that you visit 

7 the strip cell or quiet cell area? Or just as it comes up 

8 in your duties? 

9 A, Any time that there is a complaint of a disturbed 

W inmate, one who has involved himself in som~ sort of self 

ll destructive gestureu has remained overly long in that area 1 

~ has raised the anxiety of the staff as to his mental status 

13 I am asked to see him. And this is the first priority of 

14 my work. So I usually see them very soon, that day or the 

15 next. 

16 Q .• You estimated that perhaps three percent of your 

~ actual interviews are. conducted in the strip eel~ ~rea. 

~ would ~hat mean on the average of three out of 100 days 
' 

~ you would make your way into the strip cell areae on an . 
.20 average? 

21 MR. GRANUCCI~ .e"-Objection, Your Honor. I think that is. 
- (' 

22 misstating the witness 1 testimony •. ·It woul~ not be three 
' . 

~ our of every 100 days. It would be three percent ~f his 

24 interv1ews, and a great many interviews could have taken 

25 place in a given day. 
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.l MR. COHLER: That is true enough. I will withdraw that. 

2 Q. C~n you estimate about how often you do get to the 

3 quiet or strip cell area itself? 

4 A. I would say that I am there from one to three times 

5 per w~ek, at least, over a period of since 1960. 

6 Q. That would be one to three interviews per week? 

7 or several interviews each time you went? 

8 Generally speaking, when I go back there. there 

~ may be one or two pe6ple in the area and I speak to one of 

w them. The other one wants to talk to meq so. I speak with 

11 him a minute a That is about the way the schedule works 

12 out. 

13 Q. Doctor, you have testified as to the general cours 

u of your conduct in dispatching your affairs and things ~ou 

~ observe and things you do. Do you have any independent 

M recollection of any particular period of time--and I ask 

~ you to direct your ·attentio~ to the mo~th of July- 1965--

18 and r can ask you whether you can separate at that p"oint 
' 

W amidst your general recollection? 
1·; 

20 A. I don'~ remember anything of july· 19&s·as having 

21 any great signific~nce within the institution. 

'22 Q. For instance, d6 you recall~in July 196~ ever 

~ visiting with ~r. Jo~dan, the ~laintiff, while he ~as in­

~ carcerated in a strip or quiet cell? 

A. I don 9 t re~ember specifically. I have seen Mr. 
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Jordan in the Adjustment Center in various locations so 

t 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

many timesp that one s~hgle incident doesn 1 t appear in my 

memory in any striking form. 

Q. That would be true of many inmates, would it not? 

Yes, many inmates. Howeveru I think more striking 

~ith himN inasmuch as he has spent so much time in the 

7 Adjustment Center 0 Therefore. I have seen him there more 

8 times. 
---~ -- -

9 Q. When you say you have seen hi~ there, you mean you 

w have seeh him on a professional basis? 

11 Seen him either--usually in passingg because Jorda 

12 doesn it often communicate with me in speech. He has 

u written some very good letters, some very good letters. He 

U is very literate. And I have read them. But I have been 

15 continually submerged in the p.ro'J?lem of how to deal with 

M the administrative problem of working him out of the 

17 situation he is in, ·so -I hav~nVt been able to take- ahy 

M action. 1 He has been relatively like a fiv~-ton steel ball. . . . 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

with no hand holds'· which I am unable ·to mov-e. 
-· ----~--~·.-------:---_... ... 

Q. Docto~, can you·recall any visits ~ith'any inmat~s 

~ 
during the month of July 1965? 

' ~~ ,\ 

I donit remember any specifi~ one~ 
/ 

Q. I aljt not asking for it by n-ame. Do you remember 

any particular occasion with any inmate during that month?· 

No. 
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Q. Or any of the surrounding circumstances? 

The only ~ay ~ could find it would be to go back 

over my records and to see the reports of my examinations 

of that month. 

Q,. In none of your testimony today have you intended 

to refer specifically to that period of time, is that cor-

rect? 

No~ Only as it is a part of the general experience. 

Q. You also referred to your opinion as to the qualit 

w of the staff as you have observed it throug~ your long 

11 experience and as a professional man who has particular 

~ abilities to make such observations. Were you referring t 

~ staff at all levels within the Adjustment Center? 

14 Yes, and specifically to the correctional offic~rs 

~ who have the closest contact .with the inmates. 

16 Q. And I believe you also said that is not always a 

~ very pleasant job. -

~ ~ } I look upon it as a very difficult job, and 

l9 actually considerable care is . exerc·ised in ~the. assignment· 

~ of an officer to that position as to ~h•ther h• has the· 

H qualities to handiS the wear and tear and to present as 

~ constructi~e approach as can be pr~sent~d u~der_the cir-

23 cumstances .. 

24 Q. Would you enumerate at greater length 7tle nature 

25 of the considerable care which is. taken? 
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A. We have discussed, for instance. at length the 

removal--as to how long the staff should remain there befor 

~t is likely the wear and tear of the work might begin to 

4 be reflected in some way in their approach to the inmates 

6 or in their own mental health. We have even used the word 

18 months in the past. 6 

7 However. it would appear that some members of the staff 

6 are able to handle the situation much better than others. 

9 we havenvt really worked out any deadlineo 

10 I know one staff member was removed momen~arily and 

11 reinstated. I have reference to Officer Spoon, Officer 

~ Spoon was removed and I believe reinstated. My observation 

~ of Officer Spoon were that he was a constructive individual 

14 in that work o 

15 Q. were you involved in a.ny _discussions pertaining to 

~ the reass~gnment or removal, as you have called it, of 

17 Officer Spoon? 
.. 

16 ~ot in that situation, noG 

19 Q. were you involved in any disbussion• involving his 

W ~reinstatement, as you put it? 

21 

22 

A. 

Q. 

NoG 

What opportuniti~s have you,had--and since you have 

I mentioned Officer Spo6n, let's take. 6fficer Spoon-~~hat 

~ opportunities have you had within the past two years to 

~ observe Officer Spoon performing his duties? 
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1 
I have seen him any day that I was there and he 

2 
was assig,.neda I can 9 i recall the schedule. I have watched 

h1 m at work and how he ~anages the inmates, his attitude. 

4 1 felt that they were well within acceptable limits. 

5 I. have been particularly impressed with other officers. 

6 The curre~t Sergeant Friedrick has been outstanding, as has 

7 officer Mata~ 

8 on one occasion we sent one of the program administra-

·g tors, the first assigned program administrator went to a 

10 psyciatric nurses seminar to see if we couldn 1 t learn some-

u thing about the handlirig of disturbed people. They were 

u the psychiatric nurses, mainly from the Department of 

~ Mental Hygiene. 

14 

15 

16 

Q. 

Q. 

When was that? 

Mr. Browri went to that seminar probably about 1962. . .. -

Do you know when Mr. Brown stopped working in the 

l7 Adjustment Center? .. 
~ ~ lMr. Brown was .superseded by Mr. Johnston I believ~ 

19 last year. 

ao .Q. 196 s? 
.;p-

~ ~ Something like that. 

22. 

23 

24 

25 

·~ ... l: .... 

Q .• Do staff generally know who you are,· Doctor, .and 

particularly in the ·Adjustment Center? 

Welle I would say that outside of the Superinten-

dent and maybe a few of the other administrative people, 
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1. that more of the sta.ff pro~ably know me than probably any 

2 

5 

4 

5 

other persono inasmuch as I have been there longer than 

·most people and have a general contact with the whole in-

stitution in one way or anothero 

Q. Any of the officers or sergeants or other staff 

6 on duty Ln the Adjustment Center would know you were the 

7 consulting psychiatrist, .Dr. Hack, would they? 

8 That is r:i..ghto 

9 Q. And they would know that you had access to all of 

10 the administrative offices with .great ease, ·more so than 

u even some of their superiors? 

12 

13 Q. 

That is right. 

Siegfried Porte was mentioned in direct examination 

U Are you aware, Doctor, whether or not Mr. Porte has been 

lli recommended for psychiatric care _by_ any other psychiatrist 

~ or any other body? 

17 I ~onder if r·might·make refer~nce to the record 

18 in that case - -

19 

20 

Q.. 

A. 

Please~ 

--inasmuc.h as my mind works much better when re-
' <iii"-

~ fresh~d by the w6rd~ I write~ 

22 

23 

Q. 

A. 

That would be very helpful·o- · 

One of the first potential sources of justifica-

M tion is the Adult Authority report, and he was seen at the 
/ 

~ Adult Authority last at DVI, that is the .Dual vocational 
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1, rnstitute at Tracy, June 16 1 66. It was advised to get 

2 him into-a meaningful vocational programe No recommenda-

3 tion by them directly to be moved to the Medical Facility. 

4 Looking at my report here on him of April 1 1965, I 

5 saw him at this time_, April 1 1965, for a psychiatric 

6 consultation prior to trial for an alleged attempted escape 

7 at CTF North at about 4 ~ 15 p om. March 24 1965 o 

8 At that time I felt that a movement to CMF vacaville 

9 was not indicated, so I didn 1 t recommend it at that time, 

w and I wrote a one-page formal report which outlines his 

11 previous life, being a second termer--

l2 Q. I don 9 t mean to interrupt you, Doctor, but perhaps 

~ you could look at the various Adult Authority pages. Is 

U there more than one contained in the file? 

15 A.o Apparently in Porte,.· he cam_e in in 1964, he was 

~ seen in-- Excuse me. The Adult Authority report which I 

l7 read was not in regard to that inmate~ It was in regard 

l8 to his)crime partner.;, That was an error, Your Honor, and 

l9 should be corrected .• 
~~ 

~ 

lO MRo COHLER: .Your Honor, I am sorry to have to proceed 
15"--

ll this way 0 I hav~ n6t had an opportunity--! have not asked 

I for it either--to reveiw the file~ 

13 THE WITNESSg I do not see here the Adult Authority 

~ recommendation in regard to himo Howev~er, Porte-- · Let! s 
- ~ 

see if he has appeared-- He appeared June 1 19666 and he 
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1 .was postponed for appearance before the Board for two years. 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

till June_of 1968~ and"they made a referral that I was to 

see him before his next Board appearance, or some psychiatrist 

was to see him. But he is not recommended for ~ placement 

in the medical facility. 

MRo CQHLER~ Q. Before you lose that piece of paper, 

7 I would like to have that point marked. if I might. 

8 would you read precisely what is stated thereu please. 

9 "Miscellaneous Action: 

~ that he is to be seen by me or by a psychiatrist at what-

1 ever institution he is in and a report rendered before he 

2 appears for his next Adult Authority appearance in June of 

.3 1968 0 

. 4 Q . Who makes these entries, Doctor, do you know? 

.5 These are made by cle~ic~l personnel, and they are 

B transcribed from the formal Board action sheet. 

. 7 Q . Is this what you would see? Or is there s·oniething 
- . 

. 8 else that you would se,e? 

.9 I receive 9 list put out by the institution in-

dicating each month those people that I am to 'see for the 

11 next mon.th. 

12 Q. And the notation is made f~,O!Ii,aJlother document,; is 

~ that correct. the n6tation you just re.d? 
'! ·-

Yes. Ther• is a formal promulgation of Adult 

Authority action which is made up after each of the Board 
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1, appearances. This is in a book form. 

2 

5 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

Q. Is a copy kept at the institution? 

As far as I know. 

Q. Is a copy normally kept in a jacket such as you 

have. here? 

No. This is the only reference in this file. 

Q. Thank you. 

The only other referral for a psychiatrist could 

9 be made by the Classification Committee. 

10 Q. Is there a psychiatrist on the Classification Corn-

ll mittee? 

12 

13 

14 

Q. 

No. 

A psychologist? 

No. If they desire that type of service, they refe 

15 them to me. 

~ There is .no reference here, at least within the last 

17 

18 

19 
.. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

year, of any psychi:at·ric- -of his being ·recommended· for a 

formal'psychiatric t~eatrnent. 

~ As I undefstand it, the o~ly·occasion ·you would 
,. ~ -· , 

have to visit with Mr.· Porte in this instance·, ·aside from· 
~ 

another occurrence, ·would be when you receive a list of 

those a month before com.ing up befo_r~ the A..dul t. Author.i ty 

and had that ·reference notation
1
? ,. · 

Ther~ is anothe~ incident which has occurr~d, ho~-

~ver, in which I did see him. He involved hi~self in a 
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! self mutilation gesture. 

2 Q. ~ don't want to cut you off--

3 Counselp I would like to have your help on this. I 
:I 

41 would rather not go into personal lives of these other meno 
II 

5 j other than counsel feels it necessary, since it was 
lj 
II 

ell elicited-on direct. I am not objecting for purposes of 

7 the case.· I just don 1 t want to do this to people unless 

8 it necessary. 

9 MR. GRANUCCig Wello I am trying to recall some testi-

W~ mony of Porte, but he did testify to that a~t of self-

MR. COHLERg If you would like to bring this out on 

your examinationo fine. But I would rather not go into it. 

MR. GRANUCCI g You asked the question, counsel. You 

can withdraw it if you want. 

MR. COHLER~ I dQn 1 t think I asked the question to 

which that was responsive. 

MR~ GRANUCCI: counselo you said: was there any other 

occasion, other thqn the--

~ ~R. COHLER; .No, I didn 1 t. I asked in the·absence of 

ll II such another occa;;_on o he would have seen Mr. Porte only 

l21 by receiving the list for the month df those coming up 

13 I 
II 

before the .Board. I will be glad· to haye it read back. 

u !I 
~II 
I II 

I 

MR. GRANUCCI g I will accept your version of it. 

MR. COHLERg Q. I am sorryo ·Doc-tor" I didn•t mean to 
.• 
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il 
il ff 

'1 il c u t y 0 u 0 0 

Perhaps your counsel will want to ask you 

1

1 about th.i s. z I 

3 f A. Do you wish me to make an answer? 
I II 

4 
,j 
II 

5 il ,, 
I) 
li 

6 I, 
I 

Wello there is another way which I might ~ee him and 

1 di-d see him o And this is the only answer I am able to 

provide you o I did see him because there was a self 

7 ,, destructive gesture. and this is one of the points which 

8 would bring him to my attention and did bring him to my 

g : attention o I have to make a decision as to whether this 

w iS a bona fide suicidal gesture and he requires additional 
' u! management. or whethet it is a self destructive gesture 

:1 

" ~! aimed at the expression of his own hostility, 
I 

13 !J 

irritation of 

'I I, 

141! 
15 ~1 

[I 

staffo and whatever other motive he might have. 

Q. Doctor. I believe you have testified as to the pur-

poses a strip cell may serve 0 I believe ncontrol" was one 

161 of the terms . that you used 0 

~~ Do I understan~ correctly that by ~tripping the cell 

lsll and removing all of the facilities inside the cell, the 
I 

19 

20 
,, 

zlli 
li 

zz 1 

i 

opportunity for an·inmat~ to ihj~re himsel~ o~ others is 
,, ., . . "'.:) 

reduced, and this is one of the prim.ary functions of plac-
4"-' 

1ng an .inmate in the strip cell? 

~ That {s one of the reason~.- but not the- most cisual 

23 
1
1· reason 0 If w~ fel~ he were going· to injure hi~self, we 

24 might move hfm to--we usually use the first cell of the 
;> 

25 isolation section if we feel there is any chance of ~njury 
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~ 

to himselfv because he can be observed best by staff. 

The primary reaso~ for him being in the strip cell is z 1/ 

3 j that he is usually--he has already destroyed his own cell 
! 

4 I 
,I 

51/ 
/: 

6!1 
'i I· 

711 ,, 
:j 

8/i 
,I ,, 

9 :: 
! 

10 !I 

u1l 
II 

1211 
I! 

1311 
1\ 

through the flooding of it or burning of it or_ some other 

destruction, or he has agitated the rest of the inmates in 

thiS section o 

NOWo we have a responsibility to allow these people to 

rest and to be in a position of-- they are entitled to 

their rest in the same way that anybody else is. If a 

person screams and creates disorder, we know absolutely, 

through our observations, that within a short while these 

very short tempered people, extremely short tempere~people 

are going to be screamingo shouting. and destroying them-

14 'I selves in their own cellso 

15' So it is immediately coni:.ing~nt _ upon the staff to as 

16 quickly as possible remove that man to a place where he 

17 cannot annoy ·these -other people, these .20 or. so p-eople who 

~ might be in intimate contact or the people on the other 

19 side who are only .a.matter of ·100. f~et or less- from him • 
... _:, 

2b If we do not. gain control of thi_s sit~a~i~n and put him 

21/ in a place where h: will not be heard, we will have a 

22 general disorde~.- in which much of the property ma:y be in-

23 jured 0 

24 As a matter of facto two days before the Judge appeared 

25 some eight, I believe, o~ the commodes were destroyed and 
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l 
the cells were flooded 0 We were unable to gain a control 

of it quickly enough o •• 
2 

3 so we must remove these peopleo If we don't, the 

4 aq 1 tation spreads and can even spread to the upper floors. 

5 These people can only stand so much noise and they will 

6 ]Oll1 :in ito 

7 ~ The purpose of the quiet cell or strip cell then 

8 1 s served byo oneo removing them from the situation where 

9 they WI!:'Jre physicallydand twou perhaps in that situation, 

w, closing the flaps and shutting off the nois~. 
jl 

u~ ~ That is right~ 
'! 

~~ ~ Is there any purpose to be served, Doctor, by 

~~ leaving the flaps closed longer than the noise is continu-
11 

1411 ing? 
!I 

wl ~ No purpose other than the noise may again start. 
I 

Mj ~ If it were the judgment of the officer or the 
I 

~~ sergeant. whoever ~t was who opened and closed the flaps, 
--

~ that the noise proba~~y had gone by, is there any legiti-

19 mate purpose o bas~d upon your experience as a -psychiatrist, 
• ' ~· I"> ".) ' 

2o with a go~od deal of experience in p;r.isons-, to keep the flaps 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

closed? 

I would say that ,it serves, :t·l}e purpose of-- we: 

seem to-operate on a system of where if it is economic to 

do somethingo if it is an easy expression--if some ex-

pression achieves a result and the negative effects are · 
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minimal, let us say the system of rewards and punishments 

works to the adv~ntage of an action. the action is.more 

The placement up of the flaps may 

~herefore make it a little less likely that the agitation 

Q. Doctor, let,me try to ask you again: In the situa-

tion where the agitation has ceased, and in the judgment 

of the o~ficers or other responsible personnel the agita-

t:on 1s not likely to arise againi ba~ed upon your ex-

perience as a psychiatrist and in the priso~s, is there a 

basic purpose for leaving the flaps closed? 

~ Yes, I believe there is. And that is, it is a 

discouragem~nt to further outbursts of potentially 

destructive nature, such as brought about the action in 

the first place 0 

~ Over how long a period of time would you~ based on 

that same experience'· feel. keeping the. flaps closed was 

A. Well, at least that ni9ht:·and then the next day, 
~ ~ 

as is usually the prob-lem, the man is· brought out and We 

:.s brought before ~he Adj ustrnent center Cornrni ttee, and it 

is determinedg Wellg what can we do with this man so we 

can begin to move him out of the A~justment Centei? And 

usually at that time we determine that, depend~ng upon his 

behavioro whether the ~laps woul4 have to be closed or not 
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If he continues to agitate, we might stroll back 

he might_ throw something at uso which means we can't even 

ma 1 ntain the area without either having ourselves diluged 

with refuse or the inmate who happens to be as~igned to 

clean there. 

Q. You use the term ~vwe 11 when referring to the Dis-

7 ciplinar~ Committee. Doctor. First of all. is it your 

8 understanding that the Disciplinary decides whether or not 

g the flaps remain open or closed? 

10 A. The Adjustment Center Committee or the 

u sergeant, probably the sergeant, determines this in his 

12 dHlcussion with the staff~ 

13 Q. Wheri you say n~e,~ have you been included on dis-

14 cussions as to whether or not a particular flap ought to 

15 be open or c 1 o s e· d? 

16 I donit think I have ever been involved in whether 

~ the flaps ~hould b~ opened or closed. The primary question 

18 1s: Where can we house this man? Can he be moved back 
' 

19 upstairs now? Has he had enough of this? -can we clear 

'20 him out of that area? 

.21 Q,. I want to ~irect your attention as much as possible· 

I to an inmate in a quiet. or strip qell who ~ay w~ll have 
:< • • - I 

23 been put there for having agitated, as you and otr{ers have 

24 described it. When the inmate had stopped his noisy 

25 agltation and when the officers feel that he is not abou·t 
'''\ 
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to resume it--and that must be something about which yo~ 

cannot n_ow tes·ti.fyo a·s to when that would be- -but when they 

do r-each that tirne 0 is there any legitimate purpose for 

4 keeping the flaps closed? 

probably not~ And I would~-my experience has Noo 

:I been that we have begun to consider at that time: Is there 

I' 
711 any legitimate reason to keep him where he is at? 

8// we 

Can't 

II 

gJ' 

begin to move him out? 

Q. and I would like to 

10 be very clear. Don't you agree that there ~s no reason to 

ll keep the flaps closed once the agitation or the noise-

12 making or the reason for having closed the flaps has 

13 expired? 

14 ~Ro GRANUCCig Objection 6 Your Honor. Asked and 

15 answered several times. 

16 MR. COHLERg I have had some problems here, Your Honor. 

H would you read-back the question, please, Miss· Reporte • 

~ (The question wa~ read.) 

19 THE WITNESS: I would say -that· t-here i'S no good reason. 

·20 They can be opened, and they can be shut· as quickly as 

21 they can be openecf': 

22 Q. 
. 

You say nno goo'd reasono n. You mea~ the_re is no 

23 
I 

rea&on that you as ~ psychiatrist. with experience in 
•, . 

124 penology and in the institutionu could justify~ is that 

125 :;orrect? 
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l 
I would say that is raasonably true. 

2 
Q. ~ir, I wish you could say yes or no in your pro-

5 
1 

• fessi.oniall capac i t.y. Can you answer that? 

4
1 /.,o l will answer it yes, then. 

Thank you. Doctor; you have testified that upon 
5 

6 /. occaL:SH.on _cells have not been as clean as other cells Q You 

I 7 

8 

have alsd testified that there have been occasions when it 

has been difficult to move the inmate from the cell in 

9' order to clean it up" 

10 That is rightv 

11 Q. And that moving the inmate in such a circumstance 

12 may p indeed a result in greater problems; such as the use 

~ of tear gas ·or possible injury t6 the inmate or the staff. 

14 

15 

Ao That is true. 

Nowu except for the situation where you can 1 t move 

16 the man for any of these various reasons or where the man 

17 can 1 t be moved 0 is ··there any justification for pe-rmitting 
. 

18 a cell ,not to be clea?ed, in your opini6n as a psychiatris , 

U and based upon yo~r experience-wit~in the prison walls? 

20 Ao I would like to say thise tha~ t~ere i~ anbther 

21 problem here; that..,...it is the r.esponsibility primarily of 

22 

23 

'/ 
the inmate to clean his own cell,~ and it is_ of some conse-. . .._ "/ . . 
quenC'e and a serious problem in t:.he management ·of the 

Adjustment Center or any other part of the institution td 

~ ask another inmate to clean a ceLl which has been disturhe 
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by another person, particularly in the Adjustment Center­

where th_e man who is "the porter is himself an Adjustment 

center inmate o 

Q. Probably from X-wing? 

Maybe from X-wing. maybe from O-wing. 

so we have to consider that perhaps the man should 

clean up his own cell after he has made a mess of it. We 

can scarcely ask--or it preserits a problem in asking an-

other inmate to clean up his cell. It may beu if he is--

there would be no problem if the inmate were psychotic. 

The cell would be cleaned after he left. If the inmate 

~ were not. then he would be expected to clean his own. 

13 Q. Doctor, I want to exclude from all of these ques-

w tions a situation where the inmate canit be moved from.his 

~ cell because of-physical dif£iculties. Please bear that 

18 in mi1ldo As a psychiatrist and a man who has worked insid 

17 this type of insti-tution for several years~ what- purpose 
.· 

~ do you1feel is serve~ by leaving a cell in an unclean stat 

19 A. Well, I personally don't ·like to see a cell in ari 
., 

W unclean stateo and when I see the ar~a and it is not c!ean, 

21 I usually make a temark about. it and ascertain why a Now--

22 Q. I am not attem~ting to fi~ any bla~e o~ you for 

23 the state of the ceil. There has been testimony in this 

~ caseo Doctore which you may not have heardo Sqme people· 

25 have testified th~¥ have been in.cells that have not be~n 
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1. clean. It ~ay very well be that these were at times whe~ 

2 you had IJ.Ot had an opportunity to inspect the cells 9 

3 NOWo I think it is fair to ask you to assume an unclean 

4 cell. I am asking you whether or not, on the basis of youi 

5 

6 

7 

8 

professional experience as a psychiatrist and having been 

with thi~ institution for sometimeg what purpose is served 

by leaving a man in an unclean cell? 

MR. GRANUCCig Objection, Your Honor. That question 

9 is rather compound and complex. 

10 MR. COHLERg I will try to make it very,simple. 

11 THE COURT g I think the Doctor understands it. 

12 THE WITNESS~ I will answer it. It is a compound and 

U complex question. There is nothing served by leaving him 

u in there in a dirty state, but on the other hand there may 

W be a problem as ·to whether we can ask another inmate to 

~ clean hi.s cell when we don't have enough staff to more tha 

~ barely sup~rvise tbe .situation. So it may be impr~ctical 

18 if he will not clean his own cell, which ·is done by all of 
I. . . -

19 the other non.psyc.hotic inmate-s. 

MR. COHLER: Your ·Honor, I will have"to move to strike 

21 the ,., as is done by all the other nonpsychotic inmates. n 

~ There is no foundation for that observatioQ. 

23 MR. GRANUCCI g ·I think there is a foundation. 

~ THE COURTg Motion is. denied. 
; 

25 MR. COHLER~ Q. Doctoru again excluding the situation 
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where the inmate in the cell cannot be moved for one reason 

or anot~er so that tHe cell may be cleaned, and it may be 
' . 

compound--you said it was compoundo and you said that there 

was no purpose to be served, but there may be circumstances$ 

Let _me break it down. 

I am_ referring only to purposes. r;_:~- legitimate pur­

pose is served, in your opinion as a psychiatrist and based 

upon your experience in the institution, by leaving an in-

mate in an unclean cell? 

Another purpose might be, as I have. answered, is 

ll that it would be against the best interests of staff-inmate 

~ relationship to ask some other inmate to clean his cell if 

13 he won i t do it w 

14 Q. How.about having the staff clean his cell? 

lo We don 1 t have that many staff. 

16 Q .• There are so many unclean cells that you don't 

H have enough staff ·to-keep ~hem clean? 

18 MR-. GRANUCCig OJ:?jection. 

~ THE WITNESS~ No. 

2o THE COUR'l'; Sust.ainedo 

21 THE WI'l'NESS:· ~here isnwt. enough staff to conc~~vably 

~ ~lean the cells. In o-wing there is usually not more:than 
. . . . .... ., 

f 

23 two offi.cers assigned downstairs duritng the day, and maybe 

24 two upstairs, and they are occupied by the movement of 
) 

~ inmates. And we don't have enough time any place in the 
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MR. GOHLERg ·Q .• I started out excluding a situation 

where an inmate can 1 t be moved for one reason or another 

so his cell may be cleanedo I would also like_to exclude 

the administrative problem of finding ~eople to do it. 

putting a-side those two factors, based on your experience 

as a psychiatrist and particularly within this institution, 

is there a~y legitimate purpose to be served by leaving an 

inmate in an unclean cell? 

MR. GRANUCClg Your Honoro I wonder if I could request 

counsel to make that question more specific. He talks 

about unclean cells. It could conceivably be relevant as 

whether the inmate dirtied the cell himself or nota 

MRa COBLER: I want to find out if it is. I will ask 

it generally o If the Docto~· so feels,~ill so state. 

THE WITNESS: What I think has now been done is, you 

have made the question--you have removed so many·elements 
. 

of the 1 real situatioq that the question can no longer be 

answered u because. it is not a practi·cal question. 

a--

MR. COBLER: -~ Y6u donit feel quali~ied to answer as 
~ 

MR. GRANUCCI g Objection as to _t~e form o£ the qu~stio 

Your Honor. 

THE COURTg sustained. 

MR. COHLER: Q. can you explain your answero Doctoi, 
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why you canut answer the question? 

'Z 
If the inmate"has dirtied his own cell and is not 

3 
psychotic, then a staff problem, a staff-inmate problem 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

exists for us to ask--and an inmate to inmate relationship 

problem exists, the relationship between that inmate and 

the man who is going to have to do the cleaning--that we 

have to be careful that we don•t ask an inmate to do some-

thing which he might feel is degrading. He might clean up 

9 hls own cell. but he might not want t6 clean up the mess 

W of somebody else, and this is a touchy point and one we 

ll have to observe. 

12 Q .. Let me ask it this way, Doctor: Based 1.,1pon your 

~ professional experience as a psychiatrist and your ex-

~ perience in this institutiong do you feel the potential 

~ difficulties and problems of the staff-inmate and the inma e 

~ inmate nature which you have just described outweigh the 

~ potential difficulties and absence of purpose to·b~ served 

~ in lea~ing a man in an unclean cell? 

l9 MRo GRANUCCI ~ •. Objection to the ·form of the question, 
<~.,; 

m becatise the question is incomplete. It ~oes'not--agai~, 
~· n in the hypothetical· question,. it is not clea~ or certain 

22 whether the in.:mate dirtied the c~l+ ·,or . not, whether i ~ was 
I 

~ dirtied by another inmatea whether the inmate ~as capable 

M of cleaning up the cell, whether the inmate was willing ·to 
_, 

~ clean the cell~ 
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MR. CO.HLER: I will incorporate the factor of the in-
·r ~, 

mate hav-ing dirt·ied the cell himself. That is the only 

factor 1 have heard the Doctor allude to among those you 

mentioned o 

-~ Do you have the question, Doctor? 

A. ~f the inmate dirtied the cell himself. I would 

7 feel t.hat,--and he was willing to clean it up~ and appear 

8 voluntarilYo and.shower, and would so communicate to the 

9 staff, I donvt think we would have any problem getting it 

10 done o 

11 MR. COHLER: Your Honor, I will have to move to strike 

~ it as nonresponsive. 

13 THE COURT: Motion is denied. 

14 MR. COHLER: Q. If the inmate is not willing to clean 

W up his own cell, do you feel that the factor of diffi-

M culties arising out of inmate-staff relationshipsi in ask­

~ ing anothe~ inmat~· to clean up that c~ll 9 outwei~h any 

18 proble)m of the inmate staying in an unclean cell? 

19 A. I feel that the probl~ms of.staff relationship do 
~j 

m out~eigh his inconvenience, yes, indeed. At l~ast, up to 
#"'" 

n the point of he~lt~ beyond which I have not seen. 
'---·-·-·····-

22 

23 

Q. Based on your professional-~xperience and your 

contact with the plai~tiff Mr. Jdrdan, do you feel he 
~ ~·. 

could be aided by psychiatric help? 
)' 

25 Yes, I think he couldo But he hasn 8 t become 



1 

2 

5 

4 

5 

6 

209 00591. 
amenable yet to current methodologies or with the staff 

.. 
which is uvailable. There are only in the United States 

a little more than 50 psychiatrists who have any associa-

tion with the penal institutions of that numbe~i 25 are in 

thiS State, and only a half of one of those is at Soledad. 

so there ~re problems in regard to applying ourselves to 

7 him, and even--many psychiatrists frankly state that this 

8 type of problem is not even approachable. I think it is. 

9 And I have maintained my ·interest in Soledad because I 

w think the problem of the socialization disorders is the 

u most major problem which is now before us. The threat to 

u society is no longer the bacteria, as it once was in the 

13 Middle Ages. But we are going to have to develop pre-

14 ventive and treatment procedures to handle our socializa-

W tion disorders, or Mr. Hoover can r~port every six months 

M that the crime rate is up. 

MR. COHLER: Thank you,·Doctor. 

\ 

17 

18 
_ ..... ~-0-------- ··-------··--.. -----­.. 

REDI.RECT EXAMINATION 

19 BY MR. GRANUCCI: 

20 Q. Doctor, you te~tified on both diiect ~nd cross 
~ 

U that during your vi~its t~ the Adjustment Center over your 

22 period of working at Soledad you_ ~-x.al!lined the conditio.ns of 
.. ,_; 

23 cleanliness. 

24 

25 Q. 

Yes. 

Within the past six months, have you noticed any 
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change in the conditions of cleanliness, either for the· 

good or _for wor$e? 

Ao ·I have noted the appearance of the plastic wash-

basins and so on--

Q. I am talking about the cleanLiness, physical clean-

11ness? 

Actually, no significant change. 

Q. Nowo counsel asked you a number of questions about 

9 inmates in dirty cells. When you attempted to answer those 

w questions, were your answers based on the ~ssumption that 

u the inmate had dirtied the cell himself? 

12 Yes. I might add here that the record reflects 

~ that he was not a good housekeeper even when he was in the 

u general population. As a matter of fact, I have writ~en 

w that into my report as being one of the negative things 

H which we were still unable to overcome. This is material 

17 elicited from him ·.in. our discussions. 

W ~l Dr. Hack, yo? mentioned on cross-examinati6n that 

19 there was an incident involving a ·number of inmates on a· 

~ destructive rampage a· few days befo~~ H£s Hohoi appearid 

21 

22 

23 

at the 

Ao 

Q. 

institutio"h.- · Is that 

That is right~ 
" 

In your p:r::o:fessiona'l 

~ related to this case? 

25 Ao I think it was9 yes. 

correct? 
.r ,, . 

judgment, was that i'ncident 
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Q. How so? 

A. I think ~t w~~ of a d~monstration type venture. 

r think that was a part of the motivationo 

RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY M.Ro COHLER: 

Q .• Doctor, you mentioned that Mr. Jordan had been 

7 somewhat of a housekeeping problem, that he has told you 

8 that himself. That was related to the spr~ading of news-

9 papers around his cell, not human body waste 6 wasn 9 t it? 

10 

ll 

A. That is right. 

MR. COHLER: Thank you. 

12 MRo GRANUCCI: Your Honor, I have no further questions 

~ of this witness, but he would ce~tainly be willing to answer 

14 of His Honor 1 s questions. 

~ THE COURT: ·I have a very few counsel. 

M I will be as brief as I can, Doctor. Doctor, have you 

~ made any requests recently or in the course of you~ ex-
.. 

~ perienqe at Soledad for additional help in your field of 

19 psychiatry? 

W THE WITNESS: Yes,· annually. The pr6ble~ is that 

21 psychiatrists seenf""'to like metropolitan areas. We have ha 

-~ quite a pr~blem in recruiting. The~~ h•s o~ly b~6n o~e 
I 

~~ actual assigned psy6hiatrist there since the ins~itution 

124 was opened. I am, at this moment, however, considering · 
I 

I~ dropping my private practice and -have made application to 
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work. full time Q l 

THE GOURT: "' But you do put in a pretty full week, 

5 nevertheless? 

4 THE WITNESS: That is right. 

r 5 THE COURT: A four~day week? 

6 THE WITNESS: It is five days, a half a day. 

7 THE COURT: In your opinion, was Soledad Facility 

' 8 conceived or otherwise constructed· for the housing of the 

. 9 criminally insane? 

10 THE WITNESS: No. 

11 THE COURT: What, if any, facilities do you have for 

12 that, Doctor? 

13 THE WITNESS: We can handle limited acute psychotic 

14 problems, which often happen. An inmate may suddenly 

15 develop an acute psychosis. we can house him in one or . . 

16 two places, either the upstairs Adjustment Center, above 

17 the area of which we a-re speaking, which is mainly used fo 

~ transients, for peopl~ who are in protective custody 

19 situations, nonviolent type persons. . !le can house th~m 

~ there. Or we can house· them in the hospital. ·And under 

21 medication, which i~ ·one of the. things we do, the standard 

22 

23 

24 

25 

of tranquilizing and psychotrophic_drggs are- used, probabl 

in the Adjustment Center to the largest extent than any 

part of the institution, so that we can handle them at lea 

until we see that they are either going to improve or they 
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l 
are beyond our capacity, in which case we are immediately 

able to _trans fer them. 

THE COURT: Doctor, during the course of your testimony 

4 thiS afternoono you have dilated and discussed at some 

5 length the question of cleanliness as it may be intertwined 

6 with the psychiatric features that are involved in connec-

7 tion with an inmate or a cell or the like. 

8 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

9 THE COURTg Directing your attention to the solitary 

10 aspects of the so -called strip cells, do you agree with 

u the concept that notwithstanding solitary, that a certain 

~ degree of cleanliness should prevail? 

13 THE WITNESS: Yes, it should. 

14 THE COURT: May I ask you, Doctor, what if any re-

15 

16 

117 
I 
18 

commendations ha~e you made duri~g your post or during you 

career at thi• facility with respect to any devices that 

might be used by the inmates and/or th~ deviqes that might 

be installed in the cells, looking towards cleanliness? 

~ THE WITNESS: None specificaliy, ·since-th~ cells were 
e . • ' ' . ~ 

m constructed on lines which already provided_fo~ minimal 

21 needs 6 and I knew 6f· no other devices which might aid an 

n inmate who had already destroyed.~- cell which provided-

23 generally--

24 

25 

THE COURTg Let us forget momentarily the cells that 

were destroyed. confine yourself·to my question. 
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THE WITNESS: Yes" 

THE COURT: Doctor, have you ever permitted yourself 

3 to be locked momentarily in a strip cell? 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

ll 

12 

15 

14 

THE WITNESS: No, I have--that is--I have ~ot, no. 

THE COURT: I take it that if you had not permitted 

yourself ~o be locked momentarily in a strip cell, you have 

not permitted yourself to be locked in a strip cell with 

the flaps up? 

THE WITNESS: No, but there is--

THE COURT~ Will you answer the question·, Doctor. 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

THE COURT: What is the answer? 

THE WITNESS: No, I have not. 

THE COURT: Doctor, are you familiar with the general 

~ mode or method of the elimination of waste matter in the 

16 strip cells? 

17 THE WITNESS: Yes •. 

18 THE}COURT: How a~e waste matters eliminated? How are 

~ they eliminated, 09ctor, bodily· w~ste· ~atte~? 
. ' 

1 THE WITNESS: _Bodily waste,matter is deposited in a 

21 single opening whic"h ·has to be .hand flushed .. 

22 was in th:~ floor. 

N THE COURT: So-dalled Oriental·type? 

The ope'ning 

24 THE WITNESS: So...;called Oriental type, yes. · 

i25 
i 

THE COURT: In the center of the cell? 
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l 
THE WITNESS: Well, no, to the rear, to the right rear, 

,, 

2 
normally-where the commode would be in the normal isolation 

3 cell, with an opening. And this is where the material 

4 would have to be placed, and then a staff :m,ember has to go 

6 through, or normally. had to go through and make a flushing 

6 

7 

8 

of that device~ Since there is--there may be a way to--

one of the problems is f~ooding in that area--

THE COURT: All right, Doctor. Will you pause for a 

9 moment and consider yourself inside one of the cells in 

W question with the flaps up. Do you concede that there isn 1 

11 any light in the cell, Doctor? 

12 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

~ THE COURT: It is absolutely dark. 

14 THE WITNESS: Not quite, because these are not, as the 

~ so-called solitary confinemetit c~lls of former years where 

16 there was no light. There is a slight seepage of light. 

17 

18 

19 

THE COU~T: Very ~light~ 

THE1 WITNESS: Very slight. 

THE COURT: M~ndful of the.conditions under which a 
• L ~ 

W man i~ confined in a c~ll in question, how ~o ~ou propose 
~ 

0 he maintain his pers6nal bodily cleanl~ness, his hands and 

22 the like? 

~ THE WITNESS: He is·~rovided ~ith--is provided with 

~ the toilet t{ssue. He is supposed to be r~rnoved to be--, 

~ he is suppos~d to be removed to be showered. 
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1 THE COURT: When? And.how often? 

2 
THE WITNESS: I believe at least every five days was 

3 the minimum. 

4 THE COURT:; So for a period of five days 6 at least, 

5 his body, if he is stripped, and his hands equally, would 

6 be the subject of some degree of contamination. Isnit 

7 that correct'? 

8 THE WITNESS: Yes, but as--

9 THE COURT: Is it correct, Doctor, or is it not? 

wl THE WITNESS: For a period o£ five days he possibly 

11 might be quite soiled. 

12 THE COURT: Yes. And quite contaminated. 

~ THE WITNESS: Yes. 

14 THE COURT: Of course, you observed those conditions 

~ from time to time when you 16oked into the strip cell, did 

16 you not, Doctor'? 

17 THE WITNESS: Yes, e~cept that generally _speaking only 

18 a few o}f the strip cells were occupied, and it _is not my 
. . 

~ impression that people staye4 continuqusly in the cells 

"'20 that long. 

21 THE COtJRT: As a matter of· fact, Dqc-tor, your observa-

~ tions wer~ not regarding cleanline~s; w~re they; btit rathe 
! 

~ the psychiatric field? Isn't that true? 

24 THE WITNESS: Main+y psychiatric. But I afu concerned 

~ about the cleanliness. Here is a medical problem. 
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THE COUR'l"g ~ Doctor, you said that excrement on the 

walls and the l~~e, or about the cells6 might well oc-

casion you to conclude or make a finding that the inmate 

might possibly be regarded as psychotic. How would you 

make ·a differentiation between a psychotic inmate and one 

who by re~son of the lack of light and lack of other 

facilities became more or less dirty with his own filth? 

How would you make the distinction? 

THE WITNESS: Well, the psychotic-inmate has a definit 

sort of a pattern. As I said, the hebephrenlc schizo-

ll phrenic who reaches the point of smearing walls--

~ THE COURT~ You have used that before. 

~ THE WITNESS: --is a very obvious type of a problem. 

14 THE COURT: That is a specific problem, Doctor. That 

~ is a specific problem that is ordinarily rather remote, 

16 isn 1 t it? It is not the usual . 

17 

l8 

THE WITNESS: 
) 

THE COURT: 

. . 

It. is not the usual, no .. 

It is>not a pattern of conduct that 

19 ordinarily you would find in .an inmat~ confined in this 

~ type institution? It is a bizarre sort of thiftg, isn't it. 

U THE WITNESS: Yes. But it"does occur. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

THE COURT.: Not quite often thoug'h. 

THE WITNESS: Not often •. 

THE COURT~ Letis ~onfine ourselves ~o the cell in 
. A 

question, to the degree of light, to the· lack of 
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cleanliness, to the lack of apparent facilities for a man· 

to either bathe or was·h his hands. I address the question 

j again to 'you, Doctor, mindful of your constant surveillance 

4 over these cells or at least casual surveillance: Did you 

6 at any time during the course of your career make a re-

6 commendation regarding any device of facility that might 

7 be used by· the inmate? 

8 THE WITNESS: No devices or facilities. I have made 

9 the recommendation that he ought to be taken out and 

10 cleaned· one way or another. 

11 THE COURT: That the inmate ought to be taken out? 

12 THE WITNESS: That the inmate ought to be taken out and 

13 the cell should be cleaned. 

14 THE COURT: was that prompted by a physical observation 

15 you made of any inmate? 

THE WITNESS: 

THE COU:RT: ~ Wil~ you state the nam~ or identity of the 

inmate., 

THE WITNESS: I don • t know .. 
~ ~ 

THE COURT: what was the condition of· his·body? 
' ,, 

l8 

19 

20· 

21 THE WITNESS: Ff.I entered a cell and the cell smelled 

22 badly, I feel this is:.ari unhealthful. situation. As was 

23 rnade an effort at CMF, as I have a.lluded--

24 

25 

THE COURT: Is it not true, notwithstanding the stenc-h 

or smell, many of these inmates were perm~tted to and 
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forced to eat their meals in that stench and odor? 

THE WITNESS: I don't know as they were forced to. 

rt is tru~ that if they were going to eat, that they might 

have to eat under those circumstances& 

THE COURT: They wouldnut go to the cafeteria, would 

they? 

THE WITNESS: No. 

THE COURT: Do you know, from your records or your own 

knowledge, Doctor, whether any of the strip cell inmates 
'""~-

received or had the privilege of using the showers at any 

time? 

THE WITNESS: As far as I know, they have, yes. I 

u made direct recommendations that they be moved and showere • 

14 THE COURT: Do you know whether your recommendations 

~ were ever carried out, Doctor? 

16 THE WITNESS: No. except that I have seen that the 

~ inmates were clean or the cells vacated.the next time I 

W appeared. And I know that we have had no pneurnonias; 

~ enteric diseases or other infection~ as a result of this. 
.. ~.: {;. 

2Q THE COUR!l': I have no further questions. 

21 MR. COHLER: No"'""'further questions, Your Honor. 

22 MR. GRANUCCI: I hav~ no further questio~s. May th~ 

I witness be excused? 

24 THE COURT: Certainly. 

25 MR~ GRANUCCI: Thank you. 

(Witness excus~d.) 
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j 

' 
5 

220. 
THE COURT: Do you have additional witnesses for 

tomorrow, counsel? 

MR. GRANUCCI: Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: We will start at 10:00 o'clock and we 

will run to 5:00 o 1 clock tomorrow. 

MRo GRANUCCI: That is certainly agreeable with us. 

MR. COHLER: Certainly. 

6 

7 

8 MR. GRANUCCI: I certainly- don't think we will conclude 

9 our side of the case by tomorrow. 

10 THE COURT: Then we will have to run a h~lf a day 

11 Thursday. I have other commitments on Thursday. 

12 MR. GRANUCCI: Fine, Your Honor. 

13 MR.- COHLER: Thank you, Your Honor. 

14 (Whereupon the hearing was adjourned until 10:00 

15 o 1 clock a.m., August 17 1966.) 

M --ooo--
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